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OVERVIEW

At the heart of our community

Fuller's pubs and hotels have been at the heart of their communities for over
175 years and the coronavirus pandemic has brought the special place that pubs
hold in the nation’s heart to the fore. During the past year, our pubs and the
amazing teams that work in them have fed key workers, looked after the homeless,
run community stores and helped cut at vacaine centres.

But communities are not just your focal neighbourhood. Our team members
are a community of their own, as are our customers, our suppliers and our
shareholders. Alf are of equal iImportance and throughout this report we want
to show you how we work with those communities.

Never has the enduring appeal of the great British pub been so strong and,
across the Fuller's estate, we are looking forward to continuing to serve
our comrmunities for many years toc come.




Financial and Operational Summary

Reuihent performance 1n an extraordinary year that started and ended with our entire
pub estate clased, and with socia' distancing for 16 months to date

Clasure of the entire estate for average of 71% of the year due to Covd restrictions

High customer demand while sites were oper gves s confidence in our ability

to rebound strongly a5 rastrictions are cascd

Business remains lirm'y underpinned by our predominately frechold estate of iconc,

high quality pubs and hotels

Proactive £52 million' 2quity 1ssue xucccssru”y comp\clod n /\pr\| 202% o0 stroﬂgther“
the Balance Sheet and ensura the Ccmpjmy exits the p.mdomwc in the bost
possible position

Mo full year dvidend prapased in light of pandemic impact on trading perfermance,
but intention to return ta progressive dvidend policy at the appropriate ure,

1 Netof expenses,
Strategic Update
Conzinued investmenl in our predominately freehold estate during penicds of enforced

closure to ensurc we reopencd in excellent condibion, including 10 transformutional
re‘urbishment schemes and one rew operung - The White Horse, Wemnbley

Streng perlormance n our notels and pubs with rooms, when ~estricusns permitted,
benelit rg from a strong beorn in staycations

Completed the integration of Cotswold Irns & Hotels, which has del vered
irrmedinte benefity

Tramsitional Services Agreement waith Asabisuccessfully completed

Successful roll out of dgital salutions such ax Order & Pay and enhancea central booking

system, improving the d'g'ta! custamer journey

Stresmlined tearns both ot house level and 1n our support certre ready ta deliver

future growth

FY2021 =Y A

£m o

Revenue and other inccme 734 319.7
EBITDA (13.1} 539
é;oup statutery (loss)iprofit before tax (59.2) 166.2
Basic {loss)/earrings per share” (87.31p 5.81p
Adjusted Jowiprofil before ax @8] 19.4
Net debt excluding lease habil ties- 2181 178.9

All figures above are from continuing operations except for Group statutery (loss)profit before tax which
includes discontinued operations.

1 Earnings before separately disclosed stems, interest, tax, depreciation and amartisation.

2 Per 40p ‘A'or C ordinary share.

3 Adjusted (loss)/profit before taxis the (loss),‘proﬂt before tax excluding separately disclased iterns.

4 Net debt comprises cash and short-term depasits, bank overdraft, bank loans, CCFF, debenture stock
and preference shares.

SULTER S ANNUA el

Chorman's Stitement 2
Aty Glince o]
Chie’ Exerutiie's Review 10 W
=
“or Buninees Modo : N
Ciur Business Model 16 o=
Dur Strateg, [
- . 5}
Financial Revica 22 0
. o
Prircipal Rsks snd Uncertantios 28 3
= N 5]
Section 172 Stilerment 31 o
Stikeholder Engigement 32
Carperatz Sozul Responsibilit, 34
MNor Finaraal Infarmatian Sratement 29
Ecird of Dirocrors 40 8]
o]
Chrectors Report 42 <
re p 3
Directors Responsibilities Statement 45 3
a
Corparate Go.ernance Report 40 (9)
Audit Commettes Report 51 °
Direciers Remuner suor Report o6
independent Auditor's Report e the M
tMembers of Tuller, S th & Turner PLC 73 >
, S
Group ‘ncome Satement 87 b
Group Statement of Comprehensr.e Income fate] ;
Group B4 ance Sheet 30 5
=1
Company Bilince Sheet N %
Group Ststement of Changesin Eguity 92 2
Compan, Stitement of Changesin Equir, EE i
Groun Uash Flaw Statement G4l
Compin, Cash Flos Statement 95
Nates te the F nancial Statements 6
Sharehotder Informatior 152 T
[al
Glossary, 153 =
g
Five Yosrs' Progross 154 Sl
3
=
@]
5
3
=
]
3



I'm not sure that even the most robust

of business continuity exercises could have
prepared us, the industry or the country,
for the year that we have just endured.
Being Chairman of a closed hospitality
business has been challenging througheut,
frustrating most of the time, and yet often
very rewarding due to the amazing team
of people that work at Fuller’s.

larr defighted to see the way Srmon and the
Executive Team have used this extraord.nary
penad of enforced closure Lo review, plan
ard imp erment new ways of working, which
has enabled the Company to emerge from
the pandemie an even stronger business,
Trc roll out of dgtal intistives such 2y
Order & Pay mprove the experience for
our customers and are developments that
add value to the business,

teanwhi’e, the investment we have made
in providing stunning beer gardens and
cuts de trading space has ncreased the
number of covers in seme of our most
pepdlar pubs and will make the alfresco
expenerce more appealing for cur
customers throughout the whole year.

We have kept all cur pecple at aur heart
duning the last year - thoseinour pub-
and hotels, the support contre tesm, and
our Tenants - providing support roa wide
varigty of forms | am proud of the actions
the team have tuken dur‘ﬁg the yosr from
the decision to top up furlough payments
to ensure everyone recened 80% of ther
wages and the sd‘dry sacrifice madein the
first lockdown by the Beard and Exccutive
Team, to the suspens.on of commereial
rent for our Tenants.

Our People Tearm has provided access Lo
emotional and linarcial support for team
members who necd 1t and access Lo online
Lraining for thase team mambers whe
wanted an additional stimulus during the
|O’—]g mDr\‘J’T\ C)r ‘OdeO\Nr’, AAC‘(‘]"TV.’hl‘Q
SH—T—‘-DH hd\ PrOV\dEd reguLir VldCO I];'Og\ 1
keep the entre team informed, up to date
and, frequently, entertared whi e our
team members and Tenarts have p|,—ayed
active roles in therr cammunities pravidng
mefj‘ﬁ For the hOme‘eSS‘ working N wAaCone
centres and undertaking numerous
velurteenng opportunites,

During the year, we announcad the
depdrlure of our Finance Dhrector
Adam Courcell, who will be returning
ta the services sectar later in the year

“Fuller’s i1s a company
that has always prided
itself on its long-term
strategy and vision, and
that continues to stand
us in good stead and
remains unchanged”

Equity raise net of expenses

£52m

Covid Corporate Financing Facility
accessed

£100m
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Adurn has made an impartant and wilued
cantrbution to Fuller's durirg ore of the
most difficult ehapters s bistory and
we thank him and wish him well in his new
role. Post yedr Cﬂd‘ WO WOre dehghted

ta announce that Neld Smitn, ahighly
experignced Finance D rector whe has
spent much of his career in the pub sactor,
walll bejommg us laterin the year. Nelwal'
be an excallent addition to Fulicrs, the
EXeCUt\VE‘ T?-im (lﬂd T,}_‘e B\:)drd E‘]nd W |OOk
forward to we\corﬁlr‘g him o the Fuller’s
family and working closely w'th him in

the future.

Fuller’s s a cormpany thas has always prided
iself on s long-ter strategy and vision,
ard that continues to stand us in good
stead and remains unchanged. Our
predominately freeho'd estate provides
the base for cur business and, while we
may tweak the tactics in the short term

te reflect ever-chunging situations, we dre
excited obout gatt ng back en track to
continue to del ver our lorg term stratagy
and return to growth

Trdd\r\g \N't}_‘ \DCh]l d\ﬂtx‘”‘lc\ﬂg I~ ‘lk[‘

trading with ore arm oehind your back and,
Ia) \\gh[ of the yedr we hdeJust cndured,
we b sve bad to Lake actions thal are
outade the narm These include the equity
ra'se undertdker at the starl of the new
financial yedr and the decsion not to
propose a dvidend this yoar reglise the
latter s disappoinung for our sharenaolders
and | thank them for therr ongoirg
understanding in these difficult imes.

The Board recognises the importance

of dividends to our shareholders and hopes
to resume dividend payments once the
business is again trading profitably on

4 sustaned basis.

| would [ke to thark all my colleagues at
Fuller’s for ther loyalty and perseverance
in the face of this unprecedented
pandemic, and their enthusiasm to get
Back Lo their rale of welcoming and
entertaining our custormers once agan,

dae/ “Tone)

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

g July 2021
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STRATEGIC REPORT

At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR CUSTOMERS

Creating beautiful, future proof
spaces so families and friends can

reunite and relax

The various restrictions imposed during the year on our
business have been difficult to negotiate for both cur teams
and our custemers — but out of adversity comes innovation

and adaptation. Gardens have become more important
than ever snd we've carried out a wide range of investments
in our pub gardens and outside spaces during the year with
gazebas, purpose built structures and jumberellas making

these beautiful spaces even better - like this one at
The Mayfly in Stockbridge. Going out and staying out

has never been mare enjoyable.
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OUR PURPOSE:

Happy teams serving
happy custormers

OUR VISION:

We create exceptional
experiences full

of style and spirit -
characterful pubs and
hotels where everyone
feels they belong...
and where people
leave happier than
when they arrived

The Antelope, Belgravia

Domg the right thing has never been more
l'mPOrtant ond our teams have strived to ensure
that we keep our customers - ond ourselves - sofe
and secure with additional cfeamng. face masks
and lashings of sonitiser,

STRATEGIC REPORT

At a Glance

QOUR YALUES:

1. Doing things

.

the right way

Deep pride and genuine enjoyment
for the business we're in

Integrity, quality, care and attention
to detail in everything we do

« Total dedication and passion for

just doing things in the right way

everything we do

Alsc about deing the right thing, not

- Bringing a positive ‘can de’ attitude to

The Alice Lisle, Ringwaod

any challenge, always going above and
The Fuller's family 1s 6 huge collection of smolfer

beyond for our customers.
families - in each one of eur pubs and hotels.

2. Being part of the family

« A‘family business', in the
broadest sense

+ Bringing a family ethos and feeling
to how we work - one team pulling
together, in each pub and hotel, and
also together across Fuller’s

- A warm sense of be|onging - everyone
together, including eur customers

- Where every member of the family is
valued for bringing something special

+ Looking out for each other, in
awarm environment built on trust
and empawerment

» Supporting and respecting each other..
and challenging when needed

« Taking the long-term view, not always
about short-term gain.

3. Celebrating individuality

+ Nurturing the individuality, spirit

and unique character of each persan,
pub and bedroom, because that's
what makes us special

Believing that it’s the individuals

who create a great experience...

and make that experience come alive

- Embracing the freedom of thought,

creativity and diverse persenalities
that make us who we are

Where everyane can be who they are...
and make a real difference.

6
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4. Always asking

what’s next?

Always asking what’s next?... for

our people, for our customers,

fer our pubs and hotefs

+ Arestless passion to continugusly
improve, experiment and make
things better

» Enccuraging new ideas and
creativity in our people

= Outward looking, in touch with
our market and customers

- Always changing for the better,
but never changing for change's sake

+ Embracing the best from our past,

thinking creatively about our future.

Number of employees at year end

3,/64

The Swan, Cotswold Inns & Hotels
Our purchose of Cotswold Inns & Hotels included
The Swan at Bibury, one of the ared’s true gems.

The Bear, Oxford

Well, we do encourage peaple to celebrote their
individuality, as can be seen here at The Bear in
Oxford - whaever the masked bear 15, we promise
the welcome will be friendly.

Managed Pubs and Tenanted Inns (%)

Fuller's Managed Pubs and Hotels within 2%

the M25

Fuller’s Tenanted Inns within the M25 13%

Fuller’s Managed Pubs and Hotels 23%

outside the M25

Fuller's Tenanted Inns outside the M25 32%
Revenue by division (%)

Fuller’s Tenanted Inns 13%

Fuller’s Managed Pubs and Hotels 87%
Analysis of Managed revenue - Rural/Suburban/Urban (%}

Rural 30%

Suburban 48%

Urban 22%

Our geographic reach throughout the South East
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SUPPORTING OUR NEIGHBOURHOODS

Keeping doors open to serve
and support the local community,
and to provide more than just

a place to eat and drink

When the Government closed pubs in March 2020,
The Red Lien, Ealing decided to find a way to keep the doors
open. Licensee Edin Basic, acutely aware of his role in the
community and his reputation for great Italian food, decided
to build on this with a community store, in the pub,
majering on cutstanding ltalien produce. With rosemary
focaccias, freshly baked by Edin every morning, Parma ham,
antipasti and a wide range of Italian cheeses, fa dolce vita
remained very much present in this quiet corner

of West London.

9
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As | write this, the country is still awaiting

the start of the return to normality, and
we look back on a year that started and
ended with our entire pub estate closed.
During the year, we have traded for the
equivalent ofjust 29% of the financial
year — and this is reflected in our fiscal
performance with revenue' down 77%

to £73.2 million {2020: £316.0 million).

Apainst this backdrop, b want to start this
review of the year oy paying tnbute to the
incredible team of peaple that work at
Fuller's. Fram my Executive Tearn to a'l
our Leam members im our pubs, hotels and
support centre, and our Tenarts, all have
dealt with the ups and downs of the past
year with positraty and optimism - Flling
their tme during the many penods of
Turlough by working at vacaine centres,

as delivery drvers, in food banks or serving
and supporting their local communities

AL various tmes, we have had 95% of the
whele team furloughed and whenever we
have been ready te open up again, they
have been match it and delivered a great
Fuller’s experence in tne mosi chalienging
of circumstances, | would ke to personally
thank them all most whole -hesrtedly for
their dedication, corrmitment and loyalty

We hove now reopened the ertire estate,
albers with continued scaial distancing and
table service restrictions, and have used the
oast year wise'y — nvesting in our pubs ard
haotels, accelerating digital prgjects and
ngntsizing cur teams White it may have
been an unusudl yedrin terms of revenue,
we have ererped in the best possible
position operationally ¢s the country stands
ready to begn shaking off the spectre

of coronavirus,

We started the year with a clear strategy,
purpose and vision While the pandermic
may have altered the short-term tactical
actwity that delivers the strategy, the
overarching principles are unchanged.
Ths clear focus, wimed at delivering
sustainab'e returns for the lamg term,

15 as relevant 4s ever and with our pubs
and hotels recpened and tmdmg agan,
we are optimistic about the future.

1 From continuing operations,

“Loocking after our
teams and Tenants
has been a priority
during the pandemic
and communication
has been at the heart
of that”

Revenue and other income

£/3.4m

Capital investment

£16.5m

1
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Prudent approach to navigating

the pandemic

Durlng Lhe y[‘dr \Jr\dc‘r rEV\C‘\N‘ Wi haVC
dccessed the varnious Governmaent relief
And coronavirus SUPPOrt medsuras
avalable, For much of the year, we have
had 8% of cur team members on the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
(*CJR5") with the Company topping up
ol salanies to BO%, We ulso putinplace
P00 millinr of £ |nr1-ng H'\rrj\ugh the Coud
Corporate Fmancing Facility ("CCF#")
and have benefited from the varous grart.
that have been on offer, the suspension
of business rates and the hospitalty VAT
reduction. We are grateful for afl of these
measures, but despite this our average
cash burn duning the periods of totul
closure has been £4-5 millon per month.
With the periads of enfarced closure
lasung lenger than anyone cou'd have

n‘m‘_lc?p-chd and 4 commitment to oxit.
the pﬂdem\c In 4 POHIUOH ol ‘,chnélh‘
we decided at the ena of the financyal
year to undertake an cquity rame,
successfuly gererating £52 mill on

of mel proceeds in April 2021,

!
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Looxing after cur teams and Tenants
has been a pronty during the pandemic
and cormmunication has been at the
hesrt of that, We 'ed the industry in
cancelling commercial rent ahead of tne
Government's enforced closure and this
was very weall receved. For aur teams

i our Managed Pubs and Hotels, and

i the support centre, the Fuse dgital
commnunication system we |mp\emer'ted
pack in 2017 proved to be u popular and
vseful tool, providing a quick and instant
way to share information and videa
messapes, which have been really well
recaed. We also hosted o number of
wehinars when we had more detaled

S‘IUOL‘UGWU]S |L’I3UL’U\J

information ta impart and these bocame

a regular fixture prior to each reopening
The success of theve webinars has comented
their place in our communications toolkit
and s another positive learning that we wll
take forward.

One of the areas we nave pad particular
attention Lo is the health and wellbeing
of our teams dunng the pandemic,

UOI]E’LLJJOJLI] ‘[’uOI]IpP\/



STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive’s Review continued

Through Fuse, we have shared hints, tips and
courses on coping «nd regularly promated
the wide range of support on ofer from

the Licensed Trade Charity. We prowidad
supermarket vouchers for those most
impacted during the teugh third lockdown.
The response from our team members

has been very positive. We alsc provided
Fuller's vouchers to team members wno
volunteered in ther local cormunities while
Furioughed for therm to share with ther
feliow volunteers by way af thanks.

On reopening our estate, we tock

a rabana’ approach, Decsions were taken
on a site by site basis and were based an
the data avalable from o range of sources
bothinterral and external - an sppreach
which a'lowed us to mimmise lasses for the
periads n which the estate was par tally
reopened. Following the last lockdovn,
we reopened 121 Managea Pubs and
Hotels on or sooa a®ter 12 Aprl 2021 sth
outside trading only, with the remainder
of the estute opening on 17 May 2071

Paositioning the business

for long-term growth

At the star: of the year, we completed the
intogration of the support Functions for
both Be! & The Dragon and Cotswald
Inrs & Hetels, and the delivery of the
Transitional Services Agreement (“TSA™)
with Asaht We 4'so comoleted the sae of
the Stable Pizza and Cider Lirnited ("The
Stable"), aleasehold busines., Lo Three
Joes Thes streamhined the business and
allows us to facus on the areas that will
drive our growth ir the future.

Theve actions, combined with the sale of
the Fuiler’s Beer Business in Apnil 2019,
provided an cppertunity ta mnske Further
changes in cur central furctions - creating
2 leaner, more efficient, support centre
team designed to assist o dedicates pubs
and hotels business

This exeraise was completed in the first baf
of the year and we are canfident we have
the nght people in the ngnt places to
cortnue te grow the Business 1 the future
both orgimca\ly, and thrcug)" acqu-sitizng
and developments ot the appropriate tirme.
We also reviewed the size ard composinen
of our t2yms al house leyol and, a|though
we ~ade a rurrker of redurdancies, thase
were kept o mirimum As part of ths
exercine, we also seocessiuily redeployed

4 numper of people to other pubs and
hetels withinthe Fuller's eszate.

“The onset of the
coronavirus pandemic
forced us to rethink
our customer journey,
removing contact points
and improving our use

of digital techno|ogy.”

N

Dur‘ng lockdewn we ntroduced a new
range of enline learming opporiumities to
help our tearns develop both personatly
and professionally. The courses were
delvered through Fuse and focused on
wellbeing und developing important life
skills, everything from acquinng news dlgltd‘
skills to Jearming a new lsnguage. During
the year 1,616 courses were completed
with the most popular caurses being
around maraging time, maragng
emotions, and welloeing

Finally, 1o underpin the right team, we
need the nght systers and we have used
the downtime during the year to dent fy
an apprepriate, first class central finance
system. As a result, we will be rolling out
our new Microsoft Business Central
software package in Qctaber this year

- sirphlying our ordering and accounts
processes and crucilly improving the fiow
ard understanding of data to the business.

Innovative solutions for a digital future
The onset of the coronavirus pandemic
forcea us to rethink our customer journey,
removimg contact paints and improving
our use of d gital technology While these
were imp:emented as o solution to an
mmediate problem, the learnings we huve
taken ard the success of Lhese projects,
have now made them 4 permanent feature
of our business

TF‘: pre VIS\E"‘Ouran\/ Is NOW ke)’ to cour
custorrer, from searching and vicwing Lo
booking and ardering. This ercompasses
a myriad of digita' touch points “or the
consumerin both pubs and hotels that.
Lo achieve optimal efficiency and
africtionless journey, all need te be
seamiessly interlinked, This work 15 on
schedile and iritial enhancements in
centrahsed bockings and Order £ Pay
are working well

“he Order & Pay sc uton was put in place
for the initial reopering oF the astate in
auly lastyear. The system, which aliows
custamers 1o 5can a QR code to view the
rmenu, place orders ard pay - 4l wthout
havlr\g 10 leave the table, winrt far a team
mermber, or download an app - pravec
both suzcessful and popular witn team
members and customers We have
wecoessfully rolled th s eut acrass tne
estale and customers tnal use it have
givon ngher Net Promster Scores better
tips for the tear ard migrated Lo more

premium drinks



The irﬂprm’cmcnlx Lo our boc)mmg P‘dl{OTr"l

shorten the customer journey and
auto confirmed booer\gs now account for
ne‘ir‘) Lwo thlrd\ O‘F-i” rE“&er\:dt'Oﬂ‘s rﬂ-Jdi‘.

tMeanwhile, the certra’ siles team has heen

instrumental in encoursging customers 1o
lock outside our peax perieds and, where
necessary. consider alternative Fuller’s
venues to deal with dermand  broadering
our peak trading bmes and reducng lost
sales Dunng July and Aupast last year,
our cenrdl sales tearm delivered over

ore m\“\cm COVOry

At the tal end of 20%9. we adapted aur
daccommodation rﬂdrkc‘ung atralogy to
facus on the damestic tourisrm markeot

a decimon that has been vindicated with

the uplft in staycalions since the outbreak

of the pandemric. Access to this market

bas boen further boostod by scarch cngne

aptimised hotel f raers, focusng an
acquirmg now customers araund key
domest.c ;’WO‘Idd)« ACLILIOS SUSh 48 dog
friendly hatels m the New Fores: This
drove bookings in our hotels and pubs with
raoms and 15 o our accommadation sites
had record accemmodgation wesks despite
the pandermic Inthe Cotsweld lany &
Hotels business, which we acquired in
October 2019, we wor<ed particularly
hard Lo buld a good diginal customer
Jourrey for people booking and eur
succoss s reflected ir the website
conversion rate nsng 28% with 3 19%

ris¢ in direct website revenue,

Thas digizal customer journey underping
our marketing stratepy and key 1o this

s our single customer view database,
During the year this database has grown
by 42% ta 1.6 millicn people, of which
over 500,300 are opted in and fully
contactable. Tnelargest aata sources were
our booking engine, Design My Night,
and Wireless Social, our wifi provider,
The Cotswold Inns & Hotels dotabase
also saw strong growth, increasing by
103%, and we have grown the Fufler's socinl
media audience too during the year with
ncredses acrass Facebock, Twtzer

and lnstagram of 127%, 15% and

20% respectively,

While ur pubs may have been closed lor
much of the yedr, our wobsIte was VOTY
much oper for busingss, We had mare
customer engagement than ever on cur
new pub finders - with waits up 55.7%
aganst the prior year, largely driven by
our Pubs Reopen ng finder.

o

Tempestuous Times

Even coranavirus couldn’t stop our ever popular
Shakespeare in the Garden from taking place.
Never has The Tempest, performed here at The
Windmill in Portishead, been more oppropriate.
{@weareopenbar

Instagram followers

18,300

Number of people on our database

1.6m

13

Lisf S ANNTALNIIORY AML ACIOUNTY 2321

MOV\JOAC}

Atall digital ponts of interaction, we
colectdata  which helps us understand
whal consumers are buying and how they
dre bohdvmg This gives us the nbl\lty to
commuanicate Gdsl\y and EFFIGE’F\‘JY with
our customers and potential custamers
and continues to successiully convert

to incredsec baokings. .Lis supported

by incredibie in-pub sctrty including
Shakespeare in the Garden ind the
farthcoming Comedy cn Tap

Thes mixcof dig tal communications
promoting exciting 'n pub activity drives
spend per head, atiracts new customers,
and provides more reasons for existing
customers tovisit. We wil continue o
monitor which digital ievers trans ateinto
the highest profit and constantly review
and revise our enline communications, while
nat jecparaising the legandary persanal
hospitalty for which Fuller’s s famous

Well-invested pubs in
stunning locations
The lsundation of cur business is our
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oredorminately frechold pub estate and
IPVestmert in the astule s a key tenet

of Fuller’s success. Weile many of our
compelitors suspended their capex
programmes duning the pandermic, we d-d
the opposite mMaxirusing this Oppoftunity
to complete planned rvestments and
bringing forward others to take advantage
during tne enferced crosure,

During the year, we have completed a large
number of investment schemes inciuding
10 transformational refurbishments ar sites
including The Coach & Haorses in Seho,

The Elephart in Finchley, The Fox & Pehcan
at Grayshottin Hampshire and The King's
Arms Haotelin Woadstock We have two
further cngoing schemes that beganin Lthe
ThE Klﬂg-\WDDd Armh
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ast financial year
in Kingswood nesr Benstead, which opened
toweards the end of June, snd The Red Lion
in Wendover, which opened on 7 July 2021
as our seventh Bal & The Dragon site. We
also opened one brand new site dunng the
year - Tne White Horse at Werrbley, in
the shadow of the iconic Wembley Arch
and perfectly poised to benefit from the
delayed European Champicnships.

We have also used the clasure penod

to underiake smaller schemes across
anumber of Cotswold Inns & Hotels

and Be & The Drdgcm sikos, complo[mg

uO\]i‘L.UjOju‘ “"UOI]IPP‘V’

works to further enhance these alre ady
wonderluf properties,
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

The pandermic nas put a firm focus on
outside spaces and pub pardens - which
have scen an increased leve! of investment,
Weirwested heavly in “wintersaton”
projects dunng the year and we will be
investing a further £4 million nover 90
«chemes during this financial year, ready
for the autumn. Outside spaces can now
be pre-booked and our customers are
rnore dccustomed Lo beingin the open arr
With & huge range of Innavative solut ons,
including stretch tents, gant teepees,

huts, sheds and pergolas Lo keep customers
warm and dry, we expect LG see this trerd
contnue. There 1s no doubt that the status
of the puo garden has been elevated and the
develsprrent of, and investmert i, these
gutstanding arcas will ensure that the pub
gardenis row s year round asset, ot just
for enjoymg on the August Bank Holiday

Tenanted Inns

Cur hugh guality Tenanted lrns continae
to play an rmportant strategic role .n our
tulanced estate and, at the vory »tart of
the pandermic, we Look the decision Lo
suspand carmmercial rent for our Tenants
during periods of closure. The benefits
ol this decision are now be.ng realised 4.
our Tenants used the savings to improve
then pubs and have emerged from the
pandermiz debt free and in pale positon
for reopening Wnen trading has been
possible, we have tacen a bespoke view
by pub to ensure - fair and appropriate
rent has been charged

Trroughout the lockdawn, we have kept
our Yenants nformad with tips and tramirg
mistenals to help them through the closure
periods ana to reopen safely and profitably.
We have also prowded support on menta!
health and refunded unopened kegs

and cusks to further he'p with cash flow

Inreturn, our Terants have been quizk 1o
recpen when allowsg. Al opened inauly
2020, slbeis soma wore 4 hittle cauticus
and opened a few weeks after lockdown
ended, but Lne pubs traded very well
during the summer, makirg the most of
the Government’s Eat Out to Help Out
scheme Like the Managed estate, trad rg
s owed as restretions tightaned ir the
witamn, and most pubs streggled threugn
the staggered opering and closirg of

the Ler syster and were already closed
wher the Full lockaown was re rireduced
i January am oeased wo cenfum that

{]:i PUbS Are raw open argd :rddmg "jgalﬂ

During the lockdown, we progressed with
plins toimprove the traming and induction
process for Tenants wih the addition of

s new team rmamber, whese sole focus

i around recraiting new Tenants snd
ensuring they are ful'y inducted and
supported as they start their partnership
with Fuller’s This has been well receved
and has been instrumental inreducing
vacancies in aur Tenanted Inns. ! am
delighted o say that laun Rippon has
proved to be an excelient leader far our
Tenanted Inns business and when our
Teranted pubs started 2o reapen from
April, we did rot have a single vacaney

An evolving and engaging

ESG strategy

This year has seer a majar change inour
approach ta corporale socil responsibility
with an cvalved Erviranmental Social
Govermance CESG™ programme now
irtegra’ Lo our business strategy. Under
the banner of Life is too good to waste,

we have three work streams covering the
snvirenment, our commun-ies and our
peaple. We accnine process of recruiting
adedicated Head of Sustainabilty Lo drive
the ESG programme  and in part cular
the erwironment and community elements,

Eat Qut to Help Out

The Government's Eat Qut to Help Out scheme
definitely helped encourage customers to come
bock to the pub fast August - and it gave us lots
to shout obout an social medra
tEatQuiToHelpOut
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Our new aporoach to addresung E5G well
soe our commitment. Lo those three areas
underpin our strategy, our decision rmaking,
and cur vision. We have always looked to
reduce aur carbon footprint, and now it

will be 4 requirement in our investment
case We hove always played a ro'en

our communities - and we will bring the
comrmunity more nto the business and
ensure that our support s net just financial,
but 3 holist < and integrated approach to
working with our chanity partners

Under the framework of Our peaple are too
good to woste, we will focus on three sreas

- wellbeing, genuine careers and belonging
Onclusion). This Tarms part of the wider
peeple plan to create a compelling people

proposition under the barner True to You,

Looking forward to the future

The end of restrictions s now just 11 days
awdy ard our pubs and hotels are porfectly
placed to berefit [rom growing consumer
conliderce and the return of normal life
Pubs are socal spaces that thove on
spontanaily - a guick pint, staying for
abizlenger to chat to someanre st the bar
or ust waslaing past a beaatiful pub gsrden
and deciding Lo stop for a bite Lo cat
without pre bosking o table. | know that,
ACrQss our estate, our taams are excitea to

wee those behavours return,

Tre boom in staycations and des.ra to get
back out with friends has led to strorg
trad rgn parts of our estate - particularly
Cotswaold Inns & Hotels and aur rural pubs
with rooms - and there s an neredibly
busy scasen to come with numeraus
waddings and a high level of advance
bookings. With our entire estate open,

li<e for like sales for the 12 weeks to 3 July
20271 arc unning at 76% of 2019 levels,
cash generdtion is strong and our net

debt lovels sre below where they were

pre panderric he importance af our
perfectly balanced estate has come in Lo
pray with differert parts of the business
showingd fYerent recovery trajectories
and wie are very corrfartable witn the

Compsry s current position

We a0 g ¢ ear set of pronzias for the
rext 12 montms, We val cortinue to del.er
our strazegiz goals, rvost in our 2state,

ard imo.ement su- new central f range
system. Uther projects, such s cur
erployer brand and furtner work around

our dig tal custamar jousney, wll be




progre\\ed “”_"d Wi WIH, a5 Owver,

keep a watching bricf or appropriate
opportunitios in the market In the

short term, we will continue to agdross
challenges around recruitment and supply
chain, vihich are having animpact right
across the hesptality secter,

The cloments that combine to make
Fulers such an amazing company have
Eecn raiterated many tmes before and are
always werth repeating Tne foundations
are ouriconic, predominately freehold,
well invested estate of stunming pubs and
hotels, which are geographically southern
bascd and cover oLy, town, village ard
rural locations. At our heart are the
arrazing learm members and entrepreneunal
Terarts that make up the Fuler’s family,
and we are driven by a clear, consistent,
long Lerm strategy. Combined with our
strong Balance Sheet, 4 cash generative
business and the fact that the enduring
appeal of the hign-qua ity British pub has
never been stronger, we loos to the future
with conbidence.

Semo

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

8 July 2021

{@TheAngelAndCrownRichmond

The Angef & Crown in Richmond did on
amazing job of feeding the hameless during
lockdown, providing o takeaway meal and,
later, essentials including clothes and toiletries.
The pub was widely recognised for this omazing
cantribution to the community.

Thanks to
you, this
year we have
achieved...

{@only_a_pavement_away / @Fullers

Ateam from Fuller’s was delighted to
participate in a 48 hour relay for the charity
Only a Pavement Away, which finds careers in
hospitality for peaple wha are, or are in danger
of becoming, hameless.

([@elephantinn / @NoahsArkHospice /
@NLondonHaspice

With some remaining stock ot The Elephant
in Finchiey nearing the end of its shelf ife
during the first lockdown, generol manager
Bart Stachecki ond his colleagues decided to
sell it off for charity to local residents, raising
valuable funds for two local hosprees.
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@EpilepsyAction

Leah Murrell, our deputy manager at The Ml
at Elstend, ron en online fundraiser for Epilepsy
Action to say thanks far alf the help she had

recewved from the charity since being diagnosed.

@Pennies_orguk

We are proud to be o supporter of Pennies

ond delighted to see this excellent inttiative hit
o reof milestone when it celebrated 100 million
micro-donations made by customers ocross its
retail partners.

({@beehivepub

The Beehive in Egham apened a food market

in its car park with o delivery service for those
whe couldn't make 1t. In a further step to
maintain links with its regulars, the pub afso ran
a virtual pub quiz through its Facebook page
during feckdown.

@ploughinnealing

Meany of our pubs showed their support for key
workers with picture displays in thesr windows.
They also joined in when the nation clopped for
carers - like Richard Cavanagh, the general
manager at The Plough in Ealing, and his family
seen here on their balcony.
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Our Business Model

DESCRIPTION

Customer Offer

We are famous for delicious, fresh, seasansl
facd and an extensie range of beers, wines,
spirits and soft drinks as well as over 1,000
boutique bedrooms We have a clear vision to
deliver memarable experiences that ensure our
customers leave happier than when they arr ved

lconic Properties

Qur predominantly freehold estate 15 manly
lecated m the South and South East of England

It 15 a great balance with rural, suburbsn and urban
aites. Itinclades some truly 1comc sites such

as The Stll & Weat in Old Pertsmcuth ang

The Churchili Arms in NOMlng Hilt

Tenanted Inns Estate
Cur Tenanted estate s an important part of our
balinced business and 1s nighly cash generative.

People

Qur people make the real difference to our
business. Whether dea'ing with comsumers or
colleagues, they deliver outstand mg service from
bar to boardroom. Our purpose s happy tosms,
happy customers — and we strive Lo ensure that
everyone knaws the key role they play in delvering
that purpose, vision and strategy.

Digital Technology

This encompasses o raynad of d gital touch points
for the consumer in both pubs and hote's tras,

to ach eve Dptirrnﬂ chlc\em:y and a fricuonless
Journey, all need to be seamlessly interl nkaa.

In addtion, continued develsoment of our d git sl
technologies and systerns further enharce our
customer knowiedge and uﬂderst:_mdﬂg and create

efficicncies in our internal processes

Financial Strength

Qur strong Balance Sheet and pruden: ape-oach
to cash mansgement ansure that we are well praced
to grow both orginica Iy and through acquisition.

e S AN AL RETT BT

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

Managed Estate
The purchises made by the custemer are the
maonity contrbution Lo our reverus and profit,

Tenanted Inns

The revenue streams from this partof the
business include rent and income from tne sale
of beers, wines and spirits to our Tenunts

Supplier Collaboration

We work vath our suppliers far mutual berefic,
creating dist retive preducts that canorly be
erjayed at Fuller's Thising udes bespeke faod ike
our Londor Porter Smoked Salmon ard ico-
creams trom Laserstake Park Farm, 't a'soinc udes
peers and wines that ure un que to our pubs - poth
H“roqg'ﬂ the Lor‘.ngerm Supp.y Agreeﬂemt woih
Asih ana through smal supphier collaborat ons
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OUTPUTS THE YALUE WE SHARE
Revenues Customers
We generste revenues from the aay to day Our customers leave bappier than thoy arrived,

operations 0 our Maragea Pubs and Hoters, as well following & memar sble, prem um expencnee
as Nrone oun Tenantec Inns estate Inoaddinon, we ! (see our purpose and visian, pige )
gererate some rents’ revenue from unhcersed

propertie-, Anothor source of income s rebates

from third party suppliers, which we recewve by ‘

achieving purchasung targets through higher sales

N aur /\Afar".igcd -iﬂd TEqdﬁtC‘d D'Jb‘:

Shareholders

Prior to the recent pandemic, our progressive

dividend palcy had shown incressing returns for Q
- z
over sevan decades. “he Board hepes to resume e
Cash Flow \ , e 3
dividend paymeants cnce the busingss s agian w©
We have s highly cash genesative business ana ) 2
= trad ng proFltabH on a sustained basis g
4 careful approach Lo our financial management. ;
By cnsuning that we always produce more tnan
enough revenue Lo cover our Costs, we mairtain
our hquidity which al'ows us te expand beth
organically and tFrough acquas-tions
People
Qur teamn m’cmbcrs tall us that they enjoy bong part L
of the Fuller’s family and that they appreciate our >
investment in therr wellbeing, We provide best in 2
class traming and development programmes and =
genuine opportunibies to develop through internal 51_@
carcer progression. Qur policies ensure that we have w
. . . ful - . . 3
Reinvestment and Refurbishment arespectful and inclusive working envirenment and =4
‘ o 2
By maintaining high standarda i terms of both 1 aconsistent apprasch Lo supporting our pecple. W
structure and décar, we protect our assots. We also i
|
regularly invest in upgrading our praperties with
transformational schemes that rellect charging |
markets and customer behaviour. In addition,
we invest In new properties  both single and, i Communities
iFapproprate, group scquisitions in ine with our We strive Lo piay d key role in the communities and -
strategy (see page 18], | neighbourhoods in which we operate with support e
for loea! events and groups. Woe support a number -t
i group P s}
of chanities, including Special O yrepics G? S_
dt d corporate level and, where possible, offer 5
- -+
matched {uﬂdlng for our support eentre Cmp\oyoox =
and general managers where they ire uraertskirg 3
fundraising actwitias 5
3
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While it may have been a strange year,

we have continued to pursue our strategy
~ with the addition of a fifth key element,
focused on ESG. Here we review the steps
we have made over the past year.

To deliver a distinctive
customer experience across
the whole Fuller’s estate

Building genuine partnerships

while sourcing the right range of
authentic praducts to give Fuller's
competitive advantage

Optimising the customer’s journey
digitally, both at central and local level
to drive a seamless interaction and
improve conversion rates

Breadening the appeal of our pubs and
hotels to new and existing customers
through a targeted offer and relevant
omni-channet marketing

Surprising and delighting our customers
in our venues by managing their
experience, pre, during and post visit.

Progress:

This year has beer fundamentally
impacted by estite closuros and
operational restrictions due Lo the
coranavirus pandemec and assocated
lackdowns. However, we have continued
Lo work with our supphoers to ensure we
have the best and most relevant praducts
inour porifolio and are in the best possibie
position as we return 1o business as usual
We have also worked to ensure aur
customer journey and offer s relevant,

well preserted and communicated

We have continued to deliver memorsble
expenances - with our ever- popular
Shakespeare in the Garden programme
tak‘ﬂg place in 4 Cov'd-secure ervironmert
during the pandemic, which rezeivea

a fantastic reception from sudiences

ACross our ostate

Improverments have meluded i estmerts n
our outside spaces, which have become key
a3 trading post pandeiz, the dove aprrent
of-cwgltal processes Lo improve the customaer
Journey and enbancements Lo the way we
boox, reserse and eanfirm tables - 4
supported by -rnovative social meaia and

dug\td\ CommMunIcAtons.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Strategy

Priorities:
Bulld on our single customer view
database to further improve the suceoss
of our targeted e mal campaigns

- Mag the role of technology in the
customer journey and maxmise the
use oFd\g\La\ tools in buﬂdémg sales and
improving Lhe custormer’s digital journey
Continue ta deliver innovative and
excibing customer experiences
N a sale and secure environment
Measurement of our success thraugh
imvested like for like sales growth and
Net Promater Score

Influences:
Customers need an experience
that cannol be rephcated at home
We need to adapt our operation to
meet charges in behaviour snd
expectat ons folowing on from the
corgnavrus pandemic and changes
to work/home life balance
Manitor and respond 1o changes in
censurmer trends, parLicularly around
hea'thier lifestyles.

To grow by carefully
targeted acquisitions and
developments that enhance
our premium business

- To maintain the fabric of the
estate, ensuring high standards
and legal compliance for both
colleagues and customers

- Streamlined project process,
utilising skills within the team
and pool of designers, delighting
customers and enhancing our offer

- Maximise the potential from our
exceptional estate, improving
operational efficiency,
premiumisation and stand out
Keeping appraised of potential
acquisition opportunities to add
value and by continuous assessment
of our estate.

Progress:

During the year we comoleted tne full
mtegration of Cotwwold inrs & Hotels,
acquired during the previous financial year.
Cetewold Inme & Hatelo 15 an pxceliont

i itk our exstirg business, adding 201
nedrooms to our estate, and this arca
performed comparatriely we | duning the
year, with staycations being very in vog.oc
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We also opened The White Horse at
Wermbley - a great new pub in the shadow
of the .comc Wembley Arch, araidet  now
development of 6,000 hormes

Durng the periods of enforced closure
this year we have taken the opportunity

to complete a large number of iInvestment
schemes, inc'uding 10 transformational
refurbishments, We have aiso invested in
outside spaces and pub gardens in order to
maximise the use of these spaces outside

of the summar months.

Priorities:
Ta complete further outdoor projests
Lo maxirmise the garden trading ares
To continue with our programme of
Inwestrment N Qur estite o ensure wo
dlways have the bes: pub in the area
To seek further acquisitions that
erhance our estale and increase our
customer brase
Messurement of our success through

operations revenue and profit growth,

Influences:
Auu\\ubl\\ty of hlgh qud\lty sitcy
and oppartunities.

To build a leaner cost
base by investing and
improving processes

Building genvine partnerships that
keep input costs in check and give
Fuller’s competitive product advantage
Drive collaberation by creating
effective cross-functional teams

- Avrelentless and agile approach to
continuous improvement and efficiency,
with decisions backed by data

- Taking responsibility for eur future
by putting a value on sustainability
in every decision.

Progress:

This year bas been neaviy impacted by
coronaarus and the assocated restrcbigns
and procedures that have beer necessary
during the penods pubs have bean 2ble

13 trade We successiully .mpemented

A range of nevi processes and procedures,
such 3w Order & Pay, which alows the
cCusiomern Lo peruse e mmenu, p\d:e

an grder ard pay the bl vathout 'egving
treir tab e, to ensure the safety 0" our
customers and Learr members in lght




of the coronavicus cutbre sk, Thege
processes are now embedded in our
operations and have stood us in good
stead as we move through tne reapening
prases dunng the new financial year

Duning the year, we have also enhanced
the way we use owr central bookirg system
and team This has further imoraved the
customer journcy and increased auto
confirmed reservations weth belier
schediling ﬁFOOC‘-LﬁIﬂG‘,, ind eruuring v
offer suitable ulterrative verues w thin Lne

estate where sites are Fuﬂy bocked

Folowmng a ful' review of the supply chair,
we base moved toa new ordering wystem,
that sees orders pliced twice weekly and
denvered twa days later, driving better
p‘:}ﬁr‘mg F_]er FDreCfif.tlﬂg, \Nh!“s’, mPvalﬂg
afr clency far our wpphers

Dunng the year we have dertilicd,
p|ar.red and are alre ady we'l underway
with the project to transition to a rore
statable Fnance system for a focuaed
pub\ and hiates busiress, whick w
both smphfy cur ordening and accourts
processes and improve the Mow of data

to the bus.ness.

Priorities:
Complete implementatior ard roll
out of the new Microsoft Business
Central software package during
suturmnn 2027 )
Build on our single view custorner
database by idenufy.ng key interactian
points in the customer journey snd
digital solutions to inprove the
cdstomer jaurney
Measure our success through
gross profit margins, Net
Promoter Score, contactable
database numbers ind m;arketmg
CArTRAIEN return on nvestment.

Influences:
Changes ir consumer behavigur due Lo
the impact of the coronavirus panderic
Ircressed customer use oFdlgwml
technology
Importance of 5aFeguardmg personal data.

o

Supporting these
objectives iy recruiting,
develo ing and investing
in the Eest people

A modern, transparent and fair
reward package that attracts

and retains the right people and
incenlivises high performance

An inclusive workplace where
wellbeing is taken seriously, and
everyone has a place and a voice
Genuine opportunities for a career
and a strong talent pipeline with
the right skills for the future

A compelling and differentiated
employment brand coupled with

a best-in-class recruitment experience.

Progress:

Curing the pandemic, the health and
wiclloeing of cur teams has been supported
i saveral ways. We have shared bints,
tips and courses, provided access Lo
resources, repular wideo updates and
more targeled support in the form of
supermarket voucners for thove most
impacted. During the year 1,618 2nling
courses were completed on a range of
SUbJECiS as d\VerSE‘ [ rﬂ:’in;igmg Limc
and learning a new language

We supported our Tenants during the
panderic in i variety of ways, including
suspendng commercial rert during
periods where they were unable to trade
and by ~ignposting sources of financial and
emotional support. As g result. our Tenants
have been in a position of strengtn as they
reopenod their pubs,

Pricrities:
Contnue to find the best pecple
through a strong employer brand
work 15 well underway in this area
Ensure we are Fit for the future with
the right orgamsatlona\ structure,
capability and roles
Ensure our people expererce engoges
our tearn members, fulfils their needs
and ambitiors, and encourages the best
people ta stay at Fuller’s
Underzake an Cmp|o>zco satisfact on
survey durirg the currant fuli year
Conunue to roll out our new emp-oyer
brand  True to You
with ongoing personal development ard

and support Lhis
Cdregr Pfogre§§|on
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Maasure cur success through staff
turnover, apphcation numbers perrole,
number of successful apprenticeships
and staff engagement.

Influences:
Impac: of potentia' changes ta the size
and compastion of our workforee n
the |:ght of coronavirus and ch.ﬂgmg
consumer behavicur
|mpact of Brexit an the lohcur mirket
pool within the hospitality industry
Aualaolity of labsur with appropriste skill,

5

A clear ESG strategy under

Life is too good to waste

A road to net zero delivered through
energy and waste management
reducing our carbon footprint
Supporting the communities in which
we operate through charity links and
community-based initiatives
Supperting our teams through training
and development, health and wellbeing,
and a sense of belonging.

Progress:

ESG has alway s been important ta us,

but th\g yeir wWe h(i\/c ciddcd thh as aur
f'fth strategic priority to recognise its
irportance at the heart of the business
and will report progress on thes in our

next Annudl Repcrt Wo arein the process
of hinng a dedicated Head of Sustainability
who wilibe responsible for implementing
the pragramme and setting and de'uveriﬂg
KPls against . Further details on the

Life is too good to woste in Liative can be
found in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Report on page 34.

Priorities:
Establishing a road to net zero through
cnergy ang waste management,
reducing our carbon footprint
Increasing our support for our
charity partners
Creaung aninclusive workplace,
conunuing our range of welloerg
iPitistives snd career planning,

Influences:
Impact of Government regulation and
ircentios or environmental intiat ves

. Mcdld dr‘ld ConsUmer rDCU‘: an
ESG related issues
External influences such as coronavirus
or Brext prowide addivonal chalerge.
to the wellberg of our teams
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At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR EMPLOYEES

Feeling like a team even though
we couldn’t be together -
keeping our people connected,
mativated and engaged

With our team members spread across the South of England,
regular communication during the pandemic was essential.
Our digital learning and communications platform, Fuse, was
used for frequent informative and entertaining videes from
the Chief Executive and for online learning te keep our
teams engaged. At a house level, it was much the same.
Take The Victoria in Paddington, where Chris Cochrane and
Helen Wiisen kept in touch with their team through
2 combination of WhatsApp, quizzes and even a collaboration
video with all the team submitting their contributions
individually to create something unique for The Vic.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review

ADAM COUNCELL
FINANCE DIRECTCR

“The focus during the long periods
of closure was to ensure that the
Group emerged strongly once the
estate reopened, with continued
investment in capital projects and

our digital offering.”

22

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



Financial Pesition and Performance
All Tigures below are for the continuing
sperations of the Group

Group revenue and other income fell by
77%, signfyng the delrmental impact

that the enfloreed closure of our busiress
unsurprsirgly had on the rasulls. On
[].verdge oLl FUb‘x worg C}rﬂy OPCH o tl-ﬁde
Yor 29% of the d:'l) sw thin the FY21
Frrancial year and even whilst cocn thoy
were trading uinden severgiestrcuons

-H".e S\gmlﬁcr_]r\t decllﬁe N rewvenuc FCSU“C‘d m
an adjusted loss before tax of E48 7 mill or
(FY20: profit of £19.4 milhon} and statutory
loss before tax of L9728 millen (FY20:
proFlt of 8.4 million). in PE'FIOd‘x where

we have bzer able to trade, atbe't with
restnct ons, trading has been encouraging
with pasitive cash generation and ke for Fke
sales in Margged Pubs and Haotels a1l 80
during the penod setween 4 July 2020

and 5 September 2020, Since then the
restrict:ons DECAME More onerous, resulling
in the evertual c'osuwr o of cur entire estate
around the end of Decermber, untl those
pubs with outside space could recpen on

12 Apnl 202"

The focus during the long periods of
closure was Lo ensure thai the Group
crmerged slrongly once the estate
reopened, with continued investment
neapLal projects and our digital offerng,
However, 1t @l meant ersuring we
protected our fimanciz positior and kept
cash burn te a mimmurm. The Group
implemented a number of mitgating
actions to reduce cash cutflows and
mantain hguidity, including the decivion
not to pay a dvmdend for FY20 and FY21.
no benuses for FY20, a voluntary <alary
reduction by the Board and Executive
Tearn members of 25% and 20%
respectively, and carrying out an exercise
Lo rightsize teams across the enuire pub
estate and streamlne the support functicn

A woil as reducing costs nternally, the
Graoup alsa part cipated . Government

nit alives Lo pratect the viability of the
DusIness, mdudmg the CJRS, Eat Out te
Help Out scheme and Business Rates grants.
Through the vanous schemes the linancial
results benefited by EA73 milen The Group
was also corfirmed us an eligble ssuer under
the CCFF scheme and 1ssued commercial
paper of £100 8 milhor. Even with all the
medsures patin place and the sssistance
recered from the Governmenl, cash burn

WA nrcur\d Ed’S V'T‘JHIOFT per [T]Oﬂt_h

Like for like sales when open

807

Net debt excluding leases

E218 1m

Shortly after the end of the finuncasl

year the Group raised £52 millon, ret of
expenses, through tne ssue of new equity.
This leaves the Group in a strong financidl
position with sensible levels of debt given
aur asset nch Bilance Sheet It is from this
position of strength that the business wik
be able to maximise the opportunities open
to it as the economy reopens and trading

gans momentum

On 7 June 202G, the Group sold The
Stable to Three Joes for an enterprise
value of £3.5 milon, which resulted

' aloss on disposal of E0.9 milhon,

As The Stable wis sold during the period,
the results have been reported within
discontinued operations The umounts
shown as discantinued operations vathin
the firancial statements are an operating
lass of £0°5 million as wel' as the loss on
disposal. As part of the transaction,
Fuller’s rets ned owr‘.ershlp af the e
frechold propert es associated with

The Stable business.
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Finance Costs

Total net finance costs (before separately
disclesed items) have inerzased by

[0.8 million ta TR.A mi'len The incroase
15 driven by the interest cost recagnised on
the unwird of the lease hakilities. This has
increased by £0.6 milnon because of rent
cancessions recenved during the course of
the financial year which have been treatad
35 'ease mediflicazions and remeasured at
an nereased incremental borrow rg rate
MI8R™) from the 1BR used at inception,
Interest on louns Pas remained iniime with
prior year despite the average manthly
borrowings incressing by [74 milliar,

a5 Lhis was of fset by the lower interest
rates on the CCFF

Tre net interest experse on our defined
benelit pension scherme s showr within
separately disclosed items as the charge i
driven by market cond tions at an arbitrary
peintin bime and 15 not assaciated with cur
urderlying trading,

Separately Disclosed ltems

Tre ret PO\\tIOﬁ on \c'pardtc\y

disclosed items of £9.1 wil'ion oxpense
(2020 EN.0 milhon expensc) camprises
principaly £122 mullian of impairment on

a aumber OFPFOPCFUC‘\‘ r gh[ of use assets,
lesse receivable ano goodwill. Addiuionally,
£1.9 million of rearganisation costs were
recognmed in the periad which mclude
redundarcies as 4 result of the pandermic
as well as costs associated with the nve

up of Bel & The Dragon and Cotswold Inns
& Hotels, These costs were marginally

of faet by £5 8 millicn probit ar dispasal
recognesed inrelation to seven properties
most of which were uniicensed properties

Tax

Afull analysis of the tax charge for the
y&ar 15 set outin note 7 to the financial
staterments. Tax has been provided {or

at an effective rate of 18.3% on adjusted
losses (2020 reststed, 377% or adjusted
profits} from continuing operatons The
overall effective tax rate of 16.6% 1« duc to
the separately disclosed items being taxed
at an effective tax rate of 77%.

A prior yesr adjustment to the net deferred
tax hability has been recognised in the year,
ir respect of anunderstatament in the

base cost of property, plant and equiprrent
reconerable on a sales basis, This has
resulted in aninerease of £4 0 million in net
asaets at 31 Mareh 2079 and 4 reduction
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STRATEG!IC REPORT

Financial Review continued

52 weeks

ended

27 March

201
Revenue and other income tm s
Managed Pubs and Hotels 64.0 286.3
Tenanted Inns 9.2 297
Unallocated 0.2 37
Group revenue and other incame from continuing operations 73.4 3197

52 weeks

ended

27 March

2021

Adjusted (loss}/profit by segment £m
Mansged Pubs and Haters (26.1) 30.6
Teranted inrs 1.2 n.s
Urnalocated (15.4) (15.4)
Operating {loss)/profit from continuing operations {40.3) 27.0
Firance costs 8.4) (7.6}
Adjusted {loss)/profit from continuing operations {48.7} 19.4

of £1.0 mullion ta the profit after tax
far FY20. The net deferred tax hability
at 28 March 2020 has reduced by
£4.0 ralhon from £17V mitlion to

131 millen

During the year the significant tax revenues
the Group generates for the Goverrment
fell by 82%. During the 57 weeks erded

27 March 2021, the 1otal tax contrbution

of the Group to the UK Exchequer was
£159 milien (2020 £873 rmullion) in

taxes borne and taxes collected on behalf

of callengues, customers and suppliers, This
significant reduction comprises a reduction
in VAT payments of £31 7 millan Lo just
0.2 mibon in the year (FY20-£319 mi'han)
and a corporation tax receipt of £3.4 milion
due to the losses incurred. The business rates
holiday resulted in a saung of £12.6 mition,

Pension

The defined benefit persion scheme
deficit hos decreased by £1.2 millien to
£35 millon (2020: £4 7 millior] with both
the far value of scheme assels and present
value of persion chligatons increasing
substantiully The present value of pension
cbhgations ircreased by E18.8 millian

to £147.3 million, which was driven by

4 decrease in the discount rate from
2.40% to 185% This was offset by an
imerease of the fair value of cchome assety
by £20.0 million froem £123.8 million to
E143.8 rmilhon Stardard deficit recovery
paymenrts of E2 3 million were slso made
during the financial year.

Shareholders' Return

inhght of the closure of the estate for
the majonty of the Financial year the
Board is nat proposing the payment
of a final div.dend

During the period no A’ ardinary 40p
snares were purchased inte treasury
(2026, 48,700 N ordinary 40p shares
for £0.4 mthon) The miadle market
quotation of the Company's ordinary
shares ot the end of the financial year was
£60p. The rughest price during the year
waz BB0p, while the lowest was 530p
The Company's rrarket cap.talissuonr

30 27 Morch 2021 vas £474 B millon
(2020 £358.2 rillon).



201
Cash flow £m
EBITDA (13.0
Intercat (4.5)
Tax 34
Working capital (5.1
i;;\on contribut ons and share transactions o (2.6)
Cash available for discretionary spend {21.9)
Caprial expenditure (16.5)
Soparately disclosed tonis a.5)
Property dispGaals - 10.8
Dradends 0.1)
Disposal of Stable (0.2)
Cash flow (29.4)
MNon -cash moverment o 13.2
Net debt movement 16.2)
2021
Sources of finance fm
Bank debt 207.7
Other debt 27.5
Cash 7.1
Total net debt excluding leases 2181
Lease Fabilities 89.9
Total net debt 308.0

Cash Flow and Net Debt

QOveraliret debt at 27 March 2027 has
ncreased by £39.2 million to £218 7 rullion
excluding leases, due to the enforced
clasure of the business for ¢ suostantisl
part of the financial year, \r“.:\udlr'g leasos,
net debt has incrensed by £16.2 millhon Lo
£308.0 millon, reﬂechﬂgd reduction i
lease habilities of £23.0 million driven by
the sale of The Stable (E10°5 milion) and
i ﬂumber OF reﬂt CONCEeSSI0NS rCCC\VC‘d 1
the year that were treated as lease
modifications (£10.C millon).

Working capitul outflow of 51 million

wns partly due to the amounts outstanding
frarm the Government for the CJRS s
well as the reduction in the VAT Imb\hty
cormpared to the prior year

Sources of Finance

AL 27 March 2021 the Group has

L3195 mulion af availuble facihities, of which
£292 m lhon was scheduled 1o mature
w.thir the next 12 months. Our urdrawn
committed fazilitics 4t 27 March 202 were
E84.C milhion, vath a further E17Y railion
of cash hed on the Balance Sheet,

InSunc 2020, the Group ircreased its
avallable Tacilities by accessing the CCFF
programme and issung £100 mithon

of commercial paper.

Since year end, the CCFF was repaid in
May 2021 and the Group agread an Amend
ard Extend Rehnancing of its exsting

debt facilities with its relationship banks,
extending the matunity of the £192 million
of debt facihties to 19 February 2023 and
amending the financial covenants t5
minmum '\qudty level to 31 Muarch 2022
The Group aso rased a Further £52 milion,
net of expenses, fram e equity ramein

April 2021,

E20 milion of our borrowings at

27 March 2021 were hedped uwing
swaps al a blended interest rate of 2 30™
(excluding bank margin). The interest rate
swap sgreernentsin place vall allew us to
conzinua to borrow a portion of car bank
debr at 4 fixed interest rate unul 2022

The Groups financing 15 4 mix of bank

debt, debentures, cumu'utive preference
shares, overdraft, cash and shert term
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depasits, as disclosed in notes 24, 26 and
28. Other Financial assets and lisbliies
wuch as trade recewablas and payables
arise through the Group's operaung
actvities. The Group does not tradein
financial instruments.

Financial Risks and Treasury Policies
The Group operates a centralised treasury
funcuon, which controls cash monagernent
and borrowings and the Group's financial
risks. The objectives of the funct.on are

to manage the Group's financial nisk,

to secure cost effective funding for the
Group's operations, and ta minimise the
adverse effects of fluctuations in the
f'narcial markets on the value of the
Group's financial assets and habilities,
onreported profitabiity, and an the

cash flows of the Groug.

Transactions of a speculative nature are
prohibited, The Group's treasury activizies
are poverned by policies approved and
monitored by the Baard.

Going Concern Statement

The Gr‘:‘,up‘\ business dc trv ties, togmher
with the Factars Tkely to affect s future
development, performance and posit or
are set outin the Strdtoglc F?oport <n
pages 4 ta 38, The financal posivon of
the Company, ts cash flows, net debt and
borrowing facihtics and the matunty of
those faciites are set out above and en

pugas 136 10141

Inaddition, there are further detalls in
the linancial staterments an the Group's
financial risk management, objectives and
pohcies in note 28, The Directors have
outhred the assessment approach for
going concernain the accounting policy
disclosure in note 1of the consolidated
financial statements,

There s a material uncertainty that under

2 downs de scenario the Group would
breach its covenants within the pong
concern period to 27 December 2022

and this may cast sigrificant doubt about
the Greup's abilizy to continue as 3 gong
concern as discussed in note 1 however,

the Baard has 4 reasonable expectat on that
the Campary ha- sdeauate resources ta
conunue in cpemmondl cxistence for the
foreseenbie future. For these reasons, they
continue to adopt the golng concern bass n
prepaning the Annual Report ard Accounts
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Viability Statement

The Corporate Governance Code requires
that the Directors have considered the
wiability of the Group over an appropriate
perod of bme selected by them The
Directors have chosen to assess this over
three financiat years through to March
2024 ay this aligns with the Groug's
strategie planning cycle and 15 supperted
by the forecasts that are presented and
approved by the Board. It takes into
con~ideration the Group's current position,
the potential mpact of the principal nsks
documented on pages 28 to 30in the
Strategic Report as well as the uncertanty
regarding continuing impaces of the
cororavirus pandermic. Given the
conbnued uncertanty over the trading
conditions in the UK, the Directars beleve
that any longer term forecasLs are d.fMicult
te deterrming 4l presont,

The Group's buse case assumes that even
though the estate was fully open from May
2021, sales in FY22 will still be impacted
by reducion ininternaticnal travel, slow
return o offices and continued \mpdct cn
consurrer confidence In FY23, the sales
will comtinue e be impacted by the
pgﬂdcrmc but 10 a lesser dcgree with sales
returring to pre pandemic level by Fyz4.

The Graup's lenger term forecasty

Lake nto gccount the prncipal reks and
uncertainues as detailed on pages 28 1o
30, The most x\gm\c\cﬁnL risk continues
Lo be Lhe pandemic and the conunued
impact it impases on tradmg. QSDEC\dHy
on nternational toursm and the shiflt

in people working more from home
Longer term risks inelude findncing as
the Group's current funding arrangements
expire in February 2023 and the Group
will meed to be able to source sutable
firancing at similar levels ta those
currently agreed. Otherianger-term
sources of risk include cast inflation
caused by market urcertarty impacting
casts such as wages, utilities and feod,
Corsumer demand shifts nchuding 2 move
Lo work'ng from nome ang a cont nued
trend toveards healthy hfosty'es, 5 wel
as the UK econamy and 12+ atulity 1o
recover impact the longer term
success of the Company

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review coainued

The Group has also modelled o “downside
cane” which assemnes there wilt be three
ronths of full lockdewn in FYZ22, being
December 2021 through to February
2022, snd a further three months with
Levere restrictions akin to those
experienced in Octaber 2020, In the
downside it wll take longer to recover
from the pandermic and therefore under
this scenang, without additioral mitigating
action, the covenants in June 2022
through to December 2022 would

he breached

As announced on 31 March 2021, the
Group agreed an Amend and Extend
Relinancing of ity existing debt facilities
with 1ts relaticnship banks, extending the
matunty of the 192 milion facifties to

19 February 2023 and amendimg the
[rancial covenants to a mnienum hguidity

level to 31 March 2022,

On the same doy it was also announced
that the Group proposed placing new /v
shares up Lo appropnarely 20% of exisung
isaued ‘AN ordinary share capital The
reflinancing of the facilities w s conditional
on the successiul equity rase. On 20 Apn
Lhe equily rame was approved by the
shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM”) and the net proceeds
of £52 millien werc receved the seme day

InJure 2020, the Group increased its
available facilities by ACCossIng the CCFF
programme which issued YO0 milion

of commercial paper. The CCFF was
repayable in May 2021 and was repard
using the Group's available faciities and
the procecds of the equity rase.

Other acticns that have been
implernented to reduce the cash
oxpenditure each month include
fartoughing the major-ty of the staff,
Ltemparary pay cuts for the Man
Board 4nd Executive Directors, taking
adrantage of busness rates holidays
5 agreed by the Government a3 well
45 applying for grant income and the
carcalaticn of the find diadend for

both 2020 and 2021 year ends
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in the "base case”, the mimmun liquidity
requirements dare not ferecast to be
breached, nor dare the covenants when
they revert to minimurn leverage and
interest cover in June 2022 The
"downside case” shows that when the
covenants revert they WIH bC breachcd
unless sufficient alternate strategies
could be implemented. Given the GrOup
would breach covenants under the
“dowrside case” and although severe
s still plavsible, this grees nse Lo

a materisl urcertainty over the gong
concern gssumption,

Taking account of the Group's current
position, the materst uncertainty
described above, the principal risks racmg
the business and the sensitivity analysis,
25 well a5 the potential mitigating uctions
that the Company could take, ond the
experience that the Campany has

ad spting the business 1o change, the
Board has a reasonable expectation that
the Company will be able ta continue in
operation and meet its iabilities as they
l4'l due over the perod of the

viability assessment,

e, Lovmeedl

ADAM COUNCELL
FINANCE DIRECTQOR

8 July 2021



At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR SUPPLIERS

Always working with our suppliers

to develop new ideas for mutual
benefit that give the customer
something to smile about too

Laverstoke Park Farm already supplies our very popular
range of ice-creams and our buffalo mozzarella. But hallourni
- now that has always had ta come from Cyprus. We love
UK-based produce though, so undeterred we set out
together to take this popular European cheese and give
it a very British twist. The result is our unique buffalomi.
This fun, delicious and innovative new addition to our menus
is made from the high quality milk of the Laverstoke Park
Farm buffalc and Hampshire cows’ milk, and is already
proving to be very popular with our customers.
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STRATEGIC REPQRT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Management

Managing risks effectively in key to
ensuring that we achieve our strategic
objactives in the long term and
contnue to deliver the h\gh standard
our customers, people and

sharcho ders expect.

The risk management precess s
managed by the Exscutive Team and
15 ovarseen by the Audit Commitiee
which s further supported by the
external audit process Both the
Executive Team and the Audit
Committee repart to the Ma'n Board.

Risk Management Process
Risks areidentified, considerad and
observed at al levels of the business

inc uding operational, admirustrative

Emerging Risks

Description

RISK MANAGEMENT

dnd SLrateglc r\SL(S‘ THE‘BC F\Sk‘; areg ther‘
assessed and appropaate mitigation end
management plans dre mplemented to
reduce the potental likelhood und
vnpact, The suitability of these actions

s reviewed through robust reporting and
moritor.rg which creates a feedback
|oop emdl::hng a continuowus \mprovcmemt
process Lo be in place regarding risk
management. This includes reviewng
owrership and sccountab ity of risks
ard controls across the Txecutive and
fanagement teams.

Risks are proactively managed
throughout the year. Regular risk
reporting 15 Made to the Executive
Tearn anda then reported to the
Audit Committee,

Risk mitigation

Responding to the

Coaronavirus Pandemic

During the course of the last year the nsk
relaling 10 coranavirus was prcdcmve\y
raraged on a weekly and sometimes
duily basis by the Executive Team.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The FoHowmg sets oul the principal
risks the business faces at present

that may ‘mpact future performance.
This analywis 15 not ‘ntended Lo be

a camprehensive list of all nsks actively
managed by the business The key
financg al risks are detaled in note 28
to the financial statements,

UK ECONOMY

There has been a severe mpact to the J< (and
global} econarmy from coranavirus the full impact
of which has yet to be understood I addition,
tne measures wn ch the Gavernment has put

11 place have cost bl ons of pounds, all of which
wll evertuslly be recouped through taxat an

The risk s kept under review as we implement our strategy 1Uinforms the love
of hquid-ty we target Lo kaepin the business, the way in whicn we invest in our
dwersified estate to marage “luctuations in different parts of the ecanomy

and the ﬂ-’exwo\\\ty we look farin future \e(mng dr’aﬂgemenu

Strategic Risks

Description

Risk mitigation

CORONAVIRUS AND

FUTURE PANDEMIC

The cororavirus sutbreak has had a seismic impact
on our ndustry. This has most ohviowsly been
througn the closure of all our pubs and hatels to help
['mit the spread of the wirus, followed by the enforced
socal distancing and other restnchions as we have
reopencd. Tre guidelines (row laws 1n some cases
and Gevernment restrictions have changed regularly
and arelkely 1o cortinue to enange. There are
changes ir the bebaviour af our custoers and n

thair patlerns e asiteg our different sites

Tra nealth and satety of cur team members 1s
criugal and we base irrplemerted aporopriste

maasures For them to carry out ther rales safan.

Thare s s increasec kel hood of subsegquer:
pandemics, sizher grurely new strains of 4 vrus
orgsc'utzay of the currant siran The impact
of ancther panderic < likely to be similar o the

expenence af the current crisiy

We have urdertaken ¢ signficant nightsizing ectivity across our estate and central
support of “ice to reduce our gngoing cost base. We bave taken advantage of

the Gavernment suppgort for business through {Hepb retention scheme, business
rates holiday for the hospitaity sector, maae use of the Bank of Englind Covia
Corporate Finarcing Facl ty snd increased our hquidity levels through an eauiy
3 se. We continue to partake in Aiscussions with Government and trade bodies

to inflaerce the future imposirg and lfting of any restnictions.

Woe contirue to moritor our cost base on a monthly and weekly baws. Onasie
¥ Y
lovel we rev evs weekly profitability ard review the cost of closure ard subsequent

reopering wersus slower tradirg peniags 1o make tne opt rmal decivors

We haveintroduzed elear corona e rus procedures far sl our sites which are

reacwed regulariy

Gomg foreard we are c.ose y mantoning our cish flow 1o ensure we maintain
appropriate level o hgqu dity, cortinue 1o keep a d verwf ed estate and review the
compesiticn 1n the hight of current evants, negotiating more flexibility imto leases
gorg ferwiard, ceepirg strgﬂg Lies vath GDucrr‘-r‘T‘.eﬂL} bu!dlng ar Qur cureent
ptndermic response plan, and mantairing and erhancing our flesbl oy ¢
custemer offering and operatiena pracedures

FL =
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Description

Risk mitigation

CONSUMER DEMAND SHIFTS
The business’s success 1 attributable to its sbilty
o anticipate and react Lo consumer demand.

There have been accelerated changes caused
by the impact of corongvrus including, but
not lm.ted to, working from home, casnless,
people buying dleohol for consumption in the
bome, demard shift.n ity venues versus cural;
and 4 conunued trend Lowards healthy and
il yie erene es

Management menitor ana research consumer trends and run trals of rew technologies.

We gather consumer feedback throuph Net Fromoter Score survays, custemer

complaints and onlne and social media revicws

We analyse retal pe.cing and market share data to ensure we are competitive but

strl premium.

In add hion, through the exper ence of dealing with coronavirus, the business has
become more flexiblz in de{ahng with chrmgox N operal oral me sures, product and

service ofFermgﬁ

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Trhe heslth and i.dFety of our ernployees and

customers 15 a key prarity for us.

Operazing 3 arge number of sites incrasses
the challenge of ensuring the highest health
and safety standards are adhered to

Thereis arsk of s customer sufferning frem falure

to deliver cur allergens policies and precedures.

We have g comprehensive tranang prograsme in place far our employees covering

all aspects of health and salery.

Al sites complate 4 rink assessment ard are requited Lo underLake detailed weekly
and monthly compliance checks which are then subject to review by our in heuse
health and safety tesm Leve sk assessments and appropriate adjustments o sites
to comply with Government gudelines and restrictions in response Lo coronavirus
arzin place The allergen procedures we have implerrented to manage the risks are
over and above what i legally required, ana are cont nuously reviewed, to ensure

cortrols remain Appropriate.

YWe continug to utilse the services of expert third purty healtn ard safety auditors
1o undertake annual aud ts an all our sizes and perfarm detalled investigatians 'n
instances where an incidert does occur,

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION
OF EMPLOYEES

The recruitment snd retenticn orh\gh calibre
empioyoes fundsmentasl to our ability to delver

far our custormners, and

A gisbnctive cxper ence
to support our growth 1gondd I pdrtlcu|.3r this,
.-spp\‘c-i. to the rales heid by the support office
staflf, who may view g caree within hospitality
as less attrastive than other parts of the

ceonomy currently

We have succession plans in place for key senior management roles ard have drawn
upon these when select ng an Executive Team to deliver the Board™ sirategy for
the new pubs and hotels focused business.

Giver the competiton for migh quality cardidates across our sites, we have plans

in the year shead Lo significantly improve the process and systems surreunding

our recruilment strategy 10 ersure that our offer to all employees s attractive,

We provide support Tor staf® from the EU and have ncreased the number of chef
apprentice positions for UK candidates. By investing in our employees and offering
themn real career paths, we are able to differentiate ourselves fram the competition
and ensure that we remain the employer of choice in a challenging market

We continue to review and Improve the entire reward scneme to ensure that it s
competitive In both pay and benelits for all team members

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group I~ mcrod{mgy rehant anits information
aystems to operate, and trading would be affected
by any s\gmflc.mt ar pro\onged falures and/or
data loss. Inadditian, the %DPHI‘;UC:‘]L‘OP of cyber
atiacks continues to increadse

Our IT function has arange of fachties and controls in place to ensure thatin
the event of an 1ssue normal operation would be restared quickly These include
a formal IT Recovery Pwan, onilne rephcatlom of systems and Falover datacentres,
and external suppart for hardware and sof tware. We continue 1o introduce more
provent.ve measures to reflect the increased risk.

FINANCING

The current funding arrangements of the
business are due to expire in 2022 urd there s
arisk tnat we are vrable o find suitable financng.
In sddition, interest ratos may increase, adversely
impacting profit, andfor there could be a risk

of breaching finanzial covenants

We have a good re atienship with our current bankers and, given the predorminantly
frechald nature of our busingss, we have the ability to offer meore certanty than
My 10 OUr SeCLor wien raising finance Allernative Fir*:mciﬂg dPP[OdChCS 4re
avdi'able, mc|udwg cquity, as evidenced by the recert ﬂmdmg,

‘nterest rate costs have been managed through cur lang-term financing
arrunpernants and we have succassfully waved covenants and agrecd new

measures that have minimised any risk of breach,

CEX S AaMNUAL REP2S
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STRATEGILC REPORT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Descrippon

Risk mibigation

COSTINFLATION

Market uncertdmty and mcreasfﬁg demand leads
Lo cost pressures inseveral areas, such as food
and drink praduction, vtbties and staff costs

The Long Term Supply Agrecment with Asghi
Europe Lid is naw embedded in our business model
and the impact of Brext broadly understocd

SUPPLY CHAIN

Thereis a risk that poar performance by our
supphers may damage customer satisfaction and
could impact the profitability of the Campiny
Ay large scale ssue with out of stock items

could have a big impact on trade i our businesses.
This nsk includes any impact from Brewt that has
yet ta fully emerge due to hospitality closure

cither n the UK ar EU,

SUSTAINABILITY
There is risk that the falure to manage cimate
change nsk could mpact profitsbitty through
taxation, rcguhmom and supp|y chain wncertanty,
i addition to reputational d-]mdge.

WAGE COST INFLATION

Future labour cost increases may impact the
profitability of the business. The principal drivers
of such increases are projections for future
increases in the National Lving Wage, coupled
wth any potenuiai for a tightening of labour supply
The risk to the business remains despite the
pandemic, a5 unemployment, which although
high duning the last year of lackdawas, has already
begur to fall

tolbe S ANTaA

Our preference is te have long-term agreements in place with our supphers hnking
any price reses ta CPL We have a Lang Term Supply Agreement in place with Asdhe
Europe Ltd for the supply of beer, cider and other beverages, which limits mcreases
to CPI Ohther suppliers sre also linked to CPIwith long -term agrecments.

We regularly momtor prices using relevant commadity databases, review farwrd
loaking inflation and aft contracts are competitively tendered.

. ) .
The margin s moritored internally and cur retan pricing is monitered quarterly,
compared Lo our compentors

The implememation of a new property mantenance system has improved cantrols

<N property costs

We have a Long'Term Supp\y Agrecmemt i place with Asah: Europe Lid for the
SUPP‘Y of beer, cider and gther bevcrages, Thus ensures that praductﬂ will mect
certain brand perFDrmath metrics, and the Supp|y SRIVICE |15 subject to key
performance indicators (“KPI™)

Al other key xupphera are subject to service and quality KP's which are monitored

on g monthly basis,

Qur preference s for leng -term agreements and strong relalicnships, The
reLﬂicnshp woth Asabiard Fuller’s is now mere mature, and we work with smaller
supphers 1o ensure that they grow healthy, sustainable businesses culside of ther
agreement with Fuller’s. The 5upp|y chamn has succcssFtu survived the Cavid crisis,
which gives us confidence inits ongoing robustress

We have developed 1 sustainability progracrme and continue to enhance this,

We consider the impact of ESG as part of customer, people, supplier ard Tenanted
strategies and pelicies going forward

For more details, see the Corparate Secul Resporsibility siatement on page- 34
to 38

We wim to mitigate the risk af such increascy through & combination of improvad
Operdi‘-ondi efF\cier\Cy and passing the cost on through the prices we Charge
Without these opportunities, the business would sutfer a reduction in profitabilicy
scross both pubs and holes.

Operational efficiency measures include the nightsizing exercises, use of
tecnnalagy (Order & Pay app) and modelling labour per time of gay to aptmise
siaFFmgLeve\s‘ The introdustion orpay bandmg a4 part of the reward review will
CNSLre COHH\:,LenCy OF pdy dr‘-d prDV\de Jan C{Fect\vo \NO)‘ to mﬁr‘dge costy




This statement has been prepared in
compliance with The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018,

In order Lo comply w th Section 172 of the
Cormrpanies Act, the Board s required te
Lake into consideration the interests of
stakekolders and include a statement
settmg out the WAy 10 which Directors
nave discharged this duty durning the

yEalL Moy milesmdticn about our key
ﬂt;]keho‘ders 'Jﬂd ho'\N W Engﬂgc‘ W\Lh
therﬂ Can be FOUnd I thF‘ Serteg\C RCPDr’L
on pages 32 and 33

The Board considers that.in cemplying
withits statutory duties, it has acted

in good faith to promote the success
of the Compamy far the benefit of ity
sharehalders as a whete and considered
the interests of al its stakeholders. ard
indaing so had regard to

1) the likely consequences of any
decision in the long term For Ful'er’s
and its Board of DIFCCtOF\‘ Lhis has
always been an intogral part of the
culture of svery long estabizhed
Business The long term for Fuller's
mears muczh more than normal
busiress modelling ertails [tis ot the
Feart of ol decisions taken by

the Beard.

b) the interest of the Company’s
employees. Detals of the normal
ongagement process with employses
can be found in the Stakeholder
Engagement section on page 32 and in
the CSR seclion on pages 37 and 38,
v addition, more nformation relating
to specific engagement in relation to
the coronavirus can be found on pages
3,112, and 19,

e

the need to foster the Company’s
business relationship with suppliers,
customers and others The Board
believes that delivering the strategy

C

success ully requires strong mutually
bereficisl relstionshups with suppliers
and customers and indeed with
industry bodies that further the
interests of the sector ds 1 whole
N\\Ore det{]ljt\ DFE‘ﬂgdgemeﬂ[ AN

be found in the Carporate Social
Responsibilty report on page 24.

Section 172 Statement

d) the impact of the Company’s
operations on the community and
the environment. The Board has
developed its commitment to
corporate sacial responsibility and
agreed anew Environmantal, Socidl
and Governance programme, Detals

can be found on pape 34,

e

) the desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct. Fuller’s
iswell regarded as a business because
it has a consistent record of daing the
right thing  one of the most enduring
key values of the business. This forms
part of the Fuller's culture.

the need to act fairly as between
members of the Company. The unigue
capital structure of Fuller’s as a partly
listed company has always required the
Directors to balance the interasts of

a diverse shurehotder base. The facus on
the long termiis well understaod by the
Company's shareholders themseha.

Principal Decisions

1) Impact of coronavirus
As detaled ir the Chairman’s arnd Chuel
Executive's Statements an pages 2o
15, the financial year ended 27 March
2021 has heen an extraordinary yoar
for the business both starting and
end ng with the temporary closure
of the entire business due Lo the

COronavirus PdﬁdC‘rﬂiC.

The Baard moved quickly to a routine
of weekly video conference calls and
recewved regular updates from the
Executve Direclors regarding the
impact of the pandemic an the
business and its employees, and was

able to act quickly with critical decisions

requred in the peried. The response

Lo the coronavirus cnsis s set out cn
pages 3,112 and 19. The activities
taken throughout the crisis have shown
the Bourd has paid due regard to al’
stakeholders and ensured the busingss
s well pasiboned for long term growth.
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2] Equity raise
The decmion to launch the egaity rase
was conwidered very carefully by the
Board Thelang pened of closare was
very expensive for the Company, and
every other company In the sector,
The Board concluded that takrg
into account short-term furdng
requirements U e such as repaying the
100 milhon cormercia’ paper from
the CCFF by end May 2027, the
structure O{ ol ﬂoﬂ-preer‘ﬁpt v p‘?iclﬂg
wis the most efficient route and in the
best interests of shareholde. It was
agreed that successful complenion of
the placing would equip the Company
with maarmum biranc.al flexibilty to
exit the pandemic strongly and be e
tne best possible posit on to execute
its growth and recovery strategy.

The equity raise was approved through
asenes of general meetings, and dll
resolutions were passed with greater
than 9G% of vatesin fovour
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OUR PEOPLE

Cur people arc akey asset anct

critical to the success of the busingss,

They rmgke tne experience for the
CU'\LOmer ('.ﬂd de‘\\f@r our bUR:ﬂC:S

siralegy st overy level.

How we Engage

Buring the pandemic, we had
Lo review and evalve the way
we cormrmunicate with cur
emplaoyees - and we focused
s usng our digital learing and
commurucations platform,
Fuse, Lo delver updates, digital
trirn ng to keop peopls mentaly
~timulated, and wgnposting far
ematignal and mental wellbeing
suppors. (More in tne Chief
Exccutive’s Rewew, page 10

Further Information

We will be undertaking a revicw
of our employec engagement i
the current financial year. We
have also strengthened our focus
on Diversity and Inclusior and wi'l
report further progress in next
year's Annual Report We have an
Zqual Oppertunities Policy, which
i»desgned te ensure ol cofleagues
are treated equally 1n terms of
trarng, caracr development and
premot on. All team members are
gwen an Inndufgence card which
grves thern a coileague discount

in our Managed Pubs ard Rotels.
Quilifying employees are also

iy ted Lo participats 1N our
Saangs Related Share Spuon
Scherme, Share lncentwve Plan
and a sarety of performarce
relsied borus arrangements.

STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR TENANTS

Cur Tenants are an extension of tne
Fuller’s tearr, althcugh they have
autenomy in running their own
business, We g m to recruit Tenants

who share cur values and philosophy.

How we Engage

We have a team of Buainess
Development Managers led
by an exper enced Head of
Tenanted Operations who
ensure thal cus Tenants are

in the best place Lo operate

2 success ul business that
delvers a good return for both
partes During the pandem.c,
we ~uspended commercial rent
‘nlockdowas to ersure Lthey
emerged strangly,

Further Information

This year has highiighted the
entreprepcunal nature of our
Tenants They have opened
their pubs as community storas
(see puge 8) ard served the
homeless. Thay arc very visible
within their communives and we
highly value tneir contripution
to our business.
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Stakeholder Engagement

OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Cur shareholders range fram
founding family membens to rera!
snareholders and large instiLutional
investors. They own our business ana
orovide us wth the capital that
enables us to progress our strategy.

How we Engage

We maintain a regular dislogue
with alt our sharcho'ders We
act vely engage with them as
part of ourinvestor readshows
fc||owmg results presentations
and we are Casl|y daccossible ta
deal with questions and Feedback
tnroughaut the year.

Further Information

During the year, we spoke to
investors shout our proposed
newy Remumﬁrat\oﬂ le‘Cy Wh\Ch
was submitted to the 2020
Annual General Meeting 3ad
we launched an equily raise

Lo ensure we exited the
pandemic in the best possible
position. Both proposals were
unanimaus y approved and we
trank our shareholders for therr
supportin this process
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OUR COMMUNITIES

Tre Great Brinish pub hos alway s beon

LEGISLATURE
We operate in 3 hughly reguluted

QUR SUPPLIERS

An excellent suppiy chain s a key

icnot of our business and we look for sector and, especially during the at the heart of the community and we

genuine parlnerships that provide recent pandemic, we have bad strve to uphald that position by be ng

reregsed dalogue at botn local o good neighbour, supporting werthy

arcdl pont ol differerce

How we Engage

and nanional level

How we Engage

causes and providing employment

How we Engage

We have recently launched an

We burd a solid relationship vath We regulariy mect with both aur o
our 5upp|'er5 that allows for local MP and Cthcrh}gmhtwo ESG programme .as.akey tenet ‘2
mutually bene®aal col sboration. stakehotders ircluding througn ol our overall business strategy. (3)
This results ina range that s membership of both the Sritsk The imitiative, Life is too good B
walable Onfy ot Fuller’s Beer and Pub Associalion and to waste, includes cur 2
UK Hospitality We regularl community pragramme.
P ¥ ¥ Y prog
cartribute Lo consultatians on
issues that mpact cur sector
) . . n
Further Information Further Information Further Information 5
]
We work wilh our supplers Lo The wark and engopement that The Life 15 tao good to woste a
monitar consumer Lends and has been carned cut duning the programme dlso covers :—n
changing Lastes. This allows pandernic has strengthenad cur sustaimability, which is more o
. ; oy
us Lo cvolve and adapt our offer relatignsn ps and cortacts impartsnt than ever Lo our %
and menus Lo refiect these among, partcularly, national custamers, gur team membors, ®
macro Lrends. policy makers and we wll and dll eur stakeholders. See w
raintan these relatignships page 34 for further information.
going forwards
pes
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Corporate Social Re5ponsibility

STRATEGIC REPORT

This year, we have further developed our

Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR”) strategy under the

Qur environment

This exciung project covered three
key areas

We belizve our environmment is too
gcod Lo waste

We believe our communities sre
100 good to waste

We believe our people are Loc
good 1o waste

Although the business has been closed

far much of this year, we have nonethzaizss
pregressed with this programme and in this
section we will deseribe our ackievements

n these three areas.

Whilz Fuller's has leng taken actions that
highiight the Compary’s commiment to
CSR, the oxternal eraranment Fas moved
on ard we sre taking 4 nold move to
redcub e aur own performance in this ares
with a rew ESG programme This wail be
akey plank of the cverarcrirg strategy
{see page 19) ard wll see the principle:

of sustainzbiity ermbedded i that strateg,
Or an operatorallevel 1wl cont ruz to
be deii.ered tarough the Life is too good o

waste nitialive

Life is too good to waste banner.

Our communities

Aspartof this process, we are recruiting

a dedicated Head of Sustainability who wil
be responable for delivering our ESG plan
They will take owrership {or setting,
rcmitanng and reperting on the goals set
and targets met.

We will now take a lock al seme of those
goals and targets and repory back on our
achigvemenrts over the last year.

Our environment is too good to waste
Arood to net 2ere delivered through energy
and waste manogement, reducing our

corbon fastprint

We have made a number of stnides in
this areq over recent years, includirg

the follow ng

- We now bave LED lghtng tnresabout
zor Managed 2ubs and Hatels - U< ra
LR 1o 757, less energy and listing around
trree t mes 'ongar

- We hjue sont zerz waste o andfill

srce 2018
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Our people

16 of our Managea Pubs and Hotels now
have chargrng points for electne vehicles
("EV"}, with more in the pipeline

We have started to recycle our cosking
o, whech has the gdded benefit of
reducing our refuse casts and
genarating an income from the sale

of that ol - this process i set Lo

nse ana will be delivering revenue

of over E100,000 par annum by

tne end of 2021

Each yoar, we save the equivalent

of over 75 Olympic swimaing poals

af water by using waterless urinals

3y usrg Ecolab clesning materials,
vath recyclable packaging, we bave
reduced cur use of single use plastics
Over 35 tannes of cardboard per
annam has been removed from guar
supoly cham through the usa of
re-usaole plastic crates 3nd we expect
raremove afurtner 120 tannes

Dy 2022
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While the achicvements abave focus on

energy consumption and wasie issues, Modern Slavery

work undertaken in partnership with our We are committed to acung ethically and with integnity in al our business deslings
supphers also plays a role in reducing our and relationships and to implemenung and enforcing eflfecuve systems and controls
envirenmental impact, Lo cnsure madern s'avery 1s not taking place anywhere in our own business or in any

of cur supply chains
Previously, food was ordered for next
day delvery. leading to multiple delveries Further detals cam be found an our website:
duning the week, poor laad planring for www Tul'ers.coukfcorporatefcsrimogern-slavery statement
our suppliers and. consequentdy, vohicles
covenng alot of miles. Today, we have
changed this process and our head chefs
and < Lehen teams now order less frequent ¥,

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions and Energy Consumption

with delverios arrwiﬂg bwo days luter

52 weeks

- ended

The n\.sulL: Qrthls process are gquile 27 March
4rmazing. Without any CoOMmpromise on 201

“reshness, over 6O‘OOOJOUWGP have The annual JuArtity O*Ferﬂergy consumed in «Wh

beon taken OFFF the road by reducing the From () the combustian of gas and (1) the
Frequency of food detivenies threugh
better plarming and forecasting Supphiers

can load plan and route more effectively

consumption of fuel for the purpascs of tramspart,
together with the annual quantty of energy

Conﬂumod In] [(Wh FC\U'[\ﬁg rrom thC‘ PUFCI'T’]\C'

d it has ad At
and it has the added benefit of creating of electricity 42,296,045 83555406 Q
amare structured process in the kitchen, oo - : ; p g
5 c F st LY &
The strengthened relationship also ; : 'f em;s T_:s rr-o-m tHe C?Im ;St‘:m"o g"ﬁ b >
ritigates supply issues and helps to ;e at cur facilities as well o fleet vehicle use 114 . 2
reduce cur exposure to price wolatility (Scope Temmsons) ? ! a
due to both the pandemic and Brexit. tC0-c emussiors from purchased electrioity
(Srope 2 emissions) 4,314 8,902
When it cormes to minimising food waste, Total GHG emissions {Scope 1and Scope 2) 9,428 17,338
we have also used the time durmg lockdown G " ch K
- ) roup's chosen .ntensity measurement:
ta further IMProve o tne wdy we Use the P ¥
Food we buy. A gre it example 1 the use of tCO e emissions per £E1m of turnover 128.8 527
whole carcasses with regard to our meat
suppliers - with all cuts baing iInccrporated 1 tCO.e are tonnes of carben dioxide equivalent.
PR g P 9
nto dishes or our menus, the Ft bcmg used Tl
for dripping and the bones being sold at the The following methadologies were used to caleulaze the abave quantities =
1 0
end. With our vegetables, we lock to use o
the leaves of celenae, beetraot ard colery The kWh consumption figures relevant to gas and electricity were calcurated £
s , vnc s
in salads - agan ensuring that mimmal foad usINgINvG ces rece\rved by the Graup and sarmple urit rates =
weaste s crealed im Lhe kitehen, The consumption figures relevant to transport were calculated based on T
emp\cyee business rmleage claims and Fug\tive emissions are basod an %
5
While we are proud of aur achieverments to contractor recards, in
date, we have 3 long way Lo go Under the
HLE'\rVdrdﬁh‘P Or L)’lt‘ Hcad Or SUDLd\ndbiz“L)’ The GrOUP dOe“& ﬂOt h:iVC r@\p@ﬂ"i‘b\l\ty For (lny’ 2mMissIoN SOUrces thdl are not
we will ploL our road map Lo net zero. We included in the consolidated financisl statements and dre outside the bourdary
have .1|rcady_,omcd the mduslry’s MNet of operatwon.‘ﬂ contra’
Zero Carbon Forurm, which is another
Step on Lh\’\ rodd. WG hd\/c d|hO liPPO\HLCd Yedr on yeﬂr Corﬂp.mson v not PDSi‘b‘E due tO tho \r‘ﬁp ETol N OFCOFDP(JVWU‘: Ry We” ekl >
a speaahst third party, Hospitality Energy the sale of the Brewery in FY20 ;%
Saving, to complete our annual carbon 5
reporting and help set the stralegy and :j;
raad map to net carbor zero. I
a
5
We will start by dentifying Further g
quick wins that can deliver mmed-ate <]
]

reductions in energy saving To facihtate
this, we wall be rolling out an energy and
waste dashboard to our managed sites,
which connects to emt'r\g smart

meters, and will be used to drive change.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility cantinued

That wall be our firer goal - to put
UNARCELSdly ENErgy CoNsLMpEIon top

of mind n our team members and to
replace enargy hoavy equipment, The site
dashboard wil alse include waste to ensure
a holistie enargy mfwaste cut approach to
our carbon foatprint.

Qur environmental plan for the next year
and beyond, on which we will report back
next yoar, nc udes the following goals,
We will aim to

. establish our starting pomt for cach areq
30 W Can wel ool our road map Lo net zera
incorporate ESG in every render as
part of our assessment criter.a

- undertake a behaviour change projectin
our N\nﬂaged Pubs and Hotels to
reduce energy corsurnprion and waste

- explore saurcing al of our eloctnicity
from green seurces
ensure al food waste s soparated
and recyeled

- explore packaging alternatives with
our supphers

- ensure every hotel (with parking]
has at least one BV charging point

Our communities are too good to waste
Supportmg the communities i which

we operate through chanty imks ond
community-besed imtiotves

Inhght of the extensive closure of our pubs
and hotels for se much of the year, aur
ability to fundraize  especially through
the Pennies scheme that kas proved so
generous inrecant years  has heen much
curtaled But taat has not stopped our
team members from being active i

their communibies,

Throughout the pandemic, our tedm
mambers volunteered in food banks and
at vizcndt an centres, and cookad meals
far key workers Meanwhile our Terants
have fed the home'ess and vulnerable, and
opered ther pubs as community stores
It's that can-do spinit that has kept the
Eoler's fammidy buay, motivated and at the
Agartscf our communizes

Crunir g the periods we werc open,

cur custcmens contorued to show therr
genarosity and, despriz the pandemic, we
ol ra’sed £35. 600 through Penniey
This amaz rg digissl charity box continues
tz deliver for our corporate chantios
suppert ng both Shaol rg Szar Caldrer’s
Hosprzes and Special Oiympics G5,

Special Olympics GB: Inclusion in Action
Special Olympics GB is part of a global
mavement of peaple creating & new world of
incluston and community, where every single
person is occepted and welcomed, regardless

of ehility or disability.

Special Olympics GB s the largest provider

of year-round sports cooching ond athletic
competition in summer and winter sports for
children and odults of afl abilities with intellectuol
disabilities in Great Britain. The charity provides
a competition pathway designed te nurture

and progress athletes from local competitions
through to accessing ehite level competitions.
Special Olympics uses the pawer of sport to
change ottitudes and enable opportunities for
peaple with intellectual disabilities to live active,
healthy, and fulfilhng fives. In Great Britain there
ore 105 accredited programmes across England,
Scotland and Wales, impacting the lives of 11,361
individuals with an intellectual disobility, 5,194
volunteers and 2,787 coaches. The charity offers
28 sports for oft ability levels including those

with profound, multipfe fearning disabilities and
complex heolth needs through its Motor Activities
Training Programme (“MATP").

Intellectual disability 1s the UK's biggest disability.
There are o tatal of 1.5 million indrviduals in the
UK with on intellectual disability - @ number

that is expected to nise to 1.7 million by the end of
2021 Special Olympics athietes are among some
of the most vulnerable in society ond have been
disproportionately negatively affected by the
Covid-19 pandemic. With no Special Olympics
training, competitions or activity, life has been
very different with reduced physizal actiity and
wicreased iselation.
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The statistics around intellectual disabilities are
shocking - 81% of disabled people would iike to
be more active, 77% of yaung disabled adults
(18-34) feel lonely, and eight out of 10 children
with an intellectual disability are bullied. These
startling fiqures, combined with the foct that
most people with an intellectual disability suffer
social exclusion, highlights the important role and
potential of Specral Olympics GB.

The charity’s work continues to be made possible
!‘hrcugh the support cfour Fuller's purtnershfp,
which could not be more important as recent
research has identified that 36% of aduits have
a connection or are aware of someone with

an inteflectual d!‘iﬂ'bl‘“t}/‘ This equates to neurfy
19 mulior pecple n Great Britain - far higher
than was previously estimated.

Finaliy, it should be noted that 947% of people
with an intellectuol disobility are nat in pard
employment. Hawever, one tn Ewo peaple believe
that Special Olympics GB ond its spensors need
to improve this and help find jobs for people
with an intellectual disability. This is o great
opportunity for the Special Olympics GB and
Fuller’s partnership - we can moke o significant
difference in transforming the iives of those
people with an intellectual disobulity.

Together we are helping to make the world

o better, heolthier and more joyfu! place

— one athlete, one volunteer, ane family
member at a time. For mere informaotion visit
wwe.speciololympicigh.org.uk.




We can now dlsc Lake Penmes donations
as cartactless payments and this vali
shortly be activated on transactions made
through Order & Pay. In our Bel & The
Dragon sites, Penn'es raised £2,274 Tor
the Heads Together mental health chanty,
whle 3t Cotswold Inns & Hatels, which
will be adopting the Pennies initiative

this year, £8.275 was rased through
custorner donations for Acorns

chrdren’s hospices,

We have slso raised £33,057 for Specal
Olympics throuph the sale of A'e & Pie
Tasting Boards and through a donation
on our children’s menus durng the

porieds we were open.

Our fundrarmirg endeavours have
continued during lockdown, with

anumber of tearn members raming maoney
for Speaial O ympics through the 26
Challenge last Apr', and through vanious
personal endeavours ncluding running,
walkirg and selling bottled beer tnat was
due to exprre during lockdown The team
at Bel & The Dragar rased £2,000 for
the Injured Jockeys Fund and Hampuhire
Alr Ambul‘jﬂCE‘ Vv'lth Aan Onl\r‘\[‘ Chc‘tﬂﬂ)ﬁdﬂ‘l
Preview, and the marketing team at Pier
Mouse ramed over £2,000 through a 48
hOUr reLly‘ For \T)ﬂ)/ a PDVEmE”tAWC‘:/,
which Fmd\Jlob\ n )’“DSP\L(I‘\IY for hamoeless
people and those who arcin danger of
bacorring homelaws. Thie s & charivy we
work with on a regu|«1r baws botn Lo raise
money and to provwchOb OppOFLUﬂIUGS,
We have alse dorated a further E5C.000
to Onude - the Hammersmith & Fulham
Youth Zone project. This is our secand
year of involvernent and we are commuttea
to donating £153,000 over a four

year pariod.

Flrm”y, weo hdve cantinued Lo support

s plethora of other charities through our
Charities Mud Foundation budget Over
E70,000 bas been donaled to 5 range of
gOGd causes including ¢ number of alcohal
refated charities such as Drinkaware and
the Alcohol Sducstion Trust We have also
dOr‘ ‘..LCCI 4n d‘»/er‘.gc OrerUnd E8OO Ca':h
maonth in matched funding through our
Give s you Earn scherre

What we have missed this year is the
pensioners Christrmas dinnars and those
spec 4. evenls we hold,in our pubs, to raise
money for local goad causes With cur pubs
and notels reopensd, we expect Lo see tais

" abundamce n Che naw Flr!ancm\ ye:jr‘

Heads Together

in January 2018, Bel & The Dragon started
suppor!ing this valuable charlty - and since 2019,
Pennies has helped raise even more. Throughout
Bel pubs, great importance is placed on the
individual wellbeing of the team members at each
site, so it's ¢ notural tie up

(@HeadsTegetherCampaign

Meoney raised through Pennies

37900

Adults in the UK with an
intellectual disability

1.5m
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Going forwards, we wll be focused or

three key arcas.
Central charity bulding awareness

cf Spacial Olympies through fundraising

initialives driven centrally

bu\|dmg

re|dtlomﬁps in the cormmun 'ty

Local chanity Lrks

through lecal charity fimks,
Coemmunty based imtidties
making the pub the hub and burding

Fe‘dUDHH}“Ip\ 3t ‘Dcd‘ ‘CVC‘
To do this, we wll

ho ¢ rcguhlr events driven Contrdi\y

1o rinse the profile of Special Olympics
promote Pennies throughsut our
OH[‘.”te E‘]nd through r]” FQH—T'\\ O{‘Cﬂrd
and d\g\tﬂ Lransdactions

work with Special Olympiey atn ctes

to teil their starics

encourdge sur Loam memboers to
volunteer at Special Olympics events
hald asenes of charity events at a locdl
level Lo engage cur customers ang
addross issues at the heart of our
commurities and neighbourhoeds
roesnvigorate the Gree as you Earn
scheme and promate matched Funcmg
alocate a day a year for emplayees
towerk ona community project.

Our people are too good to waste
Creorrﬂg an tnclusive workpface, mkmg care
of our teams’ wellbeing and provding genuine
coreer gpportunities

We are a people business  thereis ne
doubt about that
have people at aur heart. Throughout

and we very much

the recent pandemic and the varous

lockdowns, we have locused an helping our
tearn mambers deal with unusual and often
il cull situaviors  whether they have

been working throughout or on turlough.

One of the best ways we did thes was through
our Fuse dgital learming and communications
platform This provided an excellent way to
connect with our Learn mermbers while Lhc‘y
were away lrom the workplace One of the
most successful elements was a senics of bite
sized courses focused on wellbeirg and
dev‘e|0pmg important life skilis [‘vcrythmg
from acquimng a new language tolaarr ng
now dig tal skills, Take up of these courses
wasincred b, with team members
compleling 3 total of 1,751 hours of free hfe
skifls traiming during lockdown and furlough.
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STRATEGIC REPCORT

Corporate Social Responsibility continued

We also used Fuse as a vehicle for regular
vlags from the Chief Executive to keep
everyone informed, up to date and
entertaincd, and we supported th's
communication flow with webinars as we

approached the various reopening dates.

Mental health continues 1o be a well
discussed topic for our team members -
and the wider community  and we have
built on the imtiatives wo put in place last
year. Duning the toughest third lockdewn,
over 2,000 teamn mambers tuned inlo
our weekly Wellbeing Podeast Th s was
also hosted on Fuse. We also launched
Wagestreamn g systemn that allows
early access Lo wages earned - and over
1,0G0 team members signed up to the
Wagestream financial wellbeing app.
During the third lockdown we also
provided supermarket vouchers to those
team members most affected by the
ongaocng situatien.

We are in the process of relaunching our
employer brand under the mantra True

to Yau, and as part of this process weare
also focuvng on better understanding the
diversty of cur team. We have appainted
aninternal person to head up this work and
our goa'1s to create an inclusive workplace
where everyone can thrive, in I'ne with

our values,

Gaing forwards, we wall be focused on
sUpporting our toam members' phys-cai
mental, financial ard social wellbeing.
To achiove this, we wili:

- irwelve our people in ereating our first
Diversity and inclusion action plan
identify appropriate actions to embed
an inclusive culture in all areas of our
peaple expenence
map our female talent and create
bespoke traming interventians to
encourage their development
imtreduce a wellbeng module as part
of ourirductor programme
train 100+ mental hea'th firss aiders
erbed wellbeing in all eur leadership
acselopment prograrmmes
provide a suite of free onlire
wellbeing tranirg
st standards fer back of house
when we urdertake myeotrnant s
ensure real devalopment
opoorturites through our

Designed for Life ¢ sreer pathway

Gender Diversity
Asat 27 March 2021

Board of Directors (%)

Female 2

Male 7 78%
Senier management (%)

Female 7 50%

Male 7 50%
Other employees (%)

Female 1,630 43%

Male 2,134 57%

work wth external partners and trade
bodies to rase the profile of hospiality

d~ a grodt place Lo have a career,

Life is too goad to woste

Th 515 the most progressive strategy we
have ever mplerrented in the CSRIESG
leld and we are setting stretching and
measurable targets. We lock forward to
developing the it atives outhred sho.e
under the direction of our new Foad of
Suszamabhity and wath the support of cur
—xecutive leam ard all our team members
The Beard < comm tted to the de ivery

of this pregramme ard we lock forward to
q;dwillng yOU O QUP rogress in the future,




Reporting requirement

Non-Financial Information Statement

Key palimes/standards/framewsrks

For additional information

ENVIRONMENTAL CSR Strategy - Our enviconment CSR Report from page 34
MATTERS
EMPLOYEES CSR Strategy  Our people, Alcchol and Drugs CSR report from page 34

Pal:cy, Autendance and Absence Policy, Bulying
and Harassment Pol cy, Communmications pohcy,
CDrﬂpd\‘--Dﬂth‘ and Bereavernent Policy, Dats
Protection p@l\cy, Csciplrary Palicy, Equal
Oppertunity Palicy, Farmily Friznd'y Palicy,

Ant-Br bE‘ry Pohcy (Coverimg glFts and hosp [d|\l,y)]

Grizvance Policy, 1T Palicy, Mobile PRone Policy,
Other Ernpleymert Policy, Parenting Pelicy,
Recruzment Policy, Redundsncy Policy,
Residential Accommodation Palicy, Right to Wark
Poncy, Smaking Poiicy, Social Media Poliey, Stafl
Nccommadation Policy, Stop and Search Poliey,
Stress Poliey, Tu tien Poncy, Whistleblowing Policy

Strategic Repart onpuges 18 and 19

SOCIAL MATTERS

CSR Strategy - Our communities, Gender Pay

Gap reporting

TSR Report from page 34

HUMAN RIGHTS

Modern Slavery Statement

CSR Report - page 35 in parucular

ANTI-CORRUPTION
AND ANTI-BRIBERY
MATTERS

Anti Bribery Policy (cavering gifts and hospitalty),

Whistleblowing Policy

Corporate Gavernance Report from page 46

Audit Committee Report from page 51

PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND IMPACT ON
BUSINESS

BUSINESS MODEL

Thewe are set oul on pages 28 to 30

Araplance page &
See our vision and purposc or page &

Strategic Report on pages 16 and 17

NON-FINANCIAL
KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Strategic Report on pages 18 and 19
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By order of the Board

(Semon

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

qJuly 2021
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Driving our strategy

is the Board - a team
of people who each
bring expertise and
experience in different
areas. [hey set the
strategic direction for
the Company and add
their contribution to the
Fuller’s growth story.

Board structure as at 8 July 2021

Chmr-n;nan Tﬂﬁ
Execut va Directars 34%
Nean Executive Cirectors 2245
independent 33%

MNor-Executive Direcioms

GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

MICHAEL TURNER N
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Date appointed to the Board: Jinuary "985

Experience: A Chortered A zcount snt with
nternation sl expeniance Mich el joined Fuller's
01378 ntislly running tre Wine Ciasion as Wine
Diractor Appainted Marketing Dircctor in 1985,
NManagirg Director in 1992, Chief Executive in
2002 and Charmanin 2007 Chairman of the
British Bear and Pub Association 2008 2010
Master of the Worshipldl Ccrrp iy of Virtners
201 2012,

Key external appointments: Monc

My lockdawn: With my wife, Diana, staying mainly

in London while f was in Suffolk, I've had to learn to
COOI(‘ Iﬁfﬂugh thﬁ' pﬂWEr Df YCUTUbEJ ’Cﬂﬂ now de“VEf
a mean rack of Jomb and o lobster thermidor.

ADAM COUNCELL®
FINANCE DIRECTOR

Date appainted to the Board: August 2013

Experience: Joinad from 4104 listed Restore ple,
wera he wis Group Firanze Director Started
mis osreer 3L Whitbread plain the accounts
depriment of The Pelicsn Group restaurant
diisior pefors moang to the #ilward Brown
Pracis subsidisr, of WEP plc Jawed Rentokil
Imitial ple e 2003, whera he held 5 o3 et of
fininze pasts ncluding Cemmere 3l Dircater

of the BLaress snd Industr, a4 asion, Finance
Cirazior of Ca[ermg 3nd tre comiined :ﬁ-}rmg
:nd Hosp t3ls drasion and finsll, Finance Diractar
of the UK Business Serw cos deasien Sualifiad
Charterad Accountang

Key external appointments: Nora

My lockdawn: I've spent much of lockdown trying
to get involved in home schooling my chifdren.
Turns out 'm ne match for English homework.

40
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SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Date appointed ta the Board: M3, 1598

Experience: Joined in 195 From Bass ple whera
he held 5 s3niet ; of senor operstinal and strilegic
planning rales Apocinted to the Basrd as ReLal
Chrectar i Ao, 1963, J\f\jﬂjg\ng Director, Fuller's
Innsm July 2006 Group Man aging Direckarin
November 2010 3na Chief Executive in Jul, 2013
Previousl, Senior \ndepend-ﬂﬂ: Ciractor and Char
of the Rermuner stion Committes of Curalm
Group plc Aneceromics graduste snd Alumnus
af Harv ird Business Schaol.

Key external appointments: Non-Exccutize

Director of The Mtional Galler ; Compam,
7 By

Limited snd Sen-or Indegendent Diractar

of WH Smuth PLC

My lockdown: My wrfs, Seling, and ! took the
stoycation opportunity to compﬁste the Coast
to Coast cycle ride - 155 miles from Whitehaven
to Tynemouth,

FRED TURNER
RETAIL DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: June 2019

s

Experience: Joned the Compan, in 2
Cperstians Manager for Fuller's Inns &ppoirted
Ha3d of Tenantad Cperations in 2215 ard
Tenanted Director in 2018 Quslified 3

3 Charterad Azcountant with Grint Thorntor

LK LLP. Cial engineening graduats

is 30

Key external appointments: Nane

My lackdown: { turned aur house into ¢ crazy goff
course, which the children foved - but it did nearly
result in divorce!



Key to Committee membership:

A Audit Commitiee

JULIETTE STACEY
SEMIOR INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ANR

Date appointed to the Board: Miarch 201¢

Experience: Former Chiel Excoutive of Mibey
Holdings Limized. Farmer Chief Gperating Officer
tUK 3nd Europe) and previcus s Fie srce Directer
{Commercai UK) of Savlls ple Qushfied s

1 Chartered Accountant o th Ernst & Yaung

Key external appointments: Mcne

My lockdown: | resurrected my love of interior design
ond dealt with some long overdue projects - { mode
two sets of curteins, four Romen blinds, @ number
of scatter cushions and reupholstered eight

dining chairs.

HELEN JONES ANE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed ta the Board: M wrch 2019

Experience: ~ormerly Group Execun 2 Girectar 1t
Caffe Nero and Managing Drector of Zizzi. the ‘tilan
casual dining chsin, and Nom Exceutize Directer of
et st diming restaor it grop Vipuna SE

Key external appcintments: Sonior Independent
Director und Chair ol the Ervironment sl See 4l
3rd Sovernince Committee of Hulfords Graup ple
Cther appointmznts ndude Non -Executine
Cirector and Crar of the Remmuner ition
Cemrmittee of virgn Wines UK Ple and

Non E<ccutive Directar of Premier Faads Ple

My lockdown: | took my fitness reqime on the road
and reconnected with nature during feckdown with
a daily walk or cycle ride oround the beautiful
Buckinghomshire countryside. Less Twitter and
maore Twitcher!

N Nermiration Committee

R Remunaration Comenittee

SIR JAMES FULLER, BT
NON-FXFCUTIVF DIRFCTOR

Date appeinted to the Board: Junc 2010

Experience: Servedin The Life Guards frem
1991 ta 1998 Employed by the Compan, from
1998 to 2003, werking in the Tied and Mar aged
Pubestste snd his since bear runring v s

own business

Key external appointments: MNene

My lockdown: { renovated the half acre Victerian
wolfed garden during lockdown, including the creation
of o huge vegetable patch to serve the local orec.

ROBIN ROWLAND OBE ANR
INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: M rch 2020

Experience: Presously Charman and Chisf
Euccutie of YO Sushi, Nan Eecutive Director
of Murstons PLC and Tortilhy Awarded an OBE
n 2015 for qutstanding services to hospitality

Key external appointments: Currondy Eurcpesn
Operaung Partner of TnSpan Private Equity aith
Charmn snd Nor Executio Director roles with
three portfelio corrp smies Rosy Tha Thunderbird
and 2oss Mevicino (USA) Independent

Mo -Executive Director roles with Eathos 1Gulf)
and Caffe Nero

My lockdown: | have taken up bee keeping for the first
time ever ond have over 5,000 bees in my new hive.
{'m afready getting honey  but I stifl can't identify
which one Is the queen.

. Committze Char

RICHARD FULLER
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: Docomceor 2009

Experience: so-ned the Compan, in 1984
Lppairtad 3 Diasionsl Directer 1n 1992 and to
tne Board in December 2009 mth responsibility
intaly for sales ther sddivonyz personnal.
corparate stfairs snd goeernment relst ons
Becime Non-Exezutive Chrectorin February,
2020 A GMP graduate of Harvard

Business School

Key external appeintments: Charman of Kempten
Park Ricecaurse snd Mosier of the Worship©ui

Compan, of Brewers

My lockdown: I'm in the middle of laying ¢ 100 yard
hedge - it's a very intricate pracess of cutting and
staking o combination of Howthorn and Hazel to
make o thicker, tidier hedge.

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date appointed: Januar, 2021

Experience: \n cxperenced camp iny scarelsry
hrong held pasitions at 3 number of other histed
companizs ncluding Invensys PLC, Aldermare
Group PLC (both the listed entity snd the

regu sted bank} and, most recently, Clarkson PLC
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secrat snas
and Administrators

My lockdown: I've spent fockdown trying to house
train my new puppy. She is a block Springodar cafled
Winnie and has mode a real impact on our fives

- and en our carpet!

* Asannounced on 26 February 2021, Adam Councell informed the Board of his intention to step down from his current pasition as Finance Director. Adam will
remain with the Company in order to ensure an orderly handover, and his leaving date will be confirmed in due course. Neilt Smith will join the Board as Finance
Director at a date to be confirmed, but no later than1 December 2021.
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The Dircctors present therr report to
shareholders together with the audited
financial staterents for the 52 weeks
ended 27 March 2021 The Directors'
Reportand the Strchglc Poport

(pages 4 to 44) together constitute

the mansgement report for the purpase
of Rule 4 1.8R of the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules
Otherinformation relevant (o the report,
including information relevant pursuant to
the Campanies Act 2006 and UK Listing
Rule 9.8 4R s incorporated

A perrmitted by legislation, some of the
matters required to be included in the
Directors’ Report have nstead been
included in the Strategic Report as the
Board consders them to be of strategic
mportance Spec fizally, these are.

Reparted in Page(s)

Our Strategy 18

Infarmation

Future busiress

devclopments

Stakeholder iz
Er\g—jgemnmt

Employment of
disabled persons

Erployee Seakehalder 32.34
engazement Engagemert and
(Ir“.C|udmé CSR

part cipation

in share plans)

Engagcmen[ Stakchelder 3233
with supglers Ergazement

cuslomers and

other,

Emissiony C5R 33
reporting

Annual General Meeting

The 2021 Annual General N\eet.r‘.g
[“/\GN\NJ wil pe held at Mlam on Thursoay
23 September 2021 4t The George IV,
185 Chiswick High Road, Londan, W4
Z2DR. The Notice of Meeting which sets
out the resolutions to be proposcd has
becr posted to shareholders and 1o
avalable on the Company's website

o . 1
at v [ ailers oo uk.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association
were adapted v 2014 In accordance wath
the Compamies &ct 2006, tne Articles
of Asscaiation may on'y be amerded by

1y specia! resalubion of snareholders in

4 peneral moeting

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report

Directors

Tre names and biographical detalls of the
Directors who served on the Bo.ard and
Board Commuttees during the financial
year and up the date of th s report are
given on pages 40 and 41

Appointment and Retirement

of Directors

The Articles of Associat-or (“the Articles™)
state that the Board may sppaint Directors
ard that at the subsequent AGM,
sharcholders may elect any such Derector.
Alternatively, the Company may directly
appant 4 Directar, The Articles 1o
contain the power for the Company to
remove amy Director by special resolution
and sppont sernecac e his or her place by
ardirary resalution. Trere are vanous other
crcurrstances under Lthe Articles which
of u Cirector
wou'd be vacated, includ.ng " he ar she

would mean that the office

resigns, or becomes of unsound mind
ar barkrupt.

At every AGM onc third of the Sirectors
whe are subject Lo reuremnent by rotaton
or, f their number « not three or any
mult.ple of three, then the nurrbe - nearest
Lo but not exceeding one third shall

retre from office but, Tthere s only one
Directer wha is subject to retrcment by
rotation, he or she shall retire. in adaition,
iFarvy Director has at the start of the AGM
been in office for maore than three years
since his or her last appaintment or
re-appointment he or she shall retire

at that AGM

Powers of the Directers

Subject ta the Company's Merorandurr
and Articles of Assoziation and LUK
legislstion, the business of the Comrpany
15 managed by the Board which may
cxeraise dl the powers of the Company
The Articles of the Camrpany have
asection enttled "Powers and Duties

of the Baard™ which sets aul pewers such
a5 the rights 1o establish lacal boards, to
sppoint agents, to delegate ard o appaint
persons vath ine designauon "Drrector”
W lTo Lt |mp\y‘rg tnal the persor s
aDuweztor of the Compary Thers are
further sectizng of the Articies entit en
“Moiment of Shares” setting out the
Board™s poveer to issue shares and
purchiase the Company's own snarcs,
ard "Borrowing Powers” setting out the
provisions concerning the Corrpany's
power to borrow and g se secunity

42
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The Directors have been authorised

w0 allot and issue ordinary shares

Thase powers are exercined under
autharity of resolutions of the Company
passed at its AGM

Directors’ Indemnities and Insurance
The Articles of Association provide the
DCirectors with indemnities in relation
to their duties a~ Directors, including
qualifying thira party indemnity
pravisions (vathin the mearung of the
Companies Acts).

The Company purchascs Directors and
Offieers habilty insurance which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action
brought againstits Directors. This insurance
also cavers the Trustees of the Company's
defined benelt pens.on scheme.

Directors’ Interests

Detals of alt Dhrectors' interests as at the

end of the financial year are set out in the

Direciory’ Remuneration Repert or pages
56 to 78.

Dividends

In wiew of the coronavirus pandernic the
Company paid re interim diviaends and
the Directors deaided not to recommend
a hinal divdend on the ordirary shares for

the Ninancal year ended 27 March 2021

Total dr.idends of £120,000 relate to the
cormulative Pref'erence dividends which
have been paid.

External Auditors

The audtars, Ecmst & Yaurg LLP, were
appoirted by the Directers during the
yaur FO”Ong a formal tender process as
detailed further in the Audt Committee
Reporton pages 51 to 53 Ernst & Young
LLP have naicated ther witingness to
continue n off.ce, and a resalution that
they be apponted wil be proposed

at the AGM,

Information Required under the
Listing Rules

Forthe purpose of LF\’@.B.ACQ, the
informat on required to be disclosed by
LRS.& 4% can be Found in the Arnual
Report 1= tha folowrg locations and
hereby incarparated by reference inta
this Directors Roport.




- Informat on acout long termincentnves
i» disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 60

. /\ny warver of ernoluments by 4 Director
DF H'_\C COFT]pdr‘IY or dny \\th\dh‘]fy
undertak ng ik disclosed in the
Chrectors’ Remuneration chori

on page 56,

Political Donations
The Granp dees net make polineal donabiors,

Purchase of Own Shares

At the AGM beld on 10 September
2020, the Company was given an annual
authonity te purchase up to 4,851,096
‘A ordinary shares to be held as treasury
shares to be used in connection with,
ameng ather purposes, the Long -Term
lrcentive Plan TLTIP™) andfor other
share aption schemes. Shareholders vall
be ssked to give a swmilar authority to
purchuse snares up to 15% of the 'A

crdinary capital at the 2021 AGM

The Company™s maximum ssued

ardinary share capital during the year v
£2279372¢ comprising 33,619,834 A
ardinary shares, 89,052,625 8" ordinary
shares and 14,459,218 ‘C' ordin iry “hares

During the yeur the Company did not
purchass any sharas

615 A Ordmdry sharos neld i Lreasury
were allocated 1o participants of the Savirgs
Reluted Share Option Scheme, the Sener
Exccutive Share Ooton Seheme and the
Exccutive Share Opron Scheme on
exercise of oplions, generating net cash
proceeds of E14,011 As st 27 March 2021,
s total of 12731486 A srdinary shares ana
atotal of 4,558,009 3" ordnary shares are
held as treasury shares.

Share Capital

Information on the Company's financial
irstruments, capital structure ard related
restnctions is gven in notes 28 and 29
tathe financial staterments. Catals of
significant sharcholdings are sel out Below.

Computcrshdrc Trustees Limited holds

a total of 186,337 A ordinary ok sres on
Eehalf of employees of the Company wha
are participantsinits 51F This represents

0 48% of the 1ssued ‘A ardinary share
capital lexcuding shares held in treasury).
[ respect of the shares that have boen
alocatad, Computershare Trustees Limited

exercises votng rights in celat on to
those shares, having consulted with tne
participants about ther voting intentions,

Subsequent e the yesr end, on

31 Mareh 2021 the Company compleled
anon pre emptive placing of 6,455,447
Acw A erdinary shares 4l 830p per
share (the “Placing”] and ~atisfied
subscriptions from Circctors over 13,853
new A orainary shares, generating net
cash proceeds of £53,5580,21C.10

Substantial Shareholdings

less costs, In conjunction with the
p\-acmg, the Company also transferred
230,094 'B ordinary shares (including
132,528 "B ordinary shares to sausfy
appications from the Directors),
generaung net cash proceeds of

£109 998 24 lzss costs. General
Meetings convened on 20 Aprit 2021
approved the issuance of this additional
share capital and the A ordinary shares
were subsequently admitied to the
main market

“he Campany had been noufied under the Disclasure Guidance and Transparency Rules
o5 aware of the foliowing holdings of votirg rnghts of it hsted issued share capitan:

‘A’ ordinary shares of 40p each

Lourtaalsig an

As at A ar

27 March Ty

201 270

BlackReck, Inc 13.47 13.43
Lansdowne Partrers (UKY LLP L - 840
Columrbia Threadneedle 5.37 5.06

The Compuny s also aware o the fol cwing interests ir 3% o mare of the votng r ghts in

the two classes of ity unhisted share capital:

‘B’ ordinary shares of 4p each

As at Ay sy

27 March i,

2on L

Mr AW M Mitche | & Burges Salmen Trustees Lid 14.85 14.85
tr RHF Fuller & Mr R I Turner & Mr P A Shels 7.66 -
tAr R HF Fuller & Mr P J Turner & Mr P A Shels - 7.66
MrAGF Fuller 5.72 5.74
Mr R H F Fulter & Mr P A Shels & Mr PJ Turner ©ae2 462
Dunarden Limited 3.60 3.60
Mr R D Inveranity ) i 352 348
Mr G F Inverarity 3.48 3.37
Mr 4 ) Turner 332 337
Misa S M Turner 3.33 3.33
MrRHF Fuller 3.08 3.08
Mi TJ M Turner 3.00 3.00
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‘C’ ordinary shares of 40p each

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report continued

Asat SRR

27 March 7L,

201 2n

Mr AW M Mitchell & Burges Salmon Trustees Ltd 31.02 31.02
MrTJ M Turner 6.20 6.20
Miss § M Turmer o 5.25 5.25
Mi P AR Carter & Sir JH F Fuller 430 430
MrW G F Fuller - 4.24
MrAGF Fuller & Mr PAR Carter 4.12 412
Mrs DM St C Turaer 3.09 3.0%
Mr CDW Wlhams 3.02 3.02
Mrs E A Crisp 3.02 3.02

Post Balance Sheet Events
Poat Balance Sheet everts are disclosed
innote 33 to the financia' statements

Significant Agreements

The Growp has entered into a number

of agreements with the major brewers
aperabing in the UK under which 1t both
buys and sells beers, ard these agreements
may be terminated by the otner party
shauld the Group undergo a change

of cantrol

In tne event of ¢ change of contral,

the Company 1s ebliged ta nelifly s man
bark lenders of such The lenders sha'l
net be obliged to fund any new borrawing
reguests and the facilities will lapse after
30 days fram the change of control if
terms on which they can continge have
not been agreed, All borrowings includ rg
accrued interest will become repayabte
withr ten days of such a lapse

The service agreements of the current
Executive Chrectors and the ncoming
new Finarce Direcior include provaions
regarding a change of cantrol. Further
detals are incluged in the Directors’
Remuneration Policy set out on

pages 56 1o /8.

By order of the Board

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

3 July 2021

Fullee, Srmith & Turner PL C.
Pier Hause

R% 23 Strand on the-Greer
_ondon W4 3NN

Registered in England under rumber

241882
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

Staterment of Directors’
Responsibilities in Respect

of the Financial Statements

The Directors ave resporsible for preparing
the Strategic Report, the Annual Report,
the Remureration Repert and the Group
and Company {'rancual statements
inaccordance with spplicable Lnited
K\ng(}r‘n i:i'\N dnd ngUi“]iJOﬂ\

-
Camnany bw snqares the Diresiors 1o

prepare |

financial year Under that law, the

T iﬂCI‘ii staterments i‘OF [‘-‘JCiT

D rectors have slected to prepara the
F\Wdﬂﬁl{ii stitemerts in dCCCFdd"\CQ ‘N\'\H
miterrational accounting standards in
cenflormily wibh the requirements of the
Corrpanes Act 2006, Undor company
law. the Directars must not approve the
fingncial statements uricss Lhey are
satishied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affairs and prof tar
loss of the Group and Company for the
firancial period

Lirder the Firancial Condec: Authonty's
Chsclasure Guidance and Transparency
Rues, Group birancial staternents are
required to be prepared in accordance with
international financil reporuing standards
C1mRSs Y adopted pursuant to Regulation
(ECI No1606/2007 as it appies 'n the
European Union,

Ir prepanng the Group and Compdny
financial staterments, the Directors are
required ta

\EiOCt \ditdbie dCCOuﬂtng pDiiCl[‘\ mn
(‘lCCDrdE‘]ﬁCe \Niih i/\S g ACCDUHUH%
policiey, changes in accounting

e ates and errors and then apply
them conx\stemtiy;

present \nFOFmdUOﬂ, mc-ud\ng
accounting policies. 1n g manncr Lhat
PrO‘JiCiE‘\ rC‘iC\IdmL, rCildbiC_ Comp 1rx‘]b|['
and understand sble informat on;
provide additiont disclosures

when compliance with the speaf'c
requirements in IFRSs s insufficiert
to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the
group ard compary hinancial position
and firsncial par formadnce;

rake 4n assassment of the Company's

shility to cortinue a5 ¢ going concern,

Frilbe ¥R 8 ANMUAREPIRT &AND AV I My 2000

+ state that the Group und Company
have comphed with international
dccountmg standards in Coniormlty with
the requirernents of the Comparies Act
2006 and IFRS, ddOPtC‘d pursuant to
chui,ﬁlorw {(FCIN 16062002 av i
apgphes in the European Union), subject
to ary matenal denartures disclosed ard
oxplaired n the financ. 3l staterments, and
m ke judgerrents and estimates that are
raasonable and prudent.

The Directors are respons ble tor keeping
adequite accounting records that are
sufficient ro show and explain the Group'
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial poslt on
of the Group and Company and enable
them to ensure that the finsnc sl
statemerts ard the Rerunerstion Report
comp|y witn kne Corﬂp\m'c‘s Act 20086
and dpphctibic roguidtloﬁs, mciudmg the
requirements of the Lising Rules and the
Chsclosure and Transparency Rules
(“DTR“] ard in the ¢ase of the Group
finarcisl staterments, with Article 4 of Lhe
IAS Regutation They are also resporsible
for sarogu-jrdmg tre assots of the GrOL‘p
and hence for Laking reasonab e steps for
the prevent onand detection of fraud

and otherirregulanties.

Tre Directors are responsible for

prepar ng the Annual Report in
sccordance with apphcable law and
regulations. The Directors are responsible
for the maintenance and inteprity of the
corparate and financial information
included an the Campany’s website,
Legislanan in the United Kingdom
poverning the preparation and dissernination
of financial statements may differ from

lemslat-onin other jurisdictions

Statement as to Preparation
of Financial Statements

The Directers confirm, to the best
of therr kmawledge

+ that these financigl statements,
prepared in dezordance with
nternationdl dc:Oummg stardards in
conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs
adopted pursusnt to Regu'ation (EC)
No1606/2002 as it ._1pp|\es in the
European Unon, give a true and far
view of the assets, habilities, firanc al
position and profit of the Group and
Company taken as & whole;

s
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that the Annual Report and the
Strategic Reportincludes a farr review
of the development and perform ince
of the business and the position of the
Group and Company taken as a whole,
together wath 3 deseription of the
principa’ risks and uncertaintes that
they face; and

that they consder the Annual Report
and the financial statements, taken

s a whaole, provides the rformation
neceass )ry tG dbsls% ti—ie Compdny\
perFOrmamce, busiress rrogel and
strategy and 15 fuir, balanced andg
understandable

The Directors of ~uller, Stk % Turner
PLC arelstedon pages 40 and 43

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure
of Information to Auditors

“he Directors who were members of

the Board at tne trme of approving the
Directors Report are 'isted on pages 40
and 4. Having made enqu nes of fellow
Directors and of the Company's auditors,
2ach of these Directors confirms that

to the best of each Dirccrar’s
kﬂowiocge and kelief, therc s no
informat’on re'cvant to the Ereparation
of this report of which the Companys

flUd‘tOf‘: Arc Undwdro, d"]d

cach Directer has ta<en 4l the Sleps

s Directar mught reasonably be
cxpected to have taken Lo be aware

of any relevant audit informaton and Lo
establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information.

On behall of the Board

At/ Tt/

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

8 July 2021

N\C)I/\J'Df\()
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MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

“The Board recognises
that good corporate
governance is critical to
delivering our strategy
for the long-term
benefit of all
our stakeholders.”

GOVERNANCE

Dear Shareholder,

l'srn plessed to present our Corporate
Governance Report for 2021, The

Board recognises that good corporate
governance 1s critcal to delivening our
strategy for the long-term benefit of

a'l our stakeholders, while remaning
cggnisant that arrangements need to be
appropriate for the business. With a strong
rentage ard as pnmarily a family cwned
company, there are some provisiens in the
2018 UK Corporate Gevernance Code
{the "Code”), which we beleve are rot
appropriate for Fuller’s In the spint of the
Code and for transparency we have
summadrised these in the table an the
facing page.

As deseribed in my Charaan’s Revow,
tris year bas been urprecedented ara
zznsequertly the warkings of the Board
have had to adapt. Given the exceptional
circumstances we faced, it was crtical
av 1 Board that we met more Frequer-t\y.
In Apnl 2020, we maved quickly o
aweekly routine of video conference
cal's to discuss operatonal, Ninarcia’ and
liquidity matters so that we could assass
the impact Lo the business, and prov de
cversight to tne Executve Team.

lnthe Spring 072021, the Board spert
censiderable ime evaluating the decision
to launch an equity rase. Ensaring the
nght balance of debt and equ ty capital in
abusiness is an important part of ensuring
long term success, and afler very careful
and detailed discuszions, the Board
concluded that equity was the correct
reute and in the bestinterests

of sharenolders.

Meetings have contirued Lo be held
remotely for most of the year and ! would
Ike to thank my fellow Board members
for embracing this new way of woreng
and for their significant cantribution
during the year. Spec al recognition a so
goes o the Exccutive Teamn forits
resoonse to the Coud crisis.

Cur Board Committees ba.e also neen
very actve ounng the year and helped us
rangate thiough tnese extraord rary and
cnalengngurmes Further detar of shair

work is reporied or pages 47 1o /8
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Thraugh the Nominations Commilice,
which | chair, we have conducted the
search for a rew Finance Director to
replace Adam Councell, wheo has decided
to return to the service sector. We are
delighted to have anncunced the
appontment of Neid Smith, whao wll join

us later in the year. On behalf of the Board,
l'would also like to express our appreciation
for the contapution Adam has made
during his tenure, which covered the most
remarkabie penad in the Corﬁp(lr'y's 176
year history, He has risen well to the
challenges, and we wish him every success

i bis Future endeavours

We had ntended ta corduct an externally -
facihtated Board evaluation this year but,
in the strange imes of working remately,
it wis unanimously agreed that this showld
be deerred unul the Directors could
meet in person Consequently, sur Sen or
Independen: Dircetor Uuliette Stacey)
rar dn 'Fterrm‘ P(Ocej:} Lh\\ yE'rJr \Nh\ch
cencluded, despite the challenges
presented by coranauirus, that the Board
nad perfarmed very e”-ecll\.'c\y Our
intentien s kit the externat evaluaticn
wn'l take place during the currert Ninancril
year, and myse'l and Julette are currently
conducting a select on process with

potential firms Lo support this exercise.

i was disappointed that our AGM in 2025
had to be held a5 a closed meeting, but
sharchotders will hopefully understond that
this was entrely necessary Lo ensure the
safety of all concerned. We very much

fook forward to welcoming shareholders
toour AGM on 23 September 2021 which,
subject to sny Government guidance

in place at that time, w T be held at

The George IV ir our Chiswick heartland,

st/ “Toins/

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

8 Juy 2021
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Statement of Compliance with the our stskoha'ders. With this in mind, the there are some pros sions of the

UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
The Board 1s committed to mantaning
effeclive corporate governance and

Company has applied the man principles Code where we ao not comply but

of the Code throughaut the year. where we do consider sur governance

However, given the structure of the Group framework remains appropriate These

we are 1 public hsted company but «till are surnmarised in the table bo'ow

iriegnity, enabling us Lo deliver our

strategy for tne long term benefit of af very rmuch a Farmily -contrelled concern

Code Pravision Detal of non-comp\lance Further information

PRINCIPLE 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY PURPOSE L
=
=
o

5 Faor enzagoment with the workforco. the Company Fuller's has adopted 4 people first approacn inits resporise Lu Lhe par darug s

pes nat have 1 director appointed (rorm the viorkfarce v engaging effectively through strong communic 1tions with ity st e =
d h director pponted fror th ki by engaging effectively througn strong hitssealf Th =
aformal workforce ad.iar, panel or 4 dewgnated Board recerses regulir updates from the CEQ and Director of People to 0
- ]

nan exocutive directar cnsare employes matters are understood MNormally there s also regular -
i Q

engagerent with employees throug)" Asits 16 3w pubs and hote's, although ul

thi bas urderstandabiy been curtaled with the estate clowed Oler the next
yesr. the Board will consider whether the cesignation of a Non Executne
Director to provide a formal ink to the Board 1w required

PRINCIPLE 2: DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

" Atleast~1'f of the Bo—;rd.cxcludmg the Chairman. The Bosrd zonsders st membershp s well balanced with the mght mix

sre ot independent Non Executive Directars of skills and expernience The prosence of Nor Executive Directors who are
lang -standieg Family shareholders s .mportant in th s prafessiznaly run

farmily business

PRINCIPLE 3: COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

18 Directars are rot subject to annuil re election In accordince with the Company's Arucies of Associauon, all Drectors 1re
subject ta election by sharcholders at the first AGM after thair sppointment
andto re clection 4t three yesrly intervals A part of the annual Board
effectivene s reiew the performarce of the D rectors 15 eva uated and
forms the recammendation i the Nolice of AGM 45 1o why the Compuny
hele e 3nindidusi director should be re-elected 1hvew of the
Companys size its awnersbop sbieture and s histor g the Bosrd s not

m nded to mave to 47wl re clect.on of Directars but o Tkeep thi

requ'rcme'ﬂ under rescs

The Baard considers that the Chairman'’s “nowledge and understanding
of this lorg establiched Farmily business and its reguirements s

iE The Chairman has been in post for more than
nine years
e«tremely aluable

PRINCIPLE 5: REMUNERATION

n
2
5
o
N
o3l
o
Tu
o
b
i
>
=1
w

33 The pension contribution rates for the current Executive Tho pension rate for the current Executive Directors represents an existing

Directors are not shgred with thowe avalable to contractua commizment and thew overall pay 15 towards the lower end of
the warkforce morket prastice The Beard winhas to moncur these contractual entitlements
and does not considerit appropriate te make 3 reduction Under the
Remuneration Poucy appraved by shareholder. :n 2020, the pension
opportunity for new Directors (which ncludes Ned Srith, the incoming rew

Finance Directorhisin hne w.th the policy for the majant, of the workfaree

A formal schedule of matters reservad
rGF Lhe B:'drd I~ p‘d[{‘ The BOI]rd h[]‘s
delegated some of its responsbilities ta

Further information on the Codz canbe stakenalders for the wider impact we have

found or the Financial Reporung Council’s Its role ‘nc'udes the establiskmert, review

website al www fre orguk and monitaring of the Company's strategy,

appraval of MAOT acguIsitons, dsposals mandated Committees, each of which

The Board

Role and Workings of the Board

Led by the Crairman, the Board s
collectvely resporsible Lo the sharcholders
for the oorformance and long term
success of the Group, as well to other

and cap\tu| expemd\tqre, setting the
Company's purpese and va ues, averseeing
the Group's systems of ‘nternal contrals,
governince and risk management, and
£15Uring that the Bppropriate rasources

are in place to delver these.
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operates under written terms of refererce
approved by the Board and which are
avalable on the Company's website, Al
Commitiee Chairs report erally on the
proceedings of their Commitiees at the
next mecliﬂg of the Bourd, and the
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GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report continued

minutes of the meetings of oll Board
Cormmitices (with some exceptions on
rermunerabion matters) are provided Lo
Board members.

The Board delegates all operational
matters and execution of the strategy Lo
the Executien Team (which includes the
Executive Directors, the N\arketlng
Director, the People and Talent Director,
and the Property Directorl, The Chairman
ensures that the Executive Commuiltee
prowdea accurate and t\mely informaton
for Board mectings which is then open to
debate and challenge by &Y

Board mectings enjoy open dialogue ond
constructive challenge ar all ssues s
ancouraged. With a good infarmation

flow between and pnar to Board meelings,
decisions are made in a timely manner
after appropriate questions are dealt wath.
The Board has adoptad a procedure, in
sccordance with the Company’s Articles,
to consider and | if L sges {it, to authornse
situaticns were 4 Directar to have an
interest that conflicts, or m 1y possibly
conflict, with the intorests of

the Company

Board Meetings and Activities
MNormally the Board meels Tormlly at
least six times, but additioral meetings
had to be hald this year to review the
impacl of the corenavirus At the start
of the pandemic, the Board met weekly
and maetings moves 1o an snline format.,
ﬁv‘\’c@tmgi have continued to be held online
throughout the yos-but gaing Farward
with restrictiors Ifft.ng s intended that
meetings will be held at the Group™s rew
regetered of fice, Pier House, and also
within the rezq | estate

The process for agreeing the sgenda s
managed by the Company Secretary in
consultation vith the Chairman Papars
are dutributed a week in advarce via

a secure onhing portal I required, the
Joard considers matters or an 3d hog
b between scheduled meetings

Ar Board meetings, the agendas cover
prosects, analyse of the markor r which
the Group operates and performarce.
Each of the Exccutie Directors and the
Company Secretary aiso pronde updates
o the Board om matters for whic- they are
responable, The Board < rewporubia for
approvng the annual budget ang the

annual and ha'f year results. Of course,
much of the discussion this year has
focuwed on the wmpact of the coronavirus
pandormic and to sddress the challenges
posed by the enforced closure of the
Business, Considerable time was spent
cvaluating the decision to launch an
oquly ruse ard Lo deal vath the
Cornpdny@ roflr\an:ing

At the start of 2021, a programme

of presentations from members of the
EXCCUIi\-’e Team aﬂd Serar marﬂﬁgar‘ﬂer\(_
was resurned. The programme gives the
Board exposure o talent in the business
while also providirgan epportunity to
engage in the key areas being worked

an and the agrecd stratege praiects,
Presantations have included information
300Ut the customer journey and digital
tmm;\cormat‘on, cur peop|e strategy and
our ESG strategy. These sessions alve
enable the Board to prowvide feodback
and gudance ts the indwidual presenting

In addition Lo scheduled mectings,

the Board alvo meets every year for an

in depth revew of the Group's strategy
whichincludes, amoeng other things,
diszussions about market trends,
consumer market, competitor landscdpe
and coaprial structure. This sasaions
normully held affsite wathin one of our
wenues in the Estaze butin light of the
pindermic this was not possible, Membars
of the Executive Team joined the Board
L3 provide their views on the strategy and
while the pardemic may have altered some
short-term tactical actiaty that delivers
thi strategy. the Board agreed that the
overarching prirciples were unchanged

The Naor-Executive Directors from time
1o urne rrest with tnernbers of the senvor
management tearn and also spend days
cutin the trade with individual members
of that team This helps to keep Nen-
Sxecut ve Directors up to date with the
speravens of the Group and a'so prowndes
the Executive Directors and senar
~anagement w th valuable feedback about

the Company s people and s sperdt ans

Asnzlas the doaiogue witrin the
boardroom, the Nor-Executve Directors
meat privately. under the leadership of tre
Serior Indeperaent Director, w thout the
Executive Oirectors present. They alsc
mezet win tne Chareran and the Choof

Exccutive onaregular pasis. These
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meetings allow for the review of 1ssues
faced by the business, the continuation
of dialegue on strategic msues, the
discussior of Board appemtments when
appropriate, successian planming, ard
the provision of support to the Chairman
and the Chief Executive in their roles.

Board Committees

The Audit Committee

The Audit Cormittee monitars the
integnty of the finsncial reporting for the
Company, manages the relatanship with
the external auditars, and oversees the
effectiveness of the risk management and
nternal control systems Its members arc
allindependent Non Exccutive Directors.
The Audit Cammuttec's report [or the year
s sel ogton pages S1ta 55

The Remuneraticn Committee

The Remuneration Commitiec sets the
Remureratian Policy For the Charman
and the Exacutive Directors, and it alsa
revIeows [lhe remunerstion ﬁﬂf‘ﬂowor'k FOV
other senior maragement. fts members
are all ndependent Non-Executive
Directors. The Remunarat.on
Commuttee's report for the year s set
out on pages 56 Lo 743

The Neominations Committee

The Nominations Cammittes is chaired
by Michael Turner and the other mempers
are sl independent Non-Exzcutive
Directors. Julietie Stacey and Helen
Jones have served durmg all of the year
and, following approval by the Board,
Robin Rowland joined the Committee

ar 25 January 2021

The Committes is responsible for leading
the process fer appointment of Directors,
for approval by the Board, athough

tre full Beard will also typrcally

nfarmally discuss Board and senigr
rvandge"mmt appoinuments,

After a competitie process the
Nominations Carrmittes approved

the appairtmert of Spencer Stuirt o
sappart the search for 3 Finarce Cirector
Potentiai candidates were identified

and the CEC and People ara Talen:
Direzter met with therm forimital
interviaw Short-listed ¢ sndidates were
then insied o oreet the Charman and
owrer members of the Nominat.ons
Camemittec, 45 wail as the Execotive Team.

Hawing conwdered feedback from these
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meetings and nis bresdth of Fnancia Attendance 2020/21 Audit Nominations  Remuncration
and sector experience, the Nominations Director Board' Committee Committee’ Committee
Com.r‘mttee rec—ommje_mded the Michac! Tormer 28128 " "
appaintment of Neil Smith to the Seard. —

Simon Emeny 28/28 - - -
Whilst the Board is alert ta the Adam Councell 27/78 B _ _

| —

need ta omurefjwermty‘mdlwts ferms Frod oo 27128 B B i
15 promoted, the Board believes —
appaniments should be mage on ment Sir Jarres Fallor 28/28 - - B
and does nol want to adept targets that Richard Fuler 28128 _ _ _ i
may affeelits abilty to make the ~gnt Holen Jones 28/28 - P " a/a i
decrwon for the busimess and all its &
stakehelders As and when Board Robin Rowland 28/28 nm B ________a_'l_a_ f_
vacancies anise and, shoulo the suppert Juliette Stacey 28/28 1N 17 8/8 _éJ
of an cxceutie searcn Firm be required, =

the Baard and the Nominations
Committee will ensure that it only uses
firms that have s gned uo to therr
ndustry’s Visluntary Code of Conduct,
Furtherinfermation on gender diversity
across the business car be fourd in the
Corparate Sacial Responsibility report
ar page 38.

Attendance at Board and
Committee Meetings

The table above showves the attendance
of Direclors 4t Boara and Committee
meetings held duning the year

under review

The Board believes that all of i1s members
have sufficient Lime to discharge therr
duties effectively, All Directors are

regu red to seek perm ssion hefore

1 Includes scheduled and ad hoc meetings, including weekly meetings held in response to the

Covid-19 pandemic.

2 Robin Rowland was appointed as s member of the Noeminations Committee on 25 January 2021,

The Corﬂpaﬂy hﬂ‘; Sl NOF'EXQCUL\‘JC‘
Chrectors of which three  Michael Turner,
Sir Jarmes Fuller and Richard Fuller

are fam Iy members The other three
\OO-EXECUT:IVE DirECtOr%, d” C{ \NHOV—T]

arc acemed independent uncer the Coda,
are cxpenienced business leaders, and
colleztively all of the Non-Executives
bring a wide range of skills and experience
tothe Board. Aithough the Board
lexcluding the Charman) does not
comprise at least half independent

Non Executive Directors, the Board
considers it s well balanced as it his the

r ght nurnber of members for the size aof
the Group with representatron of the
fourd ng farmlbies on the Board being

and are avalable far inspection 4t the

COmpf,W‘)«"‘; regmtered (Tice

Succession Planning

The Bourd continues to see succession
planming as 4 key 1ssue for a bus ness that
has very low turnover amaorgst its senior
management and s stll very much

1 famiby controlled concera whilst a'es
boing a pubhic isted company

Succession slanring and the developrment
of talent s an engoing actvity regularly
discussed by the Board und the Executre
Tearn and there 150 clear plan in plaze for the
succession of key roles Talented and “critical

to retan” indivduals are idertificd ard cach

accepling any extecnal appontments, considered vary important in a comparny ndwidual has thair own development plan, =

thergfore Board members are kept with a high proportion of family sharehalders,. owned by the indvidusl ana supparted and 5

Fully aware of their celleagues The Directors agree that no one ndwidudl overseen by their leader anc the Seopie & g—);

other commitments. dorminates discussions and that each makes Talant team, Development plarrs arc Wi
. a full and positive contribution grounded in dats from sssessments and :(:T

Composition and Balance feedback, and external partners and experts 3

of the Board The Directors’ biogrsphics arc on pages are engiped to supporl development é.

The Chairman s responsibte for leading 40 and 41, Juliette Stacey s the Senior where required 7

the Board and ersuning its effectiveness Indeperdent Directar. The Sermor

and openness, and that sharcholders are Indeperdert Dircctor of fers suppert and Advice for the Board

kept well nformed The Chairman does advice to the Charman and all the other There i« a pracedure in place under

not have any commitmants which Bonrd members, 15 in regular dialogue wh en Directors can obta nindependant

constram his abihity to fulf This role. Simen wath all Board members outside of Board professional advice. The Directors alsa

Ermony, the Chiof Executive, s responsible meetings and co ordinates thie views of the Fave doeess Lo Lhe advice and serveces z

for all operationsl aspects of tne Group MNan-Executive Directors a4 and wher of the Company Secretary whose %

. required. All of thendependent Non dppommerﬁ and removal s 5 matter for S

During the penod, Agurm Courcell Exccut ve Directors are determined by the the whole Bosrd The Company Sceretary -

announced he would be leaving the Board to be independent in character and 15 responsible to the Board for ensuring ?7

Company later this year followng an Judgemert and there are no relationsh ps or that Basrd pracedures are complied - 3

arderly nandover, Nel Smithvall join a5 circurmstances wrich could affect or appaar w th, The Diractars sre astis”ed Lhal any =

the new Finance Director no later thar to affect thair judgement: a | are appointed concerns they raise at Baard mectings g

1 Decarnber 2021

On appomtment, new Directors

undertake a talored induction programme.

for spealied terms, Tne detalls of the

Non Exscuive Directors’ respective
drrdr\gemem\ 470 35 set outin the Directors
Remuncration Report on pages 56to /R
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sre recorged in the minutes, The Company
MAINtd ns appropriate INsurance Couver n
respect of legal acuion agamst its Cirectors
and OlTicers
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Professional Development

Chrectors are encouraged 1o atlend
training courses, industey farums and
specialist briefings relevant to therr role
throughout the year. Occasionaliy,
speciahsts such as the Company’s legal
advisors join a Board meeting to brief the
Board on g parbeular topie. Executive
Directors are permitted to hold one other
pad directorship, with the Board's consert,
as the Board believes that experience of
kow other boards work enhances the
Cirectors' contribution ta Fuller's.

Beard Evaluation

The Company was due to undertake an

externally faciitated evaluation this year

but.in hght of the mpact of Covid-19, 1t

was decided that aninternal process would
< conductad by the Senior Independent

Director. An externally facilitated

evaluation will take place next yoar and

1 process to select a frm to help with

this excreime s currently underway.

This year, the Directors corrpleied

a questionnaire coverng the performance
of the Board as a whole and the Board
committess, the effectivencss of the
Executive Directors and Nar - Executive
Directors, key learnings from the yair

in question and considerations lor future
areas of focus The Senior Independent
Directar also met with each Director
individually to discuss therr feedback and
performance over the year and, following
review with the Chairman, the findings
were prasented to the Soard.

Quersll, feedback wss positive and
demonstrated that the Board and

each of ity committees had performed
effectively in dealing with both day to day
and ongoing strategic rssues during 4 very
challerg ng per'od The Board recogrised
the cantrbution and efforis ol the
Executive Team through the caronavirus
pandemic. Aress hughlighted for
ecnhancement included:

Conting ng with mare {rcquen: inforal
contact between Board meetings
astablicned in response Lo the
corenaarus pandemic

Reastabhshing regulsr form sl and
informal Board ssits to the wider bus aess
S5 rostrictiars ease and iFCFe-‘ng the
cartact between Board rmerbors

ara arployees

- Supporting succession planning below
Board level and aeveloping a strong
diverse talent pipeline,

Board Re-election

The Articles of Association of the
Compdny ensurce that all Dircctors are
subject to clection by shareholders at the
first AGM, aftes therr appointment and
tore election at three yearly intervals,

Relations with Shareholders

The Company has sn ongong programme
of indwidudl meetings with mstitutional
shareholders, allowing it Lo update
sharcheolders on the performance of the
business and the strategy for the future.
snd to give them an opportunity to discuss
corporate governance matters. The
Company’s brokers also contact key
shareholders to establish if they would ke
to see the Chief Executive and Finance
Drrectorin the days Follovang the
presentation of the preliminary and half
year results The Chairman, Richard Fuller
ard 5ir Jumes Fuller are the key contacts
with the Company’s family sharchc'ders
and Sir James Fuller has a specific role
tokeep in touch with those sharenolders.
The Sersor Irdependent Director and

the other Non Executive Directors

are all waling to attend rreetings with
shareholders or to be cortacted by
sharebelders should they have any
cancerns which hive not been rescved
through tha normal channels. The

Mon Executive Directors have had no
such requests duning the last linancial year
All Board members recerve feadback from
the results presentations and meetings
with sharchoiders, enabling them Lo keep
in touch wath sharcholder opinien

The Board supports the use of the AGM

le communicdte, in pdrUcu\ar, with private
irvestars, and the Charmar and Crief
Executive make a detaled presentation

to shareholders updating them on the
Company's performance and progress

The Boara s keer to encourage institutional
nvastors ta attend the meeting, rlhne with
tre duties set cut in the Stewardship Coae
forinss sutional shargholders. Shou d they
have corcerns over any issues being voted
upon at the AGM, they can tnen meet al
tre Directars and discass themiin perscn,
pirtcularly if they have geclined an

iy tation for ar rdivdua meeting

The Charrran srranges far the Charr

of each o the Cempany's Sourd
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Committees to answer relevant questions
at the meeting and encourages ol Directors
to be present.

In hght of the onpgoing nsks of Covid, we
held the 2020 AGM a5 a closed meeting
to ensure the safety of all concerned.
Shareholders were invitaed to submit
questions on any matters related to the
AGM prior Lo the meeting and answers
wore posted on the Company’s website
afterwards. The Board plans to ho'd the
2020 AGM as normal this year on the
basis that all restrictions will have been
afted by the tme of the meeting, and
preparations are being made for a physical
meet ng to be held on 23 September 2027
at The George IV, subject of course to any
Government guidance n place at the bime,

Detalls of the engagerment process with
sharchelders regarding the new Brrectors”
Remuneration Palicy can be found in the
Directors’ Rermuneraton Keport on

page H6.

Sy order of the Board

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

8 July 2021

Fuller, Smuth & Turner BL.C.
Pier House

86-93 Strand -on the-Green
Lordon W4 3NN




JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

“The fundamentals
of our risk management
and internal control
framework have been
subject to close scrutiny
during the ongoing

closure of the estate.”

Audit Committee Report

Statement of the Audit
Committee Chair

Dear Shareholder,

I'am pleased to present tne Audit
Commitzee Reoort for the year endea
27 March 2021,

M reported st year, we denufied
COTonavIrus as an emerging risk and

whilst our core dut’es have remaned
urichanged, it bas boen necossary to

flex our programme of acuvities and
censequently meet mare frequently than
narmal In parteular, the fundamrentals of
Gur risk management and nternal contro
framework have been subject ta close
scrutiny during the angeing closure of the
estate and given the uncertanty of the
‘mpact of the pandemic on our business
Dunng the year, we were plessed to
welcome a new Head of Finance
Transformanion and Risk, lan Namey

lan has helped us implement changes Lo
strengthen our approach to the arnuul risk
assessment, and supported o comprehensve
reEvIew O: our FIH‘K\, 15 V‘J’CH ds Jr\PlcfﬂC‘nL r‘g
a4 Framewaork which we can usc Lo assess
and enhance the contror ervironment

piy key srea of work far Lhe Audit
Cemmittee thia year has been the

audit tender pracess which resulled in

the dppointment of Ernst & Young LLP

| fed tris process on behallof the Audic
Commitlee, but would like to thank my
fellow Committee members and the w'dar
fimance team for their support. G ven

the engagement of a new audit firm, 1t
seemed an appropr ate ime to summarise
arrangements arcund ndependence

and objectiity, and this has naw been
formalised into a written policy Tre formal
sppontment of Brast & Young LLP wil be
proposed at the AGM, but we have been
del-ghted w th ther support during the
year end and lock forward to developing
ths relationship.,

During the year, we received a letter from
the Finanaia Reporting Counc | noung
that the Company's 2020 Arnual Report
and Accounts had been included in thei
thematic review of corporate reporting
on cash flow staternents ard hquidity
disclosures. We were pleasad to note

o1
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that the FRC had no specific
questions to raise but, inresponse

to points they highlighted. we have
reviewed our disciosures and for those
areas which are sull relevant this year
we have made a number of chanpes tc
enhance reporting so that tis clearer
and more conaise.

Lacking ahead ta the next year, we vl
monitor closaly the rall out of tre new
finance system which the Company
has .centified as more switable for

the ousiness fallowing the sale

of the Brewery, reviewing both the
robustness of financial reporting

from the system and simphfication

ot nternal controls management.
Tsecunty will also be an area of focus
guen the increased sk from cyber
attacks, and we intend to conduct
adesp dive nto the controls in this
ared o help mingate these threats.

lwi'l be attending the AGM an

23 September 2021 and | lock
FOrWdFCI to Em%weﬂr\g fﬂﬁy que\tl@n‘v
ancut the work of the Audit
Cormmittee ther.

J

JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

8Ju|y 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee Report continued

Committee Membership

The Committee comprises three
independent Non-Executive Directars
and has a good balance of skills, with
competence and expenience in the sector
in which Fuller’s operates. The Chair of the
Commuttee s 2 Chartered Accountant
and has s broad rangs of experience in
serior finance reles, and she s therefore
considered to meet the requirement
under the Code that at loast one member
should have recent ard relevant financial
experience. The Committee s advised
nternally by the Company Sccretary,
Rachel Spencer (Séverine Béqun until

8 Jarnvary 2021), who also acts as
secratary to the Cammittee,

Meeting Attendance

Attendance of Comrmiliee members at
scheduled mectings throughout the year
15 set out on page 49, The Committea
narmally meets fours tme a year but,
given the unprecedented year, we have
keld eleven meetings. As well as the
addiuonal rigour reeded around risk
manugement with the entire closure of
the business, the fermalities of the FY20

audil proceas required added attention

All meetings are stlended by the external
auditors and the Campany Secretary,
and regular attendees include the
Chairman, Chief Executive and the
Finance Director. Members of the
finance and risk management tesm

also attend relevant meetings at the
Committee Char's request, and reports
are recewved on occasion fram other
members of the management Leam
asrequired by the agenda

The Audit Committee meets at least once
a year with the external auditors, without
managernent present, to discuss any
matters they may wish to raise. The Audit
Committee Char alse meets separately
wth the Finance Director and auditors
outside of the formal meeting programme
which he|ps to |dentlf:y key areas of focus
and emerging 1ssues that may need to be
sdded to the Audit Committee’s agenda

Responsibilities

The Audit Committee’s respons bilities

are outlined in its terms of reference
These were reviewed following the year
end, including an assessment of how the
Audit Commitiee had discharged its
responsibilites during the year. The revised
terms of reference can be found on the

COIT‘\PEH’W)/.\ webmte

“he principal respensibilitios of the

Audit Commitiee are to revicw the
irtegrity of the finsneial reportng fer

tne Group lncluding managing the
relationship w.th the audiors) and to
cversee the effectiveness of the risk
ranagement and internal contral systerms,

Key Activities

The Audit Comrrmittee has a detaled
meeting planner which sets out the key
iterns tc be cavered atits scheduled
meatings which ncludes reviewng the
financial statements and announcements,
monmtor ng chdﬂges N accounting practices
and policies, and reviewing decisions with
awgniicant eement of judgement.

At each schaduled mesting an update on
risk management s presented, togsther
with reports on compliance with anti-
bribery procedures and data protection.
Inlight of Cowd-19 and the entire closure
cf the business, there has been even
greater - gour around patential risks ansing
frem the ongong uncertainty In 2021, the
Audit Commillee received an update
regarding the ncreasing risk of allergers
and was pleased to note the continued
acherence to procedures uready in plice
to mutigate thia risk. togethor with the new
areas of enhancement being considared

Ly emsore contro s reamam ‘-jppf'Op’!th‘
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The Audit Committee keeps abreast of
regulatary and goverrance developments
as part of angoing reporting from the
auditors. Specific areas of interest

are scheduled separately and in 2021

a member of the auditers’ Regulatory &
Public Policy team gave a presentation to
the Committee on audit reform proposals
being considered by the Government.

The effectivensss of the Audit Committes
formed part of the Board evaluation
process described in the Carporate
Gaovernance Report on page 50.

Financial Reporting and
Significant Judgement

The Audit Committee monitors the
integrity of the financial information
published in theintenm and annual
[imancial statements and cons.ders the
extent Lo which suitable accountng
pehcies have been adopled, presented
and disclosed

During its review of the Group's financia'
statements for the period to 27 March
2021, the Audit Committee has reviewad
the key judgements apphied in the

prepar ition of the consclidated financial
statements, mc\\_.dmg nose communicated
by the auditors during their reporting,
These are deseribed 'n the sccounting
policies detaled in note 1to the franciy’
statements The Board was made

fully aware of any significant financisl
reportingissues and judgements made

in connaction with the preparation of

the financial statements.




The key issues and judgements considered

Kovsrcomtmg wigeme

by the Audit Comrmitiee are detailed i the accomparying table:

Crowthie viao was sdoriised

Going Concern

The Audit Committee considered the dpproprigtenass of the goINg CoNCern 45s0ssment and
d\‘\DC.IdtededgE‘rﬂCﬁt\ around matenal uncertaimtes. The Audit Committee reviewed the
sc@narios ind mitigations availsble o tne Group as disclosed in note 1 and 1y satisficd

the disclosures are appropriats.

fmpairment Testing of Intangiblé
Assets, Right-of-Use Assets and
Property, Plant and Equipment

The Avdit Committee conwdered the proposed impairment of property assets, nght of use
assots and goodwwi | for both the Hall Year Report and the Annual Report. The Audit Commiltee
NG R) '\dt\\{“&"d ‘d"ﬂth ic dPPFOdCH PrCHGﬂLE‘d by mnndgerﬂeﬂt :’—]d theJudSCmenr_"\ m;idC‘ rOF LHD\C

propert es it risk of impdirment

Deferred tax

Deferred tax accounting on property, p ant and equipment is g complex ared and a number

of judgements ae required Lo determine the value Deferred tax can be recogrned on pubs
basad an d spesal, in use or a gusl basis and a number of different inputs necd to ke conaidered
Lo C.’]‘Cu‘d[e [h\‘; SUCh a4 FF]Ir Vﬁlue LJP‘lF[\. rD”Cd ovor gdlm\ ﬂﬁd \ﬁdCX\jLIOr‘. /\ pr\or y'e-]r
adjustment to deferred tax habil'ty has been recognisad ir respect of an understatementin

the base cost recoverabie on a sales bavis The Audit Cammittee i satisfied that after the
adjustrment was made to the opening balance, the judgement. Lthat management applied in the
current year are appropriate. The Audit Committee has also considered whethes suffcient
disclosures have been madain the Annusl Repart for the prior year restazement and is satisfied
they hava been.

Separately Disclosed ltems

The Audit Comrmittee considerad the nature of items c.assified as “separately disclosed items”
inthe Franciy staternents The Audit Committee was satisf ad that the items management
proposed 1o be shown gy separately disclosed iterrs were not linked to the underly ng trading
of the Group Scparately disclosed items relude.

casts relsting to the corparate reorganisation of the Group, specifically the hne up
of the L-ade and swsets of Bel & The Drogen and Cotewold [nns & Hotels, Lhe ending
of the transitional services arrangerment with Asabiand restructurng duc to the
coronavirus pandemic

profitor loss on property disposals

IMPAIrment on properties, mght—oF use assets ard goodwl]

retinterest expense on the Group's defined benefit pension pan

tnaddivon, the Audit Committee reviewed those disclosures wathin the 2021 Annua’ Report
and Accounts to ensure thay c'early identiflied and recenciled to the relevant GAAP measure.

Pension Accounting

The pen~on -mb\“t)« 15 sensitive to the actuanial assumptions applwed n medsuring future cash
autflows The use of assumptions such as discount rate and inflation, which nave ar impact

on the valuation of the deflined benefit pension scheme, was assessed by the Audit Commitiee
The Audit Committes was satisfied with the proposed aCCOLmtmg treatment and disclosures
of the Group’s defined benefit planin the financial statements,

Going Concern and

Viability Statement

The Audit Commutiee assessed the

going concern and viability reviews
undertaken by m.jmgomcﬂt as detaled

in the Financul Review on pages 25 and
26 Thin invelved looking at potential
revenues, costs and cash low modelling
or both a prudert base case und stress
case scenano where there was much
greater uncertanty The Cormmittee was
satisfied with the approach presentzed by
mdndgement including the judgements
made in the estirmation of future eash Mows
and the Group's finuncing, and conwidenng
the high proporuon of freenc d property
that underpins the eszate.

Fair, Balanced and Understandable
The Audit Committee reviewed whether
the 2021 Annual Report, taken as a whole,
was fair, balanced and understandable and
also whether it provided the information
rocessary for shareholders to assess the
Compary's pos tion ard performance.
Eusiness model and strategy. [n makirg

ity assessment the Aud t Comruttee tock
the followirg into accaunt:

A tmetable for the praduction of the
2021 Anrual F?epor Lweas dgrecd by the
Firance Tearm and the auditors, with
overall co-ardination of the repart being
averseen by the Finance Director
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Fach section of the reporl wds prcpared
by amember of managemont w Ltk
('lppFC)prl(l[C knowk}dge and experience,
including representatives from finance,
COMMUMCALIaNs, CoMpPany secretdridt
and risk

Management's views on each of the key
Judgerents which wera then discussed
by the Audit Commuttec

Reporis ard feedback from the
audilors wnich were preserted to the
Audit Committes

Baoard members received drafts of the
report for review which provided an
opparturity to provide carmments and
ensure massaging was cohesive,
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GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee Report continued

Foflowing its review, the Audit Commitiee
corfirmed to the Board that the 2021
Annual Qoport wan Fair, balunced and
understandable, and the Boards
stalerment is set cut on page 45

Internal Control and

Risk Management

The Board has cverall responsibility “or the
Group's system of internal comrol and
maragemnent of risks and reviewing its
offectiveness The system was designed

to provide reasanab e but not apselute
assurance of

the mitigatian of nsks which might
cause the falure sl busingss objectives

no matenal misstatements or losses

the safeguard.ng of assets sgairst
unauthorised use or disposal

the mantenance of proper dccouﬁtmg
records and the rehabilty of fimancial
informatior. used withir the bus resy
or fer pukhcatior

cormplarice with apohcable laws
and regulal ons

The Directlors staterment on the
Company’s system of internal cantrels
15 el out below

Eorly i the yoar the Committee discussed
tne Company's risk mansgement orocess
and taak the oppertunity te do a full
refresn of the risk register. This included

A bottom up review of nisks across al'
depariments, revising or reconfirming
ownership and updating mit gat.ng dctions
and contrals, This gsve the Cormmittee
ncreased confidence in the sk processes
witmin the Group. Ay sigmificant
changes to risks were discussed in each

subseguent Commitice meeting.

i addition, during tne year a se'eclion

of key risks were presented to either the
Audit Commitiec or the Boara This has
included risks amound bus.ness conbinuity
woth the closure and recpening of the
busiress due to Cong, asses<rment of risks
arourd aur peogp e ana the aporoach to

smphfying ard sol 4 Fying aur supply chair.

Lockng [orward, the da 2gatian

of suthenties s being updated “or FL))
implemzntat an vtk the new finarce
systerr, ard the cormmercement

of afacused renew an cyber secunty

1y beng minated

The Grouo mantains businass continuity
plans ard tests these plans on an annaal
basis, usually towards the end of the
financial year, Due to the coronavirus
pandemic and the closure of the cuslate
for much of the yeur, it was not possib'e
to carry out tne annual exercise for the
“inancial year ended 27 March 2021
The Board and Audit Committee consder
the rapid and thorough resporse to the
pandemic by the Sxecutive Team, and
the broader managemert team, as solid
fexist ng

ovdence of the effectiverioss
disaster recovery and bus ress
continuity plans,

Management withir the Finance
Department are responsibie for the
(ippropriate maintenance of financ:al
records and processes that ensure all
fimancial information s relevant, rel able,
naccordance with the apphcable laws 1nd
regulations, ang distributed bothinternally

and exrerrally in 3 ume'y manner,

The scopng, tender rg srdimplementation
of 4 new central finance system, which will
go lve during the new financial year, has
been an area of focus for the Sinance
Department during this financial year.

Througheut the penod, the Zxecutive
Buectors provided relessnt and umely
fnancil commertary to the Board e
supplement the “imancial report ng, ensuring
the Board and the Audit Commuties wore
informed of the financial pesition ana
rasults of the Group

The Board and Audit Committee have
consdered the effectveness of the Group's
systern of nternal cantrol, taking account
of material changes in tne operations of the
Group foHowmg the coronavirus pandenc,
the mplementation of the Corar sorus Job
Retention Scheme ard the Group™ varnous
reopening plans thal bave been require
ILvarious points d_.rmg the year and 4gar
after the year ena.

{ey elements of the system of intena'
cortrol cesigned 1o address sgmﬁcaﬂ:
risk > ard unzerta ntics, as documentad
on pages 28 10 30, irclude:

+ cesrlycefined level of responabl ity
and delegation througheot the Groug,
together with well structurec reperuing
lines up ts the Board the preparaticn
of arnua budgets for each dovisior,
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including commentary on key business
opporturmties and risks, approved by the
Executive Team ard further reviewed
by the Baard on a consolidated bass
the rov.ows by the Executive Team

of actual monthiy results aganst
budgct, Logether wath cormmentary

an sigrif.cant vanances and updates
of bath profis and cash flow
expectations for the year

in addition, dus to the exceptional
arcumstances of this year, weekly
reviews of performance of both

profit and cash tHlow during periods

of recpening

adetaledinvestment approval process
requinng Board authens stion for all
major projects

past implemnentation appraisals

of major capita’ expenditure projects
regular reporting of legal and
accounting developments to the Board
regular review ol the GrOup's risk
register and discussion of signficant
risks by the Board and Audit
Corrmuttee, which ameng other things
take account of the sigmfizance of
envirenmental, sozial and governarce
rutters Lo the bus ress

raanitoring of accident statist.cs and
the rosults of haalth and safety sudils

Thne Group doss net kave a formul internal
audit funcnian The Group employs a team
o' retar business sud tors who moniter,

in parncular, the cantrols over stack and
cash in the Manaped Pub estste, Ber &
The Dragon sites, Cotswald Inns & Hotals
snd, until ther sale, The Stabte sites.

Relevant management attend meetings of
the Auaiz Comm ttee to discuss the issues
being addressed. Clearly, with the business
closed, those reviews were curtaled but

a programme of act vities has now been
resurned Aflter considecation, the Audit
Comm ttoe nas corfirmed that the

ex Stlng drrdﬂgCr‘ﬁeﬂtS FC]F \mLernr]‘ :]Udl:
remair sppropriate. Management may
f=am Lime 1o bime augmamt the interrat
sud t mewource wath specialist external
resources. External expert se s also wees
iFassarance s required on any areas oF

sk ar controly where the Cammittes
considers the business may be exposed
Tris year ths included an exterral review

o the CJRS clairm and logking forward
caterrsl expertse vl be used to support

our cyber secunty review.



Whistleblowing

The Audie Committee ‘s responsiblo for
reviewing the adequacy and security of the
Company’s arrangements for employees
and contraclors toraise concerns about
any passible mpropricties re|atihg teo
finuncial report-ng or other matters,

Since the yoar end, the Audt Comrmittoe
has reviewed and updal’cd the Cor'f‘pdﬂy'S
Wh:st|eb|c\ﬂ.rmg poh(;y, To Comp\gmem
e mtennal processes alicddy in place,

a mechanism for concerns ta be ra'sed
anonymously, rather thanjustin
confidence, has becn |mp|c'mcmcd
through the appointment of an
independent whistlcblowing seryice
operdted by Safecsll Employee:, are
being notfied of the now arrangements
through the Company's online training
and cemmurications p\dtform.

Any whistleblowirg reports are reported
1o the Audiz Committec and, at least
anrually. to the Board. Following the
reopenirg of the business, a standing
report to the Audit Committee on
employec relation matters has been
resumed to provide nsight to any
trends within the business.

External Audit

As reported last year, the Audit Comrmittee
decided to review the externat audit
appeintment and conducted ¢ competitive
audit tender process A number of Mirmis
were invited to tender, and shortlisted
firms presented their proposals ta

the Audit Committee Char and the
Finance Director. Before the finat
recommendation to the Board, 4l

ather members of the Committee, the
Charman and the CEO met the potental
engapgemert partner of the prefered firm,

Follawing careful consideration, the Audit
Comm tree recommended the appaintmeant
of Ermnt & Young LLP ("EY") to conduct
the []ud\t or {he GrDup‘s \rlﬂdﬂCIdl statements
for the financial year to 27 March 2021,
Their sectar EXDETNENCE Wiy rc‘c:gniaed 3s
particularly valuable. Geart Tharrtan UK
LLP subsequently resipned.

The audilors are inv ted to attend alt
mmeetings ol the Audit Committae and
report or the plan and approach for the
full year audit and half yesr rev ew

The Audit Committec Char meets the

auditers on a regular bases dunng the year
and the Audit Committee meets with the
external auditors, without management

present, at least annually in ordes to allow
both Audit Cormmuttee members and the
auditors Lo raine any ssucs drectly and to

discuss the auditors’ remit.

The Audit Committec reviewed the
effectiveness of EY's performance of the

exiernal audis process takirg into account:

the quality and scope of the audit plan,
and evaluation of dehvery and
perFOFmdﬂCE‘ (1gi|n\l Lhe P]A‘ln
gualfications, efficiency and
performance of the audit team

the communicaticn between the
Compary and EY

EY's understanding of the Groups
business and industry sector

the results of the FRCS Audit Qualivy
Inspection Report on EY

After censuidering these matters, the
Audit Committes was satisfiod with

the effect veness of the yesr end audit
process and recommended to the Board
that EY should be propesed for farmal
appo ntrent ot the Companys AGM
on 23 September 2021

During the year, tne Company comphad
witn the provisions of the Statutory Aud L
Services for Large Companics Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Terder Process and Audit

Cormmittee Revpansibilitics) Order 2014,

Auditor Independence

and Non-Audit Services

Auditor independence and objzctivity

arc sa’eguarded by a number of control
measures and. 17 light of the appointment
of EY, the Audit Committee decided 1t
W15 an appropriate time Lo summarise
arrangements into a formal written policy
(the “Foley”). The Palicy was approved in
January 2027 and sets out processes for
assesning independence ard objectivity,
irclsding disclosure recuirements of the
auditors, restnictions an the employment
of the auditors’ former employees and
the circumstances ir waich the auditars
may be perrmitted Lo undertake

non audit services

55
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The Policy 1s i hine with the
recorrmendations set out in the FRC'S
Guidance on Audit Committees and the
requrements of the FRC's Rewised Ethical
Siandard 2013 (the “Standard™). Inrespect
of non sudit SCTYICES, on‘y avery short

list of non-audit services is now perrthcd
under the Standard, which are detaled
inthe Policy Previously, authernty was
de|ngted to the finance tearr Lo suthorse
Spemd with the auditors for non audit items
up to £50,G00, but under the Policy all
spend row has to be spproved by the Audit
Comm;ttee Whlch ensures FUH \/Hlb\ll[y’,

In 2021, the fees paid Lo EY for audit
services were £405,000 inc'uding
EQS‘OOO FOr non rE‘CUrrir\g dUd\L SOTYICOS,
There were no non -audit services foes pald
during the year

JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

B July 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

“After careful
consideration
the Remuneration
Committee is planning
to grant a one-off
Recovery LTIP Award
in 2021 to incentivise
management to re-build
the business and profit
levels following the

Covid-19 pandemic.”

Statement of the Remuneration
Committee Charr

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | ami pledsed to
present the Rermuneration Report for
the 52 weeks ended 27 March 20271,
which includes our revised Directars’
Remuneration Policy (“po\\cy") which
will be put to shareholders for appraval
st the AGM en 23 September 2021,

The last year has been an cxtremety
difficult one for the hospitality sector.

The outbreak of Covid 19 has had
1significant impact on the business with
pubs cloved for o considerable portion

of the last fimancial year and the carly part
af this financial year, From the start of the

frat lockdawn until 12 Apr\\ 20271 ownr pubs,

on averdge, will have been open on only
27% cf the 388 days. Duning lockdown
cash burn was ¢, £4 5 milhon per month.
All of cur sites are now open but we are
opor'atmg at amuch reduced Cnlpd::ty
inhine with gavernment gudance

Inhght of the impact of the panderic

on the business and to support the
minagemenrt of COsts, the Exccutive
Directors and other Board members
volunteered to reduce therr salares by
25% between 1 Apnl 2020 and 30 June
2020 and as | reported last year no annusl
Eonus was paid for FY2020, despite part

of Lhe perfarmance targets being met.

The Remuneration Committee

(“the Commmittec”) and the Executie
Directors agreed that, given the closure
of the business and cur reliance on
government support, no annusl Esnus
plan would operate for FY2% Stretching
adjusted EPS growth targets set far 2018
LTIP awards were not met and tnerefore
this award will apse.
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Fuller’s s primarily a faraily owned busiress
and thes ethos s integral to our decision
making. Throughout the closure of

the business, the p'ﬂymcn\ and mental

well baing of cur peaple and their famifies
has been of paramount importance

te the Board and ali our decisions have
been made with thera at the centre of
our thimung, We were the first company
to suspend rent for our Tenants during
pernods of closure which was very well
received For our teams in our Managed
Pubs and Hotels, and in the Suppart
Centre, our Peaple Tearn has provided
access to emotional and financial support
for tearm members. This has been cascaded
through our digital commurication system
and has included regulsr video messages
from the Chief Executive, as well as
access to supoort on offer from the
Licensed Trade Charity. We also provided
supermurket vouchers for those of our
teams most impacted during the tough
third lockdowr and provided Fuller’s
vouchers, to team members whe
voluntoered in their local communities
while furloughed by way of thanks.

A number of webinars have also been
hosted to.mpart more dotaded information
and these became a regular foeture just
prior to each reapening The success of
these webinars has cemented their place
in gur commurzations toolkit and is

apositive le srming that we will take forward

Recovery LTIP Award

In light of the challenpes the business
faces, the Board 1s concerned about the
miotivation and retertion of the Exzcutive
Directors and is therefore intending to
grant a ane -off Recovery LTIP Award

in 2021 to incentivise management to
rebuild the business and profit levels.

This award will be in addition to the
nermal LTIP award.



The Recovery LTIP Award will vest based
upon the achievernent of stretching
ERBITDA tdrgot\ for FY24 which are
ahgned with delivering a full recovery

of the business. The CommitLec has
selected Group EBITDA (excluding IFRS
161 as the sole measure of performance for
the Recovery LTIP as 1t strongly incentivises
operaliona’ recovery throughout cur
business and prov des strong ine of wight
for management Following the end of the
performance period, vested shares will oe
subject to 4 holding period for two years.
For Exccutive Directors, the award

will bave d value of 250% of base salary,
Ober senion execut.ves will also participate
in the plan recening ‘ower levels of award.

ft s intended that the Recovery LTIP
Aviard valtbe granted under the existing
L™:Prules and will be subject to the

samc Lermrs around discretion to overnde
farmulaic outcomes. malus and clawback
and ‘cavers. We will be secking shareholder
approval for arevised Directors’ Remuneration
Policy and for ar amenament to our L TIP
Rules to cnable us to grant this Recovery
L7P Award follow ng the AGM,

Other reward elements

Base salaries for Execut’'ve Cirectors
will be increased by 2% in line with the
increase far the wider workforce. For
F¥22 the msamum annual bonus will
continue to be 100% of base salury with
the annual bonus based 70% on Group
EBITDA performance and 30% based
on individual strategic performance

For FY22 the maximum LTIP award

will continue to be 125% of base salary
for the CEQ and Retal Director based
ari the achievernent of EPS performance
far FY24.

Finance Director's

Remuneration arrangements

As announced on 11 June 2021, Nel
Srmith witl be joining us a5 our new Fimance
Diractor at a date to be confirmed, but.

no later than 1 December 2021, His salary
has beeri set al £352,500 per annum.
We appreciate this salary 13 above the
salary for tihe former Finance Director,
however, it1s posiioned some way below
the salsry ne receved in his previcus ro'e
of £430,000 Med will ieceive o pension
of 5% of base salary in ling with the
pension received by the major ty of

our wder workforce and in line with

cur Directors’ Remuneration Folicy.

His masximum annual bonus opportunity
will be 100% of base salary and he will

be eugible to receve ar annual LTIP
award of 100% of base salary. He will
alsobe eligb e to participate -0 the
E\)ECO\'ery LT'D and PrD rita bx‘],‘s\“

Adam Councell will step dowr from the
Board and his role of Finance Director
‘ater in the year. He will not recerve any
payment in lieu of notice Adam will not
be entitled to participate nincentive
arrangements in respect of FY22 and

all his out\t.mdmg LTIP and ESOS awards

will lapse

The Commitice erongW believes

that the Recovery LTIP Award 5 critical
to suppert the business in recovery fram
the significant impact of the pandemic
and we hope that you will support our
revised Directors’ Rermuneration Palicy,
the armendment to the LTIP Rules and our
Arrual Remuncraton Report at the 2021
AGM on 23 September 2021,

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

8 July 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Report on Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The following table sets out our Remuneratian Policy for Directors (the “Policy ™), This policy will be put forward to shareholders for
ther binding approval at the Annual Generai Mecting Lo be held on 23 Septernber 2027 and will apply Lo payraents made from this date.

In developing this Palicy, the Committee has considered the key principles set out in Provision 40 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code. The Cammittee beheves that our Policy s clesr and transparert and aligned with our culture. In narmal years we operate a simple
incentive framework of an annual banus and a LTIP only, Award ievels sre capped with payout inked ta performance against a lirited
number of medsures which are well hnked to our strategy. Stretching but fair targets are set. This ensures thal potential reward outcomes
are clear and aligned with performance achieved, w th the Committee hoving the discretion to adjust pay -outs where this is not conwidered
to be the case

Pay levels are set taking into account external market lavels as well as nternal practice Lo ensure pay remains competivve while being
aquitable within the Company. Malus and clawback and discretion provisions, LTIP %o'idmg perieds and shdreholding gu‘dehnc‘s‘ mcluding

paost empioyment. areir place to mitigate reputatonal and other nisks,

Further details regarding the operstion of the Policy for the eurrent Financial year can he found an pages 64 to 68 Detalls of how the
previous Policy was applied for the Niaancisl year ended 27 March 2021 can be found on pages 68 to 78

Executive Directors (“Executives™)

Loererit Cietdr e N e R B R T N
Base Salory Torecruil, retamand  The Commuttee sats base salary taking Whiist therc s na Mot applicable
I'E’W'drd hgh Cdf\bre into account; Mg % MTarT Sa‘dr‘:f‘
Exccutve Directors to increases will normally

the individual’s skills. experience und

delver the Compary's boinline with the

thar performance

strategy The salary will typical increases 1
£y ¥ ¥p

~alary levels 4l other companves of a simitar

reflect cach role, the awarded to athor

size and complexity

importance of thit emplayees in the Graup.

pay and condition- e'sewhere in the Group
role to the business
. ; However, increasas
Bﬂd Ll']e exper‘encc the Any g :ary IMCredses Aarg ncrr‘nij = rect-\fc
. i may be above this ievel
ncdwidual brrr\g( tait, Froen 1 Jure
INcertain circumstances

such as

where an Exccutive
Director has been
appented to the Board
at 3 lower than typical
raarket solary to allow
for prowth in the rele, )
larger increases may be

awirded to move salary

positioning claser ta

typrcat marketlevel as

the Executive Director

g-j\r‘lr. prerleﬂce

wrere an Exccutee

Director has been |
promoted or nas

had 1 charge i !
respons.bil ties

where there has keen

s sigrifcont charge

n market pracuice or !
ine size and comp'ex ty
o the argariaton



Eiome:

Cperatis

Maar a0 Troo Tany

Benaf ts

Torecruit and retain
Exceutive Directors by
providing competitive
bancfits whick also
protect Exceutives and
pravide preventative

care for them

The Company offers Exccutves arange
of benefits which include

.« carallowance
life assurance
private medical nsurance

- subseriplions Lo professional bodies
or ather relevant argunisanions
regular medic sl eneck ups
permancnl health insurance.

Executive Directars My participale n the
Share Incentive Plan or Savings Related Share
Optlom Plar or Ay other sll omployoe plams
or the same hdsis 35 other ohg\b|e cmployees

up to HMRC -approved limits

The Committee may ntroduce other benefits
il it 15 considered appropriate to do so.

Executive Director- sna'l be reimbursed for
all reasonable expenses and the Campany

may settie any tax incurred.

Where an Executive Direczor s required to
reloeate Lo porForm trer role, the approprate
one off er ongoing benefl t» may be provided
{e.g housing, schoolng, etc ).

Tne cost of the provision

of allowances and berefits

vanies [rem year to year
depending on Lhe cost Lo
the Company and there

wno proscribed maximum

himit. However, the
Commitlee monders
annuadlly the cverasll cost
of the benefits previded.
ta ensure that it remdirs

HPPrOFFith‘

Not npplicable.

Annuad

BDWLH

To incentivise
Executve Directors

ta delver performance
intine with the Growp
strategy and to ahgr
their interests with
those of sharshoiders.

Any bonus carned of up to 75% of salary
wilt normally be pa-cin cash Fd|owmg
the yoar end

Any bonus earned in excesy of 75% will
morrﬂtu be deferred into shares under the
Bonus and Deferred Bonus plan for three
years subject to continued employment

The Committee may decide to pay the entire
bonus in cash where the amount to be deferred
into shares would. 1n the opinian of the

itis admmimistratively

Committee, be so smma
burdensome to apply deferral

Bonuses are not pensicnable,

Baonuses are based on annul

performance targets

The Commitlee may, nits discretion sdjust
annual bonus payments if it considers that
the cutcome does not reflect the underlying
financial er nor financal performance

of the participant or the Group over the
relevant per od or that such payout leve’ s not
dpproprate i the context of circumstances
thal were unexpected o unforeseen when the
LargeLs were set When making this juagment
the Committes may Lake into account such
factors as the Commitice considers relevant

Malus and clawback provisions apply, detaled
or page 63.

Max murm anrual bonus
opportunty of T00%
of base salary

Narma'ly 50% of the
bonus shall pay cut

for on Largel lewels of
performance. The annual
bonus normally starts

ta accrue for meeting
threshold levels of
performance.

The Commitice retains
dwscretion to vary the
level on-iyout for
threshold and target
performance it
considers it Lo be

Appropriate

The Commitiee

shall determine
performnce measures
far the bonus each year,
These may incluae
financial measures (For
examole profitabitity)
and other metrics | nked
to the delivery of the
business strategy.

Naless thar 7C %
of the annua! bonus
will be bused an
financia! meoasures

The Committee has the
discretion in exceptiondl
circurmstances to adJusL
the perfarmance
targets and/or set
different measures

if events oceur outsde
of management’s
control or where the
Larget no \Dnger
‘ad:\‘vr\e\ S Dr\gl’_]d‘

Fdrposc Lo orsurs

that pay 14 aligned

with perFOrm[mco
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Slaronr petat Mz vomonp arten ity Deninrmrznse Toaagre
Share Plans

Long-Term  Torewardthe efforts  Awards can be in the form of canditional The maximum annual Howards grantad in
Incentive of Executive Directars  shares orin such other form that the award in respect of 2021722 wall vest
Plan in line with the Comrmittee determines has the same a financial year 15125% subject to pre tax
L3P Company's objective  ecancmic effect. Awards can be over & of base salary. adjusted EPS

of creating shareholder
valug and support
ahgament with
sharcholder interosts

The _TIP also acts
as aretention tool.

(1sted), and *B and ‘C’ lunksted] ordinary
shares and the Committee may aller the
distributicn between the d'ferent clasues
of shares, srovided that there 1s no ncrease
in the aggragate market vilue of the award,

Awards nermally vest based on
perfarriance assessed over d period
not shorter than three years.

Awwards granted from 2020/27 onwards
wil normaly be subject to a holding period
of two years Following the end of the
performance period.

The Carmmittee iy, n its discrelion,
adjust LTIF vesting levels Fit considers that
tne outcome does not ref'ect the urderlying
financii' or ron-financial performance

of the participant or tne Group over the
relevant ponod or that such vesting leve:

15 NGt appropriate 1 the context of
circamstances that were unexpected

or unforaseer when the Largets were

set o1 1n the cantext of the experience

of sharebalders or ather stakehclders
When making this jJudgment, the Comrmittee
iy tase inlo account such facters as

the Committee consders relevant.

Malus and clawback provisions apply,
as detaled on page 63

Narmally 25% of awards
vest for threshold levels
of performance

performance which wall
norma'ly be measured
over g peried of three
years,

The Commit:ee

miy Usc dif{erenL
perfarmance measuras
“or future awards it s

deemed appropriate.
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Recovery
Long-term
Incentive
Flan Award
["Recovery
LTIP
Avuard™)

Mote — it is
intended that
the Recovery
LTIP will be
granted under
the terms of
the LTIRP Plan
subject to
shareholder
approval of

a revised
approach

to individual
award limits
atthe 2021
AGM

The Recavery LTIP
Awiard wali be granted
oraone off basisin
FY22, dewgned to
suppcrt the recovery
of the business
following the
COWINDA19 p-mdem C
by intentivisirg
management to
rebund the busiress

and prcﬁt ‘evels

Awards can be in the form of condilional
shures or i such other form that the
Carmmittee determines has the same
ccenemic ef fect. Awards can be over '
(hsted), ard "B und *C {unlisted) ordinary
shares and the Comnuttee may alter the
distribution belweer the different classes
ol shares, provided that there s noincrease
In e dggregyle markel value ol thne award.

It 15 mtended that awards will vest based on
performance over the three financal years

2021/22102023/24,

Awards will be subject to a holding period
of two yodrs FQHDWIr\g the end of the
perFormdmcc pc'r'od_ ather than in
excoptional circumstances

Tne Cormmittee may, nits discretion,
adjust the Recovery LTIP vesting levels 1t

cans ders that the cutcome does not reflect

the under yirg financ.al or nca-finarcial

performance of the participant ar the Group
over the relevant penod or that such vesting

‘evel s not appropaate in the context of
circurrstances that were unexpected or

unforeseen when the tdrgstﬂ, were sel or n

the context of the experience of shareholders

ar other stakeholdars Waen making this
judgment, the Commitioe may take into
account such factors as the Comruttee

considers relevant

Malus and clawback provicions apply,
a5 detailed on page 63.

The Recovery LT.P
Award will be granted
onaone off bass
with awards intended
to be granted in FY22
The rrasirrLm sanard

1 250% of base \;1‘;-3r\,.,

Z25% of the award will uest
for threshold tevels of
perfermance, 507 of the
award will vest for target
levels of performance.
75% of the award will vest
lor very strong levels of
perflormance and 100%
of the award wiil vast for

exceptional performance,

It s intended that

the Recovery LTIP
Awards will be based
on EBITDA {excluding

[FRS16] performarce

Execusive
Share
Crption
Scheme

{"ESOS")

Te align the interest
of Executive
Directors witn thosc
of sharehalders.

Atax advantaged market value share
optizn plar,

Execut ve Directors may be granted market
value options up te a maximum toladl value

et by HMRC.

Options vest based on parformince over

athrec year perad,

Chcevasted, options must be exercised
before the tenth annivarsary of grant.

Executives may be
granted and hold
options up to the
maximum value

seb by HMRC
{curremly £30,000)

dtdny one Lime

Ar ESOS option

will vest . fuliif the
threshald performance
level 15 acn'eved.

The vesting of 2505
options is subject

Lo the ach.evement
of performance
conditions whick will
normally be measured
over a period of nat
less than three years,

The Committer
ntends to use

adjusted EPS as the

pcrrorm-mcc CD""d Liaom

The Commitice

may, havever, use
different performance
measures fiLis

deemed appropriate.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

GOVERNANCE

Mot an spLaraity T aArTE e Lt

To provide Exccutive
Directors with
long-term persien
provisans on

d Competitwe basis

The Company operates 4 variety of pension
benefits. Cxecutive Birectors are either
deferred members of the defined benefit
pension plan - now closed to future acorud's
- or the Company’s defined contnibution
pension pian ar “eceive d salary supplement
or 4 mxture of these.

The maxiraum anrual Not applcable.
pansion cantribution or

cash allowance s 17.5%

of base salary, Executive

Cirectors will normally be

expectad Lo make 4 net

contrbution of 8% of

base salary themselves,

The Chie Executive is
a meenber of the man
sectian of the defined
benefit pension plan
whichis clased to
future accrual

For any new Exccutive

Directar to the Bourd

from 1 Apni 2020, tne

pension opportunily

wll beinline with the

pohcy for the m.aj@r Ly

of the workforce '

Share
ownership

guidelines

han the inierasts
of Execut va Directors
and sharcholders and
encourage long term
sharchalding and
commitment o the
C:mpdﬂy bothin and
past emp aymant,

Exccutve Directors arc expecied to buld snd
mantar 1 nolding of shares n the Company
equal to atleast 200% of base salary.

Exccutive Threctors are expected to catmn
50% of amy post tax shares that vest under
army share Incentive arrangements until this
shareholding s rencned.

The Comruttee alse has a policy o promaote
interests in shares follow.ng cessation of
employment to enable the interest of former

Executwe Directors Lo remd'n aligned with the

interests of shareholders for am extended period

sfter leavrg emp oyment.

:ol\cwmg censing to be 4n Exscutive Directaor,
Executive Directors wil norma'ly be expected
to mantain 4 renimym shareholding of 200%
of buse salary (or actua. shareholding . lower)

For the first 12 months followmrg departure fram

the Board ind 100% of base saary or actu s
shireholding il lower) for the subsequent

12 mantks. The Committee retains discret'or
towawe this gade' ne i itis nat considered
Appropriata in the f.peuﬂc circumstarces

Neat appheable, Not epphicable
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Lo Comeration Mo vum cprortL e Ferrommm oozl

Neon-Executive Directors

Basicand  Toattract and retan The fecs are paid in cash There s no maximurm Not apphcable.

Additional hlgh calbre Non-
Feeos Executive Directors
by offering market

fee 'evel other than as
provided by Article 112
of the Company's articles

The fees paid to the Chairman are
determined by the Remuncr stion Commitiee.

competitve feslevels  The fees paid to the other Non Executive of ussooiauer,

i [vg)
that recogn se the ime  Directors are determired by the Chsirmanr =
that the Nor Exccuive  and the Executive Comrmitiee =

‘ o3

Directors commit to - ‘ a
rees are set tdkmg nto gcceunt the time

their vancus roles &

comrmitmen: required Lo fulfil the role and -

Lypica prac tice al other similar companies. S

The polcyin relation to Non -Executive
Chrectors' fees s to pay 4 basic fee for
memrbership of the Board, and addition
fees for the Seror Independert Directar
and for charmanshp of 0 Committee to Lake
into account the additional respor bil Lies

and time commitment of these rales.

Adduonal fees may be pad to

reflect add-tional Boara or Commuttes
respansibilities as appropriate (such as
haising w Lh farmily shareholders).

Berelits To provide suitable Reisonable costsin refation Lo travel and There is ro mdximiunm Not applicable.
F PP

accommoddtion are rewnbursed to the

arrangements to

allow Nen Executive
Cirectors to discharge
their duties effectively

bencl .t opporturity.
Charman and Non Executive Directors,

The Company may meet any Lix habilines

that may arsc on such oxperses.

The Chairm;m dr\d NDH EXCCULVC‘ DIFC‘CLC'S

do not part=cwp‘ate inincentive schemes.
Nane of the Non-Execcutive Directors are

ha
members of any Group peasion scheme with 2
the exception of Michael Turner and Richard )
Fuller who arc both persioners of the =
diractor’s section of the defined perefit g)
pension plan. Baoth also receive life g
AssUrdnce Cover. g
The Chd\rmejﬁ {]‘r\G rECC;vC‘S Pr\‘/dlc‘ ;
rmedical insurance.
Additional non significant benefits may
be introduced if considered appropriste.
Information Supporting the Policy re
Malus and clawback =
Cash annua' bonus payments may be clawed back for a period of three years from the date of payrment. Malus and clawback prov sions 9
apply under the Bonus and Deferred Borus Plan ('BDBP™) and LTIP {including Recovery LTIP Awards) from award to the third =
anniversary of the grant date in the case of BDBP awards and sixth anriversary of the award date for LTIP gwards. The circumstances in (%\
which malusiclawback may apply are i material m sstatement of financisl results, ar error in assesang performance arin the information/ 3
assumphions used, a matena' falure of nsk management, serous repatatioral dsmage, senious msconduct by the partaipart, or any other %
a

SiMNar circumstances,
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Directors Remuneration Report continued

Share plan operation
The Committee will operate the annual bonus, BDBP, LTIP and ESOS n accordance with tha Rules of the plans. Awards under any of the
Company's share plans may:

nave any performance condinions applicable to them amended or substituted by the Commitlee in orcurnstances where the Committee
determines an armended or substituted performance condition would be more appropriate and nat matenially less difficult to satisfy
incorpordte the rlgh{ Lo receive an amount equa\ to the value of dividends which would have been pa-d on the shares under an award that
vests up to the time of vesting (ibs pravisien does nok apply ta the ESOS). This amount may be calcutated assuming that the div.dends
have been reinvested in the Company's shares on a cumulative basis

be settled in cash at the Committoc's discretion {this provision does nat apply to the ESOS5) For Executive Directors, this provision

will only be used in exzeptional circumstances such as where foc repulatory reasars it 1s not possible to settle swards in shares

be adusted in the event of any vaniation of the Company's share capital er any demerger, delisting, special dividend or other event

that may affect the Compary’s share price.

Summary of Decision-making Process and Changes to Policy
During 2020 the Committees undertock o full revew of the Palicy to emsure that our :)ppro;ach reMaing SpPropriate to support our
strategy of achievinglong term sustainuble shareholder value creation. The Comrmittee continues to believe that in normal years the

averll framework of ar annyal bonus and LTIP 15 appropriate for the Company‘

The Covia 'S pandemic has, bowever, had a significant impact on the business ard in light of this the Cammitree conwiderad that st
would be appropriate to grant 3 Recovery LTIP Award during FY22 to incentirse managerent ta re-build the business and proft levels
The Remuneration Policy has therefore been revined to aliow for the grant of such sn award. Minor other changes have been made to
the wording of the policy to ncregse flexibility, t= 1.d operatian, toncrease transpacency and to reflect typical market practice.

In determining the new Remuneration Policy, the Committee followed 4 rabust process wihich included discussions on the cortent
of the Policy at Remuneration Comm'tiec mectings dur rg the year. The Committee considered input from Managemant and our
independent advisors, as well 34 conuidening best practice and guidance from major sharehalders The Commitres also consulted
with major sharcholders when considering the structure of the Recovery LTIP Award.

Approved Payments

The Comm ttee reserves the nght to mnuke any remuneration payments and/or payments for loss of of fice Gineluding exeraising any
discretions avasable Lo it n connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are notin line vath the Pelicy set out above
where the terms of the payment were agreed (1) before the policy set out above carre into effect, provided that the terms of the payment
were cansistent with any applicabie snarcho'acr approved directors' remuneration policy in force at the ume they were agraed or where
othorwise approved by sharehalders, or (1) at a ime whan the relevant individual was not a Directar of the Compamy (ar other perLons
to whom the Policy set out sbave aoplies) and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in consideration for the indwidu al
becoming a Director of the Company or such otner persan. For these purposes “payments” includes the Committee satsfying swards
ol variable remuneration and, m relat on to an sward over shares, the terms of the payment are "agreed” no later than the tme the award
15 granted. This Policy apphics equally to any indindual who s required ta be treated as ¢ director under the applicable regulations,

Selection of Performance Measures

Annual bonus

The annugl borws performance measures are interded to iIncentivise Executive Directars to achieve the financial obrectives

of the Group and deliver the businass strategy. "re particular bonus metncs are selected by the Committee sach year to ensure
that Sxccutre Directars are appropriately focused an the key objectives “ar the next twelve months

LTIP and ESOS
Ciur \Ong term sirategic Obje:tive 5 o provide \-:mg term sustanable retures for all of our shareholders, 't s intended that swards made
in 2021722 enll be based ar pre-tax agjusted EPS performance to provide o clesrincentive for executwes to deliser on this objective

Performance targets for the annusl benus. LTIF and ESOS are set takirg intc accourtinternal bodget forec ssts, external expactat ors

and the reed to ensure that targats reman Moty at cnal.

Recovery LTIP Award

15 intended that the Recovery LTIP avisrd 15 cond tional upon the achiesement of EBITDA targets The Committern has selected Greun
EBITDA {exzluding IFRS 18] as the scle messure af pe-fermance for the Kecovery LTIP Award as it strongy incenuases operat oral
recavery throupghe ot our Business ana proades sirang ine of s ght for management

64

Pl B3 S ANl a  REPRT AN A DTy ST




MDA IOAO

Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group
Remuneration nframgerﬁemts are deterrmined L|’wougﬁout the Group based an the samc prmcwp‘e: that the Remum:rit'on po‘lc\m and PréCUCC‘S
should be a“gned to Compamy purposc snd walues 4nd support the dehver’y of the strutegy and prormale \ong term sustainable success

Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenarios
The charts below set out an illustration of the Palicy for FY22. The charts prowide an illustration of Lthe propertion of tota! remuneration

made up of each companent of the Remuner stion Poiicy and the value of each compenent.

Four performance scenarios have been lusirated Far each Fxecutive Director:

Below threshold performancs Fixed remunzration (base sulury, benefits and pens ar)
Mo arinsar bunus poy-out

Mo vestng under the LTIP and urder the Recovery LTIP Awara.

In I'me with expectazions Fixed remuneration (base S Ay, benelits and pc—m\on]

A
o

a3
a
A
[}

o
Q
3
ul

50% annual benus pay cut
SO'% vest ng under the LT'P and under the Recovery LTIP Award.

F xed remuncration {base salary, benefits and pension}
1030% annual bonus pay out
100% vesting under the LTIP and under the Recovery LTIP Aword.

Maximum performance

Maxirmum perfarmance plus 50%, Fixed remureration (base salary, berefits and pension]
100 % annual borus pay out

snare prce growth
100% vesting under the LTIP and under the Recovery LTP Award plus 50% share price growth,

The charts have beer prepared on the fol owing basrs,
Base salary - the base sa'ary in place at 1 June 2027
Bere®ity - bused on the disciosed benefits value m the single Figure Tor FY21
Parsions - based on a cortnibution of 17 9% of base adlary
Borus — the rormal maximum aanual benas 5 100% of base salary
LT 2 - based on the max'mum award of 125% of base salary (note Lthe ESOS has not been included on the basis that awards are not
gr-’wted al regu\dr ntervals)
Recovery LTIP Award - based on the maximum one of [ award of 250% of base salary

MNo payment of dividend CClLJI‘.'d‘EFItR has beon assurred Potential bernelits under a |l empfoyee shure p\a-’\% hawve not been included.

ND ‘xhnirﬁ' P"IC{‘ growﬂ“- hd\ bE‘C‘F‘I dassunmred O‘Ll‘\(‘l’ Lhan ‘-NHC"C' SldLC'd,

m
N X . =
Simen Emeny - CEO Adam Councell - Finance Director Fred Turner — Retail Director &
£000 £000 EOCO =
4000 4,000 2,600 2480 1,800 s u
. Lt oo 1,601 =
7% A 1.600 Fo =
3,500 i | 2100 [ [ Lo 3
3,044 | | ) 1,850 | | 1,400 1730 | | =]
3.000 e 1 o ! ne2x 3
Lo | 1600 § 82% ! ! 1200 T 6% ] : } W
2,500 | | ' i !
| ol | | o | 1,000 | [ I
2000 82 00 e 800 ms Lot
! [ 1 ' | 2% i 1 [ ! 1% | 1 i
1,500 ' | ] ‘ | | I | 400 [ [ |
|
1.000 600
400 261
500 200
100 =
o . , . o o
Mimimum  Inline with  Maximum  Maximum Minimum  In line vath - Maxamum  Maximum Minmum  Inline with  Maximum  Maximum =
expectation plus share expectation plus share expectation plus share 5
price growth price growth price growth 2
(507 (50% {50%) —
5
=k
. JR— =
- Fixed' CI Bonus .___! LTIP 3
=
1 “Fixed” includes szlary, benefits and pension. 8
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report ccntinue

Remuneration Policy for Newly Appointed Directors
When determining the remuneration package far a newly apponted Executive Director, the Committee would seek to apply the
following principles:

The package should be markel competitive to facilitate the recruitrment of indniduats of sufficient calbre to lead the business
At the same time, the Committee would intend to pay no more than it believes is necessary to secure the required talent

- New Executive Directors will normally receive a base salary, benefits and pension contributions in line with the policy described
on pages 58 to 62 and weuld also be eligible to join the bonus and equity ncentive plans up to the hmits set cutin the Policy
In addition, the Cornm’ttee nas discretion toinclude any other remuneration cormpanent or award which it feels 1s appropriate taking
inte account the speaific circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the it on varisble remunerat'on set out below. The key
terms and rationa'e for any such component would be disclosed as appropniate in the Remuneration Report for the relevant year

+ Where anindivdual forfeits outstanding vanable pay opportunities or contractual rights at 4 previous cmplayer as a result of their
appaintment, the Committee may offer compensatary payments or awards, in such form as the Committee conuders appropriate,
taking into sccount all relevant factors including the form of awards, expected value and vesting imeframe of forfeited oppartun-ties.
Wher determining any such “buyout”, the guiding principle would be that awards would generally be on a “lke for like” bawis unless
this 15 conmidered by the Commuttee not to be practical ar appropriate

- The maxamum level of varable remuneration which may normally be awarded {excluding any “buyout” awards referred to above) nrespect
of recrutment .« 225% of salary, whichis»n line with the current maxirmurm limit under the annual banus and LTIR. In addition, any new
Executive Director may also be pranted a Recovery LTIP Award Any Recovery LT P Award would normally be pro-r sted to reflect the
vme in role during the performance penad unless the Remuncrator Commuttee determines otherwise.

« Where an Executive Dicector 1s required ta relocate from tneir home locat.on to take up their role, the Committae may provide
assistance with relocation (zither via ane of f or on going payments or benefits)
In the event that sr internal candidate i promoted to the Bourd, legacy terms and condtions would narmally be honoured, including

any accrued pension enlitiements and any outstanding incentive awards

To fscilitale any buyout awards cut'ined above, in the event of recruitment the Caommittee may grant awdrds Lo a new Executive Director
relying on the excrption in the Lisung Rules which sllows far the grsrt of awards, to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment
of an Exceutive Director, without seeking prior srareholder approval or under amy other upproprisie Company incent ve plan,

The remuneration package for ¢ newly appointed Noa-Executive Director would nermally be in Frie with the structure set out in the paley
table for Non Exccutive Directors on page 63.

Service Contracts/Payments cn Loss of Office
When determiring feavirg arrangements for ar Executive Director, the Commitien takes Ml gccount any contractusl agreements
including the prowsions of any ncent ve arangements, typical mackel practice and the performance and conduct of the indradual,

Executive Directors have roling service contracts terminable on no more than one year's notice served by the Company or Director.
Our Policy 1s that in the event of early terminauon 4 payment equal Lo the salary due for the unexpired period of their rotice would
be made, payable In monthly instilments, subject to mitigation. The Cammittee retains discretion to pay any unespected notice in
the form of a \ump Sum payrent i* this 15 considered approprigte

Simon Ereny's contract has been in plsce for a number of years. In the event of early termination, he wauld be entitled to a payment
equal to fus base saiury nd the value of all benefits for the unexpired period of his notice, without any reduction for mitigation,

The Committee may muke any other payments in cannection with a Directer's cessation of office or employ ment where the piayments
are made in good Faith in discharge of an existing legat obligation (o by way of damages for breach of such an obligut on) or by wiy of
sett'emerst of any clam ans ngin connection with the cessation of 3 Director’s of fice or employment. Any such payments may include
but are not mized to paying any fees for outplacement assistance andfor the Director’s egal andfor prafessional advice fees in connection

with the r cessauen of o fice or employment.

Annual Bonus

The Cornmittee may determ ne that an Execunive Drector may remun elgible torece’se 1 pro rita borws for the financ.af year nrespect of the
perod they remaned in emmploymert The Corrmittee will determine the level of borus tak ng into sccount bme n emplayment, the circumstances
r

of cessaton of employment ard performarce
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Share Plan Leaver Rules

MTIALDAT

The treatment of leavers under the Cempary’s long term incentive plans 1s determined by the rules of the relevant plans.

Dral wasers”

SAP I ITL T T

L

BDBP

Ifa pdrticwpaﬁt d\es‘ their BDBP award will vest 114 P.—jrt\cwpdm becames
a good leaver for any other reasen, BDBP swards would normally cortinue and
vestin full en the normal westing date The Committee MAy CXErcisc discretion

Lo dllow swards Lo vest at the ume of cessation of employment or to pro rate

Awards lapse

the vesting level to reflect the proportion of the vesting period served W
LTIP {including the Recovery LTIP Award) ;—j-
i . o2
If % par uc-pant becomes s good eaver, LTI2 awards will nat lapae, but wilk Awards apse. o
rormal v be pro rated to reflect the proportion of the performance peried B o ‘ 2
’ I” 4 participart coases employment during the holding R
served and remain subject to performance conditions LTI swards will b
A periad {other than in the event of gross misconduct) =
rormal'y vest on the rormal vesting date, The Committee may deterrmine that -
‘ , ther swards will normally conunue and be released at
LTIP award should vest as saon as practical folowmng cessation of employmert.
the normal recase date The Cammittee may exercise
discreton to alow awards to be released at the time
of cessation of Cmp\oymem
ESOS
If 3 participart dies, ESOS awards will not lapse, but may be exercised fora Auwards lapse
peniad of 12 months following death. If 4 participant becomes a goed leaver for
any other reason, BSOS awards will not lapsc, bul may be exercised until six
months after the third ann versary of grant {or six manths after cessation if
later). ESOS awards w Il continae Lo be subject to performance conditions.
All-employee share plans
Leaver provimons are determined in accordance with HMRC -approved provisions
* Death, dl-health, injury. disability, redundancy, retirement. the sale of their empleying entity out of the Group, or far any other reason at the Cammittee’s discretion.
Terms and Cenditions for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
Trne Charman ard Non Exceuative Directors serve tne Company an the basis of rencwanle letters of appointment which can be
terminated by written rotice by erther party. No compensation s awsrded on termination. Letiers of appontrrent are a4 lable for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting and at the Company’s registered ofTice.
It
]
Service Contracts and Fee Letters 5
‘ 5]
The following sets out the date of D rectars service cortracts and fee letters. z
o]
txonLt e T rettans Tale s Izrtract Nat.eper o =
Simaon Emeny 13 January 1999 12 months 5
=
Adam Councell 15 March 2019 12 months =
e Fa
Fred Turner 23 May 2019 12 months
Neal Smith 16 June 2021* 12 months
*  Effective date of employment at a date to be confirmed, but no later than 1 December 2021
WS o Dot esps vent [arrr sep. o g
a
Michae Turner T July 2013* Jung 2022 s
3
Sir Jarmmes Fuller 1June 2010 May 2022 [
Juliette Stacey 21 Muarch 2018 July 2024 éi.
—Helen Janes 12 March 2019 March 2023 é
Richard Fuller 1 February 2020° February 2022 5
m—— - o
Robin Rowland 23 March 2020 March 2024

Michael Turner was first appointed to the Board 55 an Executive Director in January 1985 and became Non-Executive Chairman on 1.July 2013. Richard Fuller
was first sppointed to the Board as an Executive Director in December 2009 and was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2020.
** All directors zre subject to retirement by rotation as detailed in the Directars’ Report on page 42.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Change of Control

Ir the event of a takeover ar winding up of the Company. share awards may vest early, subject lwbere relecant]) o the extent to which
performance cond.Lions have been satisfied. Awards (other than awards under the BOBPY will norma“y be pro rated for tirme since nward
unless the Committee determines othervase. n the case of 4 demerger, specia’ dvidend or similar circamstances, awards may, at the

Committee's discretion, vest early on zhe sarme baws as for a takegver.

Consideration of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Company

The Committee s advised of the proposed annual pay review far staff in advance of them considenng the proposed pay reviews far
Directors, so that this can be taker rits account when dctermmmg Directors' remureration for the relevant financial year. Sa\ary Incicases
will ordinarily be (in percentage terms) in line with these of the wider workforce, and significant vanance., would only be expected where
there hud been a s\gmrm-if‘t chdmge in arindividuals responmbﬂmes or a mmarket review had been conducted which suggested that an
individual’s salary was no langer competitive, or where the Committee winted to tske account of an indwvidual's performance or experience.
The Comimittee would alsg be advised if there wore any otner key ch;_mgcs ta the terms ard conditions on which staff are ampoycd.

Considerstion of Emplayee Views

The Committee does rot formally consult directly with employess on executive pay or in drawing up the Remuneration Policy but does
receive periadic updates from the People & Talent Director, Share ewnership amongst the Company's employees 1s encouraged through
the SAYE Scheme and SIP. These tax advantaged schemes illow employees 1o participate as sharehc.cers and align their interests witn
those of the shareholders.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

‘n developirg this Remuneration Poigy and in consdening the structure of the Recavery LTIP Award, the Committee consu'ted in detal

with cur LargesL sharebolders and was pk‘d%—:d witr the level CF\auPport received (or the channg Ourinterton s that shareholder vicws .
will be are sought when there s any \|gn|f\cant change to Directors’ remuneration. Should shareholders have any concerns anout the '
Remunaration Policy, the Comnuttee Chairman would endesvour to maet wath them, ax apprepriate, to understard and respond to

any ssues they may have,

Annual Remuneration Implementation Report
The information on pages 68 ta 78 has been audited

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitlee cansists erure y of Independent Non Executive Directors and the merrbers during the period were
Helen Jares (Char), Juliette Stacay and Robin Rowland The Chairrman of the Compamy| Michaal Turner, and the Chief Exccut ve,
Simon Emery, are invited to attend the Committze meet ngs and to adwise, where aopropridte, on the remuneration and performance
of the Exceutive Directors and relatea matters. The Committec 15 adwised internally by the Company Secretary, Richel Spencer
(Severine Béguin unul 8 January 2021}, who also acts as Secretary to the Committee

The Committee’s torras of reference are available on the Company's website - state that the Comrmittee s respons bie for determwmr\g
the total remuneration packags including pensions, service ngreemants and termination payments) of the Exezutive Directors The
Committee also reviews the remancration of the members of the Executive Commuttee in consultatior w th the Chief Executive.
Members of the Comrmittee have ro personal f nancial intercst in the Company, other than as shareholders and Directors,

The Committee’s Advisors

Delotze LLP was appointed by the Committee in June 2013 and auring the ysar under resiew cantinued to provide the Committee

and the Company w th adwice in connect on with remuneration matters a3 we Las the Company's LTI and share option schemes.
Delotte 15 4 founding member of the Remuneratior Cansultants’ Group ("RCG"), which 13 responsib e for the development and
mantenance of the voluntary Cade of Conduct that clearly sets out the role of exceutive remuneration censultarts and the professicaal
standards by weich they advise their clionts Fees are charged on 1 time srd expenses basis and istalled £42,850 (plus VAT dunng
2020¢21. Buring the yoar Deloitte alse ores ced sther urrelazed tax adwice to the Company The Comruttec s satishied th st advice
recoriod from Delotts dur ng the year vas objezt ve and independant and tratal indiadunls who provided remuneration sdace to tne
Cammuttes nave no connect ons watk Fuller’s or ity Directors tnat =gy imparr ther indeperdence. Tne Committoe reviewad the potent a
for confl cts of interast and judged that there were spo-opriate safeguards sganst such conflicts

XP5 Pension Group praaides the Company with advice on matters re sung Lo pensicns, XP5 Perwon Group « authorsad and regulated

by the Firanc o' Conduc: Autborty and s aciuanes are also separately required to ap de by Actuariai Profess on Stardards which me'ude

tne requirement for them to prasde o ective a~dirdependert 3d. ce.
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Statement of implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2021/22

The List year has been a difficult one for the hospitality sector. The outbreak of Covid 19 has hud a significant impact on the business with
puba closed (o a significant portion of the last financial year and the eariy part of this financial year. Mary of our sites are now oper but we
yre cperdtrg at a much reduced capacity in hne with government guidance. In [ght of this, the Committee intends to grant an additional
Recovery LTI2 Award in FY22 Lo incentivise managerent ta rebui'a the bus ness and prof tlevels. Surther detals on the structure of the

Award are provided below

Base salaries
The CED and retsil Direclors base salanies have been increased by 2% in ine with the increase receved across the wider workforce
O 26 rebruary we anrounced that Adam Councell waulo be stepping down as Finunce Dirccter ard his salary will therefore not be

increased Sdalancs from 1June 2027 are therefore as follows:

Chief Exccutve E£510,9C0
Firance Director - £315,000
Retal Direcior £204 000

There has been ne change Lo the fecs payable to the Nen Executive Directors whicn were [t revewed ir January 2018

Asanraunced on 11une, Nel Sk wil be janing us as our new Finance Director, H 5 salury has been set at £352,500 per annum,
We appracidte this sa ary 15 abeve the salary for the fermer Finance Director, Fowever, it s positioned sarre way Below the sulsry he receved
in his previous rale af £430,000.

Annual bonus

As roted above, gven the closure of the busiress snd eur refiance or povernment support we did not operate an snnual borus for FY 21
For FY22 we intend to operate ar annual borus in line with our norma polcy. The maximum annual Bonus will be 100% of base aalary
for all wrectors. The annusl Banus will be based 70% on Group EBITDA performance und 30% based on indmdual sirategie periormance

linked 1a the suzcessful recovery of the ousiness

Targets e considerad to be cemmeraially sensitive and have thersfore not beer disciosed. Our ntention 1s to disclose targets in the
FY22 Annual Remuneratien report provided that these are na lenger corsidered o be commercially sensitive at thal time,

LTIP

The Committee intends to continue to grant LTIP awards for 2021/22 10 ersure that management ara slgned with shareholaers and
incentivised to delier long term perfarmance. Awards will be granted at the po'icy level of 1257 of base salary to the CEQ and the
Retal Director, The new Finance Director wil recave an award of 100% of base salary following his joming. It intended thal his award
lor FY22 will be pro rated to reflect his time in employment during the performance period. The Committee 15 sware of snareholder
guidance regarding reviewing award levels where therc has been a fall in share orice. We are not plunning to reduce grant sizes given the
s-gnificant need to cortinue ta motivate ind retain manugement. However, the Committee retains discretion to adjust vesting outcomces

if it considers that there have been any “windfsll” gains

The LTiP will be based on pre-tax ad usted EPS performance as the Committee considers that this provides & clear objective for
management and supports our strategy The portion of the LTI2 award that vests for threshold performance will be 25% of maxirmum.
For 2021/22 LTiP awards, EPS targets have been st as absolute perce targets for 2023/24 1n I ght of the impact of carenavirus on the
base year and to provide a clear focus for management on the required level of performance.

We want to measure the performance of our Exccutive Directors against a criterion that algns the Executive Directors’ interest w th the
long-term interests of our shareholders We belicve that an earnings per share measure 1s more approprate than o simple prafit measure
as the latter could be improved by, for example, the issuance of shares to raise cash or to finance an acquisitior having a consequent
diluting effect on existing shareholders’ interests Additiorally, gven the mm of encouraging leng-term perfarmancze, we believe that the
carnings per share figure should not reflect snert term mon Lrading impacts on profit, whether positive or negative, for example, profits or
lesses on the sale of freehiold properties, or praf'ts or asses on the dispasal of 3 component business such as the Beer Business, and such
tems should be adjusted far. Lastly giver that changes in tax rates are unrelated to Executive Directors’ performance, we believe that any

earnings ner share messure “ar the LTIF should be based on pro taxearrings.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continucd

Pre tax adjusted E25 argets for the 2021122 awards arc proposed as follows

Pre tax adusted EPS pencein 2023/24 7 - 44.89 54.68

1 Vestmg INCcreases on a stralght line basis between Target and Maximum.
2 The targets set are the same as those for the 2020 LTIP award (as adjusted for the equity raise in March 2021). Given the extended lockdown periods throughout
202Q and 2021, the Committee cansider that these targets remain appropriately stretching and aligned with the creation of shareholder value.

Recovery LTIP Award

In I ght of the challengas the business fuces, the Board i« cancerned uhoul the mativatien and retent o of the Executive Directors and 1s
therefore, mtending to grant & one-of f Recavery LTI Award in FY22 taincentivise managernent to re bu ld the business and prof t levels.
Tris awoard will bein addition to the normal LT'P sward cuthned above.

The Recavery LTIP Award wll vest based upon the achievemert of streiching EBITOA targets for FY24 which are ahigned with delvering
a full recovery of the business as outlined belaw, Tne Cemmittee has selected Group EBITDA a« the sole measure of performance

for the Recovery LTIP as it strongly incentivises cperational recovery througnout our busingss and prov.des strong line of sight for
management. Awards wll be subject 10 a halding penied for two years following the end cf the performance penicd

For Executive Dircctars, the award wi'l have a vaue of 250% of base salary. [Lis intended that the award to the new Finance Director
for FY2Z will be pro rated o reflect his tirme in employment durmg the parrormance ocricd Other senior execatives will also part cipate

in the plan recarning lower levels of award

The vesting of Awards wilt oe subject to achioving the follow ng targets:

Sran JB1E AT gt Loty
Threshold (25% vesting) £95.0m This represents re-bulding to cur pre pandermic perfarmance
Target (S0% payout) E62.6m This ropresents our stretch budgeled pecformance for FY21 pre pandermic

and is considered by the Commultee to represent a strong recovery

\/-:r? strong (75% payouth £67.6m

Maareur (1007 vest ng) £73.0m 32% increa-c abave threshold performance

Thistevel of perfarmance wou'd exceed our EB TDA perlermance level from
when we ewned the beor busingss und « considered to represent sgnificant
value for shareho'ders

Pension and benefits

There are no changes Lo the penvon and benefits prov sion far Executive Direclors Executive Directors recerve a pension allowance

of 17.5% of base salary The Commitien is aware of shareholder guidance that pensions for Executive Directors should be algned with the
wider workforce However, given the current rate for the Executive Directors represents an existing contractual commitrrent and that
ther overa'l pay s towards the lower end of market practice, the Committee does not considar that €15 appropriste to make o reductior
at this stage. The Cammittee will keep this approsch under raview

For any raw Zxecubive Directors appointed to the Board from 1 Apnl 2020 the pension oppsrtun ty will be in-lire vath the maximun
emp oyer contribution avalable for tne majority of the workforce

The ~ew Finsrce Directoar will recoive a pens o of 5% of base salary in-iine with the pers.on rezeived by the majenty of our wider
p Y P ¥ yenty

viorkforca and i lineg with our Drectors’ Remuncration Poloy.
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2020/21

Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table
The followng table shows a breaxdown of the remureraticr of indwmdual Directors who served in sl ar part of the year

‘,‘wa|d|f"‘Fc—:—: T xaewbloma 2 ~t rotal tar i £
201 Ry 2021 ! 2021 20 2021

£000 -, EOQO =.' fooo £o00 E000
Sirnon
Ermeny 469 489 25 25 - 1 8 - 83 85 5%0 600 587 599 9 1
Adam W
Councell 295 189 23 13 - - 6 - 55 33 379 235 374 234 5 1 ;,

- e =
Frea A
Turper’ 188 167 23 19 - 1 8 - 35 30 254 217 245 216 9 1 OIU
Michael =
Turner 235 250 26 26 - - - - - - 261 276 261 276 - - -
St James
Fulier 47 50 - - - - - - - - 47 50 47 50 - -
Richard
Faler 42 162 1 20 - 1 - - - 27 43 210 43 209 - 1
Julietts
Stacey 70 1 - - - - - - - - 70 71 70 71 - -
Helen
Jones 58 61 - - - - - - - - 58 61 58 61 - -
Rabin
Rowland 52 3 - - - - - - - - 52 3 52 3 - -
T Salary/fees for 2021 include the Board members’ voluntary temparary 25% reduction in safary and fees from 1 Apeil 2020 until 30 June 2020.
2 Taxable benefits include car allowances and private medical insurance.
3 Bonus refers to the annual bonus scheme based on performance in the period under review and the value of free shares awarded under the SIP of Enil (2020: £993).
4 LTIP/Cptions includes the value transferred to Directors from the LTIP, ESOS and SAYE Schemes. The benefit s caleulated as the share price at the vest date

less the exercise price multiplied by the nurmber of vested awards for LTIP and ESCS. For SAYE, the benefit is calculated as the share price at the grant date
less the exercise price, multiplied by the number of options being purchased. LTIP and ESQS awards are considered to have vested if substantially all of the
performance criteria have been met in the financial year, in which case the number of vested awards 15 estimated based on performance against performance
measures. The table below sets out how the award is linked to performance of the Group.

5 From his appointment on 27 August 2015,
6 From his appointment on 1June 2019, %1
7 Richard Fuller was an Executive Director until 1 February 2020, when he became a Non-Executive Director for which he received fees of £7,500 in the period a
ta 28 March 2020, included in the figure above. S
8 From his appointment to the Board on 23 March 2020. o
2
Base Salary &
Durirg the 2020/21 Mnanc.al year the Executive Directars and Non Exccutive Directors volunteered to temparanily reduce their salary %
and fees from 1 Aprl 2020 1o 30 June 2020 by 25% to support the business in managing costs. With the estate gradually reopening, 2
salanes and feos reverted Lo normal with effect from 1.July 2020 o
Annual Bonus
As noted above, grven the closure of the butiness and aur relance on government suppert the Committec and the Executive Directors
agreed that it was not appropnate Lo operate an annua' bonus for FYZ2T,
e
LTIP &
LT!P awards granted in 2018 were based on Group adjusted earmings per share ("EPS™) perfermance for the financial year 2020421 =
. - . o
The EPS targets were not met and theretare these awards will lapse. The followng sets out detalls of performance against targets set: 2
Target i
. N - A2 . o’
S erItou Mo e e Mgy e A ls 3
e e :a:llu Pl -;"; \A . :": et \QA‘ Wa g T aesTd "":':l" 1= Wooe 1v‘\']|J g
LTIP EPS v RPI EPS cxceeds  EPSexcesds  Percentagevestof NI growth NIl of maximum avesrd 3

RPlby +3%  RPlby -24%  orginal grant
Mimeure 40%
Magmum 100%

The Committee d o not exercise any discretion in relation to Lhe LTIP outcornes No pertion of the LTIP swards ~elazes to share price growth
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report coniinued

Total Pension Entitlements
Michael Turner and Richard Fuller are pensoners of the definca benefit Company penson plan, which s clesed to future acerual, under
the Directors section.

Simon Emeny became a deferred member of the defined benefit Company pension plan, under the main section when the plan closed
to future accruals on 1 January 2015 Prior to closure, he received a salary supplement of 17.5% of the excess of his base salary over the
esrnings cap for use as part of his retirement planning. Fallowing closure of the pension plan, Simen Emeny 1 paid a saiary susplement
of 17.5% of hus salary by the Compamy which he s required to use as part of his overdll retirement planning

Buring the yoar, Adant Councell and Fred Turner were pard g salary supplement of I7.5% of their sa aries by the Campany which they
are required to use as part of ther averall retirerrent planring They are also required to contribute 8% of their salary to ther pension
ar another investrment vehicle

The Committee considers that the po'\cy Operated as intended durmg the yesr

Percentage Change in Remuneration of Directors and Employees
Tne table below shows the percentage change in tne remuncration af the Board of Directers compared to that of the average of sll of the
Carmpany's employecs taker as a whole between the financial years ended 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021

T 3
Wasi1s Aty Carelabroir

HAverage of all employees 1.0% -1.6%*

Simon Emeny ' -4.0% o il
Adam Councell - - nil%
Er.cd Turner - - - nil%
Mchae Turner ' -6.2% 15% n/a
Sir James Fulier 7 -6.2% nil% nfa
Richara Euller’ ' -73.9% 93.8% n/a
Jubette Stacey” 7 ) -07% nil% nfa
Helen Jones V -4.5% nil% n/a
Mm«rlamd - - n/a

1 Figures excluded where prior year comparator is less than a full year as this distorts the percentage change.
“Change in annual bonus” reflects the increase or decrease in the percentage of annual salary paid out as bonus and excludes the value of free shares awarded
under the $IP. The employee comparator group excludes pub staff who are employed by another Group company. [t also excludes The Stable employees who
transferred on the disposal of The Stable Pizza & Cider Limited on 7 June 2020.

3 A number of Directors had role changes during FY2020 (Richard Fuller, Juliette Stacey and Helen Jones), all of which have impacted the year on
year comparison,

4 The change in taxable benefits for the average of all employees has gone down year on year due to the comparatively smaller group of staff who recaive
a compdny car due to their role. compared to FY20 which included brewery staff. Benefits offered to Fuller’s employees have not changed year on year.

External Directorship Fees

The Board may give approvs! far Executives 1o nave one Nen-Executive role and to retan any related fees paid. Sirmon Emeny was
appointed a Non Executive Director of The Natoral Galiery Company Limizad or 6 February 2018 for which he does not recewe any
remuanerat o He s the Senior Independert Director of WH Smith FLC and during the year he mecei.ed and retaned remuneration

cf £5%,000
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Scheme Interests Awarded During the Financial Year"?
In respect of the 52 week period ended 27 March 2021the Fol\owmg LTIPs, share options and SIP awards were grantea:

) M e [ ot ar S,

_erhy 373 foares 9ATT s PRI ner el W

S Ermeny TP 83,333 625000 05/10/2020  1/04/2023 20%

o SAVE 6,896 - 435 - 37497 30/09/2020 nfa iz

Total 90,229 208,333 662,497 ' ' ’

ACcumcclr  LTIP® 52500 131,250 - T 393751 0510/2020  1/04/2023 40% =
SAYE 4137 - 435 _ 22495 30/09/2020 na  nla &

Total 56,637 131,250 416,246 :p

F Trner LTIP" 33333 83333 - _ 249998 05/10/2020  1/04/2023 40% 3
SAYE 6,896 B 435 ~ 37497 30/09/2020 s na -

Total 40,229 83,333 287,496 : o

1 Facevalues have been calculsted using the actual grant prices also shown in the table except far SAYE. For the SAYE Scheme thisis based on an average price

for the three days before grant (shown sbove) although options are granted at a 20% discount,

Under the tax-advantaged ESOS enly options worth £30,000 may be held at any time.

Adam Councell has indicated his intention to resign as a Director, st which time all awards will lapse.

4 The LTIP awards granted in October 2020 are subject to a pre-tax sdjusted EPS performance condition, with the targets set on an absolute basis and measured
over 3 period of three years. 25% of the awards vest for pre-tax adjusted EPS of 50.16p in FY23, with 100% vesting for pre-tax adjusted EPS of 61.09p
(straight-hne vesting in-between). Further details of the actual targets are set out in the 2020 Annual Repart. The Remuneration Committee is considening the
impact of the equity raise on these awards to determine whether it is appropriate to adjust the current EPS targets. If relevant, further details will be disclosed in
the 2022 Remuneration Report.

(ST NT

Share Scheme Interests Qutstanding at the Year End

Shares

The Comp[my nas Share Ownersh p Guidchires for Oirectors which state taat Exccutves shoula hald shares worth at least 200% of tnerr
salary. Accordmg?y, urtil their guideline s met, Exccutives arc cxpected to retan,

- all shares oy hold in the SIP

- all shares they acquire as a result of exercising SAYE opliors

« all shares that they acquire as a result of exercising options under the tax-advantaged ESOS net of the cost of those opt:ons

- atleast SG% of any shares thst they scquire as a result of exerciang opt ons under the nen-tax-advantaged SESOS net of the cost

) e M

of thone aptions and the costs of selthng related tax and Natonal 'nsurance ("NI™) thereon 5

- atleast 50% of any post tax and Nlvested shares under the LTIF and the BDBP. é
Based or the share price on 27 March 2021 of £8.60, Simon Emeny held shares with a value of 391% of salary, Fred Turner held shaies o
weth avalue of 6227 of salary and Adamr Councell held shares with 3 vslue of 16% of ‘xd‘d!'y, Al of the Executive Dircctors’ Shamhdding% g’
therefore already meet the guideling with the exceptian of Adum Councell who only joined the Company in August 2019, %
3

T
>
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o
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Directors’ Shareholdings

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

.Beneficial Non»_heneﬁcial Feneficial Nnn-.beneﬁ:ial N I3
interest at interest at interest at interest at :
7 July 7 July 27 March 27 March 2 Nsrr

Directors' share interests 2021 201 2021 o1 2.0 PR
Simon Emeny
é crdinary 40p shares 120,472 - 124,448 - 113,509 500
E' ordinary 4p shares 1,055,684 - 1,055,684 - 1,055,684 B
e ordinary 40p shares 2,000 - 2,000 - 2,000 o
:Adam Councell
VAY ordinary 4Cp shares 5,800 - 5,800 - 2,250 -
El'ed Turner
ﬂ ardinary 40p shares 1,471 - 1,471 - 1,471 -
‘B ordinary 4p shares 492 473 - 452,667 - 447 633 -
E:' ordinary 40p shares 100,819 - 100,819 - 99,065 -
Znd preference £1shares 4,324 - 4,324 - 4324 _
Michael Turner
1\' ordimary 40p shares 27,378 - 271,378 - 271378 -
13\ ardinary 4p shdrc_s 3,036,586 - 2,988,394 ) - 2,988,394 -
Ef‘ ordinary 40p xhdlrca 624,260 - 624,260 - 624,260 -
Znd preference £ shares 1 - 4l - 71 -
Sir James Fuller
E\‘ ordinary 40p snares 88,942 - 88,942 - 88942 -
'8 ordinary 4p shares 10,486,379 - 10,438,187 ~ 10415881 -
'C ordinary 40p shares 2,702,003 621,050 2,702,003 621,050  2702,003 612,050
Eichard Fuller
f\' ardinary 40p n"ldft‘; 13,267 872,937 11,460 500,000 10,591 500,000
‘B ordinary 4p shares 3065726 10,935,015  3,065726 10,935,015  3,065726 10,935,015
E:‘ ordinary 40p snares V 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 -
2nd preference £1 shares 303 7,499 303 - 303 -
Juliette Stacey
‘A ordinary 40p shares 2,454 - 1,250 - 1,250 -
Helen Jones
N ordinary 40p shares 2,970 - 1,766 - - -
Bobin Rowland
N ordinary 40p shares 7,165 - 3,551 - - -

El
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Directors’ Share Options

£t As at st

ERTTI P March e o Fees b Fapt, e ie e

Crite Serara P Zen nit 3pren s e 2 . ‘g fro ’ vo o men e
Simon

Emeny  ESOS| 3,296 - - - 3,296] £910 010772013 010772016 30/06/2023 .

 SAYE 3410 -~ (34100 - ~£774 01092016 01/09/2021 01/03/2022 -

SAYE 467 - @en - - £770 01092018 Q1/09/2023 01/03/2024 T

SAYE - - _ 6896 6,896 €435 30/09/2020 0112/2025 01/06/2026 -

Total 773 10,192 -
Adam

Councelll ESOS 3121 - - <3321 £961 15012020 15/01/2023 14/01/2030 ,

SAYE B B T 4137 4137 €435 30/09/2020 01/12/2023 01/06/2024 _

Total 3121 7,258 -

Fred

Tumer  £50S[ 2,590 . - _[ 2,590 £9.65 30/06/2014 30/06/2017 29/06/2024 .

SAYE 3975 - (3579 . - €774 01092016 01/09/2021 01/03/2022 -

ESCS 520 - B T 520 £961 150172020 15/01/2023 14/01/2030 -

SAYE - - _ 6896 6,896 €435 30/09/2020 0112/2025 01/06/2026 -

Total 7,085 10,006 -
Richard

Fulle?  ESOS 869  (869) - - - £578 12/07/2010 12/07/2013 12/07/2020  7.36 6,395.84

ESOS 2,588 - (2588 - = £9.65 30/06/2014 30/06/2017 29/06/2024 -

SAYE 2713 - (2713) - - £774 01092016 O01/09/2021 01/03/2022 -

SAYE 779 - - ~ £770 01/09/2018 01/09/2023 01/03/2024 -

Total 6,949 - -

1 Adam Councell has indicated his intentien to resign as 3 Director, at which time al! outstanding awards will lapse.
2 Richard Fuller's outstanding options fapsed on 31 July 2020 following his resignation as Executive Director an 1 February 2020.
3 The Executive Share Option Scheme ("ESOS™) and Savings Related Share Option Scheme ("SAYE") are both tax-adventaged share option schemes.

. |
Vested but unexercised oplions
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Long-Term Incentive Plan Allocations

Sadal 0 og Cypreider g Total held at
TR Fre st Ty 27 March 202F
Simon Emeny
‘A ardinary 40p shares 131,307 83,333 - (40,860) 173,780 nfa
‘B ordinary 4p shares 328,271 208,333 - (102152} 434,452 nfa
Adam Councell’
A ordinary 40p shares 28,844 52,500 - - 81,344 n/a
‘B ordinary 4p shares 7212 131,250 - - 203,362 rfa
Fred Turner
AN ordinary 40p shares 20,568 33,333 - (1,381 52,520 nfa
‘B’ ordinary 4p shares 51424 83,333 - {3,454) 131,303 nfa

1 Or date of appointment if subsequent.
2 Or date of resignation. Adam Councell hasindicated hus intention to resign as a Director, at which time all outstanding LTIP awards will lapse.

The per\corm-mce corditions for the LTIP are set out in the table on page 71 of this repart.

Payments to Past Directors
There were no payments made to past Directors 0 the penied.

Payments on Loss of Office in Prior Year
No payments wore made in respect of loss of office in respect of the Ninancial year ended 27 March 2021

Performance Graph and Table

The graph below shows a comparison of the Taral Shareholder Return (" 7SR ™) for the Company’s listed A ordinary shares for the last ten
fimancial years aganit the TSR far the companias in the FTSE All Share The Company 16 4 constituent of this Index and therefore it s an
dpRropriate choice for this report

20,000
18,000
16,000
14,000
12,600

10,000

8.000

Fuller, Smrth & Turner P.L.C. 12,723
FTSE All Shore 12,158

6000 Y

4.000 1 ! | | 3 1 I 1 s ! L 1 | i 1 | | 1 1 ! I 1 )
Mar 1 Aug !l Jan 12 Jun*2 Mev12 Apr1d Sep!d Febid Jult4 Decid May !5 Ger !5 Marl6 Aug '€ Jan7 Junl7 Nev 17 Apr1& Sepi8 Feb?9 Jul'9 Dec1? May 20Qcr 20

[ Ulles, Smith & Turner P.LC, FTSE All Share Source, Thomsen Data stream
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The table nelow smows the total remuneration Nigure for the Chief Executive over tne last ter Fnancial years and the anrual bonas and
LTIP pay out for each year as a percentage of the maximum avalable:

2.0 VA Tl PN 2.0 EAR Auls PR JUET 2021
Single higure total
remanertion (FO00) 944 oM 977 1244 1418 1097 1089 687 600 590
Annudl borus” 56% 41% 77% 76% 859% 41%  48%  48% i nil
TIP 92% S6%  64%  96%  100%  100% 56% il i il

1 Simon Emeny was appainted as Group Chief Executive in July 2013, This single total figure comprises the remuneration received by Simon Emeny in the
financial year, hence includes remuneration for the three months prior to this promotion.

2 Cne-third of the annual bonus was due ta pay out reflecting the Company's strong like for like sales performance vs. the Peach Tracker. However, n hight of the
broader business circumstances FoI\OW\ng the autbreak of coronavirus, the Cammittee and the Executive Directors agreed that it was not appropriate to pay this
portion of the annual bonus.

3 Annusl bonus 35 3 percentage of the maximum available.

Relative tmportance of Spend on Pay
The grapn below shows the total remuneration For fne Grcup's empbyee\ cornp-irod to clher kcy Tinaraal indicatons

120 -

100

BO

80 -

40

20

£ Taxes Remuneration Capital Dwvidends

m .
payable to expenditure & and share
HMRC' business buy-backs*

combinations?

W 2021 [} 2020

1 Taxes payable to HMRC s based upon tax incurred in the year and includes corporation tax, VAT, PAYE, NI, duty, stamp duty, non-domestic rates, property
licences, enviranmental levies and machine game duty. Duty on the sale of beer only relates ta one manth for 2020 until the sale of the Fuller's Beer Business
on 27 Apnl 2015,

Capital expenditure (including business combinations) represents cash paid in the year.

Drvidends for 2020 represent the one-of f* D’ share dividend paid in October 2019 as part of the return of capital to shareholders and the interim dividend for
2020 paid in the y=ar. No dividends were paid during 2021 due to the coronavirus pandemic.

[P

CEQO Pay Ratio

The fellowing table sets our T2 pay raue figures, in respect of tne financia year ended 27 Mareh 2021,

Modia - L
Vst Moo Fiy abin pay e -
2020121 Option B 33.21 23.8:1
2019/20 Option B 32.6:1 31.6:1

The rovement In pay ratio between 2019/20 and 2023/21 1 driven by 4 combination of pay on furlcugh for the 25tn percentile and
median baing lower than narmal pay, but CEQ pay having ulso reduced due to the Board's voluntary pay reduction from 1 Apri to
30 June 2020,

The relevantindiiduals have been igentfied using Optien B, as defined under the relevart regulations, as itis cansidered to be the most
appropriste methodology for Fuller's based an the availability o daza at the ime the Annual Report was published. The respectae single
Mgure values for each individual for 2020721 Rave then been ca culated Ne estimatos were recuired, and no elemants of pay were omitred
in calculsting the relevant single figures. The figures de not include amaunts paid to indiaduals in respect of their trone share The figures
for 2020/21 have been distorted by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, with the figures for the respecuve percentides only
representing hours worked far a small number of oper weeks duning the year, p'us furlough pay recaived
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The single figure valugs for inawidua's immediately above and below tne 1denufied emplayee at cach guartle with r the Gender Pay Gup

analysis were alo reviewed

The chosen individuals were reviewed to determine if they were representative of the 25th percertie, median and 75th percentile
employees. If the chosen indwidual had left the business or had changed rofes duning the linancial year ar alternat ve employee would be
used for the caleulations. The alternstive employee used in cuch instamce was the closest employee to the relevant percentile, whe was
considerad representative of that percentile For the 52 weeks ended 27 Morch 2021 no adjustment was needed for the 75th percenti'e,
but siternative employees were selectad for the 25th percentle and median,

A Aurmorier e LR e
Year Soporttgamriry gt iy Fav piy
2020021 Salary £16,235 £17,788 £24,230
Total pay £16,540 £17,788 £24,762

Statement of Voting at Annual General Meeting
At the Anrnual Gerergl Mest ng held on 10 Septemnber 2023, votes cast by proxy in respect of the approval of the Directory
Remuneration Report were as follows:

ctal N el s

N e - Tarcacmyan o N

St e e P O

Approval of Remunerstion Repart 2020 96,950,017

o

MU HIREYH PITL Rt with e 2’4

905,613 093% 97,855,630 36,661

Jaiitor

99.07%

wote T3

At the Arnual Gereral Meeting keld on 10 September 2020, votes cast by proxy in respect of the approval of the Directors’ Remuneraton

Policy were as follows:

N b st Tareattiae o N - Toa Namee s
IR R PLRSCENEE I e DI P Iast e R T B LR TATT v LS
Approval of Kemureraton Palicy 2020 94,559,027 97.04% 2,881,462 296% 97440,489 451801

The Directors’ Remunaration Repart, encornpassing pages 68 Lo 78, was spproved by the Board and signed onits hehall

I
L

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

8 July 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Opinion

In our opinion:

- Fuller, Smuith & Turner PLC s Group financ gl statements and Compamy financial statemerts the “financial statements™) gwe ¢ lrue and fair
view of the state of the Group's snd of the Compdﬁy’ﬁ affairs as ot 27 March 2027 and of the Group's loss for the 52 week period (the ‘period’
then Ended;

- the Group f1nancis’ statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Internstional Accounting Siandards in canformizy with the
requirements of the CGmpﬁﬁiE“; Act 2006 and Interrational Firancial F’eporr_mg Standards ddOp[C‘d pursudnl 1o Roguht:om (ECI N 1606/ 2002
asitapples in the European Union;

- the Company finuncial statements have been properly prepared in accordance win Internstional Accounting Standards in conformity vath the
requiremants of the Camparies Act 2006 as applied 1 accordunce w th sectien 408 of tne Comparnies Act 2006, and

- the firencial st stemerts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compan o Act 2008

We have audted the finarcial staternents of Fuller, Smith & Turaer PLC. (the Cempany ) and its subwidiaries (the 'Group) for the 52 week period
erded 27 March 2021 which comprise:

Graup Company

Group balance sheet os at 27 March 2021 Balance sheet as at 27 Marcn 2021

Group inceme statement for the 52 week porod then ended Statement of changes in equity for the 52 week period then ended
Group statement of comprehersive ircome far the 52 weck per od Staternent of cash flaws for the 52 week peried ther ended

then ended

Group statement of chariges in equity for the 52 week penoa Ralited notes 1 to 34 1o the financiar statements, ncluding

then ended a sumnmuary of significant accounting pelicies

Group cash Fows for the 52 week period then ended

Relsted motes 1o 34 to the financ ol statements, rcluding
a summary of significant accounting polcies

Tre financial report\'r\g framework that has been dpphod in thewr preparation is apphcable law and [nternational Accoumtmg Standards in confor mity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards to the Group financiol statements, Internationa Financial Reporling Standards
adepted pucsuant ta Regu'ation {(EC) Na. 1606/2002 as i upphios i the European Union and os regards the Company lnanerl slatements,

as app\led in Jecordance wth soction 408 of the Compahieg Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in aczordunce wath !nternatioral Standards on Auditing (UKD (1SAx (UKD and spplicable lsw Our resporsibrhitios under
these standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audiz of the finanai4l staterments section of our report We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the eth ca' recuirements that are relevant 1o cur audit of the financial staterments in the UK,
including the FRC' Zthical Standard a5 applied to listed public interest ent.ies, and we have fulfilled sur other cthical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirernents

We beleve that the audiz evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowide o basis lor aur opimor.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Continued

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attenton to rote Din the firancial siatements, which ndicates that the ONEONE Cororawrus pandemic continues Lo rosult in uncertanty
over the Group’s abinity Lo operate its pubs and therefore whether the Group will be able Lo camply w th iLs banking covenants from 30 June 2022
onwards urder a severe but plausible downside scenaro, As stated in rote 1, these events or conditions, alorg with the other matters as set ouin
note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast sigmilicant doubt on the Greup and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opimion 15 rot modified in respect of this matter

We draw allention to the viabilty statement in the Annual Report on page 26, which indicates that an assumpt-or to the statement of viabihty

15 that the Grouo will cornp'ete s reflinance of its debt faciities by February 2023, Tne Directors consider thal the matenal uncertainties referred
to 1n respect of going concern may cast significant doubt over the future viabilizy of the Group and company sheula these events not complete
Our opiion 1s not mod-fied n respect of this matter

Im auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directar's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the

& g0INg n & pre|
fnancial statements s appropnate, Cur evaludtion of the directors’ assessment of the Group and Company’s ability to continue 1o adopl the going
coreern bass of accounung inc'uded:

- Obtainirg an understarding of management’s Baws for use of the going concern bass of accounting To challenge the completeness of this
assessment, we independently identif.ed faclors that may indicsle events or condttions that may cest sigmificant doubt on the Group ard
Company's ability to continue 4+ 4 going concern. Bvenits or conditions were dentilied, and we designed our audit procedures to evaluate the
effect of these risks on the Group's und Company’s 4biity to conlinue u~ 1 gaing concern,

- Confirming our understand ng of the directors’ going concern assessment process,

- Assessing the adequacy of the guirg concern assessment penod to 27 December 2022 ard cansidering the existence of amy significant events

or canditons beyond tnos peniod:

The audit engagement partrer increased her time direeting and supervsing the audit procedures on going concern and utlised corporate

finarce specialsts. with relevant nospriality sector expertise, te assistin assessing the integnty of the model and the assumpbions errplayed;

- Agrecng the Group's avalable financing and related terms. inciudirg the changes in the period, and the past year ond amend and extend,
to the onig nal debt agraeements and covenant wdivers: ana dudltmg the £92 millisr (ret c{expomos\, equity raisc Comp|eted in f\pr‘| 2021
back to sUpporting ev dence, inc udmg snare 1ssue documentation and cash rccewp[;

Obtaining the cash flow forecast madels to 27 Decernber 2022 used by the Board in1Ls assessmient, testing their anthmetizal sccuracy,
ascertainrg whether they hase been spproved by the Beard and considering the Group’s historical forecasung accuracy,

- Teslng the assessment, including forecast hquidity and covenant compliance under base and dowrside scenanos, for cleriza’ accuracy,

- C‘hai\-:ngmg the assumptions particu'arly over the tring ard extent to which tr ading wou'd recover to pre Coranavirus levels, wore realistic,
acmevable and consistert with the exterrsl andior interral envronment as we'l s otner rratters identified in the sudit;

Assesuing, whether assumptions made were redsonable and in the case of the downside scenanie. appropriately severe, in |‘gHL of the Group's
relevamt prirzipal nisks and uncertainties; This included compar ng management’s foracass to indepardent analyst commentary on the recovery
of the pub sector;

- Conswdermg the likelihoad of mdmgemem's ab\\\ty to executem tlgdtmg actions based on our under\tdndimg of the Group and the sector,
including whether those m Ligaling actions were controllabie by mansgement. This assessmment was supported by our analysis of management's
hiatorical abilily Lo take controlable actions such as suspension of divdends, deferral of non -essential capital expenditure and inventory orders,
as well as the ikalincod of non contrailable actiors such as cbran.ng Turther covenant waivers o raising addinignal Funds through debt. equity
or sale of pubs in the partfo'io being piausible;

- /\ppfying prof’Csmona\ sCceplicism in perFormmg our gwn \ﬂd@p@ﬁdcnt roverse stress te’mmg of the Group‘s cash flow forecast models and therr
‘mpact on forecast hiqudity and banking covenants toidentfy under what circumstances the Group's hquidity would be compramised, and
whether the scenaro has no more than a remote poswb lity of occurning,

- Caonsadering theimpact of a sign-frcsrt event beyond the going cancern assessment period that was identfied by the directors and the audit team,
being the nead to complete a relinancing of the Group's debt facilites prior to its expiry en 19 February 2023, We challenged wnether there was
a redhsnc prospect that the Group would be able to complete tas vefinancing, Our aud L procedures neluded assessing the conclusions of the
Group's externa debt adwiscr, snd the involvement of an EY debt ad nsory specialist ta Felp us form an independent vizw; and

= Assesuing the apprapratecess af the gong canceraancloures in gesenbing the nisks 2wsoc ated w th the Groug's and Company’s abil ty ta

cortinue ds ¢ going corcern far the peniod to 27 Decerrber 2022,
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Our key observations

- The Group 1s experieraing a hghlevel of disrupton from the impact of the pandemic given the sector in which it operates. Therefore, there
“suncertanty about the mpacts of COVID-19 on management's [erecasts in the going concern assessment period, wath the key assumptions
relating to further potential lockdawins and/or extensions Lo socia distancing rules

- On 21 March 2021, the Group agreed an Amend and Exterd Relinancing of its exisling deot focilves extending the maturity of the E192 million
facihties tn 19 February 2023 and d[T’Cﬁdlﬂg the financial covenants Lo a mimmum \lqmd'[y wovel of E10 million {tested montNy) until 31 March
2022 and then from Juarter endmg 25 June 2022 reverting to d covenant suite af nct debt to EBITDA and EB TDA to net finance Charges
Based or managemant’s downsde case. the Group would breach its banking covenants lrom Jure 2022, therelore requiming further covenant

warvers to be negotiateg

198}
We confirm that we are sat.sfied w'th m mdgement'\ conclusion that the Group and Company are a gong comcern, but that there s a mataria ;
uncertainty aver this assumption, snd that management has accurately described this matenal uncertanty wthin the financial statemenis. We also et
determnied poing concern to be akey audit matter 20
=
In celotion to the Group und parent company™s reporting or how they have applied the UK Corpoer-: Governarce Code, we bave nothing materal S
to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors' staterment ir the linancisl stalerments about whetheor the directors considered it -:pproprldlo
to adoot the going concarr bass of accounting
Our regpons:b\ht\eﬁ and the respomlb\\lt\e% of the directars vath respect to gong concern are desenibed in the relevant sections of this rcpcrt
chever‘ Hecause not all Future avents or conditicns can be pred(cted, this statormont s ot a guarar‘me 44 Lo the Group'a and COdeF‘Iy.S dbi‘lty
to conunue 83 7 going concern
Overview of our audit approach o
%
Audit scope ~ We performad an audiz of the complete financiat information of the Group, which accaunted é
for 100% o loss before taxation, 100% of revenue and 100% of total assets, 2
]

Key audit matters - Gomg carcern
- Impanment of Langible and intangible assets
- Beferred taxation on the pub estate
- Management overnde r the recogmition of reverue

Materia"ty - Civerall Group rmjter}m:). of E09 million (2020 the predocos%or suditor set their maleral Ly
threshold at £1.045 rrilhion). We used pro;ea\-on.njudgcment to determine rraterdiity grven
the impact of COVID-19 on the Group™ relevart materiality measures.

An overview of the scope of the Company and Group audits

Tailoring the scope
Our assessment of audit risk, our evalustion of matenal ty and our allecatior of performarce materialty determinie our audit scope for each
company within the Group. Teken together, ths erables us to form an opimion on the consolidated financial statements,

The Group' operations 4re based salely in the Urited Kingderm with 3 single head office and firance function and therefore all gudit precedures
are compreted by one sudt team at this locaton. The sudil team includes tax specialists,

In assessing the risk of material misstaternent Lo the Group financia’ statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage of significant
accounts in the financial staterrents we performed full scope audit procedures over 100% of the Group's results for the 52 week period ended

27 March 2021 and 100% of the Group™ total assels ai that date, We obtained an understanding of the entity -level controls of the Group which
asssted us i identifying and assesuing risks of material misstatement due te fraud or error, as well as assisting us in determining the most approprute

audit strategy.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Key audit matters

Continued

Koy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial staterments
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaterment (whether or not due Lo fraud) that we ident/fed
These matters included those which had the grastest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of reseurces in the audit: and directing the

efforts of the cngagernent team. Thase

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the finsncial statements as @ whole, and in our opinion

thereon, and we do not pravide a weparale opinion on these matters Inaddiven to the matter described in the material uncertainty related to going

concern section, we have determined the matters, described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Risk

Our respanse to the risk

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 53);
Accounting poficies (page 100); and Note 13 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (page 120)

At 27 March 2021 the carrying value of targible
3uets w £672 Ymillion which s made up of
property. p'art and equipment (PP&E) and
nght of use 4ssat (ROUA) Intargible assets
hase 3 carrying vilue of £27 4 million of wh.ch
£26 7 millorelstes to goodwll recorded on

busingss combinatiens in pres ious years.

The continued uncertainties over the current
cconomic environment ciused by the

Coronauiras pandemic, including the clasure
or restricted traging of all pubs in the UK, has
been ident-fied as 4n indicatar of impairment

Irparment for tangibie assets (property plant
snd equipment and the right of use assets)
are testod on the bass of esch indradaal ci<h
gener itl(\g urit (CGU‘, an it .wdual pub EXi¢=)
For intangible sssets (goodw I the tewt ng 1s
performed 4t the relevant graup of CGUs that
benefit from the gzodwill

Thera s s nisk that, givon tho yrcerls nuos
ovor future trading caused by the Corona rus,
pubs may not 4chieve the anticipatad business
performance to support therr carrying value
This could leaa to an imparment chasge that
h3s not boon recagmised by manzoment

Sgnificant udgement s required in forcasting
future cash flows of each pub, the \Gmgfterm
growth rate and Lhe rate at which cash flows
are discounted Fora portion of the pubestste
where the value r use modelindicates 2 small
imprment d"arée‘ ar overiay tased on the
market »alue approsch s perfarmed wh ch
nvalves swémﬂcar\t_rudécment n determimng
the far vaive of these pubs

We zained ar understanding through a walkthrough of the
process 1nd controls msnagement bas in place gver the
IMprment process

We validsted that the methadology of the imparrment
oxercise s consintent with the requirements of IAS 36
Impa rment of Assets, including appropnate dentfication
of cxh generating urits and the sllocation of central
serace conts ir the value in use caleulstiens

We confirmad the mathematical accuracy of the modeis

Below ac summanse the procedura pecformed in relition
ta the ke, judgements for the Lingible (PPRE and ROUA)

and iatsng bie assels (good will) impairment review

- We snalysed monogement's forecasts underlying the
\rﬂpmrrﬂent re Aew 353Nt past and current PEI’FOrmrJV'ICC‘
ard external future econemic forecasts ingorporating
a COVIDA3 rripact on the hospitaly sector in the UK

We compared the expectilion of performance of the
pub wles reopening to the recent gavernment

nrouncements ard other external rrarket indicators
of economic reco.ery such as farec st GOP growth,

\mr:hmg for cantr Iy evidence

We critically challerged srd avseviad the reavansbleness
of manigement's recovery 3wsumptians and post-
COVID 19 3ssumpt ons weth the assistance of gur

EY sector specialints

We dlvo performed sensitivity analysis based on

resonable passible changes to key assumptions
determined by mansgement being revenue. dincourt
rate ard lr&ng-term grow\h rate Wo assessed that the
reasonably possible ch«mge M ASSUMpBLons sppled by
mAragement were 3ppropriate by reflerence to the
ranges indepandently estsblished by our work

- Weengazed our EY internal specialists to independently
calzalate the discount rate and compare it to the
discourt rate apphedin the models by management

- Where mansgerent's pub imparment assessment was
baszdonthe far value spproach we engaged pur
property valusuan speclsts to rewiow the methodolog
spplind 2nd audit the ke, assumpuions that form parg of
tha vshaatisnnlight of recent trarssctions in the marxet

We assessod the d sciosures ir motas to the firancil
statements g3 nst the require—ents of LAS 38 Imparment
o Asvets o partelar tne requirement to doclose furtner
semuit winen for CGUs where 3 ressomably pesable change
ir 3 key assurnptinn would cause 4n impa rmen: We alo
3ssessed the related separately disclosed tom wcounting
treatmen: by reference to the Ccompan, s dcoount ng

por < ondusiry pract ce sna the FRC audsnce

Bised on our audit procedures we have concluded

the impairmert charge of E11 2 milion (being

L9 0 million PRRE impa.rment £16 mithon ROUA

npairment and L0 & millon éOOdWIH |mpd\rmemJ )
15 appropriately determined We highlighiad that

@ reasonabl ; posable charge in certain Ley
assurnptions ineluding sales forecasts and risk
adjustment factors could lead to material add tional
mparment charges, We concluded uppropriate
disclosures had been included 6, management for

the aboue assumpiigns.
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Risk

Our response ta the risk

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Deferred taxation on the pub estate

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 53);
Accounting policies (page 105); and Note 7 and
Note 34 of the financial statements (page 111 and
151 respectivefy)

AL 2T P aech 2021 tne Grouo had deferred

tax assets of E172 million (Rest sted

2020 E10 0 mithon} ard deferred tax habilinies
cFE22 3 mdlion (Restated 2020 £231mllon)
ard the Company had gafermd tae avotanf
E16.9 million (Revtatea 2027 €95 million] and
deferred tix hab it en of £22 3 mullion [Restated
2020 £20 3 mallior

A s\ém‘Fucam level of mansgement judgeert
and camples caleulatiors are required in
1CEOUI‘|LIF\£ fartne deferred tax Thewe are

Facused on

- Heauning deferred tax or pubs ona disposal.

nowse or a dual b

- The deferred t 3« trestmert of Far vilue
up'rfts and rolled over gans and ther
interaction with indexatan sllow inces

- Tricking which compenents of deferred tax
in e3ch pub should nat be recagnised under
the imitial recogmition esemptior of IAS12
The recogmten ar non recognition of
geflerred tax anels on redlised capital loswes,

We performed 1 walkthraugh of the Group's process far
determining the deferrodtax g on the pub estate

Ir CDnJunCUOr\ with our Lax \petuh\ls we tested the
deferred tax calculations an the Groups freeheld and
leasehold pub portfolis This focused en venfying the mputs
mtoine deferred tax calculstion, testing the mathemnatical
accurac, and recaleulating the deferred tax fora sample
of pubs scroas the estate Thisincluded o review of capital
lasses. rollover relef indasation allowances and imitial
rECaCTion exempligny 35 well 35 1-’\ageﬁnent'&
calculstion of the impact of 4 betarical errar in the
caleulation, which b sz been aguated as 3 prior

year adjustrment

Addimonally, we venhied the deferred tax calculstions 1re
consatent witn UK Tax lawes and the Greups practce in

filing tar returns

Ve challenged management on the assumptions used in
cileulating the deferrad tas balances. including whether the
deferred tux application was consistent with the Group's
intended manner of recavery far each pub i the deflerred
t3x c3lculations and was consistent » th the sssumptions
cancerning depreciation and residuzl value in the fixed

asset rE‘ngtEr

We conwdered whether the relsted deferred tax
disclosures,inciuded in rate 7 ta the Group financil
stataments wergn ling with A5 12 requirements

We dentified an error in the current year deferred
Lax workings relating to the underiying mathadalogy
apphied by manazement This has aho resultea in the
prior year adjustment of £4 0 millier in the Group
and £2 6 millian far the Company that has been
reflected in the accounts Fallowing correcton

of the methadclogy we conclude management's
Judgement arng an the deferred wix caleulstion to
be appropriate We also consider that the disclosures
innete 7 and azte 34 1o the Group snd Company
finarcuwl staternents. including the descnpt or of
the prior year adjustm

t,are yppropriate

Management override in the recognition

of revenue

Refer to the Accounting policies (page 104) and
Note 3 of the financial statements (poge 108)

The Group recorded re.enae of £73 2 millon
inthe periad (2020 £316 O millon), including
£64 0 ~ilhen in the Managed houses segment
(2020 £286 3 millicn) and £9 2 millan in the
Tenanted Inrs segment (2020 €29 7 millon)

The vast majonty of the Groups revenue
tramsactions are nan-complex with no

Judgement spphed over the amount recorded

We conuder the \lgmflcnm risk relaling to
revenue to be around management ovorrde
af contrals and topude journals to revenue in
the Maraged and Tensnted estAte.

For Managed hauses revenue s typicall,
compnised of alarge number of low L alue
transactions Although there s little
rranagerment judgement involved, there s

a nisk that manual topside adjustments caula
be posted which could result in revenue being
overstated or not recorded For Tenanted Irns
thore is alo 3 risk that manual tops.de
adjustments zould be posied to revenue

We performed 4 walcthrough of edach of the Groups
significart re.enue processes incluaing the recording
ol manual journat sdjustments and assessed the design

rffoctieness of the ke, contrals that sre i plice

Wa apphied correfation data an il ysis over the Group's entire
reverue journal papulst on to dertify how much of Lthe
Group's revenue s conwerted te cash pestings 3nd to isolate
non standard rewenue transactions for further analysis,

focusing our testing on higher risk transactons identfied

We wearched for any Lopside journals to revenue but nane
woredentifind

We perfcrmcd cut-of f tesung procedures including revew
of post period end cash rece pts and journals, and an
rlylical review of sigrificant vanances to the prior year,

ta aveess for completenass

We did ~olidentify any instances of management
overnde of controly including througn topeide
Journals Based or our work, which included using
data analywis tools to tast 100 2 of the Group's
revenue trnsactions and the extent Lo vwich they
CDF-\Crth ta Lr(ld(‘ rCC(‘lde‘C‘w or C'i'\h, WE CC}”&\‘:‘ET

that revenus s Farly stated
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Continucd

Tre key audit matters set out above are comsistent with thase reported by Fuller, Smith & Turner ple's previous external auditor with the
exception af,

- Additien of the key audit matter around the deferred Lax on the pub estate given the complexity around the calculaton and the prer year
sdjustrnent dentlied which increased our audit effortin this area.

- Removal of the key sudit matters in relaticn to the adopuon and accounting for IFRS 16 as the riskin the current year has reduced as lease

changes are lower in frequency and value.

Sirmilarly, the previous auditar included a key audit matter in relation ta separately disclosed items, for wh.ch we de not consider there to s key

audit matter giver the quantum of the balance exc'uding impairments as we have identified that as o KAM above

Lastly, the previeus auditor included s key audit matter i relat-on to the disposal of the brewery business As this is 4 non rocurnng transaction,

there 1s no such key audit matter for the current period.

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materialiLy in planning and perferming the audit, in eviluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in
forming our audit opimion.

Mateniality
The magnitude of an amission or musstatement that, mdwdually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
Of the users Df the fmoncnof statements Motenofﬁty provrdes o basrs for dE#ermmrng the nature and extent ofour audit prOCEdUIES

We determined materiality for the Group and Company to be E0.9 million (2020, £1 05 millien determined by the Groug's predecessor auditar),
baved on our prcfexs\om\Judgcmeni on relevant metres used by investors and athar users of the financal staterents Materialiy 1n 2020 was
based on aur judgement of normalised earmings of the Group To form Lhe basis of this avsessment we have consdered the average adjusted profit
befare tax for continuing operations for Nnancial years 2019 - 2020 and restricted the percentage applied to that basis to 3% (from the usual 5%
apphed for hstad entities) Lo factar in the dechre in trade in 2021 driven by the Corenavrus pandemic,

During the course of eur audit, wo reussessed imtial materaity to reflect the impact of COVID 19 on Fuller, Srnth & Torner PL €. We concluded
that no Char\gc % reqmred Lo our  nal ma\crm{»ty‘

Performance materiality
The appiication of materahty ot the mdeadual account or balance level. It1s set ot an amgunt 1o reduce to an gppropriately law level the probabibty that the
aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstotements exceeds materality

O the baws oF our nisk assessments, tagether with our assessment of the Group's cverall contral env ronment, our judgement was that perfarmance
ratenahity was 50% of our planming matenality, namely £0 45 rmilion (2020: 65% of plannirg matenanty determined by the Group’s predecessor
auditar}, We have st performance materiafity at this percantage as this year 1s g first year sudit

Reporting threshold

An omount below which rdentified misstatements ore conaidered os being clearly trrvial

We agreed w.th the Audit Corrmittee that we would report to them all uncorrectod audit differences in excess of £45 000, which s set at 5%
of planning materiality, as well 15 differences below thit threshald that, in our view, warranted reparting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncarrected misstalements agamst both the quantitative measures of mater-ahty discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative cansiderations im forming our opinion.

Other information
The ather information comprises the infarmat.on reluded i the annua’ report otner than the finangiai stataments ord oar audior’s report thereor
The directors are responsib’e far the ather nformaton contained within the arrual repor.

Oor opirwor on the fraanzisl sLaterents does not cover the ather information and, cacept o the oxtert olherw s explictly staled v this repors,

we do aot express 4y form of 4ssurance conclusian thereon

Cur respansbility 1s 1o read the other infarmiazion and, in doirg se, cons.der whether the ather infarmation materialy incorsistent with the
Finarnc al staterrents or our knowedge obtained in the course of the sudit, or ctherwise appers to be matenal’y misstated Hwe dentfy such
materisl inconsistencies of appdrert maseri4l misstatements, we are requ*r‘:d to determine whether trere 15 a rratenia’ misstatement i the Ninancial
staternents themselas, I bused or the work we have performeo, we conclude that there s a mater al msstaterrent of the other informatiar,

we are requited Lo report that fact.

We have natning to repartin this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the airectors rermureration repart to be audited has been proper’y prepared in sccordancea with tne Campan.cs

Her 2006,
In our epinion, based or the work undertaker in the caurse of the audit

- the infermation given in the strategic repert and the d rectory’ repart for the financial peried for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consislent with the linancizl statements; and
- the strategic report and the direciors’ report have been propared in accordance with applicacie legal requirements

Marters on which we are required to report by exception
Im the gt of the xnowlesge and understanding of Lne Group and the Company and 1Ls environment obtained in the course of Lhe audit, we nave

rot identfied matendl misstatoments in the strategic report ar the directors’ report.

We have nothirg Lo report in respect of the followng matters i relat on to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report Lo you if,

in ouUr CpINIon:

sdequale accounting ecords have not been kept by the Company, o returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches not
visited by us; or
the Compary financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneraion Report Lo be aud ted are not i sgreement with the accounting

reco-ds and returns; or
- ceriair duclos Pdirectors’ cified by law are de:
corvair Anclasures o directors remuneratian specifie Yy law dre Gl made; or
- we have not receved al the rfermaticn and explanations we require for our audit

Corporate Governance Statement
The Listing Rules require us to review the drectors’ statement in retation to gaing concern, lenger term viability and that part of the Corporate
Gavernance Staternent relating to the Group and Company's comphance with the provisions of the UK Carporate Governance Code specified for

QU reviey,

Aside from the impact of the matters disclosed in the matenal uncertainty related to going corcerr sect:on, based on the work undertaken as part
of our audit, we have concluded that each of the followng elements of the Corporste Governance Statement is materially consistent vath the

financil statements or our knowledge obtaned durirg the audit,

— Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going corcera basis of accountirg and any materal uncertanties
dentfied set out on page 25;

- Directors explanation as to 'ts assessrent of the Compuany's prospects, the periad this assessment covers and why the period 's sppropriate
set out on page 90,

- Directors’ statemert cn farr, bslanced and understandabic set cut on page 45;

- Board's confirmation that it s carnied cut 4 rebust assessment of the Cmergir\g and prmcwpd\ rivks sot ot on page 45,

- The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectivenass of risk management andinternal contral systems set cut an page 54,
and

- The section demrlbmg the work of the Audit Cornmittec set out or page 52

Responsibilities of directors

s cxplaned more fully in the directers respommibilit-es slatement set ot or page 45, the directars arc respansible for the preparation of the
linancial staternents and lor bomg satisfied that they gived true anc fan wiew, and for such internal control as the directors determone s NeCossSAry
1 enable Lhe preparatior of financrsl statements that are free from matenat misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error

In prosaning the financial statements, the directors are responsib ¢ for assassing the Group and Company’s ability Lo continue as o going concern,
dI\C‘D‘,Iﬂg,‘ ds dpPl\C:ib‘E, matters related to gor‘r\ﬂJ concern ard using the £ong concern baws of 1ccounting urloss the direciors either intend to

\wqulddte the Group or the Compdﬁy orf to ceise cperations, or have na realisuc alternative but to do se.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur ObJOCt.u'Cs are Lo obtain regsonable assurance about whether the financiil statements as a whale are free fram mutenal misstdtement,

whetner due to [raud or orror, and Lo wsue ar guditor's repart that inc udes our opinion. Reascnanie assurance 1» 4 high level of ussurance, but s nat

a guaraniee tat an sudit conducted inaccordance vath [5As (LK) wall slways detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arse
from fraud or error and sre coradered mutenal f, individually or in the nggregate, they could reasonably be expected to nfluence the economic

deciions of users taker an the baus of these Financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Centinued

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, Including fraud, are nstances of nen cornpliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line with our resporsibilives,
outlired abave, to detect irregulantics, including fraud. The risk of rot detecting a matena! misstatement due to fraud is h\gher thar the ri-k

of not detecting one resulung from error, as fraud may involve deiberate canceaiment by, for example, fargery or iIntentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion. The extent to which aur procedures are capable of detecting rregulintes, including fraud is detailed below

However, the prmury responsibiity for the prevention und detectien of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the compary

and mandgement.

- We oblaned an understanding of the legal and regu'story frameworks that are applcable to the Group and determined that the most sigmificant
are Companies Act 2006, Health & Safety and food hygiene laws, Minimum Wage regulst.ons, Money Launderng regulanions and the UK
Corperate Governarce Code 2018,

- We understood how the Company 1s complying with those frameworks by making inquirics of management, thowe charged with governance, those
respansible for legal and campliance procedures and the company secretary. We corroborsted our inguires through nspectian of board rinutes
and correspondence with regulatory autharities and through attendance st Audit Committee meetings.

- We assessed the suscept bility of the Group™ firencial statements to mater:al misstaternent, including how fraud might occur by making .nquines
of managemert, those charged with governance ard various other indiaduals within the financaal reporting functicn We corroborated these
nquines by inspecung board minutes, internaf audit reports and Firdings, reparts ta the Group's internal whistleblowing hotlre and by
understunding both the Group's borus scheme structure and the expactations of investars and analysts, to understand argas .n which indviduals
may be incentivised Lo comentt fraud.

- Based on this understanding we designed cur sud tprocedures to identify nen compliance with such laws und regu|a'.wem. Qur procedures
invelved making inquinies as described above, nspecting minutes of all sigrificant board and committee restings, reading correspondence with
roguiatory authanties, testing manual journal catnies with higher rsk charsctenstics and testing unusual ar non standard transdactiors

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the f naneal statements 15 located on the Financial Reporting Counail’s website st
https. #www.(re org uk/auditorsresponsibiities This description forms part of our aud.tar’s report

Other matters we are required to address
Followarg the recommrendation from the Audit Comrmittes, we were spponted by the campany on 27 Jaruary 2027 to audit the financisl
statements for the 52 week period ended 27 March 2021 and subsequent firancial perieds

- Thencn audi services prohibited by the FRC' Ethical Stardard were not provided o the Group or the Company and we remain independent
of the Group and the Company in conducting the audiL
- Theaudit opirien is consistent with the additional report to the Audic Commitiee

Use of our report

This report s rnade solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to statc to them in an auditor’s report
and far no ather purpese. To the fullest axtent permittad by law, we do rot accept o awsume responaibility Lo anyone other than the Company and
the Company's members as a bady, for our audit work, for this report, or for Lhe opinions we bave formed,

ol pwyll

RACHEL SAVAGE

SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Stawutory Auditer
Lendor

& July 2021
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Group Income Statement

O
<
o thie 02 wechs ended 27 March 2021 3
o
=
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Nt £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 73.2 316.0
Operalng costs befare separately disclesed items 4 1137 (292.7)
Ctherincome 3 0.2 37 9]
Adjusted cperating (loss)/profit 7 (40.3) 270 a%
Operatng separately disclosed items 5 (14.8) (2071 &
Operating (loss)profit (55.1) 69 &
Finance costs & (8.4) (7€} ,9‘_
Fmémciﬂg Sepiirdte|ydlﬁc|ased 1tems 5, 6 (0-1) (05]
Profit on disposal of properues 3 5.8 98
(Loss)/profit before incame tax (57.8) 3.4
Adjusted (loss)/profit before income tax (48.7) 19 4
Total separately disclosed item, 5 9.1 .07
(Loss)/profit before income tax (57.8) 84 I
Tax 7 9.6 52 £
Analysed os: z
————— m— e =
Underlying treding 7 8.9 (7.2) g
Separately disclosed items 5,7 0.7 20
(Loss)lprofit From continuing operations (48.2) 327
Net (lessdiprofit from diseontinued operatiors after tax 21 (1.4) 1577
(Loss)/profit for the year (49.6) 1603

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Income Statement
for the 52 weeks cnded 27 March 2021

Continued
52 weeks
ended

27 March
Group o
{LossMearnings per share per 40p ‘4’ and “C’ erdinary share e Pence Flomo
Baue 8] 21 (89.84) 291,89
Diluted R 21 (89.84) 291 21
{Loss)/earnings per share per 4p ‘B’ ordinary share
Basc ©®, 21 (8.98) 2919
Diluted 8,21 (8.98) 2912
Centinuing operations
(LossMearnings per share per 40p ‘A’ and 'C" ordinary share
Basic (87.31) 5.81
Drlured (87.31) 579
(Loss)/earnings per share per 4p ‘B’ ordinary share
Basic 3 (8.73) 058
Dilutad (8.73) Q58

1 Refer to Note 34 for detalls of restatement.
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

I
b
for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 ‘:3
o
=
52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
N fm
(Loss)/profit for the year (49.6) 1609
ftems that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years (net of tax)
Net gains on valustion of Tinancial assets and habilizes Z8 0.5 0.2
Tax related to items thst My be reclassified to proﬂt or loss 7 (0.1) won g’)
ftems thot will not be reclassified ta profit or loss in subsequent years (net of tax) ;é
Net actuerial [‘O‘sﬁe‘:)fgum@ onpension “Chemes Z5 (1.0) 59 i3]
K - N X
Tax related Lo items that wll nat be reclassilied to profit or loss 7 0.2 11} =
: N 5]
Other comprehensive (losses)/gains for the year, net of tax (0.4) 49 =
Total comprehensive {(expenses)/income for the year net of tax (50.0) 165 8
1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Balance Sheet

27 March 2021

GrﬂUF
2021

\.:“2 Em ar
Non-current assets ) e -
Intangible assels o 10 27.3 275
Proparty, plant and E‘qu\pr.\"mﬂt ) 11 590.2 6177
Investment properties - T F L 12 _’3_1_ A48
PO?er non current assets 15 - [OR]
F&gﬁt of-use assets 17 819 1070
Total non-current assets 702.5 7571
Current assets s _
IMventories 19 21 4.0
Trade and cther receivables ’ wﬂ n.s 126
Current tax recewable 4.0 £.0
Cash and short-term deposits 24 171 203
Total current assets 34.7 429
Assets claswfied as held for sale 22 9.6 2.6
Total assets 746.8 8026
Current liabilities - o i
Trade and other pay.bles o :—73- (28.7) (377)
Proviicns 27 (4.0) @1
Borrowir.gs 24 207.7) a7
Lease habilines 17 (6.7) (B9)
Total current liabilities (247.1) (222.4)
Non-current liabilities - - -
Borrowmg; - - 24 (27.5) (275)
Lease habihties - B 7 @ a0
Other financial habilities TZ (0.7) an
Retirernent berefit obligations 25 (3.5) a7y
Deferred tax labilibes 7 (5.3) (13.0)
Total non-current liabilities (120.2) (150.4)
Net assets 379.5 4294
Capital and reserves B o
Share capital o 29 22.8 22.8
Share premium account 29 4.2 4.7
Capital redemption reserve 29 37 37
Cwin shares 29 (17.0} azn
Hedging rescrve 29 (0.5) 09
Retaned earnings 366.3 4171
Total equity 379.5 4298

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
Apprc.cd by the Board and signed on 8 July 2021

Hokss/ “Tomss

M J TURNER, FCA
CHAIRMAN
Regstered Numper 241852
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Company Balance Sheet

9
27 March 2021 g
5
Company
2021 .
Nz Em o~

Non-current assets ) B .
tntangible assets o 7 o 0 4.0 26
Property, plant and equipment B ] 1 590.2 2938
Investment properties 7 o 12 31 48
Other non-current assats - 15 - 01
F.ght of use assets 17 81.4 96.6 :[‘0
Investments in subsidiaries 16 109.3 122.4 :B”r
Total non-current assets 788.0 B820.2 U‘:::
Current assets S
Imventaries 19 2.1 35 8\
Trade and other rece vables 20 1.4 154 -
Current tax recevable 3.9 59
Cash and short-term deposis 24 16.9 19.2
Total current assets 34.3 48.0
AS‘SE‘t‘: Cldﬁ‘}lF\ed a5 F‘E‘ld FOr ‘13‘6‘ 22 9.6 26
Total assets 831.0 8709
Current liabilities o)
Trade and othar payables 23 (161.6) (165 2] %
Provisions 27 (4.0) (4.13 3
Borrowmga ﬁ _“(Zﬂ]_) L 717 é
Lease habilities 7 (6.5) (7% ”
Total current liabilities (379.8) (3489
Non-current liabilities
Bcrrowmgﬁ 24 (27.5) (275}
Lease liabilities 17 (81.8) (91.7]
Other financial habilities 4 (0.7} nn
Retremert benefit obligations ) 25 (3.5 47]
Deferred tax labilities ST ﬁ-(tS".I) T EEJ &“]-
Total non-current liabilities (118.9) (135.8]
Net assets 333.2 3862
Capital and reserves
Share capital 29 22.8 228
Share premium account 29 4.2 4.7
Capilal redemplion reserve _ 29 3.7 3.7
Own shares 2% 070 a7n)
Hedging reserve _ 29 0.9 (0.9)
Merger reserve - (1.6}
Retained earnings 321.6 3735
Total equity 332.2 3862

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.

Loss attnibutab’e to ordinary shareholders and 'ncluded ir the Nnancisl slate~ents of the Parent Company was £E50.7 milicn
Y pamy

(2020 0142.0 milhon profit).
Approved by the Board and signed on 8 Juy 2021,

Moskee/ ~Tna/
M J TURNER, FCA

CHAIRMAN
Registerco Number: 241882
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021

i

Group i C :
At 30 March 2019 (restated) - 3 (19 8) X)) 3324 3425
Prafit for the year (restated) - - - 1602 1609
Other comprehensive income for the year B - - - B D.Tﬁ 4.8 456
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 01 1657 165.8
Issue of share capital (note 29) g6 (0.6 - -
Q_Dclassi(:camom of deferred shares o

(note 29) 0é) 05 - - - -

Cancellation of deferred shares (note 29} - - (06 06 - -
Shares purchased to be held in ESQT or - T -

as treasury - - (053] (0.5)
Shares released from ESOT and treasury - 32 - ——ﬁ 21
Dindends {note 9) o e (80.5) m
Share-bawed payment charges - . - - - - g5 o 05
Transfer to retsined earnings - - (.2 0.2

Tax debied directly to equity (note 73 o - - o on
Total transactions with owners - 06 0.6 27 02) 810} (78 5)
At 28 March 2020 (restated)’ 22.8 4.2 - 37 (\FA)! (0.9) 471 429.8
Loss for the year - - - (49 &) (49 4)
Other comprehensive income/lexpensel

for the year - - 0.4 0 (0.4)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the

year - - 04 (509 {50.0)
Shares purchased to be beld 1in ESCT or B o S -

3% reasury - - -

Shares reieased from ESOT and treasury - - o o - Q.15 S
D\wdends 'Cmc)te 9) - T - __ .

Share-bascd payment credits - - - - - —m __(0_3)
Total transactions with owners ] - - - 01 04 (0.3}
At 27 March 202t 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 (17.0) (0.5} 366.3 379.5

1 Refer to Note 34 for detalls of restatement.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

tor the 92 weoeks ended 27 March 2027

4
T N EETETIRR!
W= s _Ar e 3s

]I . i Pt veoatated] T
Company to . £n Fa i
At 30 March 2019 (restated)’ 228 31 (19.8) (0.8 3077 317.8
Prafit for the year restated) - - 142.0 142.C
Other comprehensive income for the year - 01 4.8 49
Total cormprehensive income for the year a1 "46.8 146.9
lssue of share capilal (nole 29) 0.6 (06 - - -
Reelassification of deferred shares lnote 29 0.0 0.6 - - -
Cancelalion of deferred sharcs (note 29] (0.6} 0.6 - - - -
Shares purchased to be held » E50T or T T
as tredsury (5] 0
Shares relessed from ESOT ana treasury R {an 21
Dividends (note 9) - - (505 (805
Transfer to retained earnings o ST T 55 - 0?2 i -
Share based paymoent charges, T o 05 o 05
Tax debitea directly to equity (rote 7) - S 0.1 (OR)]
Total transactions with owners De) 06 27 (G2 (81.00 (78.59]
At 28 March 2020 (restated) 22.8 4.2 - 37 7.1 (0.9) - 373.5 386.2
Loss for the year (507, (50.73
Other comprekhensive ncome for the year 04 {08 (04
Total comprehensive income for the year - 04 (519] (31N
Shares purchased to be held ir ESCT or
as trensury
Shares released frorr ESOT and treasury - o on
Cividends (nete 3) - .
Hive up of Be' & The Dragon (1.6) (1.6
Shure -based paymenrt charges - 0.3 0.3
Total transactions with owners 21 (16 (C4 (5
At 27 March 2021 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 (17.0) {0.5) (1.6) 321.6 333.2

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021

Group
52 weeks
ended
27 March
01 (]
s Em Lo
(Loss)/profit before tax for continuing operations (57.8) 8.4
Net finance costs before separately disclosed ems - & 2.4 76
Separately disclosed items, 5 9.1 1.0
Depreciation and amortisation 4 27.2 269
3.0 539
Difference between pension charge and cash paid (2.3) [55
Contribution to pension fund - (24 0)
Share-based payment (credit)/charges B (0.3} 05
Change i trade ang ather cecelvables - (0.4) un
Ehange I inventeries o 1.7 11
Change in trade and other payables (6.4} (13)
Cash impact of operating separately duclosed tems S {1.5) (5.0
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations (22.3) 216
Tax rece.ved/{paid) T 3.4 aon
Cash (absorbed bﬂenerated from operating activities — continuing operations {18.9) n5
Cash (absorbed by)_.’g_enera!ed From_oeeratinga_ctivities - discontinued operations 21 (0.4) 15
Net cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities (19.3) 130
Cash Hlow from investing activities
Business combinations - - (328)
Purchase of praperty, plunt and equipment and intangibles (16.5) 46.7)
Sale of praperty, plant and equipment, right of-usc assets and assets held for sale 10.8 11.4
Cash absarbed by investing activities - continuing operations -GN (E8 1
Cash generated from investing activities - discontinued operations 21 0.3 2245
Net cash (cutflow)/inflow from investing activities (5.4) 156.4
Cash flow from financing activities
Purchase of own shares - - 0.9}
Recaipts or release of own shares to option schemes o _——2?- - 23
Intercss pad - /ﬁ (4.7)
Preference dividends paid ,m wn
Equity dvidends paid f—? - (RO.S)
Dravdown of bark icans 24 99.4
Repayment of bank loans 24 (64.0) ©54)
Repayment of oblgations under leases 17 (5.2 (10.3)
Cash generated/(absorbed by) financing activities ~ continuing operations 21.6 (159.2)
Cash absorbed by VTS ting achivities discontinued aperations 21 [+ 2 )] (09
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 2.5 160 1)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (3.2) 93
Cask and cash cquivalents al the start of the yesr 24 20.3 n.o
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 17.1 203
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Company Cash Flow Statement

O
for the 52 weaks endoed 27 Muaicl 2021 §
2
Company
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Nt fm
Loss before tax for continuing operations (60.3) (17 8)
Net Knance costs before separately disclosed items - 121 103
Separately disclosed iterns 8.5 358
Depreciation and smortisation 26.8 256 v
(12.9) 535 By
Difference botween pension charge and cashprd . (2.3) (£.3] U§
Contrikution to pension fund L - (240 D
Snare -based payment (cradit)icharges (0.3) 05 B
Changc in trade and other recenvables T 7.1 (ic9l -
Changc 1IN IMVERTOre, o 1.7 11
Change in trade and other payables (14.7) 0.8
Cash impact of operating separately disclosed items 5 {1.5) 4.8
Cash (absarbed by)/generated from operations (22.9) 14.3
-E; recolved/(pd\d] o 3.6 aon
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities — continuing operations (19.3) 42 Q
Cash absorbed by operating activities - discontinued operations - g
Net cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities (19.3) 42 ;
Cash flow from investing activities =
Business combinations T 0.2 (340
Purchave of property, plant and equipmert (16.5) (46,2
Sale of preperty, plant and equipment, night of -use assets and assets held for sile 10.8 n4a
Cash absarbed by investing activities — continuing operations (5.5) B59)
Cash generated from investing activities — discontinued operations 0.6 2254
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities 4.9) 1565
Cash flow from Financing activities
Furchase of own shares - (0.5)
Raceipts on releasc of awn shares to option schemes T 29 - 2.3
Interest paid (4.5) 4.7)
pre“er»:r\ce d\V\and‘: Pxﬂd (0-1) (ONJ
Equity dividends pad G - (80.5)
Drawdown of bark laars 24 99.4 -
Repayment of bank loans o 24 (64.0) (571)
E?-;F;;y_m—ent of abligations under leases i (8.9) ¢on
Cash generated/(absorbed by) investing activities - continuing operations 219 (150.7)
Cash generated from financing activities - discontinued operations -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 219 {1507 §
Net mavement in cash and cash equivalents (2.3) 00 g
Cashacquired on acquis tion - 2
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 24 19.2 g2 g_,_‘
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 16.9 18.2 3
3
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies

Authorisation of Financial Statements

The financiai statements of Fuller, Smith & Turner PL.C. and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 were authorsed
for issue by the Board of Directars on 8 July 2021 and the Balince Sheet was wigned on the Board’s behal by M J Turner Fuller, Smith & Turner
PLC s apublic imited compary incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales The Company's ardmary ‘A shares are traded on the London
Stock Exchange.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Group's and Cornpany’, financial stetements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in confarmity with the
requirernents of the Comparies Act 2006, and . accordarce with Internatignal Financial Reporting Stardards adopted pursuant 1o Regulation
{ECI No 1606/2002 a5 it apples to the Europesn Unior, and appled to the financial statements of the Group and the Compary far the 52 weeks
ended 27 March 2021 The principal sccounting policies adopted by the Group and by the Company are set cut n the accourting policies beiow

The Group and Cormpany financial statements are prosented in Sterling and all values are shown in millions of peunds (Em) rounded Lo the nearest
hundred thousand, except where otherwise indicated

As permittad by Section 404 of the Comparizs Act 2006 a weparate income Staterrent for the Parent Compary has not been prepared.

Going concern

The Group's busimess actviles, together with the fuctors bkely to affect its future development, perfermance and position are set out in the Strategic

Report on pages 4 to 38 snd include the section entitled "Principal nsks and uncertantes” on pages 28 1o 30, In the Financial Revicw section on pages I
22 to 26 1t deserbes the financil position of the Group, its cash ficws and hiquidity pesition. in addition, note 248 to the faancs! staterments includes the

Group's objactives, policies und processes for managing its capreal, its financial risk managerment objectives, detals of its financ-alinstrurrents and hedging

actatios, borrovang facilies, and s exposure to credit risk and hiquidity nisk

The Drrectors have prepared the 2021 linancial statements on a going concern hasis after asseswng the continued impact of the coronavirus pandermic
ncluding further lackdowns and restrictions as well as the Grouo' Financing arrangement and other principal risks and uncertanties.

Ar 27 March 2021, the Graup had 3 strong Balance Sheet with 91% of the estale being freehold properties srd wai able hesdroom on faciliics
of £84 O million and £17.1 million of cash and resulling net debt of £218.1 milion excluding leases. .

The Group had existing facilives of £292 millicn, £792 midlon was due to expire in Auvgust 2021 with the rest being the £100 millen CCFF, which expired
in Musy 2027, Post year end, the Group agreed an Amend and Extend Refinarcng of its existing debt facilties with its relatanship banks. extending the
rmaturity of the 192 millon faciities to 19 Februsry 2023 and amending the linanesal covenants to & minmurm |Guidity level of £10 milnon to be tested
monthly untl 31 March 2022, 1n Jung 2022 the Company will rovert to 4 covendnt suile of net debt ta EBITDA Ueverage) and EBITDA to net

firance charges

Afrer yaar erd, the Group proposed placing new '\ shares up to appropriately 20% of existng sued A ordinary share capital. The refinancing of the
faclities was conditional on the successful equity rase. Tin 20 Aprl 2021 the equity raise was approvad by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meetng ("EGM") and the net proceeds of E52 millon were reconed the wame day The proceeds of the equity rase, along with the Group's cuisung
facilities, were used te repay the CCFF on 12 AMay 2021,

Aswel as extending the bank faciities and raraing, funds through an equity ra se, the Group has .mplemented a nurrber of mitigating actions to reduce
cash outflows snd =amta n hquidity, as follows

- Afimal divdend was nat declarad far FY20. nar has one been declared for FY21

- Parvcpatedir gosernment initiatives to protect the viability of the business, including the CIRS, Fat Out to Help Qut scheme and Busmess
Razes Relef and grants, ard was confirmed a5 an elgala iesuer under the CCFF

- Rightsized s:aff acrass the entire pub estste and strzarrlned the support furctan to reduce the cost base

- Board and Exccut.ve Team members took 3 temporacy voluntsry salary reduction

The Group has medelled o firanciut scenanos covering the per od to 27 Decerrber 2022 (the "going corcern assassrnent period 7 that reflect the
potensal continued mpact of the corenavirus pardermic

The Group's “base case” nssumes that even though the estate was faily oper fram May 2021, sales in FY22 vl sbll 52 impactec by reduction in
‘aternatanal trael, slow return 1 affices and caranued impact o consumer zorfdence, This »ill ke reargra’y offaet oy ncresser weddiegs, staycatiors
and smallincre e in supurnan aress as peaple sty at home to vork Unger tre scenanio theve would pe signi”cart headreom 3nd o'l covenants would be
cormpileg with for the durat on of the gaing concerr ponod
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A downade case” avsurmes Lhere will be three months of fu Jockdown in FY22, being Decermber 2021 througn te February 2022, and o further three
months witn sovere rostricbions akin to those exPCFIGHCL‘d in October 2020, In FY23, there will be one further rmonth of severe restr ctiors i placc and
then from My 2022 rrading will resume n line with the Base caso

Under the "dowr side case” without additional mitigating action, the covenants on reinstatement in June 2622 through Lo Decernber 2022 would be
breached The Directars consider the swgnﬂr-cdr\t reduction in sales modeiled under this scenana, which largely reflects 4 repoat of FY 21 in the second hdlf
of the year, Lo be unlikely given the cantinued successfu' rall aut of the vaccine, However, with the continuad threat of virarts and the urknown impact
that these could have, this downude scenario whilst severa s plausible.

Although the madel shoves there would be adequate ligudity headroom even under this scenans, the Directors would reed 1o weck wavers for debt and
imicrest coverage covenants that will be reinstated from June 2022 under the terms of the loan extensions. The Directars are confident that in this case
it would be poss ble to agree wa vers for thase covenants witn s lending bank s {as has been the case i prwn luckduvn seenanes) Innddition, the Growup
could aivo mplement further mitgating actions before this paint in time camprising deferrning capital expenditure. further disposals of parts of the Group's
valuanle frechoid property estate and cost reductions sucn as redurdancies. s possib'e that the extent of these mitigating actions would neg ste the need

Lo gelwaners in place.

After due consideration of the matters sel out avove, the Directors are satisTied that there 15 a reascnable expectation that the Group and Company
have adequate resources to conbinue in operatioral existence for atleast the poing corcern gssessenent penod to 27 Decamber 2022 However, as the
dawns de scenana shows that the covenants would be breached when rewnstated from June 2022 through te December 2022, within tne going corcern
penod, and rot all the mit gatirg ucnions required to prevent this are within managerent’s cortral, there s A mazer al uncertainty that may ¢ st deubt on
e Groups and Company’s ability to continue 33 2 going concern. The financial statements do net reflect any adjustrrent that would be required to be
made, f they were prepared on a basis other than the going concern basis,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The arcas Cr estimat or jﬂd -JSRumpt on \Nl"llcq are COF-@\dered tD be s gnIFIC[)nT Vﬁ :he pGC'ir:)thﬂ OF rhE‘ Fﬂﬁﬂs\d' stutcments dare 4s rOHO'\NS

The Group determines whether goodwill i impaired or i innual B s s and this requices an estimatian of the value 1n use of the zash gereraling units
("CGUs") to which the goacw'l s allocated. This nuvalves estimatian of future casn flows and choos ng g sutatble discourt rate. Sull detals are
&

supphed in note 13, together w th an anulysis of those key assumptions

The Graup raviews for imp rment of sl praperty, plant und equipment and right of use asscts at CGU level where there s any ndication
OF Impd\rmer\{‘ Th\‘: requ\re% Ganestimat on UFthC J‘]lUC‘ 17 ass 1r'1d rn\aD‘VC\ cstimabion O( FUL\JFC Ca%h 'F‘OWS, dnd CroGs F‘g A S,IL%D‘Q d\ﬂCOUr\t rite,

See nate 13, which descrines the dssumptions used togoihc‘r e Lfan -n‘m\ymx of the kcy assumptions.

Memsurement of defned benefic pensian coligations requires estimation of Tuture caanges ininllation, a5 wel' as morta iy rates, the expected retum
on assets and the select on of a suitable discount rate. These have been determined ar advice from the Group’s qualibied sctuary. The estrmaies used
ar\d t}_‘e key ASSUMDLIONS arg PrOVidC‘d N note 25

The calculation of lease liabihities requires the Group Lo determing an reremental borrowing rate ('IBR") to discount Future minimum lease
payments The [BR s the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a simitar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to oblan an asscl of a wmilar va'ue to the rght of use assetin a similar econemic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requres estimation when no observable rates are avaifable or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the ease. A nensitivily analysis has been conducted on the lease liabilit es which shows that increasing the discount rate by 1% will
decrease the lease labiliby by £5 9 milhen and decrease tae right-of use asset by [6.0 milhon. See note 17 for further detalls on leases

Estimution s required to determine the expenditure that will result from a present legal obhgation arsing from a past event. In the current year, the
Group have estimated the expected expendilure for alegal clam. The Dhrectors believe the recopnised provision in relution to this specific matter
reflects the best estimate of the most Fkely current outcome at the reperting date, based on a probability weighting with » matenal range of
potential outcomes The claim has stili not been resolved at the date of wgning and any further deta’ls have not beer disclosed for sercus
prejudicial ressars.

The areas of judpement which are considered to be sigrilicant in the preparation of the Finanzial statements are as fo'lows,
Judg g prep

Im concluding that there was a materal uncertainty ever going concern the Birectors hud to conuder a number of possible scenar os due to the
uncertanty of how the pancem c will continue te impact the business They abo needed to use their judgement to assess the most hkely scenario
and the impict this would Fave or the covenants and the Facil ties 1o ass0ss what the matenal uncertanty was. Refer to gorg concernon page 96

FOF detd'l% OF LITE SCE‘Pilr\OHJLJdged maost |\kc‘)f
Judgement s used to determine those iterms, tnat should be separately disclosed to allow a better understanding of the underlying trading

performance of the Grauo. The judgement includes assessment of whethes ar item 15 of a nature that 1s not convistent wath normal trading

actties or of sulfizent size or infrequency. See note S for further details.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MNotes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Judgemenrt was reguiced in assesarg whether a rent concession given by the Group 1o/its lessees constituted s lense madification or was covered by
the original contract. The contract needed to be assessed in hight of the circumstances that gave rise Lo the concession. |t was determined that gren
the Tenants could not legally use Lthe premises the cancession was permitted within the contract. It was therefore nat trosted as a medification and
spread over the lease term but instead recognised in the financial year.

The Group Fas exercised significant accounting estim stion and judgement i the recognition of deferred Lax habilities in respect of property, plant
and equiprment. Significant accounting estimates and judgements include those used o determine the ameunt of net book value of property, plant
and equipment to which the iritial recognition exemption apples. the caleulation of the tax base on sdle (which s subject to certam restrictions urder
tax law) and the offvetting of inherent lasses sgamat inkerent gains where Lax losses are expected to be utlined against future profits and gains.

Basis of conselidation

The Group finanaial staterments comsolidate the findangal statements of Fuller, Srrith & Turner PLC. and the entities it cantrols Jts subsidiaries)
drawn up far the 52 weeks erded 27 March 2021 (2020: 52 weeks ended 28 March 2020) Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of

their scquisition, being the dale on which the Group obtains contrel, and continue to be consalidated unti tha date that such controi ceases
Control comprises the power 1o direct the relovant sctivities of the subsidiary which sigrificantly affect the return of the subsidiary, s0 as to obtan
benefit from ity actinties, and s achieved through d rect or indirec: ownership of vating nights; currently exercisab'e ar convertible potential voting
ngnts; or by way of contractual agreement All intercompuany balsrces and transactions, mc\udmg unraalsed profis, arising from therm, are eliminated.

Adoption of new standards and interpretations

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and amendmerts, which are effeclive For dannual periods beginming or ar after 29 March
P app , i gnmng .

2020 The Group has not carly adopted any other stindard, interpretston o amendment that has been moued but = rot yet eflecive.

- Amendments to (FRS 7 IFRS 9 and |AS 39 Intercst Rate Benchmark Reform
- Amondments 1o IAS Vand INS 8 Defimbion of Material

- Amendments to [FRS 3 - Definition of a Business

- Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Lovid 13 Reluted Rert Concessiors Amendment 1o IFRS16 - The amendment apphies to annual reporting peneds beginning on er after
1June 2020. Barlicr applic stion 1s permitted, The Group has e'ected to rot take the pract.cy! expedient and nstead has treated rert concessions
recosved as lease madifications.

Tre Cirectors do not believse the adoptior of new standards hos R ad ary significant impact on the smounts reported in the finarcial statements.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business zombinations are accounted for under IFRS 3 Business Comrbinations usirg the purchase method, Any excess of the consderation

of the ousiness combnation over the Graup's interest in the net fair value of the idennfiable assots, habiities and contingent labilities is recogrised
n tne Balance Sheet as goodwill and 1s not amortised. To the extent that the nel fair value of the scquired entity's identifiable assets, habilities 4nd
conbingent habilitios 1« greater than the cost of the mvestment, 4 gain 13 recognised mmediately ir the Income Statement

Any contngent consideration to be transfarred by the acquirer will be recognised at Far valuz at the acquisinion date. Contingent cansideration
classified as equity s not remeasured and its subseguent settlement s accounted for vathin equity. Conungent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a finarcal nstrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Finanzial lestruments s measared at far vatue with the changes in faw value
recognised in the statement of prof t or loss in accordance with [FRS @, Other contingent consideration that s not within the scope of IFRS 9

15 moasured at far value az each reportng date with changes in far value recogmsed in profit or loss.

After mitial recogntion, goodwi|is stated at cost less any accumulated impmirment losses, vath the carrying value being reviewed for mpairment,
atleast annual'y and whenever events or changes e circursiances indicate that the carrying value may be rmparred. Any imoa rment of goodyall
~ade cannot be reversed f circurmstances subseauently charge

For the purpose of impairrent testing, gaodwill s aliocatea to the roiated TGUs (or group of CGUs) moritared by management. Where the
reccverable amount of the TGU s less than it carrying amount inc'ud ng gocdwil, arimpa rment 1955 1 recogrisea 1n the [ncome Statement:

The arrying amourt of goodwill allocated to a CGuU s taken inte sccsunt when determuming the gziin or lass on disposal of the CGU, or of ar
operaticn withn it

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and oqu pmentis siated 3t cast or deemea cost lows accumulated depreciation ard ary mpairment in valoe. Depreciatior s
calculazed on 3 straght ne bass to wote down the cost w0 tne estmisted residual va'ue gver the expected useful ife of the asset as foilows.
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Freehold builaings  Hotel accerrmaodation and offices Up to 50 years

Frechald buildings - Zicensed retail property and unl'censed property 50t 100 years .
Leasehold improvements The term of the lease

Roofs - From 10 to 50 yedrs .

PlaniL, machinery and vehicles, containers, fixtures and fittings From three years up 1o 25 years

s regu red under IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, expected useful lives and residual values are reviewea every year Lana s not depreciated. An tem
D(propel'ty, prdnt and equipmenrt and any '>|gm|.rwcmt part m\tw'!y recogm;ed > derecogmxed upon dmpo;a| I o, al the date the [CCIP\CF‘I obtains control} or
when no fulure ecoremic benelits are expected from its use or dispasal. Any gain or lass anung on dorecagrtion of the assel {calculated as the difference
between the net dispesal praceeds and the carrying smount of the asset) s included in the Income Staternent when the asset s derecognimey

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised untl there 1s redsonable sssurance that the Group wil comply with the congiions attached Lo them and that
the grants will be rece ved. Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on 4 systemat ¢ basis over the periods in which the Greup recognises

as cxpenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate Winen the ganl refates 12 an assol, it is recogrised as mcome n equa’

amounts over the expected use®ul hfe of the related gsset,

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (“CJRS")

Under this scheme, HMRC will reimburse up te 80% of the wiges of certaim employces who have beer asked to stop working, bul who are bemg
kept on the payroll ("furloughed ™. The scheme ‘s dewigned te compensate for staff costs, so smounts roceived are recognised in the Incorme
Statemant over the same period 4 the casts to wh ch they relute Inthe Income Statement payroli costs are shown net of grant income.

Eot Out te Help Out
From 3 to 3% August 2020, HMRC of fered 1 50% discount of foed und ror-alcsholic drnks, capped to £10 per pasen, when dining out petween
tanday and Wednasday Revenue meludes armounts reimbursed fom HMRC in respect of the scheme.

Business rates

Bus ressesin the retail, hospitalty and leisuie sectors in England do not have to pay business rates for the 2020 1o 2027 tax year No buswness rate
charge has therefare been recognised inLthe [ncome Staternent for the period ended 27 March 2021 Income relating Lo Lhe business rate grants has
beon recogmsed M operating expons ey N the Income Staterrent

Covid Corporate Financing Facility ("CCFF")

Commareial Paper 1asued Lo the Bank of England at u Fauourable yieid 15 deemed to constitute a goverrmert grant The debl has been recognised
sithin cucrent borrowngs on the Balance Sheet at fair value, with the grant elerment, reflecting the favaurable yicld, recagnised s deferred income
within trade and ether paysbles. On amortisation, the grant element hies been recognised within {inance costs, conwsient with where the cost s
recagnised, as the Group's pol oy s te present the incame o5 a deduction from the related expensc.

Hive-up transaction
When a subs diary transfers its business toits parent immediately sfter acquisition (hive up Lransaction) the assets are transferred at market value
and the nvestment s reduced to reflect the net effect of o return of capital in the ferm of the underlying net assets with any difference taken to the

MCrger reserve.

Investment property

The Group awns properties that are rot used for the sate of goods or services but are keld for capits appreciation or rental purposes,

These propertics are classificd as irvestment properties and their carrying values are vased on cost less imparment. Depreciation is caleulated on
astraight ne basis to wiite dewn the cost to the estimated residual value over the expected useful ife of the asset, which fer investment properties
i~ between 50 to 100 years

Intangible assets

\mtar\glble assets acquired sepsrately are messaced on initial recognit-or at cost The cost of intangible assets acquired in g business combination

1> their fair value at the date of acquivtion, Follow ng immal recognition, intangiole assets are carned at cost less any sccumulated amortisation and
sccumulatedimpairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development cosls, are not capitalned and Lhe related
expenditure 1s reflected . profit or loss in the period in wiich the expenditure s incurred. The useful lives of intang't'e ussets are assessed as either

finite or indefinite
Intangiole asscts with fimite lves are smortised aver the useful econamic ife and assessed for impa rrent whenever there is anindication that the

mtjr‘gib|e dsset may be \mpmred The amorbisation pemod and the emortisation method for an mr_ar\gub|e asset with a finile useful e are reviewed

at leazs at the end of euch reporting penad.
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FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Intangible assets with indefinite useful ves are not amortised, but are tosted for impairment annually, either indwidually or at the CGU level
The assessment of indefinite ife 1s reviewed annually to determine whether the ndelinie hfe continues to be supportable tf not, the change
in useful ife from indefinite te finite 1« made on 4 prospectve basis

Arnintangble asset 1s derccognised upon disposal (e, at the dote the recipient sbtains controf) ar when ne future economic benelits are expected
fromits uso or disposal Any gain or loss arsing upen derecognition of the asset (calculsted a5 the difference between the net disposal proceeas,
and the carrying smaunt of the asset) s included n the statemrment of profit ar loss,

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred Development expend-tures on an indidual preject are recogrised a5 an intangible asset wher the Group

can demonstrate:

- The lechnical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset wall be availuble for vso or sale
~ lts intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

- How the asvset will generate future ecoromic benefits

- The avatability of resources 1o complete the axset

- The ability to measare reliably the expenditure during development.

Follavarg nitial recogmition of the developmert expenditure 35 an asset. the asset s carned b cost less iny accurrulated amortisaucn and
accumnulated imparrment losses. Amortisation of the asset beging when development s complete and the asset s available for use and will be
amartised aver the pered of expected future benelit Amartnaton s recarded in aperating costy Duung the period of development, th asset

15 tested for impairment annually,

Impairment

Carrying values are reviewed for impairment if events indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable If such anindicater

exists and where the carrying values excecd the estimaled recoverable amourt, the assets or CGUs are written dowr to their recoverable armount.
An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the greater of the fair value less costs Lo sell, and the value in use. Ir asseswing value in use, the cstimated future
cnsh flow, are dincounted Lo prevant value usrg & pre-Lax discount rate that rellects the current market aswassmaents of the me value of money and
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inte accourt. IFno such transactons
can beidentified, an 4ppropridte valuat on model s uted For an asset that does not gererate |argc\f mndependent cash inflows, the recovorable

amount 1s detervared for the smallest CGUs Lo which the asset belongs

The Group bases its impairment culeulation on most recent mansgement appraved budgets and farecast caleulations. which sre prepared separataly
for cach of the Group's CGUs to which the indragual susets are aliocated. These budgets and forecast caleulations generally cover a peniad of two
yeors Along term growth rate w colculsted and apphed to project future cash fows after the secord year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment 1o made st each reporting dote Lo determine whether there 1 an indication that previcusly recogrised
rpairment lasses na longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group cstimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount A previously
recognised imparrment loss is reversed only F there has been a change in the assumpticns used to deterring the assats recoverable arount since the last
mnparment loss was recognised. The reversal is imited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recovarable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would kave been determined, net of depreciation, had mo impairment loss been recogrised for the asserin prior years

Impairment losses, and any reversdl of suchlosses. are recognised in the Income Staterment

Leases
The Group assesses a7 contract ingept or whather a cortract s, or contains, alease Thatis, if the contract corvey s the nght to control the use
af andentfied asset far a periad of time e exchange far cans deratian

Group as a lessee
The Group spphes & single recogrizier and measurement approach for ' leases, excepl {or short-term lesses and leases of 'ow value assers
The Group recogrises lesse iabihties 1o make le se paymerts and right-of Lse sssers representing the night to use the urderiying 34.2ts

a) Right-of-use assets

The Group recogn sev nght-ol use assals at the carmmencement dite of the lease {1 o |, the dste the underlying assat s avalabie for usel. Reghz-of
use dusels are maasured at cost, less ary accumulated depreciation snd impairment losses and adiasted for any remeasurement of lease habhites
The cost of nght-of use 4sset ircludes the amourt oflease labiities recognised, :mitial a rect coats weurred, and lease paymrents made at or before

the commencerrert date lass amy lease imcentives recewod. Right-of Gse assets are depreciated on a straight-line bass over the iease term
i P
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b} Leose liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recognises 'ease liabilitios measured at the present va ve of l21se payments to be made over the

lesse term. The lease pay ments include fixed payments less any lzase incentives receivable, varable lease payments that depend on an index or a rste,

and amounts expected ta be paid under residual value guarantess Variable lease payrments that do nat depend or an index or 5 rate are recognised
g pay

as oxpenses in the penod in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. The lease payment also includes the exercise price of
s purchase option ressorably certsin to be exercised by the Group and oayment of penalues for terminating alease, f the laase term reflects the

Group cxercraing the oplion Lo termirate. Extensicns Lo leases sre recognised wher 1L reasonably certa n the aption is going Lo be excroised

frv C.J(cufdtmg the prcsent value of fease pdymcn[x, the Group uses Its incrermental borrowmg rate ot the lease commenzement date bocduse Lhe Atorest rate
wmphait in the lease s not readily determinabic. The carrying amoont of lease habmtics 1s rerneasured T there is a medification, a change 'n the lesse term
orachange nthe 'ease payments (e g, chinges ta future payments resarting from 4 change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments)

The Groupsleasa hub lites are included in Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt (sce rote 24)

¢) Shert-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group apphes the short-term lease recognition exemption ta its short term lesses of equpment (e | those leases that have alease term

of 12 months or less from the commencement dute and do not contain v purchase optier). It also apphes the lease of low value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are canwdercd 1o be low value. Lease paymients on short term leases and leases of low-value ussets
are recoprised as expense on a straight-line basis cuer thelease term

Group as alessor

Leases in which the Group does nat transfer subszantislly g | the risks and rewards inc.dental to ownersh p o® an asset are classified a5 cperating
- Y p &

leases. Rental income arsirg s accounted for on g straight ine basws aver the lease terms and is included nrevenue in the Income Statement

due to s operat ng nature.

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Assets are cassified as held for sale when the carrying amount vall be recovered prine pal y through a sa’e transact on rather than cortinuing use

The critena for held for sule classific stion are regarded a5 met only when the sale s highly probable and the ayset or disposa group 1s wallable for
immediote sale in ity present cond tion Actions requered e complete the sale should indicate thatits unlikely tnat significont changes to tne sale
w |l be maae or that the decision Lo sell wiltbe withdrawn Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset und the sale expected to

be completed witrir one year from the dale of tne classiflication,

Assets neld for sule are valued at the lower of the carrying amaunt and Fair value less costs to sell No depreciation i charged whilst awsels are

classified as held for sale

Inaccardance with IFRS 5 Non current Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Cperations, results for the discont nued aperations are presented
sepralely in the Group’s Income Staterment (for which the comparatives and related notes have been restated) Additional disclosures are provided
innote 27 All other notes to the hrancia statements include smourts for continuing operat'ons, un'ess indicated olherwse.

Inventories

inventorios are staled at the lower of cost and net real sable value Cost s calculated using the “firstin first aut” method Net realisable value s
the estimated seling price in the ardinary course of business less estimated costs of complebion and the casts 1o be incurred in marketing, seiling
and amtribution

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and derecognition

ATinancial nstrumert is any contract that gives rise ta a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity nstrument of another entity

Fimancial sssets and financial habilities sre recogrised when the Group becomes a party Lo the contractual provisions of the inancial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised wher the contractual rights Lo the cash flows Tram the finuncial assel expire, or when the financial 3sset and

substant ally all the risks and rowards are transferred. A financial lability 1« derecogmised wheritis extinguished, discharged, cancelled or cxpircs
Financial assets

Recognition and measurement

Fnancial sssets are classified, atimtinl recogrizion, as subsequently measured gt amortised cost, fair v ilue through other comprehensive

income ("OCI™), and fair value through profit or loss The classificanen of financ al assets atmitil recognition depends on the Nindncidl assets
contractuai cash flow charactenstics and the Group's business madel far managing them. With the excepton of srude receiv sbles thal do nct
contain 4 significant financing component o for which the Group has applied the pracucsl expedient, the Group imitially measures a firancisl asset
atits Fair value p'us, in the case of a financul asser not at fair value through profit or loss, tramsaction costs. Trade receivables that dao not conta'm

s significant financing component are measured gt the transaction price in accordance with IFR515.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continaed

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued
There are three measuremant categones nto whick the Group clasulies its debt instrument.,

— Amortised cost, Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are messured at amortised cost Interest ncome from these financial assets s included in finance income using the effect ve interest rate
method. Any gain or loss anis'ng en derccogrution s recogrised directly in profit or lass and presented in other gains/{losses) 1ogether wath foreign
exchange goms and lasses ‘mpairment 1osses are presentad as separate hnetermin the statement of profit or loss The Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other recervables fal' into this category.

- Farvalue through OCICFVOCI™): Assels thas ave held for colection of contractudl cash flows and for seling the Financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of prircipal and mterest, are measured at FVOC1 Movements in the carrying amount are teken
through OCland will be recycled upen derecegnition of the asset.

- Fairvalue through prefit or loss ("FVPL") Assets tnat do not meet the critena far amortised cost or Fair valus through OCI are measured at
FVPL A gan or loss or a debt nvestment that s subsequently measured at FVPL 15 recognised in profit or loss and presented net within ather
gains/(losses) nthe perad in which it anses,

|mpairment

IFRS 9's imparment requirements use more farward locking infermation Lo recognise oapocted credit losses  the expected creditfoss ("ECLT
model. Recagriton of credit lonses 5 no longer dependent on the Growp Fratdentifying o crea loss cvent, Instead the Gioup coruders a broader
range of information wher assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit 'asses, including past events, current conditiens, reasonabic and

supportakle forecasts that affect the future cash flows o the -rstrument.

When asscssing 1 pairment for Lrade recendbles, the Group has opphied the simplificd approach o exoecied credit "ossas as per IFRS & Finarciat
Instrurrents The madel focuses on an appraisal of the risk thst a recevable will defuult rather than whether alass has beer ircurred. Thisinvolves an
unbiased asseasment of o rarge of possible autcamas and thair probabilit s of cccurrence, and 15 wupperted by past experience of collecting payments
a5 well as cnanges in ecenomic cenditions that correlate with default on recowables Expected creditlosses are imtially determined based on the
Groug's nistereql credit loss expenence, dny forward lasking factors speail c ta a particular trode recevable and the current econarmic cnvirgament

The uming of in Lial recognit'on for imparmert losses s the same penod that the asset s recogmised Moverrents in expected credt fossos are
recognised in the Income Statement within eperating casts. At the point a trade receivable s written of [ the ledger as uncolicctable, the cost
15 charged against the allowance account and sny subsequent recovenes of amounts prev ously wnitten of Fare credited to the Incorre Statement.

'n the Parert Company, amounts due from subs.diary undertakings are recegnised at their oniginal amaount less allowance for imparment based
or the ECL model In determinirg the mogel the Company comsiders the net assets ard the resources avalable to that subsaid ary

Financial liabilities

Recognition and measurement

Finarcia! habil ties are classified, at watal recagriuan, as finaneil lubilines at fair value througn profic or foss, loans and borrowings, payabies,
or as derivatives desigrated os hedging instruments in ar effective hedge, as appropriate

Allf nancial habiliies are recogrised imuially at fair value and. in the case of loars ard borrowings and paysbles, net of directly attrbutable
transachior Costs

The Group's financra nebihtics include trade and other payables, loans and borrow ngs including bark overdrafls, derivative financial instruments

and le sse labilites.
For purposes of subsequent measurement, firancial labilities are clsssifiea in Lo categories.

- Financia' nabilities at far v alue trrough praft or loss which are messured subsequent'y at fair value with gains or iosses recogrised in the
9 ¥ g 8
Inzome Statement

- Firanciallablives at amortised cast {loans anc porrawings) which are messured using the effeczive intores: methad,

Bank loans, overdrafts and debentures

Interest besnng bank 1cans, overd-afts 2nd debentures are initially recorded at the Far valuc of proceeds recewed, et of airect issue costs,

and thereafter a: amorused cost. Finance charges, wc’udirg prem ums payab'e on satrlement or redemption and arect 1ssug 2osts, are accounton
foranan effective mrerest rate vasis in the Income Statement. Finance charges are adaed to the carrying amount of the instrumert to the extent
that they are rat sattlec o the nengd i which they 4rse
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Offsetting of financial instruments
Finsncial asscts and finanaial habilities are of fset and the nel amount s reportea in the canselidated statement of financial position i there s
a currently enforceable 'egal night to offset Lthe recogrised ameounts and there is an intention to sottle on o net baws, Lo rea'ise the assets and settle

the labilties simultsneausly

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Recognition and measurement

The Growp uses nterest rite swaps te heage its inzerest rate nisks. Sucn derivative financialinstruments are inmally recognined al fair vatue on the date
on which a dervative cortract s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at farr value Deavatives are carried as finarcial assets when the far value

s pasibive and as financial labilities wher the fair value s nepat ve,
i-or the purpose of hedge accourting, hedges are clasaf ed as.

Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure Lo changes in the fair vi'ue of & recognised asset orlability or an unrecognised firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedgmg the exposure to varwaD»hty in cash Flows that  oither attnibutable to a partwcu\ar risk associatod with a rczogmxcd
asset or habilty or a highly prebatle forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk noan urrecognised firm commitment

- Hedges of 4 met investment in a foreign operation,

At the inception of o hedge relationship, the Group formally desigrates and docurments the hedge relationship to which it wishes Lo apoly hedge
accounting and the risk maragement objective and strazegy for urdertaking the hedge

The decumentation ncludes identiflication of the hedging instrument, the hedged iter the nature of the nsk being hedged and Fow the Group wil
assess whether the hedging relst onship mects the hedge effectivens~s requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectivencss and
how the hedge ratio s determined]) Ahedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting i it meets all of the fallowing offect vencss requirements.

- There 1= "an ecenomic relationship” beiween the hedged item and the hedging instrument

- The effect of credit risk does nat "dominate the value changss” thit resclt from that econermic relationship

- The hedge ratio of the hedgng relat onship 1s the same s that resulling from the quantty of the heaged item that the Group actually hedges
and the quantity o” the nedging instrurment that the Group actuslly uses 1o nedge that quaniity of hedgea item.

Hedge~ that mect all the qua'fyimg eriteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below.

The Group haw interast rate swaps which are classfied as cash flow hedges. The effective portion of changesin the fair value of dervatives that

are deswignated and qua\:fy as cash flow hedgek: I recognlxcd in the cash flow Hedge reserve within equ'ty. The gain or loss relatmg to the ineffective
portion s recagnised immediately in profit or loss, within other gans/(losses] When o hedging instrument expires, oris sold or termnated. or when
+hcdge nolonger meets Lhe criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or lovs and deferred costs of hedging thet were reported
in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or 'ass [T the hedging relationship ceases to maet the effectivencess conditions, heaging accounting
s disconunued and the related gmn or lass 15 held in the equity reserve until the forecast transaction occurs.

Classification of shares as debt or equity
When shares are issued, any component thal creates a financral habihity of the Company ar Group s presented as a hability in the Balance Sheet;
rmeasured rutially at fair valee net of transaction costs and thereafter at amort soa cost unbl extingushed on conversion or redernption

The correspanding dividends refat g to the liability cemponent are charped a< interest expense in the Income Statement. The mitial fair value of the
liabilty comporent 1s determined using s markel rate for an equralent ubility without « conversion [cature.

The remainder of the proceeds on issue s allocated to the equity component and included i shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs
The carrying amount of the equity comporent s not remeasured in subsequent years.

The Group's arainary shares are classified #s equity instrurments. Far the purposes of the disclesures given innote 29, the Group considers ity
cap'tal Lo comprise ibs ordinary share capital, share premium, capital redemption reserve, hedgng reserve and accurnulated retained esrnings plus
ity preference shares which are classfied as a Fnancial habilty i the Balance Sheet. There have been no changes to what the Group considers to

be capital since the prior year.
Preference shares

The Groug's preference shares are reported under non current habilties, The correspending d vidends or preference shares are charged as interest

in the Ircaome Statement. Preference share dvidends are at fixed rates,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued
Revenue
Reovenue s r-:cogmsod under IFRSAS upon appication of the :‘Psﬁowmg stepy

- ldenufy the contract with o customer

- Idenofy the performance obligations 1n the contract

— Determine the transaction price

- /\llocﬂte thc‘ transaction Pr\Ce to each PC‘rFDrmaﬁ:G Dbhgat\Oﬂ

- Recognise revenae when a performance cbugation s satishied by transferring a promised geod or service to 4 customer

Maraged Pubs and Hotels revenue primariy consists of feed, annk and accommodation sa'es, Fooed and drink revenue 1s recognised when contral
of the goodsferaces has transferred, being at the poirt the customer ourchases the food or drink. The Group also takes bookings far events und
sccommaodation which require a deposit to secare the bocking A contract lability for the depositis recogrised at the time of the sale. The contract
lisblity s released and revenue s recognined on a straght-line basis aver the duration of the roam occupation or event. A contract habilioy v
recogrised unul the evenlis complete or the guest has occupied the room.

The Group also carns reverue through seling drirk Lo the Tenanted Inns division which > supplied to Fuller's by Asabi under the Long-Term Service
hgreement ("LTSAT) Revenue 1s recognised as though the Group is the principal as it has primary responsibility aver the product and alse bears the

inventory risk.

Followng the sale of tne Fuller's Bear Business to /A ihi Eurepe Ltd, the Group entered into a TSA te prowide certaim services to facilitate the
successful separation of the two companies. The revenue s recognisea over Lhe period the services are pravided,

Revenue s recognised under [FRS 16 where the Group recees rentalincome frem Tenanted and unlicensed properties, This i recogrised or o straght
line basis over the leasc term. Sorme rental mcome includes wirnaver rent which s based on the percentage of the income gencrated by thal pub
This s recognised when the revenue s earned. Revenue s recegnised for machine income when net takings are carned

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attrbutable to the acquisition or construclion of an assel that takes a substant'al period of tire to get ready for use are
capitahised as part of the cost of the assel being created This1s applied to development projects where the development s expected to last in excess
of sx months at the commencement of the praject. All ether borrowing casts are expensed in the per od in which they occur. Barrawing casts
corsist of iInterest and other casts that an enbity Incurs n cornection with the borrgwng of funds

Separately disclosed items

The Group presents as separately disclosed .tems on the face of the Income Statement those materal items of iIncome and expense which, becausc
of the nature or expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, menit separate presentation to allow sharehslders 1o understand better the
clements of financial performance in the year, s as to faciitate compar.sen with prior perieds and Lo better assess trends in financial perfermance.
Separately disclosed items are a key element used to demarnstrate the underlying performance of the Group and reported as an alternative
pecformance measure within the mansgement commentary for the reporung peniad.

Share-based payments

Tre Group has ar employee Share Incentve Plan that awards shares to employees baved on the reported profits of the Group for the year, and

a Long Term Incentive Plan that awards shares to Directors and Semor Executives subject to speaific performance critena. The Group als0 ivsues equity
setlled share-based paymrents Lo certain employees under approved and unappraved share option schemes and s Sawings Related Share Opticr Scheme.

The cost of equity scttled transactions with employees s meassured by reference to the far value of the aquily instruments at the daze at which they
are gramLed and s recognised as an oxpense over the vestirg per od, which ends on the date on which the reie.ant employces become {u|‘y ant.tlod
5 the award. Fair value v determined wang an appropriate pricng wodel In valung equity-setiled transactions, no account s teken of any vesting
conditions The Group has no equ\tyfset[‘ed Lrarsact 08 that dre inked to the pri:o of the shares of the Compdny [rarket conditians)

No expenseis recogn sed for awards that o net uibmtely vest At each Balance Sheet dste before vestung, the currulative cxpense s caleulsiea,
representing the extont ta which the vest ng per od has expired ana mansgerent’s best asbimate of the acrievement or otherw.se of nen marker
conditiors and of the numrber of equity instruments that wih Lt mately vest. The movement n cumulative expense since the provious Balance Sheet

dute s recognised in the Income Stalement, with a correspending entry in equity,

Wnere the terms o an eguity sett'ed avard are modified or a rew avad s dosigrated as replacing 3 caneched o settled award, the cost bssed on
the ernginal sward torms continues to be recogrised over the criginsl vesting periad. In addition, an expense is recognised over tre remander of the
new sostng period for the incremenrtsl farvalue of sny moif cation, based on the d fierence between the “air value of the original award and the Tar
value of the madified award, bath as messurad an the dare of the medficatizr Noreduction is recagnised |f this arfference s negative,
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Where an cqui[y settled awara s cancelled (‘r‘C'udeé wher 4 non vesting condition wathin the control of the onlity or C—r‘r‘p\oyee 15 "ot met),
it treated as il it had vested on the date of cancellstion, and amy cost not yet recognised in the Income Staternent for the award 1s expensed
‘mmediately. Ay compensation paid up to the far value of the award at the cancellatian or settlement date s deducted from equ ty, with any

excess over fuir valuc being trested o= an expense in the Income Statement.

Own shares

Shares to be awarded under employee incentive plans and those that have been awarded but have yet Lo vest uncenditionally are held at cost by

an employee share owneramip trust (“ESOT") and showr as a deduction from equity in the Balance Sheet. ESQOT s an independently maraged trust
E]ﬂd nok CDHLFDHCC‘ b)— LHC GrOUP

I addition to the purchase of shares by the virous ESOTs for specific aw irds, the Group alse from Lme Lo ume acquires awn shares to be held
s Lreasury shares. These shares are cecas onally but rot exclusively used to satisfy awards under varieos share oplion schemes. Tressury shares ure
held 2t cost and shown as a deduction from total equ ty in the Balance Sheet

Conuderation recewed for the sile of such shares 1s aso recogrised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from sale ard the engindl
cost being taken to reserves. No gair or loss 1s recognised in the profiL or lows on Lhe purchase, sale, 1ssue or cancellation of treasury shares,

Taxation
Income Lax expense reprasents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax
The current tax payable s basad on taxable profit for the year uwng UK tax rates enacted o substanLvely enacted at the Balance Sheet date and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years Taxsble oraflit differs from net profic as reported in the Income Statement because it

excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years or are never taxable or deductiole

Deferred tax
Diofarred tax 15 recognisad or temparary differences at the Balance Sheet date between the tax bases of assets urd habilities and their carryirg

AmMounts FC‘F Fln(mcm? reporr_\'ng PorposCa.

Deferred tax habilities arc recogrised for all taxabie terrporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recogrised for ol deductble termparary differences,
carry forward of unused tax assets and urused tax osses, to the extent that it « probable that taxable profi will be avalable against which they can be utlised,

Such deferred tax sssets snd labdities are nel recogn »ed where the asset or haoility anises from the in tal recogn tion of geodwll or an ssset or
labilizy 10 3 transactior that 1s not a business carmbiration ard, at the tme of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nar tsxsble

prOF\t orloss, The o srrying amount of deferred Lax asseots is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Deferred Lax is net recognised in respect of taxable temparary differences associated with imvestrments i subsidianes, where the tirming of Lne
reversal of the temporary differences can be cantroiled and it s probable that the temporary d-[Terences will not reverse in the foreseeable Future,

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offact where there s alegal'y enforceable nght to of fset current tax assets and labilities ard where the deferred

tax balance re'ates to the same taxabion entives.

Deferred Lax assets and labillies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periads when the assel s realised or the habil ty
15 scltled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date

Current and deferred tax for the yeor

Current and deferred tax are recagnised in the Income Statement excepl when Lhey relate toitems that are recogrised in the Statement of
Cormprehensive Incame or in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are a'so recognised in the Statement of Comprehens ve Incorne
or directly n equity respectively.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

Defined cantribution schemes
Payments to defined cortribution retirement berefit schemes are charged to the Ircame Statemant as they “al due.

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operated 4 defined beneft parsion plar for ehigible employess where contributions were made nto 4 separate fund sdministered by
Trustees The Scheme closed to future accrual in Jaruary 2015

The cost o providing benefits under the def ned beasfit planis determined using the projected umit eredis method calculslea by quilified sctuaries
This attributes eatitlement to benelits to the current peniod (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine
the present value of defined benefit obligstion) and s based on actuanal advice Past service cosls are recognised n the Income Statenert on

a straight hne baws aver the vesting peried er immediately if the benefits have vosled
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued
When a settlement (el mirsting all obligations for berafits ulready accrued) or a curtailmert (reducing future obligations 45 a result of a material reduction
in the scherme membership or @ reduction infuture entitlement) occurs, the oblgation and relted plan assets sre remeasured using current actuanil

assumptions and the resultant gam o loss s recogrised e the Income Statement during the peniad in which the settlement or curtalment accurs

The Group determines the net interest charge/lcredn) on the net defined benefit liability!lasset) for the periad by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefiL obligition at the begmming of the period to the nel penwion lubiliy/lasset) at the beginming of the per od. The net
interest charge/(eredit) is recogrined immediately as s separately dsclosed finance costi(incomel in the Income Ststerment. Actuanial gains and
losses are recognised in full in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in whick they occur.

The defined bencfit penson asset or liabhity in the Balance Shect camprises the total of the present value of the defined benefit obhgation

(using a dhscount rate based an high quality corporate bonds), less the fair valae of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly
Fair value s based on mar<et prce information and in the case of quated secunities s the publishad bid price. The value of ¢ net pension benelit asset
s restricted to Lhe «um of the present value of any amount the Group expacts ta recover by way of refunds from the pan or reductions n the
future contributions

Foreign currencies
Transactions denormiratedin foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transact-ons Moretary nssets and
habihties are translated at the year end exchange rates and the resulting exchange differences are taken to the Incomre Staterrent.

Dividends
Diadends recommendad oy the Board but unpad at the year ond are nct recognisea in the financial statements until they are paid (in the case
of the ntenim dividend) or aporoved by sharebolders at the Annual General Meeting (in the case of the final dridend)

The qunpany's investments in subsidiaries
In it~ separate financia: stitements, the Parent Company recognises its investmert inits subsidiarios on the basis of cost less provisian for imparment.

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet applied
The IASB and IFRIC have ssued the following standards and interpretations wath an cffective date for penods starting on or after the date on which
these finarciai slaicments start:

- Amendments Lo 1AS T Class fication of labilibes as current and non current (effective 1 Jarwary 2023)

- Reference to the Conceptua Framework  Amendments 1o 17RS 3 {effective 1 January 2022)

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds befere Intended Use - Amendments to 1AS 16 {effectve 1 Janvary 2022}

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees v the "10 per cent” test for derecognition of F nancral labilities (effective 1 January 2022)

Cther new stundards and interprotations inissue but not yet effective are not applicable to the Company and therefore are not oxpected to have
ratenal impdct an the Group’a (inarcial position and results

2. Segmental Analysis
Operating Segments
’:O{ mdn[agemen; purposcw., Lne Group's operating sogments are;

= Managed Pubs and Hotels, which compnses managed pubs, managed hatels, Bel & The Dragen and Cotawold Inrs & Ratels
- Tenanted Inrs, which comprises pubs operated by third parties urder tenancy or lesse agrecments.

The most important messure used 16 evaluate the performance of the business s adjusted profit, wrich s the prof t before tax, adjusted far separatoly
disclosed iters Tne ooerating segments are organised and maraged separalely according to the nature of the products and serv ces prowded, win
each segment represent ng a strategic operating urit e Mar sged Pubs and Hotels cperating segments have been aggregsted to one reportable
segment on the basis they nave smilam econam ¢ charactenstcs. Economic indicaiors sssessed in detcrmining that the aggregsted operating
segments share sirriiar characterstics include expected future financisl performance. operanng and competitre nisks, and return on capital As such
the aperating segrmerts meet the aggraganon cnter 310 paragrank 12 IFRS & Operating Segments (amended) More details of these segments a-c
gvenin the Strategic Report on pages 4 w0 38 of this reoort.

A wepment assets and lubilives are not regula” y pro.ided to the Che® Operazing Dec s on Maker ("CODMT, the Greup ~as elected, a5 provided

under FRS 8 Operatng Segments lamended;, not zo dclese a measure of segment assets and habilines
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Managed Total
Pubs and Tenanted continuing
Hotels lans  Unallecated' operations
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 fm €m £m fm
Revenue
Sale of goods and services 56.6 6.9 ~ 63.5
Accommeadation income 5.9 - - 5.9
Total revenue from contracts with customers 62.5 6.9 - 69.4
RenLal reome 1.5 2.3 - 3.8
Revenue 64.0 9.2 - 73.2
Other income - - 0.2 0.2
Segment result (26.1) 1.2 (15.4) (40.3)
Operaling separately disclosed items (14.8)
Operating loss (55.1)
Profit on dispasal of properties 5.8
MNet finance costs (8.5)
Loss before income tax (57.8)
Other segment information
Additions to property, plant & equipment 12.6 0.7 0.5 13.8
Deprec-ation ) 24.7 1.8 0.7 27.2
Impairment of property, rlght'of_’ase assets, assets held for saie and goodwill 1.3 1.6 - 12.9
Managed Total
Pubs and Tenanted continuing
Hotels Inns  Unallocated' sperations
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 £m £m fm Em
Revenue
Sale of goods and services 261.5 1.7 - 283.2
Accommodation income 23.3 - - 23.3
Total revenue from contracts with customers 284.8 1.7 - 306.5
Rental income 1.5 8.0 - 9.5
Revenue 286.3 29.7 - 316.0
Otherincome - - 3.7 3.7
Segment result 30.6 1.8 {15.4) 27.0
Operdtmg 5epardte\y disclosed tems 20.1)
Operating profit 6.9
Frofit on disposal of properties 9.6
Net finance costs ) 8.1)
Profit before income tax 8.4
Other segment information
Additions to property. plant & equipment 23.6 3.6 23.6 50.8
Busness combinations i 32.8 - - 32.8
Depreciation 24.8 20 0.1 269
Impairment of property, right-of use assets and goodwill 14.4 0.7 - 15.1

1 Unallocated expenses represent primarily the salaries snd costs of central management. Unallocated revenue represents Transitional Services Agreement ("TSA } income
while unaliocated capital expenditure relates to the purchase of a new head office.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Revenue
Geographical Information

All of the Group's business s within the U< srd therefore the Group only has one d stincl geographical market.

Continued

52 weeks

ended

27 March

2021

Em

Revenue disclosed in the Inceme Statement is analysed as follows:

Sale of goads and services! 63.5 2832
Accommodation iIncome 5.9 233
Total revenue from contracts with customers 69.4 306.5
Rental income 38 5.5
Revenue 73.2 3160
Transitonal Services Agreement revenue’ 0.2 37
Qther income 0.2 37
Revenue and other income 73.4 N3.7

1 Revenue includes £2.0 million received from the Government under the Eat Out to Help Out Scheme.

2 Following the sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business to Asahi Europe Ltd, the Group entered into a TSA to provide certain services to facilitate the successful separation of the

two companies, Thisincluded finance, IT and payrn“ services. The TSA was completed during the financial year on 27 Apnl 2020.

4. Operat\ng Costs

52 weeks

ended

27 March

2021

Em
Praduction costs and cost of goods used in retaling 19.1 80.2
Staff costs 7 40.8 1.0
?ﬂjewrs and maintenance 8.6 136
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18.6 169
Depreciation of right-of use asset 8.6 o 130
Rental expense relating to short-term and low-value leases 0.2 INl
Variable lease psyments’ o 05 18
Property costs 7 35 16.2
Utlhties ~ 4.8 8.0
Separately disclosed items (note 5) 14.8 201
I7, retail ard communication costs 3.7 4.4
Professionsl fees 2.5 3.0
Pub operational costs 3.8 1%.8
Training 0.2 2.0
Grant income- - 4.7} -
Other operating costs 341 8.7
128.5 312 8

1 Variable lease psyments are dependent on turnaver levels.

2 Grantincome s amounts received from the Government to suppert businesses throughout the pandemic that were eligible depending on their ratesble value,

Detals of .ncome and direct experses re.ating to rentsl ncome from investment properties are shown ronote 12,
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a} Auditors’ Remuneration

52 weeks
En&ﬂd
27 March
2021
Em C-
Fees payable to Company’s auditors:
Statutory audit fees of Group finuncial statements 0.4 03
0.4 0.3
4
Other audit related services of £1,050 Mor covenant reportng and nan audit services of £1,500 for XBRL tagaing were ulso neurred in the B
pricr per od. ua
I}
. . FY
b} Employee Benefit Expenses &
Em - ©
Wages and salanes 31.6 957
Social security costs 5.8 7.0
Pension benehits 1.7 2.0
Otker staff costs 1.7 63
40.8 M.
1 Includes Executive Chrectors. g\‘
2 Includes share-based credit of £0.3 million (2020: expense £0.5 million). 3
3 Staff costs are stated net of E41.2 million claimed from the Government through the CJRS. 3
a
c) Average Number of Employees' =
The averige rronthly number of persons emp oyed by the Group (ncluding part-time staff) was as follows:
Cnntinuing operations Number N ot
Pub, hote and restaurant teams 4,046 4937
Suoport office’ 173 209
4,219 5,166

1 Includes Executive Qirectors.
2 Support office Includes Finance, People, 1T and other support staff.

d) Directors’ Emoluments
Full detalls are provided in the Directors Remuneration Report and tables on pages 56 to 78,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

5. Separately Disclosed ltems

The Group presents separately disclosed items on tne Face of the Income Statement Tor those material temns oF incomce and expense whicn, because
of the nature or cxpected infrequency of the cvenls ging rise to them, ment separale presentation Lo sllow shareholders to understand better the
elements of Franc a! perfarmance in the year.

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
£m g
Amounts included in operating {loss)/profit:
Acquistion costs ] o - (1.4
Recrgamisatron costs 1.9) 2n
Impairrment of intangible sssets, properties and night-of use assets o 12.9) asn
IT maintenance, support and recur\édmen costs - (15)
Total separately disclosed items included in operating (lossMprofit (14.8) 200
Profit on disposal of properties 5.8 96
Separately disclosed finance costs:
Finarce charge on net persion liabiht.es ) 0.1 08
Finance credit on the cancellation of interest rate \wc;p: 7 - 01
Total separately disclosed finance costs (0.1) 0.5
Total separately disclosed items before tax (A 1.0l
Exceptional tax:
Prafit Dﬂ‘dl‘ipDSﬂ‘ of properties V ‘_E(TZJ 09
Other iterms 09 39
Total separately disclosed tax 0.7 20
Total separately disclosed items (8.4) (3.0

The rearganisanon costs of £1.9 million dunng the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2027 (28 March 2020: E2 1 milhon} were argely ircurred s a result of
4 corporate reorganisstion of the Group, specificay the mive up of the trade and assets of Bel & The Dragon and Cetsweld Inns 8 Hetels, and redundancy

cosls as a resu't of restructuring due Lo the coronarus pandemic

The total impairment charge of £123 millior during the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2027 relates to the winte dowr of 37 hcensed properties 1o therr
recoverable value (£9.0 mill on relatirg to property, plant and equipment and £1.6 mitlion ta aght-of-assets) as well as the wiite down in va.ue of
previously acquired goodwll recogrised on scquisition of Jacomb Guinness Limited of £0.6 million, assets held for sale ‘mparment of £0 2 mullion
andlease recenanle impareent of £1.5 milion (28 March 2020, £ million)

The profit on disposal of properties of £3 8 millon dunng the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 (28 March 2020: £9.6 millon} relates to tne disposal of seven

l.censed and unlicensed propertias (2020 three properties).

The cashimpact of operiting separately dsclosea items before Lax for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2027 veas €15 evltan ¢ 1sh outfow 128 March
2020 £2.0 millen cask outflow).

10
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6. Finance Costs

52 weeks
ended
27 March "
2021 2t
£m L
Finance Income -
Interest incame from Finanzia’ asscots B - C2
Finance Costs T T _
Interesl oxpense arising on: ) o o
Financial isklities st ammertised cost loars and debentures (5.3) (53} =
KFihnanciq\ iabiiries At amorhsed cost preference shares (0.1 G a%
Firuncial iakibties at amortised cost - lease habilities 3.0 (24 gj
Total interest expense for financial liabilities (8.4) (7.8) _g
Total finance costs before separately disclosed items (8.4) (76) -
Finance charge on net pensior lisbilities (note 5) 0.1 (0.6
Finance credit oncancellation of interest rate swaps (note 5) - o1
Total finance casts after separately disclosed items (8.5 (5.1
1 Interest expense on loans and debentures is shown net of £0.6 million of grant ncome recognised n relation to the CCFF.
7. Taxation X
Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities 5
52 weeks §
ended 3
27 March
2021
Group Em o
Tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement
Current income tax N ]
Current tax on {oss)/profits for the year - 7 - (1.0 08
/\dJusr_meanifcr currert tax on prior periods (0.5) Q3
Total current income tax (credit]fexpense (1.5) B
Defe-red income tax.
Originauor and reversa! of temporary differences ) (8. 2.2
E:I;ange In corporation tax rate o 1.6
Adjustments Tor current tax on prior periods - 03
Tota! deferred tax (benefit)/expense (8.1 41
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement (9.6) 5.2
Analysed as
Befare separately disclased items (8.9) 72
Separately disclosed items (0.7) (2.0
(9.6) 5.2
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

7. Taxatien continued
Reconcihation of the Total Tax (Credit)/Charge
The tax creditin the Income Statement for the year s lower (2020, tax expense 1s h gher) than the standard rate of corporation taxin the UK of 19%

(2020 19%). The differences are reconcaled below:

52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
Em =
('_oxs)f"proﬂt from conlinuing aperatiors before income Lax (cred\t}/cxpense (57.8) 84
Accounting (loss)/profit mult;phed by the U standard rate of corporation tax of 19% (2020 19%) m.o) 1.6
lters not deductible for tax purposes 19 (s
Current and deferred tax (overl/under provided in previous years (0.5) 2.0
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement 9.6) 5.2
Deferred tax relating to items (credited)/charged to the Income Statement
Deferred tax depreciation (0.6) -
Uncea'ned capital (osses)igains (on PP&E) 04 32
EC-LIIC‘WEF’{ benefit obligations o 1.6 [OR)
Tax losses (7.4) -
Otner (0.1} 03
Corporate interest restriczion (1.2)
Deferred tax in the Income Statement (8.1) 41
Tax relating to items (credited)/charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax:
Valuation gains or fingncial habilitias [+ X} G
Net actuaral (pams)/lowses on pension scheme 7 ©2) o
Total tax {credited)/charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (0.1 12
Tax relating to items charged directly to equity
Deferred tax.
Share based payments - 01
Total tax charged to equity - ol

112
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Deferred Tax Provision
The de:e’red tdx \nC‘Uded mn the B-i‘.]ﬂce ShCCL S ds rOHD‘P.‘\

Deferred tax

AL R E VRTINS

Group . o .
Balances at 30 March 2019 &1 06 03 03 40 (16 6) 05 (44)
{Chargei/credit to Income Statement “n : (o1 - (3.2 35 0.2 (41
(Charge) to other comprehensive income amn - - on UQS
Chargel} taken directly to equity [(OR)] - - - - (003
Acquisiions - - 33) {33
Balances at 28 March 2020 02 06 G1 02z 40 (231 35 07 (13n
(Chargelicredit to Income Statement (0.4; 7.4 - - 04 04 12] 1 81
Credit/(charge) to other comprenensive o
Income 0.2 Gn - - a1
Charge taken direct'y to equity
Disposals ] (0 2) 05 04 - 01 (04
Balances at 27 March 2021 0.7 7.8 0.1 0.1 41 (22.3) 2.3 1.9 {5.3)
1 Includes £1.2 million of cerporate interest restriction. )

o0 o

£m L

Deferred tax assets 17.0 10.0
Deferred tax | abilitios (22.3) (231

(5.3) (131)

Campany . _
Balances at 31 March 2019 03 G.3 39 (14.5) 0.5
(Chargej/crediz to Incame Statement an (3.0} 35 0"
(Charge) to other comprehensive income (on
(Charpe) taken directly to equity on - - -
Acguisitions - - (28 -
Balances at 28 March 2020 0% 03 an 0.2 39 (20.3) 35 06
{Chargel/credit to Income Statement (0.4) 74 - - 0.6 04 1.2} 13
{Charge) 1o other comprehensive income 02 0 - - ar
(Charge) tsken directly o equity 7 - - - - - -
Acquisiions - 0.4; (2.4) (28]
Balances at 27 March 2021 0.7 7.7 0.1 0.1 4.1 (22.3) 2.3 1.9 (5.4)
I Includes £1.2 million of corporate interest restriction,
2021 P
Em -
Deferred tax assets 16.9 25
Deferred tax habilities (22.3) (20.3)
(5.4) (0.8)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued
8. (Loss)/Earnings Per Share
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Group £m
(Lass)/profit attributable to equity shareholders (49.6) 1609
Separately disclosed items net of tax 2.3 (149.6
ﬁusted (lass)/earnings attributable to equity shareholders (40.3) 1.3
! This includes separately disclosed items as per Note 5 and Note 21
. Number N zer
ﬁeighted average share capital ) ) 55,207,000 55124000
Dilutive outstanding options and share awards 139,000 128,000
Diluted weighted average share capital 55,346,000 557252000
40p ‘A’ and ‘C’ ordinary share Pence [Fa-ze
Basic Uossifearrings per <hare (89.84) 29189
Diluted {losslesrnings per share o (89.34) 29121
Adjusted (lossledarnings per share {73.00) 2050
Diluted adjusted (loss)iesrning. per share ‘ (73.00i 20.45
4p*B’ ardinary share Pence Bara
Basic {lovs)earnings per share ) (8.98) 292
Diluted floss)iesrnimgs per share ‘ (8.98) 2912
fgjustcd (loss)earnings per share (7.30) 2.0%
Biluted adjusted (loss)earnings per share (7.30) 2.05
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Cantinuing eperations Em
(L-oss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders (48.2) 32
Sepdramly disclosed iterns net of tax . ' 8.4 8.0
Adjusted (lossMearnings attributable to equity sharehalders (39.8) 122
Number Mmoo
ﬂeighted average share capital $5,207,000 55124000
Dilutive outstanding options and share aviards 139,000 128,000
Diluted weighted average share capital 55,346,000 55,252,000
40p A and"C srdinary share Pence e
Banic ('ossliesrnings per share (87.31) 581
Ciluted (izssiiearnings per share (87.31) 579
Adusted (loss)iearnings per snars ) (72.09) 2213
D luted sdjusied (iassliearrings per share (72.09) 2208
4p B ordinary share Pence o
B Uoss)iearnings per share (8.73) 058
Emted (lass)iearnings per share (8.73) 053
Adusted {osa)iearmngs per sharg (7.21) 2.2
Diuted sdjusted (ose)/earnings per share (7.21) 221
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For the purposes of calculating the number of shares ta be used above, ‘B shares have been treated 45 one-tenth of an A or 'Clshare. Tre e srmings
purp g .
ar Shﬂro Cl_llClJ‘riUOq 15 b('laed Qi adarnings {rom coentimuing aperalions ﬁﬂd cn U’\C‘ ptal] h(ed dAverdgoe Drdln(lr ‘\hdre Cd It{l‘ \Nthh CXCludC\ \hdre\ h[‘ld
F =) gop 8 24 Y P

by trusts relating ta employes share aptions and shares held n treasury of 1,777,248 (2020:1,860,777],

Diluted carmings per share amounts are calculsted using the same earnings figure a- for basic earnings per share, divded by the weighted overage
g-p & 2R 8P y g g
number of erdinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted averige number of ordinary shares that weould beissued on the conversion
¥ g g yedrp g 8 ¥
of all the dilutive potentisl ordinary shares into ard mary shares.

Adjusted carnings per share are calculated on profic before tax excluding separate.y disclosed tems and on the same weighted average ardinary
share capital as for the bawe and diuted earnings per share. Adjusted earmings per share meusures have beenincluded as the Directors conuder
that these meassures betler reflect the underlying earn ngs of the Group,

9. Dwvidends

52 weeks ended  ©. ook

27 March
2021 R
tm o

Declared and paid during the year o
Equity drwidends on ordinary shares,

Final dividend for 2020 0p (2019, 4.35p) - ) 2.4
Second interim dividend for 2020 Op (2019 8 O0p) - - 4.4
First imterim dividend for 2021, Op (2020 780p) o - 43
"D share single dvidend for 2021 Gp (2020 125p) - £9.4
Equity dividends Paid - 305
Dindends on cumu'ative preference shares (rote €) 0.1 01

The pence figures asove are for the 40z A'ardirary shares and 40p ' C ordinary shares. The 4p 'B ardinary shares carry divgend nghts of
one tenih of those spplic sble to tne £0p ‘A erdinery shares. Cwn shares held in the errployee share trusts do net gualfy for dividends as the
Trustees have warved their nghts Divdends are alse Aot paid on own shares held as treasury shares

Asindicated in the circular published on 28 March 2019 relating to the dsposal of the Fuller's Beer Business, the Baard made an additional cash
return of £1 25 per A and 'C' ordinary «hare and 12 Sp per "B’ ordinary share through a ‘D’ share scheme. Each ordinury sharcholder as at the record
d*‘ite WS \H\‘ued wikn ten ‘D‘ kh,irc‘% rOr oo ¥ f)(\‘-“r\g IA! dr\d ‘C! Ordlﬂdry Shdre r]nd ane \D. ﬁhdre FOr cvery one kEjl Ordmdry %"‘:lre hO|d at T.hc‘ time,
Nurais {actirg as or ncipal, and not as agent. naminee or Trustee for the Companyl made an offor to purcinase the ‘B shares for un amount of 12.5p
per ‘B’ share (frec of 4ll expenses and commissions). The Company accepted tne offer or behalf of sharehalders and paid a single doidend to Numis
s bolder of 4l the *D shares of £69.4 million representing the sum of 12.5p per "D’ share plus the stamp duty payable by Numis in connection vath
the purchasc of all the ‘D shares i msue,

Followang the approval of all the resclutiors presented to the Company's Extraordinary General Mecting on 1 Octoger 2019, 552,030.154 D7
shares of 0.9p esch were allotied and ssued to shareholders on 2 October 2019 on the bases of ten ‘D shares for every existing ‘A and "Clordinary
share of 40p cach and one *D share for every exsting B’ ordinary share of dp each held at the record date. Following the purchase by Nurmis of 4l
of the ‘D snares, and payment by the Company of ¢ sing'e dividend to Numis of £69.4 million as helder of all of the "D shares on 7 Octaber 2019,
the ‘D" shares were reclasafiad as deferred shares of Q.1p und were immediately repurchased and cancelled by the Company on 8 October 2019

No final dwidend for 2027 has been proposed for approval at the Annual General Meeting as a result of the business being closed for the majerity
of the 52 week parnad ended 27 March 2021 due to the canunued impact of the caronawrus pandemic.
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10. Intangible Assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cortinued

_olwn 8] Toia
Cost
At 30 March 2019 292 131 - 423 131
Acquisitons (note 18) 26 26 26
Transfer ta nght-of use assets {note 17) - 13m - 31N HERY
At 28 March 2020 318 318 2.6
Additons - 06 06 06
Hive up of Bel & The Dragon - 1.0
At 27 March 2021 31.8 - 0.6 32.4 4.2
Amortisation and irpairment -
AL 30 March 2015 06 48 - s4 43
lmpsirment duning the year - 37 37 -
Tearsfer io right-of use assets {noie \7) (4.8) - (4.8) 4 8)
At 28 March 2020 4.3 4.3 -
Provided during the year B
Impairment 08 [OFS 02z
At 27 March 2021 5.1 ~ - 5.1 0.2
Net book value at 27 Mareh 2021 26.7 -~ 0.6 27.3 4.0
Net book value at 28 March 2020 275 - 275 26
Net book value at 30 March 2013 286 2.3 365 8.3

The Compuany balance comprises £3.4 mulion of goodwill and £0 & mullion of develapment costs Imparment of EQ8 million refates to impairment
ol 0.6 millien of goodwill on Jacomb Guiness Limvted toits recoverable value and an adjustment Lo gaodwili on acquisition of Cotawold Inns &

Hotels of £0 2 mullion,

Development costs

Development casts re'ale to the implementation of a new finance system and are made up of licence costs, consulting ume and internal emplayce

costs. Amortisation of the asset wll begin when development s corrplete and the asset s avalabre for use

Goodwill
201 Fs
Managed Tenanted Total

Goadwill is allecated to CGUs as follows: Em fm Em i
Gaes astate 9.1 13.6 22.7 227
Jacornb Guinness estale 0.6 o - 0.6 1.2
Bel & Trne Drager 1.0 - 1.0 10
Cotswold Inns & Fotals 2.4 - 2.4 2.6

131 13.6 26.7 275
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1. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group B i
Cost

AL30 March 2019 534.0 5.2 196.6 626.5
Addinons 36.0 03 15.4 517
Acquisitions [rote 18] 422 - 21 443
Disposas o (2.2 5.0 (72)
Transfer toinvestment property (note 12) 0.2) o2
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 22) (2.2 V o2 (2.4)
At 28 March 2020 6076 65 BRI 7R3.0
Additions C.6 13.2 138
D-sposa's 7 (05) (2.3
Disposals of dcont.rued operations ©8) 0.1 (76) (4%
Transfer to assels hela for sale (note 227 (2.2 w0wn (2.3) (116
At 27 March 2021 590.5 6.3 171.6 768.4
Depreciation and impairment

AL 30 March 2019 397 1.3 1031 1441
Providea during the year 38 C5 136 179
Disposa's Q.7 4.4 51
impairment [oss 89 - 01 Bé&
Transfer to assets held for sa'e {(note 22) (07} on 0.2
At 28 March 2020 51.2 1.8 nz.3 1653
Prowided during the year 4.6 4.0 18.6
Dispasals (0.2) - 0.6) (c.3
Disposals of discontinued operations 4.7 o (58] ) (05}
lrmpairment oy . 9.0 - S0
Transfer to assats held for sale (note 22) (1o {on (1.9} (3.0
Reclsssfication of impairment to right of-use assets (rote 17) (0.4) - (0.4)
At 27 March 2021 58.5 1.7 118.0 178.2
Net book value at 27 March 2021 532.0 4.6 53.6 590.2
Net book value at 28 March 2020 556.4 4.7 566 617.7
MNet book value at 30 March 2019 494 3 49 535 0527
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Property, Plant and Equipment centinued )
N . T er b

Cost
At 30 March 2018 5055 49 1475 658.3
Additiens 74.4 - 16.5 309
Acquisitions 7 ; - 37
Disposals (21 (4.9] (7.0]
Transfer to investment property (nate 12) - 0.2 - - 0.2
Transfer to avsets held for sale (note 22) 22 0 23 (243
At 28 March 2020 5797 49 199.3 743.3
Additions 186 148 337
Disposals (1.8) - 0.6} 24
Transfer tc assets he'd (or sale (note 22) (9.2) on (2.3) .6)
At 27 March 2021 587.0 4.8 171.2 763.0
Depreciation and impairment
At 30 March 2079 326 2.6 96.3 1315
Provided during the year 32 126 15.8
Disposals 07 . (4 33 o
\mp,alr-mc'r'\t lzes net of reveraals . 7.3 o 7.4
frcmsfer 1o assets held for sale (note 22) (01 - (SR} 0.2
At 28 March 2020 423 2.6 104.6 1435
Provded auring the year 4.6 138 184
Disposals (0.2) - {0.5) 0.7
Impairment loss ) 7 o 30 o E
Transfer to assets he'd for sale (note 22) a0 @y 19, (30
Reclass.freatior of impairment Lo right-07 use assets [note 17) (0.4 - - (0.4)
At 27 March 2021 54.3 2.5 116.0 172.8
Net book value at 27 March 2021 532.7 2.3 55.2 590.2
Net book value at 28 March 2020 5363 2.3 547 5938
Net book value at 30 March 2019 4729 2.3 516 526 8

1 On 6 June 2020, the net assets of Bel & The Dragon of £19.9 mithion were hived up to the Company at fair value.
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12, Investment Properties

Cost at 31 March 2019 55

Transfer from property, plant and equipment

Cost at 28 March 2020

Transfer to asset held for «ale (24 E:'f
At 27 March 2021 13 2
Depreciation and impairment at 30 March 2019 and 28 March 2020 09 =
Provided dur ng the year - -
Transler to asset held for sale (0.73

At 27 March 2021 0.2

Net book value at 27 March 2021 B 31

MNet book vatue at 28 March 2020 48

Net book va've at 30 March 2019 46 g
Fair value at 27 March 2021 15.0 2
Forr value ot 28 March 2020 201 °
Fairvalue at 30 March 2015 19.4

The far vilue of investment propertics has beer estimated by the Directors, based on the rental ncome earned on the properties during the year
and averige yields ¢ irned on comparab'e properbes from publicly availsble information, which s a Level 3 Fair vae valsation techn que
An \'r\depﬁnder.t valuation of the propcrlwcs has net been performed

Impairment

The Group conwiders each trading outlet Lo be a CGU and each CGU s reviewed annually forndicatars of imparrment I assessing whether an asset has

been impared, the carrying amount of the CGU s comparad to11s recoverable amount. The recoverable amaunt s the hugher of its fair value less costs
P ying P g

to scltard its value im use. Curing the 52 waeks ended 27 March 2021, the Group did net imparr sny investment proper bes (2020: Crl}

faragement have determined Lthat the highest and best use of the property s its current use.
Investment Property Income

The proper ties are ot on both landlord and Terant repairing leases. Amaounts recognsed in the profiL for the financisl year relating to rental income

From investment properbies are as follows:

2021
GruuP Hnd cﬂmPany Em
Rental income 0.7
Direct operating expenses 0.1 (0.3;

All direct operating expenses relale te properues Lhat generate rental income

P
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

13. Impairment
Duning the year, imparment losses of D129 milhon (2020, E13.9 millor) were recognised within separately disclosed items

2021 A
Group Em o
Impairment losses
Intangible assets - 0.6 37
Property, plant and equipmant 9.0 86
Right- of-use assets 1.6 6.6
Assets held for sale 0.2
Lease recevable 1.5 -
Total netimparment charge 12,9 189
2021

Cempany £m

Impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment 9.0 74
Right-of use assels 0.7 41
Assets held for sdle 0.2 -
Leave recevable 1.5 N

Imvestrnents in subaidiar ey 6.9 4.4
Tolal netinparment charge 18.3 15.5

1 Investmentsin subsidiaries in FY21 was impaired on hive up of Bel & The Drsgon and was recognised through the merger reserve.

Lesse recevables have bean assessed for impairment under IFRS 9. All ather assets ahove wers assessad for impairment under 1AS 36,

Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets

The Group considers cach trading outlet to be o CGU ard each CGU s rewvewed annual'y for ind.catars of imparment. In 1ssessing whetner an
asset has been impaired, the carrying amount of the CGU s compared to its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of its farr
value tess gosts tosell ("SVLCS ) and its value in use In the absence of any informatior about the farir value of & CGLU, the recoverable amount

s deered to be 1ts value in use, For the purposes of estimating the value in use of CGUs, management have used s discounted cash flow approach.
The calculstions use cash flow projections hased on the following plans covering a five year period

The 202122 forecast shows that trading will continue to be adversely mpacted by the coronavrus pandemic, interrational sales are farecast to be down
by 75% and corporate sales down by 45% as poople only slowly start to return towork [t also assumes that consumer confidence will take a while to return,
impactng sales wth a reductior of 3% in H1and 2.5% n H2

The 2022/23 forecast shows some grawth but this will remain affected by the lasing impact of the pandemic. International sales will be down by 15% ond
corporate sales down by 20% a- the expectation s that people vall work from home more reguiarly. 1t 1s then assumed that aormal trading will resume in
2023124, wotaking two years to “Why recover fram the pandem ¢,

Other key assumprions uzed by management in Lthe /a ue in use ca culatons were 35 follows:

- The discount ratz 15 based on the Group's we ghied aserage cost of € spital, whichis used acress al CGUs due to ther similar craractenstics.
The pre-tax dscount rate 1s 6.9%
- Along-term growth rate of 2% was used lor cash flows subsequent to the 2022723 oudget

The caleu atior of wlue 1n Lae « most sersitve to the assumpiiors 0 respect of achievernert of budgerad cash f ows, growth rate and discount rate

The calcutat om of

walue 1m Lag i alvo dependent on the %o lovang awsumptions sales «olume; grass marginin managed premises; barrelage and rent
orajections in Ter snted prerises, and wage costin managed premisos Grows margins are Hased on historical performance levels. The key assumptions
above hase ther aswgred La ues Based on management knowledge and histenz sl infarmation. Goverament support by way of VAT reauction and

cenwnued busness rates hal ¢ sy have beer factored nio the modal.

Where the walusinusais h|gher than the carrying arount af the CGU, na further assessment 15 requ red Fer CGUs where the value in use w lawer tran
the carrying alue land atr sk of impairment). a valuation of the procerty s performed to desermire FVLCS The property valuat'ons are performed by
the Groupsin house property expert using 3 mult pre of farecast EBITDA Ina number of ¢ s, the value of the property der ved purely from an income
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approach understates the underlying oroperty value In these cases the expert has apphed 4 spot value to the property rather than a value derved
frem amult pe applied to the income. The Group hos also obtained valuations for a subset of these CGUs from o third party property valuation expert.
The M value valuation technigue s Level 3 as it used ar unobser vable Tair value inpuat.

Impairments src recagnised where the preperty va vation is also lower than the CGU's carry ng value for those determined to be al sk of
imoarrment This 1s messured gy the difference between the carrying value and the higher of VILCS and 1Ly value in use. Where the praperLy
valuat-or exceeds Lo Cdrrying va‘uC‘ no impairmcr‘wt 15 ’Cqmrcd,

During the 52 weaks ended 27 March 2021, the Group recegred animpasirment ioss of £9 0 milhor (2020 E8.6 m lhon) on property, plant and
equiprment and £1.6 million (2020: £6.6 rmullier) of ImpdIrment on rlght—orp use dsscls inrespect of the write down of 2 number of licensed properties
where ther asset vilues exceeded the h\ghcr of T4ir valuc less costs tasel or therr value nuse The mpairment losses were driven pr ncnpa*’\y by cimnges

in the local competitize ervirenment in which the pubs arg sitwated a5 well ws the signficant impact eoronavirns w L eannnne i have on rmese pubs,

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
The vaiue 1n use calculutions sre sensit’ve to the assumptions used. The Bireztors corader a movernent of 1.5% o the dscourt rate and O 5% in the
growth rate to be redson sble w th reference to current market yield curves unc the curent ecoromic corditiens Theimpsct s set out as follows

2021 2z 2
Impact on impairment of assets at risk - increase/{decrease} fm L
Increase discount rate by 1.5% 22.3 13.6
Decrease discount rate by 1.5% (13.6) (24 5)
Increase growth rate by 0.5% o 5.9 5.3
bécrease growth rate by 0.5% 7.0 S5C

Tne increase in discount rate and decrease in growth rate would lead to the CGUs represented by the value abave bairg subject ta Turther review
by the Group. The value in use calzulation 1s also s@ns.tive te varistions 1n the budgeted cuash floves, which represents the rate of recovery from
COrondvirus, App'ymg the ‘downside case’ cashflow FOFE‘C»’-]“E, as diszussedir the going coneerr disciosure within Nete 1) to the va ue nouse

calculat on results in anincrease toimparment by £2 9 millon The CGUs represented by the “impact onmparmrent of assets st nsk” would have
thair FYLCS deterrmined in order to conclude on whether an mparment i~ required. /A gereral decrease in preperty values across the sortfolio
would have o simiar effect to tnat set aut above re any reduction in property values would lead to assets being at nsk of l[ﬁﬂpair[‘nenl, In the current
year, ¢ decrease of 5% in the FVLCS would bave led to an addibenal ‘mpairment of £1 2 million for the CGUs where receverable amount has been
assessed on FVLCS.

Goodwill

Goodwili acquired through business combinations hss been alocated for imparment testing on an estate and disional CGU level. This represents
the lowest level within the Group at which goodunli 1s moritored for interna management purposes. An analysis of gaodwll by operating segment

s inciuded wthir note 10. Recoverable amount is based o a calculation of value in use based upon the same cashtlows as discussed under property,
plant and equinmrent. Cash flows beyard the budget period are extrapolated in perpetuity on the assumption that the prowth rate does not exceed
the aversge long term growth rate for the relevant markets. The same assumptions to calculate the value in use are used For goodwill as those for
preperty, p|dr\t and equipment,

During the 32 weeks ended 27 March 2027, the Group recognised an impairment ioss of £0.6 million in relation te Jacomb Guinness Limited s the
recoverable amount being the value in use for thase pubs of LO.6 millon could not suppert the carrying value.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
Management have considered reasonable changes in key assumpuions usad in their calculations of value i use. Anincrease of 1% in discount rate
would increase the impairment by E0.6 million A decrease ir growth rate by 0 5% would increase the imparment by £Q 6 rullion

Investment Property
The Greup considers each trading autlet Lo be a CGL and eack UG s reviewed anaualy forindicators of impairment. During the 52 wee<s endeq
27 March 2021, the Group did not impan any srvestment properues (2020, Unil), Refer to note 12,

14, Other Financial Liabilities

Group R Company o zan

2021 PV 2021 P

Graup and Company Em s E£m Lo
Interest rale swaps 0.7) on 0.7) (11
Total financial Liabilities within non-current liabilities {0.7) an 0.7) 1

Dezals of the interest rale swaps are provided in nete 28¢ [).

12

FULLER S ANN DAL REPORT AR L ATTC NS 2521

N\BI/’\JD/\O

oIIPNG

:uodatj

Ji)LJPUJO/\OD

=
-
o
a
2
£
5
=
o
=
E
i
=
o
]



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cont nued
15. Other Non-Current Assets
2021 E
Group and Company £m ‘-
Loans to customers due after one year - 01
16, investments in Subsidiaries N
Company
At 30 March 2019 122. 0.23 122.3
Additions 304 - 304
Return Odep\Lcﬂ 3 3 13.3)
Disposals 3.0 13.0)
Impairment - 4.0) 4.3
At 28 March 2020 126.6 [4.2) 122.4
Return of capital (5.8) 69 27
Disposals (0.4) (©.4)
At 27 March 2021 120.8 (11.5) 109.3
Principal subsidiary undertakings Helding Prapartion held Nature of business
Grffin Catering Serv ces Lirmited E1ordinary shares 100% (ndirect) Managed houses service company
George Gale & Cornpary Lirnited £1 orainary shares 100% Non trading subsidiary
25 !\ ardinary shares 100%
£10 preferance shares 100%
EST Trustees L mired L1 ordinary shares 100% Non-trading subsidiary
Fuller Srith & Turner Estates Limited Flordinary shares 100% Non-trading subsidiary
ngwoods Limited £ ordmnry shares 100% Neon-tr admg subsumary
Griflin lrns Lim ted 1 ordinary shares 1C0% Non -trading subsidiary
Jacomb Guinness Limitad 0% Nen trading subsidiary

Clordinary shares

45 Woodleld Limited

£1ordinary shares

100% (ndirect)

Non-trading subuidiary

Grand Canal Trddwng Lirmited

Elardinary shares

100% (ndirect)

Non trading subsidiary

B&D Cauntry Inns | Limited

Elordinary shares

100%

Holding company

B&D Coumtry [nns I Limited

1 ordinary shares

100%

Holding company

B&D (Cockham) Limited

El ordinary shares

100% (indirect)

Non-trading subuidiary

B&D (Farnham) Limited

£1ordinary shares

100% (Gndirect)

Non trading subs'diary

B&D (Kingsclere) Limited

£1 ordinary shares

100% (ndirect)

Non trading subsdiary

B&D (Odiham) Limited

E1ordinary shares

100% (ndirect)

Non trading subsdiary

B&D [Re;ﬂdmgj Lirmited

E1ardinary shares

100% (indirect}

Non-trading subsidiary

B&D (W) Limited

£1ordirary shares

100% (ndirzct)

Non trading subsidiary

RSH 200 Lirmited

Bl ordinary shares

100%

Ho‘d(mg company

Cotwwnold Inrs & Hetels Limited

£" ord.rary shares

100% (ndirect)

Hotel and restaurant ownership

Tne sbove companies are registerec ond operatc in Eng'and ana Wales, The registered effice of 3l subsidiary compan es s the came s Fuller, Smith

& Turrer P.LC At Per Mouse, 86-92 Strand on the Green, Londar, Englend, WA 3NN
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17, lLeases
This note provides information for leases where the Group 15 alessee. For leases where the Group is 3 lessor, see nowe 31,

a) Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Group g Company Ty,
2021 v 2021 2aa0
Group and Company fm L fm
Right-of-use assets _ .
Properties 81.3 1051 80.8 947
Equpment 0.2 0.8 0.2 0.8 A
Vehicles 0.4 11 0.4 e )
81.9 107.0 81.4 g6 6 U@
Lease liabilities 0
Currant ] 6.7 8BS 65 18
Non cur-ent 83.2 "Ca0 81.8 917 S
89.9 125 88.3 996 B
Sct aut below are the carry ng amourts of right-of-use assets recogrised and the moveraents during the period.
Group ‘ _;v" - “ii ot E"' :i
Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 1051 1.1 0.8 1070
Additions 28 ze o
Lease smendments  renl concessions T 0.0) - (0 Q) %
Lesse amendments - other ) 1.3 (043 Gl 1.0 _S
Disposal ' ' (81) - -
Depreciation ) (76 03 071 B8 °
Impairment — transferred from property, plant and equipment (0.4) L - (04)
Impairrcent (1.6) 7 (1.6}
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 81.3 0.4 0.2 81.9
Compﬂn)’ ’_:‘_"' o -L"‘ T I:7|' ‘I:\
Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 94.7 1.1 C.8 6.
Additions 26 - 26
Legse amendrments  rent concessions (3.0) °e)
Lease amendments - other 13 (0.4} oN 10
Disposals (0.4) - (04)
Depreciation (7.3) ©3) (0.7) (8.3]
Impairment  transferred from property, plant ard equipment (0.4) - - (0.4
Impairment 07 : (o)
Met carrying value as at 27 March 2021 80.8 0.4 0.2 81.4

1 Lease amendments include lease terminations, modifications, reassessments and extensions to existing lease agreements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Convnued

17. Leases continued
Set out below are the carryir‘g arnounts of lease hablites (ncludec under interest bearing loans and borrcwmgs] and the movernents durmg the perlod:

I

o ne

Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 129 996
Additions B 24 26
Disposal (105%)
Lease amendments  rent concesuons B (10.0) [CI9)]
Lease arendments - otner ‘ o 1.0
Accrction of interest 3.1 3.0
Payments {9.2) (B9
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 £9.9 88.3
A maturity analysis of gross lease hability payments s included within note 28,
b) Amounts Recognised in the Income Statement
o
27 March

2021 R
Group £m T
Depreciation charge of right-of—use assets
Properties o 7.6 S8
Equipment 07 06
Vehicles 0.3 0.2

8.6 10.6
Interest expense (ncluded in finance cast] 3.0 27
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included 'n operating co;ts\;- B 0.2 0.8
Expense relating to vsnable lease payments not inc'uded in lease 1sbilties (included in aperating costs) 0.8 20
‘mdeTT\GﬂL of night of use assets - - 1.6 6.6
Ircome from sub \Ods-ng r\ght of use assets - 05)

5.7 .6

Tha Gr:u,p‘s ratal cash avtflows for foases in 2021 wera £9.3 milior (2020 €171.2 mullizr)

Variable legse payments

Some property ‘eascs contain vanab'e payment terms that are inked to sales genersted from a oub Varisb'e payment terms are used for a vaniety
of reasons, meluding minimising the Nixed costs base for newly establ shed pubs. Variable lzase paymerts that depend or sales are recogn sed in
profit or loss in the peried in which the condiion that triggers those payments occurs. Varable lease payments recognined in the Income Statement
in the year ended 27 Marcn 2021 weee E2 9 milhon (2620 £2.0 million).
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18. Business Combinations
Duning the 52 weeks ended 27 Mareh 2021, there were no business combimations,

Duning the 52 wocks ended 28 March 2020, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Catswaold fans & Haotels for tot i consideration

of £30.4 milior, o business incerperited in tne UK ard consisting of sever prormrm hotels and two bars, The acquisitior was comp\ctcd on

31 October 2019 A further pub was bought for £3.7 mrillon and treated as a busingss combimation as 1t was operating s a business at the point
the Company acquired 1L

202t FLA
Pubsand :

Restaurant Ao i
MNumnber of pubs/botsls/restaurants purchased - g 1
Fair value £m L =
Net assets acquired - 2580 37
Goodwall - 24
Total consideration paid - 304 37
Net outflow of cash
Cash cons deraton pad - 304 37
Cash and casn equivalents acquired - 1.3 ‘
Net cash outflow from investing activities - 291 37
Repayment of third party loans on acquisiion - 2.4
Net cash outflow from financing activities' - 84 -
Net cash outflow in respect of purchase of businesses - 375 37

1 Included within repayment of bank loans 1 the Graup cash flow staterment.

19, Inventories

Group Company Do oy

202 . 201 P

Gruup and Cnmpan)‘ €m e fm e
Stack at pubs and hotels 21 4.0 2.1 3.5

Amourits recopgnised in profit or loss
Inventaries recognised as sn expense during the year ended 27 Mareh 2021 amounted 10 £15.8 m llion (2020: £66.4 m llion]. These were included
in operating costs. Inventory s stated net of 4 provision for ebso.cle stock of £0 3 million (2020: £0.4 millon).

20. Trade and Cther Receivables

2021
Group m
Trade recevables 21
Orther rece vables 6.6
Prepayments and acerued incame 2.8
1.5 126
2021 s
Company Em At
Trade recevables 24 24
Amaurts due from subsidiary undertqkings B - 75
O'_her_r;c-s"|;u1b"ox o o ” 6.5 67
Prepayments and accrued income 2.8 28
1.4 194
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continuad

20, Trade and Other Recewables continued

As al 28 March 2020, the Carmpary amounts owed from subsidiiry undertakings of ©2.5 million bad no feced rep syment date Interest was paysble
on tne balance at the h gher of either the Bank of England base rate plus 3% or 8%. Dur ng the yoar the subsidiaries that owed the Company
amounls were hived up into the Company and as part of the restructuring the ntercompany balances were settled.

As at 27 March 2021, the Group has accrued £4 QO milon (2020 £Q 2 million], shown in other receivables, in relation Lo the CJXS. Alse included in ather
receviblesis CO.8 rilion (2020 £2.7 miluon) of lease recewvable for subleases. C1.5 milion of lease recevable was impa red duning the year based an the
expected credit loss medel and recorded n separately dsclosed items grem itz one-of f mature,

The trade receivabies balance above 15 shown net of Lheloss allowance The Group and Company provide agmnst trade recevables based onan
expected creditioss moael, calculated frem the probability of default fer the remaining Iife of the asset

In measuring the expected cradit losses, the Lrade recevakles have been awsessed on a co'lectve basis as they possess shared credit rsk
characteristics Thex,, hae been grouped based on the ddy\ past due and alsa dr_r:ord\r\g ta e geographl‘:d[ lecation of custamers which s the

sdrne for alf

The expecled loss rates are based an the payment prof-le for sales over the past 24 manths before the Ba'ance Sheet date The historical rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking microeconomic Factors affecting the customers ubility to settle the amount outstanding,
the maost sgniflicant ficter beng the coronavirus pandemic. A financial assetis wntten of f wher there 15 no redsanable expectation of recavering
the contractual cash flaws

The movements on the less sllowance duning the yesr are summarised befow:

201 P
Group and Company Em 5l
Opening balance 0.9 04
Increase in loss ullowance recogrised in prr-gl"\L and loss 0.3 05
Amounts written é)f-r’durmg the year (0.2) -
Clasing balance 1.0 09

The loss allowance for trade receivables is recordedin tre accounts separately from the gross recevable The contractual age rg of the trade
receivables balance 1 as follows:

Group Compony i
201 2021 Zle

G roup and Company m £m -
Currert 1.3 1.3 09
Overdue up to 30 days 04 04 12
Cverdue between 30 ,{md 60 days ) 0.1 01 0.1 o1
Overdue between 60 and 30 days 0.1 _40—3 0.1 O?
Overdue more than 90 days 1.2 Q8 1.2 0.8
Trade recevables before loss allowance 3.1 33 3.1 3.3
Loss allowance ' (1.0) @) .0 09
Trade receivables net of loss allowance 21 2.4 241 24

21. Discontinued Operations

On 7 June 2023, the Group sold its subsidiary, Stable Pizza & Coder L mited [ Tre Stable T e Sourdough South Limized (' “hree oes ) foman
enterprise va'ue of LO.5 mllon ona debt free oasis imcluding any cashie®tin the business. Accordingly this business nas been reported as discontirued
operangas i the Annual Repart for the 32 weeks erded 27 March 2021

On 27 Aar 120719, the Group sold its e
(“As3h™), foran erterprive value of £2

Atre Boer Busmess 1o Assh Burcoe Lid TAELT), 3 whely cwned supsdiary of Asah Group Pe'dings Led
500 ~hsnon adebt free basisinclud ng any cash le™in the busne-s

The business sold comprised the entrely of Fulles's beer, ¢ aor and soft drnes brewirg and praduct.on, w ne wholesa'ing, 45 well as tne distrioulior
~hereaf, and aliz includes tne Grffn Srewary, Cocmsh Decharas, Dack Stac B%wu‘g«md Nectar mparts (referred to as the “Ful'ers Beer Bus ress™

Accordingly those div sinrs bave been reparten as dseont nued operatons in the Annw sl Report for the 527 weeks ended 28 March 2020
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a) Financial Performance and Cash Flow

“he finarcial perfarmance and cash flow rformation presented for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 ref ects the operations for the periad ended
7 Jure 2020 The financial perfermance and cash flow presented for the 52 weeks cnded 28 March 2020 reflects the full yeur of The Stable and
the peried ended 27 Apr| 2019 for the Fuller's Beer Busines.

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 A
fm -
Revenue
—S—;gmcm revende - 264 L:@
Inter-segment -ales - (4an %
Revenue from third parties - 223 Oi
<
Segment result (0.5) ©s 2
Operating separate y disclosed izems o - (38
Operating loss (0.9 (4.3
Net Finance costs - (03
Loss from operating activities — discontinued operations (0.5 46)
(Loss)igain on sale of discontinued oper tion' (0.9) 162.4
Income tax on (\&x)«*gam on sale of discontinued operation - - Q
(Loss)/profit before tax — discontinued operations 1.4) 157.8 E
Taxdtion - on ;
Analysed as: 5
Urderlying trading ) - Qn
Separately disclosed items ) -
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations (1.4} 1577
Net cash loutflow)/inflow from operauing dct vities (0.4) 1S
Net cash inflow from investing activties 0.3 2245
Net cash outflow from financing activities (0.1) (o)
Net {decrease)/increase in cash generated by discontinued operations 0.2) 2251
Other segment information
Additions Lo property, plant and equipment - 09
Depreciazion and amortisation 0.3 16
|mpairment ' - 38
(Loss)/earnings per share - discontinued operations
40p ‘A’ and *C’ ordinory share
Basic (loss)fearnings per share E (2.54) 286.08
Diluted (loss)iearnings per share (2.54) 285.47
Adjusted (loss)iearrings per share B B (0.91) (163)
Diluted adjusted (loss)/esrring per share (0.91) {163 5
4p '8 ordinary share o =2
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (0.25) 28 61 g
Chiuted (loss)earnings per share (0.25) 28,54 3:
Adjusted (lossdiearnings per share o - (0.09) (0163 g
Dilated adjusted (lossMearmng per share (0.09) {0.16) :g

1 Thisis treated as a separately disclosed item.

127

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPCORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued
21. Discontinued Operations continued
b) Details of the Sale of the Subsidiary
52 weehs
ended
27 March
201
fm
Consideration received
Cash 0.4
Carrying amount of net assets sold 1.2
Loss on sale before income tax {0.8)
Trﬁnﬁact\@r\ cosls (0-1]
Loss net of transaction costs (0.9)
Income tax expense on loss -
Loss on sale after income tax 0.9}
22. Assets held for sale
Group Cornpany
202 2021
Assets held for sale at the start of the year 2.6 2.6
Assets disposed of during the year (2.1) (3.1}
Assets transferreo from Investment propc”t\es 1.7 1.7
Assets transferrad from Property, Plunt ard Equipment 8.6 8.6
Impairment of ussets (0.2} (0.2)
Assets held for sale at the end of the year 9.6 9.6

At 27 March 2021,17 propertics have been classfied 1s held for sale (2020, 2 propert\es) The properties are predominately unlicensed properlics
Sale 1s expected vathin 12 marths from the repor ing date Animpairment of EQ 2 enillion was recogrised on reclassifying the preperty to held for
si'e to recogrise the assets at the lower of carryng amount and Fair value 'ess cost to sel. Valuations performed are baved on coservations of
transactions nvohang properties of ¢ am lar nature, location and condition Since thes valuation was performad using a sgnificant nan observab'e

nput, the farr value measurement car be c;]f_egorlsed a4 Level 3

23. Trade and Other Payables

Due within one year:

201 PR
GruuP Em [l
Trade payables 12,7 126
Otner tax and soeial securnity 1.6 51
Other payables 5.7 6.7
Accruals 73 109
Contract liabilines 1.4 2.4
28.7 377

Due within one year:
200 P
Company €m i
Trade payables B 12.6 "5
Arnounts due to Subswddry undertakmgs 1331 1322
Other taxand socis securty ) 1.5 4.2
Other pa, abies 5.7 55
Accruals 7.3 94
Contract haohit o 1.4 2.4
161.6 1652
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Compamy armcunts due o ,ﬂ.bmdmry \,r-d-:rtftkmgs of E*233 1 milion (2020: 0132.2 million) have no { xed repayment date Interest s pdydb\e on the
balance at 3% above the Bark of Engind base rate. Company amounts due te subsidiary undertakings are unsecured,

Contract habilities relate to deposits recaived from customers 1o secur o book rgs for events and sccommodat.on The balance wil unwind and be

recognsed as revenue in the following financial year,

AL 27 March 2021 EO Trmillian has been recognised as deferred reome within accruals i relation to the CCFE representing the favourable
condivans granted by the Government. This s being unwound over the term of the loan

24, Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt

Cash and Short-Term Depaosits
Group o Company R

201 V2 2021 7 i
Em o Em L
Casi at banx and in band 17.1 20.3 16.9 19.2

~ar the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, cash srd cash eguivslents comrprise cash at bank and in hand, a5 above. Cash at pank

earnsinterest at floating rates.

Group v Company  Tamorn,
200 s 2021 zli
Borrowings Em £m
Bank laans 107.9 171.7 1079 171.7
CCFF 99.8 - 99.8
DCebenture stock 259 229 259 259
Prefercnce shares - - - T - o » ” 1.6 16 1.6 16
Total borrowings 235.2 169.2 235.2 1992
Analysed as.
Berrowings within current habiliuies 207.7 1717 207.7 171.7
Borrow ngs vwithin nor current habilities 27.5 275 275 275
235.2 1592 235.2 1992

All borrowings at both year ends are denorminated ir Sterling and where appropriate are stated net of 1ssue costs. Further :nformaucn on borrowings

IS given in nate 28

Bank Loans

Group and Company

The Grcup hid facilities of E2917 miliion at year end including the CCFF Post year cnd, the CCFF oxprred on 12 May 2021 and was repaid on that
date The remaming £191.7 mllon of the Compdny's total existing main bank Tacilitios were duc to cxpire in /\ugust 2021but an 20 /\prl\ 2021 the
buank facilizies were amended and extended to February 2023

At 27 March 2021 £837 millon (2020 £53 O million) of the tetal ol E2917 millien (2020 £225 O million) committed bark facil Ly was avaiable

and undrawn

A aresult of coranavirus and the tempordry ciosure of the eatire estate for a slgnlﬂccmt partion ol the per\od, the twa main quar ter\y covenants,
bcmg ret debt to EBITDA Uevemg—e] ard net debt to MNrarce d’ldrges, wore waved (o the who'e pcmod grd revised Lo 8 more app"oprmtc tost based
on hiquidiny for each of the quarters during the financial year. The liguidity covenants arein place antl Maren 2022 and then will revert ta the

leverage ard interest coverage covenants from June 2022
The bank loans at 27 March 2021 are unsecured, and are repdydb‘c 4% shownin the table on the foliow ngpige nloresiis pdyabic 4L LIBOR p\u‘.

a margn, which varies dependent on the ratio of net debt to EB!TDA. but since tne coverurts were waved in March 2020 and replaced wath
A \‘quwd\t\, test the interest rate rmargin ha~ been fixed until March 2022,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

24. Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt continued

The bunk loans and CCFF are repayable as follows:

2021 Sl
£m o

On demand or within onc year 208.0 1720
Less bank loan arrangement fees L (0.9 (03}
Less. CCFF amortisation fees and fair value adjustrments 7 ) (0.2) N -
Current liabilities 207.7 1717
Debenture Stock
The debentured stocks are scaured on speaified fixed and flogung avsets of the Company and are redeemabie on matunity,
Deberture stock 1= repayab’e ax follows:

2021 0
Graup and Company £m
In the third te fifth year incusve 10 78% 1st Mortgage Debenture Stock 2023 6.0 60
Im greater than five years - 6 875% Deoenture Stack 2028 (st floaung charge) 20.0 200
-\;C‘RSI discount onissue 7 7 0.1 (el
Nen-current liabilities 25.9 259

Preference Shares

The Company’s preference shsres are clasaf ed as debt The sharos sre not redeemable and are included in borrawings within ron-current abilities,
Sec ncte 26 for further detals of the preference shares.

Analysis of Net Debt

Group
At
27 March
v W Noreoam 20
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 ce Con fm
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cask and shorg-term dcpoa\'t‘: 203 (323 171
20.3 (3.2 171
Financial liabilities:
Lease iablives EE 9.2 138 (89.9)
Mmz9) 92 138 (89.9)
Debt:
Bank loan (171.7) 64.0 (02)  (107.9)
CCFF (99.4) (0.4] (99.8)
Debenture stock (259; - - (25.9)
Preference shares T ae (1.6)
Total berrowings (199.2} (354} 06 (235.2)
Net debt (2918) (2%.4; 132 (308.0)
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Ar A
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 [IEEE I Lt o
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and short-term deposits S no - 9.3 B 203
1.0 93 20.3
Financial liabilities:
Lease hubilites S 004 1n2 2377 (129
00 4) 172 237 M2
Debt:
Barkloans (228.5) 570 0.2 077
Other loans 02D Z
Debenture stack (25.9) - 259)
Preference shares (1.6) (1.6
Total borrowings (256.2) 57.0 - (199.2)
Net debt (245.2) (100 42 775 (23.7) (2918]
1 Non-cash movemeats relate to the amortisation of srrangement fees, arrangement fees accrued, movementsin lease labilities and corporate acquisitions.
2 Bank loans net of arrangement fees.
Company
A As
i 27 March
7 4 Nt 2021
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 ST Em
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash ard shert term deposits S 19.2 23 16.9
192 23 16.9
Financial hiabilities:
Lease habilities 99.6) RO 2.4 (88.3)
(99.6) 89 24 (88.3)
Debt: o _
Bank loans- 717} &40 02 (107.9)
CCFF N (©99.4) ©4)  (99.8)
Debenture stock 7 259 - (25.9)
Preference shares T (1.6) 1.6)
Total borrowings (199 23 (35.4) (0.6) (235.2)
Net debt (279.6) 28 8) 18 (306.6)
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

24. Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt continued

; Tasm T oms SNeoreast
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 [ <
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and short term deposits 92 B “15? - 19 2
9.2 - 0.0 - 19.2
Financial liabilities:
Leose labilities I (88.6) 101 Q) (596)
- (8B.2) 104 (211 (55.6)
Debt:
Bank foans (228 5) - 57C 2 (1717}
Debenture stock 259 - - (259)
Prefcrence sharos 1.6) T - 16)
Tota! borrowings (256.0) - ETAS) 0on 139.2)
Net debt (246 R} (88.58) 771 213 (2796)

t Non-cash movements relate to the amartisation oFarrar\gement fees, arrangement fees accrued and movermentsin lease Labilities.
2 Bank loans net of arrangement fees.

25. Pensicons

a} Retirement Benefit Plans — Group and Company

The Group operates one closed funded defined benefi penwan scheme, the Fuller Smuth & Turner Persion Plan. The plan w deflined benefitin
rature, with assets beld in separate professionally managed, Trustee-administered funds The Schere s HM Revenae & Customs registered pension
plan and \ubJ-:cr to standard United ngdom persionand tax law. Oni Jmuary 2015 the pl.an was closed to future accrual

The Group also operates three defined contribution stakcho!der pensior plans for its errployecs The Fuller’s Stakeholder Peasion Plan was sel

up lor new employecs of the Pyrent Campany after the closure af the Fuller, Smuth & Turner Pansion Plan to now entrants on 1 August 2005

The Grffin Stakeholder Pensior Plan operates for those employees of 2 Group subsidiary. The Gales 20G1 scherme was set up followng the clesure
of the Gales defined benef it scheme in 2007,

The Group offers workplace pensions 1o all employees whe are not members of the three defined contribution stakeholder persion plars. The Group
offers Lhase persionsg Lhrou%h the National Ernphymrzr\t Sawr\g: Trust ("NEST™.

The Group alsa pays benefits, which are unfunded, to a number of former employees. The Directors consider these benefits to be defined benefit
m nature and the (ull defined benefit lability is recognised on the Balarce Sheet

52 weeks TE e
ended “ed
27 March
201
Group and Campany £m o
Total amounts charged in respect of pensions in the year
Charged to Income Statement:
Delinedbenefit scheme  netfinarce charge - separately disclosed items 041 0.6
Defined contrnoutior schemes and NEST - total operaung charge 17 21
1.8 27
Charge/{eredit) to equity
Cefined benefit schemes - net actuanal 'osses/(gains) 1.0 (5.5
Total pensian charge/{credit) 2.8 32

b) Defined Contribution Stakeholder Pension Plans - Group and Company

The tota' cost crarged Lo rocame in respect of 1he defired cantribator stakebolder schemes 1y shiown e the tal operaling charge dhowe

¢) Defined Benefit Plans - Group and Company

The Scherne praaades penvons and iump sums wa marrbers on retrement and ta ther dependants ande k.
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Trustees are appeirted by both tne Company and the Scheme's membership and actin the interest of the Scheme und alf re'evant stakeholdars,
rclud rg the members and the Company, Tre Trustess are also responsible for the investment of the Scheme's aswots

The Company pays the costs as determmned by regutar actuanal valuations The Trustees are recuired to use prudent sssumptions to value the

libilities ard casts o the Scheme whereas the accounung assumplions must be best estimates

Responsbilty for making goad any defiait on the Scheme lios with the Company ard thes introduces a number of - ska for the Company.,

The myer nisks sre:

- interest and investmantris< Thevalue of the Scherre’s assets are subjeet Lo valstility in ecuity prices The Scherme has diversified its
insemtmerils to reduce the Impact of valati iy and vioab'e interost return rates
- inflatign nisk - The detined benetit abhgaticn s linked Lo irflalion so higher rates would i esultn g Fugher defined bonefit Ob|\gat|on

= longevicy risk - Anincrease over the assumplions apolied will increase the acflinea benefit obligation

The Ccmp-‘my ard Trustees sre aware of those risks ard manage them Lhrough Appropriate imvestment and fuhding Stru[egies‘ The Trustees manage

SO\JC‘FP\H"\CG [-md DFE‘F.it\O"‘Iﬂ‘ H‘J(‘s thergh fa3 numbcr Or\ﬂlend‘ CO"]LI’O‘ POMC\C‘}:,

The Scheme s subject ta rogular sctuarial vauations, which are usually carniea sul every three years. InJune 2021, the 2019 tnenn al valuation was
zoncluded and the Company have agrecd to cortinue Lo pay rline with the existing recovery pan Under this plan, defici reduction contributions
started 3t £2 Tmilior in July 2315 and nerease pes annum in hne with TP Subsequent to the year end, fixed secur ty over certan of the Company's
freehoid properties Gwith s net baok value of £27 3 millian), has been provided to the Scheme as addivonal security, the value of which will be reviewed
st each trernial valuation The next tnicarial vialuauon « due on 3C July 2022

The figurevin the FG”ow'mg disclosures wore measured using the prOJ-'JCtOd urit cred tmethod.
The Schere has not nvesied 1in any of the Group's own Fnanc.al instruments or in properties or other assets in use by the Grou
Y P F ¥ p

Key assumptions
The key assumptizns used in Lae 2021 valuauion of the Scheme are set out below:;

20N
Mertality assumptions Years
Current pensioners (st 65] males 22.2
Current pensioners (3t 65) females 24.4
Future pensioners (at 65) - males 235
Future pensioners (4t 65)  formnales 259

The Scheme s now closed Lo futuie accrual The average age of the members who were uctive at closure 15 3G for males and 52 for females.
The average age of all non peasionersis 56

Key financial assumptions used in the valuation of the Scheme 2021 s
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.35% 2.85%
Discount rate 1.95% 2.40%
Inflaticn assurmpton RPI o 3.40% 2.85%
Inflation assumption - CP! (pre 2030/post 2030) 2.5%/3.4%  195%

The present vilue of the Scheme | abilities s sensibive ta the assumptions used, as fallaws

2021 222
Impact on Scheme liabilities - increase/(decrease)’ Em L
Increase discount rate by 0.1% (2.6} 21
Increase inflation assumption by 0.1%- 21 "8
Increase ife expectancies by 1year 7.3 57

1 The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumpticn whilst holding all of the other assumption constant. In practice thisis unlikely to accur and changes in some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity to change, the same actuarial method has been applied as when calculating the pension liability within
the Balance Sheet. Due to the Scheme closing to future acerual on Vanuary 2015, there are no |onger any active members in the Scheme. As the members who were
active at closure did not maintain a salary link on their past service benefits, the future salary increase assumptions no longer have an impact on the Scheme's liabilities.

2 For members who were active at clasure, their pensions now increase in deferment in line with CPlinflation.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

25. Pensions continued

Continued

27 March SN
2021 iz
Assets in the Scheme €m b
Carparate bonds 25.5 268
Index linked debt inatruments 28.3
Gilts - 24.0
UK equites - 17.0
Overseas oquwtlc:s 30.6 209
Alternatives' B 53.7 305
Cash 19 0%
Xﬁnuitic\ o 3.8 36
Tatal market value of assets 143.8 1238
1 Alternatives is composed of heldings in diversified growth investment funds. 2021 2
Em EN

Fair value of Scheme assets 143.8 1428
Fresent value of Scheme habilities (147.3} (128.2)
Deficit in the Scheme (3.9) a7y

Ircluded within the tatal present value of Group and Company Scheme labilities of £147 3 million (2020: £128 5 mulion) are isbilities of £2 1 muillion

(2070 £2.4 evhion) which sre entrely unfunded

I N S LN S3Lanm s Sohetit 3seats R RUTEES TRENEE VT
2021 * ZUEM 2021 27 02 -
£m Lo Em L Em L
Balance at beginning of the year {128.5) {148 3} 123.8 nme 4.7) (36.4)
Included in profit and loss n T
Current service cost - - -
MNet interest cost - —(TOJ T —(377) _7—279 31 0.1 (0.6)
(3.0) (37) 2.9 31 (0.1) (08)
Included in Other Comprehensive Income o
Actuarial gains/(fosses) relating to: o -
Actual return less expected return an Scheme's assets ~ - 19.5 (13.2) 19.5 {13 2)
Experence gains/(losses) ansing on Scheme labilities N (20.55 19 1 - - (20.5) 4_51—
(20.5) 191 19.5 (13.23 (1.0} 59
Other
Emgloyer special contributions - - - 24? - 240
Employer contributions - 2.3 24 2.3 2.4
Benelits pac 4.7 44 (4D (4 4) - -
4.7 4.4 (2.4) 220 2.3 6 4
Balance at end of the year (147.3) (128 5) 143.8 1238 (3.5) (47)

The weighted sverage duratior of the Scheme’s labilt e, st the ond of the period 517 y2ars {2020 17 years),

The total contributions to the scheme in the next finane » yesr are expected Lo be £2 3 mil o for the Group and Cempany Fallowing the
concluuan of the 2012 tnereul waluaton on 15 Jure 2027, ©ras sgreed that the Cermpany viou'd continue to pay contmbutiors rlre with the
geficit recovery plan which started at £2.1 rlbon in July, 2079 ardircrease cach year vate CFL Tha recovery deficit prin w Il be roviewed at the nex:
trigrrial valuat on wh chos duc an 30 July 2022 No further paymerts are rrade as the Seheme s now zlased to future azerLs!

'nthe prior year, failoving the sale of the Fuller’s Beer Busiress to Asam Europe Lid, whch campleted on 27 Apnl 2019 the Group rrade a specul
corinbution of £24.5 million of ne: cash proceeds from the sale ta the Scheme.
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26. Preference Share Capital

Group and Company
First 6% Second B%
cumulative cumulative
preference preference
share of share of
E1 each £1each Tatal
Authorised, issued and fully paid share eapital Numbher Number Mumber
Number authecrised and in issue: 000s D00s 000s
At 30 March 2019, 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021 400 1,200 1,600
o
Maonetary amount: fm Erm €m 2
At 30 March 2019, 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021 0.4 1.2 1.6 P
(@]
ol
The firat &% curmulatree proference shares of £1 cach are enutled ta first paymert of a fixed cumulative dividerd and on winding up to 3 return of pad ©
capital plas arrears of dividends. Tre second 8% curmulat ve preference shares of £1 sach are entitled to second payment of 3 fixed curmulatee dradend -
and onwinding up a return of capital pad up (pus o premiuee csleulatea by reference to an average quoted price or the London Stock Exchange for
the provicus six months) plus arrears of dividends
Preference sharcholders may anly vote in hmited aircumstances: onncipally on winding up, aiteration of class nghts aron unpaid preference dindends
Preference shares cannet be redeermed by the hoiders. other than on vandimg up.
27 Provisions
Lo a R, o0
REe Lol stz 2
. <
2021 Sz 2021 P Q
Group and Company Em - £m Ze >
Balance at beginning UF the year 4-1 42 - 26 {3
~
Utilised {0.1) (O -
Transferred to r:ém of Lso assets - - - (26)
Balance at end of the year 4.0 41 -
2021 I 2021 2l
Analysed as: Em e fm N
Due with.m one year 4.0 41 -
Due \n more than ong year - -
4.0 41 - -

Further information has not been disclosed about the legal clairm asitis an orgoing dispate
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

28, Financral instruments
Detals of the Group's treasary funcvon sreincluded in <he Financian Rewview's d eussion of financial risks ard treasury polioes on page 25

The ﬂccounl_\'mg trcatment of the Group‘: financial instruments s detaled in note 1,

a) Capital Management - Group and Company

Asdeseribed innote 1, the Group considers s capita lo comprise the Fo”ow-ng:

2021 e,
Group £m -
Ordinary share capital 22.8 228
mremmm 4.2 4.2
Copital redernptior reserve T 3.7 37
Hedging reserve (0.5 9
Retained earrings 366.3 A7
Prefercnce shares 1.6 1.6

398.1 4485

0 R

Company £m -

Ordinary share cagital 228 228
Share pramium 4.2 4.2
CapiLal redemplion reserve 3.7 T 37
Hedging rescrve - (0.5i (0.9;
Merger reserve (1.6)

Hetaned earnings - 320.7 3735
Preference shoares 1.6 16

350.9 4048

In MIaNAgIng 1ty Cdpwtaﬁ ihe .D(;mdry cojectwc- 15 Lo ensure that the Gr-:up 1 able to continue Lo operalo as g pong concern and Lo muxim.se return
to shareholders through a combmation of capita’ growth, distributions ard the payment of preference dividends to ity prefererce sharcnolders

The Group secks ta maintain d ratic of debt and equity that batances risks and returns at an acceptable level ard maintains sufficient funds Lo meet
working capital targets, investment requiremerts end comply with lending covenarts. The Group did nat buy back any shares in the 52 weeks ended
27 Marcn 2021{2020: £0.5 millon). As a minimum, the Board reviews the Group’s dividend policy rwice yearly and revicws the freasury position
at every Board meeling.
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b) Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Groop's financ al assets ard labilities aw recognised 4t the Bularce Sheet date may slvo be categonsed as follows:

2021 i
Group Em S
Non-current assets
Financial assets at amortised casl. h
Loans and other receivables in scope of IFRS G - 01
Total mon current assats - 0.1
Current assets
Trude and other recerables in scope of IFRS 9 2.1 24
Total current dssets 2.1 2.4
Total financial assets 21 25
Current liabilities
Fimancial habilitios at amortised cost: o
Trade and ather pay sbles in scope of IFRS 254 30.0
Lease liabilities o 6.7 89_
Loars 207.7 171.7
Total carned at amortsed cost 239.8 2105
Total current iubilties 239.8 210.6
Non-current liabilities
Derivative Dnancal instruments used for hedging o 0.7 1.1
Financial hiabiliies at amortised cost.
Lease habilities o o 83.2 104.0
Laars and debenture stack 259 259
Preference sharcs 1.6 1.6
Totai carnied al amertised cost 110.7 1315
Total non-current hsbil tes 111.4 1326
Total financial habilities 351.2 3432
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cantiriued
28. Financial Instruments continued
2021 s

Company £m
Non-current assets
Financial assets at amortised cast: T
Loans and other receivables in scope of IFRS @ - - 01
Total non current assote, - Q1
Current assets
Trade and other receisables nscope of IFRS S 13 93
Total current assets 2.1 X
Total financial assets 2.1 10.0
Current liabilities
Financial habilives at amorused cost.

Trade snd other payables in scope of IFRS 9 158.4 1596

Lease l:abilities 6.5 79

Loans 2077 1717
Total carned st amortised cost 372.6 339.2
Total current habilities 3726 3392
Non-current liabilities
Dervatwe Ninancial instruments used for hedging T 07 "
ﬁmnncwa' abilities at amartised cost: B

Lease habilities 81.8 917

Lcans and deberture stock 259 25

Prefercnce shares 1.6 1.6
Tote! carried at amortised cost 109.3 192
Total nor current habilities 110.0 120.3
Total financial liabilities A82.6 4585

There 15 no set of f of financial assets and habilties as shown above.

¢} Financial Risks — Group and Company

The main risks assotisted with the Greup's finanzial assets and hskilities are set out below, 35 are the Group's policies for their management

Derivative inslruments are used to change tne economic characterstics of finangialinstruments in accardance with Group pohicy.

i. Interest rate risk

The Group manages its cost af borravangs using a mixture of fired rates, variable rates and interest rate swops Foxed rates do not expose the Group

20 cash flow interest rate nisk, but do not enjoy a reduction 'n borrowing costs in markels where rates are falling Floatng rate bor-owings, although

not exposed to changes ir farr Lulue, expose the Group to cash flow nisk foilow ng mses iminterost rates ard cost.

The debentures totating U255 mithon (2020: €253 miliond and the CUFF totaling £99 3 muhon (2020: £nh), net of intereat paid in advance,
areat Fxed rates The bark loans wotaling £107.9 millor (2020, 81717 million], ret of arrargemert fees, are at floating rates. At the year end, alter

taking accourt of nterost rate swaps, 19% (2020 23%) of the Groug's bank loars and 63% (2020 34%] of gross borrow ngs were at fixed razes.
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Interest rate swaps

The Group has enterad into 1nterest rate swap agreements, whese the Group pays a fixed rate and receives ane month or tnree month LIBOR, in
arder to hedpe the nisk of variation in interest cash fiows en its borrowings Al the Balance Sheet date £20.0 million of the Group and Company’s
berrowings (2020, £40.0 mithion) were hedged by interast rate swaps at o blended fixed rate of 2.30% (2020: 2.42%). The swap sctive at 27 March
2021 expres n 2022

The interest rate swap s expected ta mpact the income Statement in ine with the iquidity risk table shownin section (i) below, The interest rate
swap cash flow hedge in effect at 27 March 2027 was aswessed as being highly effective Net urrealised guin of €0 2 million (2020, £0.2 millen)
has been recorded ir Otner Comprebensive ncome Anonterest rate swap for £20 O millon expired in August 2020 and resulted in £0.2 milion

net roaiseg gain

Sensitivity - Group ond Company
The Group borrows in S[orlmg ar market rates, Three month Ster\mg LIBOR rate durmg the 52 woeks ended 27 March 20271 rdﬂgcd betweer
0 09% and O 98% Trne Directors consider 1.00% to be a reasonable poislb\e incredsa in rates and 0.50% 1o be 1 reasorable p@55|b|c decrease

inrates, with reference to market yield curves and the current economic conditions.

The annualsed effect of tnese chilr\ges ta interest rates on the F|c._1tmg rate debt at the Balance Sheet d:stc, 4i other varablos bcmg corstant,

are as follows:

202

Impact on post-tax profit and net equity — increase/(decrease) Em Lo Em P
Decrease interest rale by O 5% 04 0.5 0.9 1.1
Increase interest rate by 1.0% (0.7) o0 (1.8) ]

1 The Company has substantial interest bearing payables due to subsidiary companies (note 23).

i, Credit risk
The risk of Fnancial loss due to . counter party’s failure Lo honour its oklgations arises principally in relat on to trarsactions where the Group

orovides goads and services on deferred payment terme, deposits surplus cash and enters into dervative contracts,

Group palicies are aimed at m rimising losses and deferred terms are only granted to customers who demonstrate an appropriate payment hstory
and @.mﬁf').' credit warthiness procc—durcs Indiadual custemers are %ub\e:t to credit imits to control debt EXPOSLre and good% may dlso be sold on

4 cash with order Basis

Cash depasits wath financial institut.ons for short per.ods and dervatve transactions are enly permitted with finarcial nstitutions approved by
the Board. There are no sigmflicant concenirations of credit risk with.n the Group, The maxmum credit nisk exposure relating to financial eets

In represented by their carryirg value as at the Ba'ance Sheet date.

Trade and other receivables
The Group recerds impairment losses on its trade recenvables separately from gross recevables Further detail s included in note 20.

ii. Liquidity risk

The Group minimises liquidity risk by managing cash generation, applying trade recervables coilection targets, monitoring daily cash recoipts and
payments and setting rolling cash forecasts. Investments have cash payback periods apphied as part of a Lightly controlled investment appraisal
pracess The Groups raling w Lh credit agencies is excellent,

The Group has a mixture of long ard short-term borrowings and overdraft faclites 9% (2020 11%) of the Group's borrowings are repaysble after
more than fve Vears, 3% (2020 76%]) within the first to Aifth yEIrs and A% (2020 3% wirin one year.

The tabies on Lhe [ollowing page surmmarise the maturty profile of the Graup's financial lsbiities at 27 March 2027 based o1 undiscounted
contractu il € 3k flows, including intorest payabie. Floating rate interest is estimated using the prevalng interest rate at the Balance Sheet date
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

?8. Financial Instruments continued 7

o e
Group st 27 March 2021 O
Interest bearing loans and borrowings' - 210.0
Prefercnce shares” _ - 01
Trade and other payables w7 w87 a0
Lease labilities - 72 10.2

1 Bankloans areincluded after taking account of the following cash flows in relation to the interest rate swap held in respect of these borrowings:

Interest rate swaps 01 03 02 - 0.6
o [ -5 tnan ERTR) Mmooy

ERlaERS | T [l e PERIL Tetal

Group at 28 March 2020 Ler, o £m o Em
Interest bear:ng 'oans and borrowings’ 1601 1.2 293 243 215.5
Preference shares” - - 01 05 34 4.0
Trade and other payables ] 12.6 13.3 41 - - 30.0
Lease hatlities 3.0 a1 a7 947 148.5

1 Bank loans are included after taking account of the folfowing cash Flows in relation to the interest rate swap and cap held in respect of these borcowings:

Interest rate swaps - 0.2 0.3 0.4 - 0.9

2 The preference shares have no contractual repayment date For the purposes of the table sbove interest payments have been shawn for 20 yesrs from the Balance Sheet
date but no further,

The £160.1 millon has been restated from the 1 ta 5 years bucket to the on demand bucket. This1s because at the end of FY20 there was a techrical breach of the covenants
and therefore the balance should have been disclesed within the on demand bucket.

w

The Campany figures are as For the Group, except as fallows:

[}

el : : e Total
Campany at 27 March 2021 o B e Em
Amounts due ta subsidiary undertakings” 1331 - - - - 1331
Trade and ather payables 126 87 4.0 - 253
Lease habilties ' - 99 02 795 1067
Company st 28 March 2020
Amounts due Lo subsidiary undertakings 1322 - 132.2
Trade and other payables 115_ N.B_ 41 o - 2?;
Lease hablives - 27 8.1 36.3 85.0 1321

3 Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings have no fixed repayment date. Interest s payable on the halance at 3% above the Bank of England base rate.

Security - Group and Company
The 10.7% debentures 2023 are secured cn property, p|af1L and equ prrent with 3 net bock value cFE1.E milion (2020 £11.0 million). The 6 875%
debentures 2025 are wecured by a ﬂoallng Crarge over the assels of the Convp(my

Covenants - Group and Company
The Group and Company are subject to 1 number of covenants in relaton o their borrowing facilities whizh i contravened, vadld result rits
l24rs bacoming wermediately repayable. These cavenants inter al 4 spzaily maxirrum net debt to earmings befare nterest, tax, depreciaton and

arrGrisation, and minimam e4rrings bafsre nterest, $49x, dcpremat\or\ and amcriisabion o interess.
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When it came apparent that as a result of coronavirus the Company’s pubs and hotels would need to temporarily close, Fuller’s began discussions
withats lenders and Tormally agreed appropaate amendments Lo its banking agreerrents with s lenders Tne revsed covenants focus on liguidity
headroom metries, which are more appropriate under the current carenavirus conditons The agreemert was nitia'ly through o September 2020
and was later extended to March 2021, A part of the amend and extend of the Fiailitios, as dgrecd on 20 Apr | 2021, Lhe covenants were waived
through to and ncluding March 2022 and replaced with the fiqudity test

d) Fair Value

A e ala- Conale )
2021 VN 2021 Zolln A
G'ouP Em o Em T _ ] m
Financial assets ;
Loans and other recervables duc:im more than one yearnin scope of IFRS O - [N - [0 3 U’§
Financial liabilities e
Lease habilitics (89.9) (2 {89.9) 1129 3 E
Fixed rate borrowings (125.7) (259 (132.7} (33.4) 3 -
Floating raze borrowings (107.9) a7 (107.9) {171.7) 3
Preference shares (1.6) (1.6] (1.6) (2.03 3
Imtere-t rate swaps (0.7) RN (0.7) N 2
The Company ligures are as lor the Group apove except for
G e3in2 AR [ - )]
i Q
2021 2021 vl 5
Company £m Erm o hs
Financial liabilities Z
(el
Lease habilties (88.3) (99.67 (88.3) (996 3

Lovel 1 values are valuation Lechmgues where inputs are quoted prices in active markets fer identica assets or habilities that the entizy can access

at measure d4ta.

Level 2 fair values are valuation techmiques where allinputs which have a sigrificant ef fect on the recorded fu r value are observable, either directly
ar indirectly, but ace rot der-ved aireet'y from quoted prices in active mackets. The Group bases.ts valustiens on information provided by financial
nsbitut ors, who use a vanely of estimation techrmiques bused on market conditions, such as nterest rate expectat ons, exisung at each Balarce

Sheet date

Level 3Tar values are valuation techriques for which all nputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not abservable,
Derivatve farr values are sbtaned from aquoted warket prices in active markets. The fair values of borrowings have been calcuiated by discounting
the expected future cash flows at prevaiing interest rates. Interest rates for borrowings range from 1.3% 10 12.7%. The farr vslues of preference
shares have been caculated using the market interest rates,

Management assessed that the fair values of cash and short-term depours, trade recanasbles and other receivables, and trade and other payables
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term msturities of these instruments.

There were no transfers between levels in the Fa'rvalue higrarchy as at 27 March 2021 and 28 March 2020.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cantinued

29. Share Capital and Reserves
a) Share Capital

Authorised, issved and Fully paid o

Number in issue :'Y“;‘: ZZ o L Tl
At 30 March 2019 33,578 14,503 89,052 - 137133
lssue of Share Capital - 552,318 552,318
Reclassaiflication to Deferred shares - - (552,318) 552318
Cancellauion of Deferred shares - - (592,318) (552 314}
ghdre conversigns a az T 4z B - - -

At 28 March 2020 33,620 14 461 89.052 - - 137133
Share conversions - - -

At 27 March 2021 33,620 14,461 89,052 - - 137,133
Propertion of total equity shares at 27 March 2021 24.5% 10.6% 64.9% - - 100%
Manetary amount - - e £m b
At 28 March 2020 13.4 5.8 36 - 228

Share conversions . B _ B

At 27 March 2021 13.4 5.8 3.6 - - 22.8

Share capital represents the norminal value praceeds rezeved om the waue of the Corrpany™, equity share capital, comprisng 40p and dp ordinar.
P P p > Pany s equity prsing SVp P I
shires. The Compary's preference shares arc classified as non currert labihtics i aceordance witn IFRS (sec note 26

The ordinary sharehaiders are entitled to be pad a dividend out of any surplus prefits and Lo participate im surplus assets on winding up in proportion
to the nominal value of each class of share ("B shares have one tenth of the nomiral value of A and 'Cshares)

All equity shaces inthe Company carry ore vote per skare, save that shares held in treasary have ther vot.ng rights suspended. The N and ' C sharas
have 4 40p romunal value and the "B’ shares have o dp ramunal value so that o B b are dindend wall be paid 4t 10% of the rate applying to ' and "C
shares The /A shares sre [stad an the Londar Stack Exchange, The Tl sharas zarry a night for the holder to convert thom to A’ shares by written
notice in the 30 day perad feliowing the half year and preliminary announcements The "B’ shares are not listed and have ne conversion nights.

In most circumstances the valee of 4 'B' share 15 deerred to be 10% of the value of the lintad A shares The Trustee ho\dmg shares lor pdrt\'cipqnts

ol the LTIP currently waives dvidends far shares held during the imtial three year period Dividends, are rot paid on shares held in treasury.

The Articies include provis ons relating La the Company’s "B and 'C’ shares which prowide that shareholders who wish to transfer their shares may
oaly do so f the transfer s ta snather "B ar 'Clsharehalder, o if the tranafer 1 to cartam of thet sharehsldar’, farmily mermbers or thew executers
or adrinistrators or, where shares are held by Trusices, 1o new Trustees, o to the Trustees of any employce share screme, or f the Company i,
unable todenuify another sharehelder of that class willing to purchase the shares within the specified periad, to any person.

The ‘D share with rominal value orG.Wp were haved to the ordinary sharehaiders .n the follow rg proporlions: ten ‘D skares foreach 'A'crdundry

share and 'C ardinary sharz in ssue and one "0 share for each "B ordinary skare v 1ssue The "D shares were reclassified as a deferred shares and
subsequertly cancelled upen payment ala single ¥ snare drvidend (note 33
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b) Own Shares

Own shares relale to shares held by independently maraged ESOTs together with the Comouany’s holding of treasury snares Shares are purchased
by the ESOTs in order Lo satisly potentia’ awards under the LTIP and SIP. Treasury shares are used, inter alia, to satinfy options under the Company's
share options schemres The LTIP ESCT has waved its nghts to dividends on the shares it holds Treasury shares have voting and dvidend nights
suspended All own shares heod, as below, are excluded fram earrings and nel assots per share calcul stions

Number oA L R
At 30 March 2019 6 & 6,373
Shares purchased - 140
Shares transfereed - - fal - -

Shares released 43) (337) {337)
At 28 March 2020 4,558 326 6 5 1,285 4,834 @) 5176
Shares released - - - - (7 (7]
At 27 March 2021 4,558 326 6 5 1,279 4,834 6 6,169
Monetary amount B B T P L e ks e P
At 30 March 2019 149 4.6 0.2 01 149 45 01 19.8
Shares purchased 0.4 - 01 0.4 o - 0.5
Shares trsn-ferred o (0.9) - - - 05

Shares releascd (28 (04 (3.2 - - (3.2)
At 28 March 2020 12.0 4.6 0.3 01 0.1 121 4.9 01 171
Shares released 0. - - (SR} . - o
At 27 March 2021 ne 4.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 12.0 4.9 0.1 17.0
Market value at 27 March 2021 1.0 39 0.3 0.1 - 1.0 4.2 0.1 15.3

¢) Other Capital Reserves

Share premium account

The batarce in the snare premium account represents the procecds receved above the nominal value on the issue of the Company’s equity share

capital. In the prior year, share premium was capitalised by £E0 & mullion in order Lo issue D' shares with the nominal va'ue of O1p each to ordinary

sharehalders. The ‘D’ shares were reclassified a- 4 deferred share and subsequently cancelled upon payment of a sng'e ‘D’ share dividend (note &)

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve balance arses from the buy back of the Company's own equity share capital.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve contains the effective portion of the cash flow hedge relationships incurred at the Balance Sheet date, net of tax.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve anses on the hive up of a subsid ary at market value with any difference between the reduction in investment and the underlying
assels boing recogrised in this reserve,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

30. Share Options and Share Schemes

The key paints of each of the Group's share schemes for grants up to 27 Marck 2021 are summarised below. Al schemes are eguity settled

All disclosure relates to both Group and Company. For the purposes of option and LTIP schemes, “Adjusted EPS™ wall normully be consistent
with the post-tax earmings per sharc excluding separately disclosed items as presented in the financial statements. However, the Remunaration
Committee 1~ authonsed to fake approprivte adjustments to Adusted EPS 44 applied 1o these schemes.

Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE")

This scheme grants options aver shares ut a discount of 20% on the average market price over the three days immediately prior to the date of of fer
Employees must save a regular amount each month. Savngs are made over threc or fve years, at the parucipants choice The nght 1o buy shares at the
discounted price lasts for six months after the end of the savings contract. There are no performance conditions, other than continued employment.

Senior Executive Share Option Scheme
Thisis an urdpproved Exzcutive Share Optlom Scherme No new grants hove been made under thes scheme since 2013 and Al remaning oplions were
exercised during the yesr ended 28 Marek 2020

Executive Share Option Scheme

Thisis an approved Executive Share Option Scheme For the grants up to the yaar ended 78 March 2020 the options vest f growth in Adjusted
EPS euceeds the growth in RPl by 9% o more, over the three yoar performasnce penod of the opuion, From the grant made doring the year ended
27 March 2021 onwards, Lhe options vest if tme set pre tax Adjusted EPS target is achieved The opticns must then be exercised within seven yeirs
after the end of the perfermance perod,

LTIP

This plan awards free shares. Up untid the LTIF grantad during the yoar ended 27 March 2021 VOsLIng 1y conditional on growthin AdJUSLEd EPS
exceeding growth in RPI by 9% or more cver the three yoarimitwl performance period of the award, with ve.ning lovels or a sliding scale from 40%
up to 100% F gravwth in Adyusted EPS cxceeds growth in RPI by 24% or more

From the LT1P granted duning the year ended 27 March 202V vesting w condimanal upsn pre- tax Adjusted EPS targets, with vesong levels on
asiding scale from 25% up to 100% dependent an tha leval of EPS achieved An independent firm of advisors venifies the vesting level each year.
The initial vesting period s throo years Afler this ime the shares may be passed to the plan participants, as long as vestiag conditions are met.

SIP

This pian awards free shares. An equal number of shares are awarded o cach eligiblz employee The maximur value of the shares allewabls unaer the
scherme 1s £3,000 per year, per persen with st least five montng service 35 aL 15 May each year The basis of the award was changed with effect fram
the 2018 award s that all dlg\b‘e amployees recaive the sarme number of shares. Thore s no requiremment for performance Largets [\ﬂLhough thero
may be tax consequences o sold within Mue yoars of the sward)

Share-based payment expense recognised in the year
The expense recognised for share based payments in respect of employee services received duning the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021
15 £O.3 mullion credit (2020, £0.5 million :hargc]. The whaote of that oxpense arses from equlty—scttfed share based paymeni Lransactors,

Market value
The market value of the shares a2 27 March 2021 was E8.60 (2020 £6 50)

Movements in the year
The following tebles dlusirete the rumber and weighted aversge crerone prices UWAEP™) of. und inovernents in, cach cotegory of share rstrument

duning the year.

Velatility

The expected volat ity 1s based on the b stencal volatliy auer the expected e of the rights
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a) SAYE
2021 P
Number 20 MLkt
000s WAEP HTN
Ou.’sl.mdmg at the bc‘g\r‘mng of the yeadr 167 £7.98 485
Granted 410 £4.35 - nta
Forfoited (78) £7.54 {129) £790
Expirad (38) £8.06 o nt
Excreised )] £8.12 (189} £780
Outstanding at the end of the year 460 £4.79 167 {798
Excroisable ot the erd of the year 9 £8.51 -
Weighted average share price for options exerc’sed in the yaar £8.99 £1013
Weighted average centractual ife remaming for share options outstarding ot the year end 3.1 years 2 2 yaars
Weighted average share price for aptions granted in the year £5.59 rla
Wewghted average farr value orroptlom grdmed durmg the yodr £1.38 nia
Range of exercise prices for options cutstanding at the year end
- frem £4.35 £7.70
to £8.70 £8.70
Cutstanaing share options granted ta employees under the SAYE seneme arc as Tollows:
Number of N b
‘A ordinary
o= .= sharesunder iz
RO aption BN
BT 201 2
Exercisable at r 000s oo
September 2020 R0 6 26
September 2020 812 3 40
September 2021 774 17 35
September 2021 770 24 50
Soptcmber 2022 812 3 5
Seplember 2023 770 4 10
November 2023 4.3% 228 -
MNovember 2025 4.35 175
460 167
b) Share Option Schemes
Sem ot Fase e Bt e o S e
201 P
Number 2021 N P
000s WAEP [ Wk
Out\t.—mdmg 4t the bcgmnmg of the yoar - nla 75 c700
Excrcised - nfa (75) €700
Outstanding at the end of the year - nla nfa
Weighted average share price for options exeresedin the year nfa F967

145

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPORY AND ACCOUNTS 2021

MIINIBA)

1ioday wdneng

S'JUPUJDAOE)

=
a
a
o
o
=l
=
5
—_
o
2
3
=
o
5



FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continuad

30. Share Options and Share Schemes continued

e er e S e
2021 e
Number 2021 Mo =t
004Qs WAEP 070 =
Outstanding at the begrnning of the vear 159 £9.69 138 £9.50
Granted 13 692 34 E9e
Lapsed N o 44)  £10.24 420 £1024
Surrendered® (65) €971
Excrcrsed _—‘ () £578 QN €884
Outstanding at the end of the year 212 £7.46 159 £9.69
Exercisable at the end of the year 26 £9.03 47 £943
Weighted average share price for aptions exeroied i the year £7.36 £10.05
Weighted sverage contractual | fe remaining for share options outstanding at the year end 8.63 years 6.93 years
Waerghted average sharc price for options granted in the year £6.92 £9.70
Weightad sverage far value of options granted during tre year £0.94 £0.84
Range of excroise prices for opnons outstanding at the yoar end
- from £6.92 £578
- to £10.90 £1090

During the year ended 27 March 2021, 65,073 optians were surrendered and replacement aptians granted, shown wrthin the number granted above. This was treated as
a modification of the original grants and as such the fair value recognised for the replacement options was reduced by the calculated fair value of the surrendered options
as at the date of surrender, the average of which was £0.35. The fair value calculation for the surrendered options was performed consistently with the inputs disclosed at
section e}(i} below except as follows. The expected remaining life ranged from 2 to & years, the volatlity ranged from 17.7% to 20.9% and the risk-free interest rate used
ranged from -0.1% to 0.05%.

Outstanding optiors which are capable of being excrased betweer threc and ten years from date of ssue and their excreise prices are shown in the

table belaw:

St Anpnaasy e e

Number of
‘A ordinary v
sharesunder  <r3ree o Jor
aptian -

- 2021
Exercisable in/between 3 000s R
2013 and 2020 5./8 - 1
2014 and 2021 709 2 2
2015 and 2022 705 5 5
2016 and 2023 310 9 10
2017 and 2024 5.65 5 17
2018 and 2025 1090 5 i3
2020 and 2027 10,34 - 38
2021 4nd 2023 946 19 A2
2022 4rd 2029 5.6 4 31
2023and 2030 £392 163 -
212 159

146

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPORT ANG ACCOUNTS 2021



c) LTiP
201 2021
‘A shares ‘B shares
Number Number
Shares 000s 000s
Outstarding at the beginning of the year 288 721
Granted 220 549 15 2H8
Adustment for D shares impact - - 13 45
Lapsed (104) (261) (205) (512)
Outstanding at the end of the year 404 1,009 288 2
Werghted average share price for snares vestad in the year nfa nfa n‘a n/a
For shares outstarding at the year end, the weighted aversge centractual ffe remaning is 1.9Tyears 191years 160 yenrs 160 years
Weighted average share price for shares granted in the year £5.90 £0.59 £97C F097
\Ne\ghted 'J‘./erdge F.‘Hr V'ilue OF‘shdre\ grdﬂlcd dhrlﬂg 'LhC yCdr £5|75 {0-58 E895 EO 90
AllLTIPs have a vesting price of Eail LTID shares do nat receive div dends until vested.
d) SIP
201 e
Number N TEer
000s S0
Outstand.ng at the begirming of the year 150 254
Granted - 43
Lspaed - m
Released (38) (148)
Outstanding at the end of the year 12 150
Wanghted average share price for shares released in the year £7.22 £2.61
Far shares autstanding st the year end, Lhe weighted average contractual life remainng < 1.88years 261 years
Woighted average share price for shares granted during the year - £10.34
\Newghted average fair value of shares granted during the year - 030 34

Outstanding 5P snarcs represent shares allocated and held by the SIP Trustzes on beh il ol employoes, wheeh remair in the trust for between three
and five years. All SIPs have a vesting prece of Enil, SIP shares receve dudends onece allocates
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

30. Share Options and Share Schemes continued

e) Fair Value of Grants

i. Equity-settled options and LTIPs

The farr value of equity -settled share options granted 1s estimated as at the date of grant, taking into account the terms and conditions upon

which the awards were granted. The following table ists the inputs to the madel used for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 and 52 weeks ended
28 March 2020, except for oxercine price and the veighted average share price for grants i the year, which are disclosed in vections a) 1o d) sbove.

L e SAYE Tertaree Sone Csnan Sbams
Fair value inputs 20 zl0l 2021 FowIn 2021 220
Dwidend yield (%) nil% 1.8% nil% nla nil% 1.8%
Expected share price volatiity (%) nla nia 17.2%-19.1% nfa 18.7% 15 8%
Risk free interest rate (%) (0.1%) 0.4% {0.1%) e 0% 04
Expected life of oprion/award (years) 3 years 3 years 3to 5 years nfa 4 years A years
Maodel used Black Scholz Black Scholes  Black Scholes n/a  Black Scholes  Black Scholes

. SIP free shares awarded
The far value of free shares awarded under the SIR s the shure price at the date of allocaton, The total value of SIPs awarded s a fixed rate based on the
Groupvs perﬂjrn"ﬂnco in the preceding Firancial yaar The mumber of shares awarded s therefore dependerton the share price at the date of the award

31 Guarantees and Commitments

a} Operating Lease Commitments

Operating leases where the Group is the lessor

The Group earns rental income fram two sources. Lcensed property included within property, plant and equipment . rented under agrecments
where lessocs must alvo purchase goods from the Graup, Additonally there are a smal'er rumber of agreerrents in respect of investmant properties
where there 1s no requirement for the lessee to purchase goods,

Investment proper Lies are lel to third paroies onleases that have remaining terms of between one and fifteen years,

AL 27 March 2021 future minimum rentals receivable are 3s folipws:

PER UL P R R PR
riiyal PR 20N Sl
Group fm b £m L
Within one year 0.5 o8 7.8 31
Betwaen one year and five years o 0.7 10 1.2 T 48
After live years 0.3 U5 0.8 33
1.5 2.3 19.8 n.z

Company
Within one year 0.5 08 7.8 26
Between one year and five years 0.7 1.0 1.2 4.7
After fuve years 03 05 08 13
15 23 19.8 124

The Group and Company’s commercial lesses or property ase prinaipally for icensed autiets. The terms of tne lecses zre rormally for either three,

four or fiue yoars Tre apreemerts silow for annual inflat onary mcrcases and full rental reviews occur on rencwal of the lease

At 27 March 2021 Tuture aenmum rens s receivabie under nor -carceilible sub leases included in the figures shove were £16 muinen (2020, £5 4 ruon]
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b) Other Commitments

2021 Yo
Graup and Cumpany ftm For
Capital commitments - authorised, contracted but not provided for 2.4 1.3

32. Related Party Transactions

Group and Company

Dunng the current und prior years the Company provided vanous admiristrative services ta the Fuller, Seuth & Turner Pension Plar freq of cn arge.
In addivon, the Corrpany settled costs totaling £368,000 (2020: £497,000] relating to the nrov sion of actuanal, consullng and administrative

services by thrd parties to the Fuler, Smith & Turrer Peasion Fan, w
52 weeks =
ended )
27 March £ ﬂ%‘
2021 0
Compensation of key management persannel (including Directors) E£m i @
.
Shert term employee benefits 3.0 473 5
Termination benefits a1 11
Past employment benefits 0.3 0.4
Share based payrments - 0.z
3.4 5.0
Company Only o
Dur'rg tne year the Company entered into the foliowing related party trunsactions 2
o
Sales to Purchases  Interestdue  Interestdue Amountsdue Amountsdue 2
related  from related  fram related to related to related  from related 2
parties parties parties parties parties parties [
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 £m Em Em fm fm km
Subsidiaries - 21.0 - 4.2 (133.1) -

Ao A _angs s

52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 T ‘ Con } [ Lot T, ; ._:
Supsidiaries 0.2 75.4 1.7 44 (1322 75

Interest 's payable cn the ma ority of the amaunts due to subsidiaries at 3% sbove the Burk of England base rate. All amounts outstanding are

unsecured and repayable on demand.

The Company recaived rentul income from subsidianes of Enil during the year (2020 £0 3million} The Company also incarred rental expenses
from subsidiaries of ED.3 million (2020: F10.1 millhion]

In addition, the Company has recharged an amount of Enr (2020 €14 million) to ity subsidiarics and incurrea EQ T rmullion (2028 £2.1 rullion)

Df recnrirge&. From ILs SUDSIdI ares durihg rng ye'ar

UO!U?LLUO}U| ‘[JUOi]Ippv
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cortinued

32. Related Party Transactions continued

Subsidianies of parent compuarues established wathin the European Economic Area are exempt from an aud 't if s guarantee 1s prowded by the parent for the
subsidiary habilities and the sharcholders are 'n unammous agreerment. The Group wil be exempurg the following companies from an audit n 2021 for the
period ended 27 March 2021 under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, all of which are fully conschidated in tnese Firancial statements:

Company Cornpany Number
Griffin Catering Services Limited 01577632

Jacamb Guirness Limited 32934979

George Gale & Company Limited 00026330

45 Waoadheld Limited 04279254

Grand Canal Trading Limited 04271734

B&D Country lons | Limired 07292333

B&D Country Inrs |i Limited 08029280

B&D {Cogkham) Limited 07320065

B&D (Odiham) Limited 08377459

B&D (Reading) Limited 073095837

BRE (Wir Limicd T 073024

BAD (Farcham) Lirmuted (8392963

BAD (Kingsclere) Limiied 08975762 B
RSH 200 Limited 12035987

Cotswold Inns and Hotels Limited 03309179

The Group vl be exempung the follovang companies from the preparition and de'iverng of accounts <o Companies House under Section 3944
of the Companies Act 2006, all of whieh are Tully comsalidated in these financial staterrenss:

Campany Company Number
Griffin inns Limited 00495434
Ringwoods Lim.ted 00178530
FST Trustes Limted S 03163430
Fuller, Smith & Turner Estates Limited 0831674

33, Post Balance Sheet Events

On 31 March 2021, the Group agreed an Amerd and Extend Reflinancing of its existing debt facilibes with its relationsh.p banks, extending the
matunty of the ©192 million facihiues 1019 February 2023 and smerding the firancial covenants te 3 mirimum hgudity level of £10 miflon 1o
31 March 2022,

On the same day 1L was alsg announced that the Group oroposed plazing new ‘A shares up to approxmately 20% of existng ssued W ordinary
share capital. The refinancing of the faciinizs was conditenal on the successiul eguity raise. Or 20 Apnl 2027 the equ ty raise was approved by
the shareholders st the EGM and the ret proceads of £52 millon were rece ved the sime day

On 13 May 2021, using the Group™ avallable facltes 104 the procesds of the equity raise, the Group repaid the CCFF i fult
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34. Prior year adjustrment

The Groupidentified an error withinits assessrrent of deferred tax which dates back prior to the earliest prior period presented within these
finuncal statements Inline with [AS B, the Group has restated balances as at 31 Marcn 2015, and restated its Ainancial results for tne pencd ended

28 March 2020,

The issue dentfied os at 31 March 2019 related to how deferred tax was being calculated on property. plart and equipment (PP&ED and the
g property. p p
sssumptions used for the intended munaer of recovery of each pub. Management had understazed the base cost of PPAE recoverable or a sales

basis and not recognised a deferred tax hability on a use bawis. Additionally, an adjustment was recogmised to goodw |- for the acquisition of

Bel & The Dragor as a result of incorrect apphicator of the imuial recagnition exempuiaor

The financial impart of she erracs identified are as follows:
p

A= Mo b2 S Mol
ST Ad gt - ar el At Fostoy
Group L Lr L [ i Lo
Ceferred Lax asset/{lability) 071 40 13M 92 48 4 4)
Retained earnings (4141 2.0 170 (328.45 4.0 (3324
Corporatior tax &2 02 &0 (28} 2.8}
Goodw!| 283 cw 275 2924 o8 286
Income Statement for 52 weeks erdad 28 March 2020
Spard Ay X '
Profit before tax 166 2 156 2
Tax 4.3 1o (5.3
Profit after tax HeIR AN} 1609
& PR R L
EEI , T R | N Ter o gt
Company L
Deferrad tax as-eti(habihity) (14.43 36 o0&l (7.5) 4.4 (317
Retained carnirgs (3707 (3.4] (373 3) (303 3) (4.4 (30773
Corporazncn tax 6.1 (.21 59
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Directors
Chairman

Michas! Turner, FCA, i
Non Executive Chairmuan

Executive Directors

Siron Emeny, Chief Exccutive
Adam Councell, ACMA

Fred Turner, ACA

Non-Executive Directors
Sir James Fuller, Bt

Richard Ful'er

Helen Jones!

Robin Rowlond®

Juliette Stacey, ACA

Independent

Shareholder Privileges

Individual shareholders with at least 500

‘Aler 'Clordinary shares or 5,000 B ordinary
shares arc eligible to recaive a sharcholder

Inndulgence card entithng them to 2 15%
discourt on foad and drinks ir any o our
managed pubs and hotels including Bel & The
Dragor and Cotswalds inns & Hotels It also
offers 4 15% discount on the Best Flexible Rate |
or Standard Flexible B&B Rate far Beautiful
Bedrooms by Fuller’s and Bel & The Dragan

nccommaodation. There s carrently no
accommodation discount available with the
Sharehalder Jandulgence Card at any of the
Cotswold Inms & Hotel sites.

- Secretary and Registered Office |

' canbe found on the ShareGift website

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholder Information
as at 7 July 2021

i Stockbrokers
Numis Securitres Limited
10 Paterroster Squ.ue

Landon EC4M 7LT

President
Anzhony Fuller, CBE

Chairman from 1982 o 2007, Anthony Fuller
retired from the Board in 2010 after a long |
career with Fuller's and continues as Prasident.

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Puvilions, Br\dgwaior Rond

Bristol 8599 677

Tel- C&70 889 4056

Rachel Spencer

Pier House

BE 93 Syrand-on tho-Green
London W4 3NN

Tel: 020 8996 2000
Regterad Number 241882

Please note that you can advise

Computarshare of changes to your

address of set up a dividend mandate oniine

3t wwer coMputershare.com/invesior/uk
Auditors |

Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place

Londor SET2AF

ShareGift |

, The Orr Mackirtosh Foundalion operates |
a chanity share doration «cheme fzr '

shareholders with small parcels of shares whose
vilue makes 't ureconomic to sell them Fyoy
have & small number of shares ard would ke to
donate tham ta charity, detuls of the scremc

W sharcg\ft arg, or by centacting the

. Company Secretanat on 020 8996 2105

Financial Calendar and Key Dates

23 September 2021
i Annual General Meeting (11a m )

" 18 Nowember 2021 '

information 15 avallable from the Cempeny
Secretanatan 020 8926 2105

or at company.secretsnat{dfulers.couk.

Redesignation of ‘C’ Shares
‘Clerdinary shares can be redesignated

as M ordinary shares within 30 days of tne
crel minary and hal” year announcerments
by sendingin your ceruficates and a wrtten
wstruchonr o redesgnatc prior toar ddrmg
the perod to the Campary's Reg strars

Carrputersh are Investar Seraces PLC
Tre Paunlions, Bridgwnter Read
Bristar B35% 677

FY22 Half year resufts annguncement

June 2022

FY22 Full year results announcernen:
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Glossary

AdjllSt9d earnings per share (“EPS”J - thisis @amn rgs per xH-}rC, -1djusted for sQPdrdlCly disclosed tems. The Dircctors believe that thes moasure
provides useful informatien for sharchelders as to the perfarmance of the Group

Adjusted profits  thisis profit before tax and before separately disc ased items,
CCFF thl‘a I dn HM Fred\ury danc Bﬁﬁk O{ Engldmd ‘eﬂdmg FJC"I[\,J

CIRS  tis s aclamr for 80% of employees’ wages plus any employer Natioral Insurance snd pens'on contributions fer statf on furlsugh through
the Government's Coronavirus Job Rotent an Scheme.

Drinks, food and accommodation like for like sales growth  this 15 measured an the same basis as "Managed Pubs and Holels investea like for Lke
sales growth”

EBITDA - this s the earmings before inierest, tax, depreciauon, prof ton dispasal of plant and equipment. und amoertisatian, adjusted for separately

disclosed itams,

LTIP - Long-Term Incentive Plan,

Managed Pubs and Hotels invested like for like sales growth  this s the sales growth calculated to excluds those pubs which have nat been trading
througncut the two yaars for the correspording period in both years. The principal exclusions from this reasure are pubs purchased or seld in the
wst 12 months, sites which are closed: and pubs which are transferred to tenancy, The calculation excludes The Stable sites.

Market capitalisation  only the Company’s 40p ‘A’ ardirary shares are isted. The Company ca'culites 1its marke! cap'talsation as the total of all
clisses of ardinary shares; 1e hated 40p A orainary shares, unhsted 4p "B eramary shares and unlsted 40p " C orainary sharos plus all polentis'ly
awardable share aptions and LTIP awards loss ary shares neld in treasury, For the purposes of the calcul stion of market capitahsation, a 40 B’
crainary share 15 treatod as havng 107% of the market valoe of o quoted 400 ‘A ordinary share and 3 40p ' ordingry share s Lreated s havng

an egquivilant vilue to 5 40p A ordimary share

Netdebt thiscomprises cash, bank loans, other .oans, decenture stoce and preference shares

Operating profit  Lhs s prefit before finance costs and tax and profiz on dispesal of propertics.

SIP  Share Incentive Plan

The disposal of the Fuller's Beer Business — the sale of the antire nwued sharc cap tal of The Fuller’s Beer Company {which was incorporated to
acgure certan of the assets and lsbilities of the Fuller's Beer Busines-)

The Fuller’s Beer Business or the “Beer Business” — the antirety of Fuller’s beer, ¢ der and seft drinks brewing and production busingss, wine
whelesaling business, as well a5 the distribution thereof, and dlvo includes the Grffin Brewery, Cornish Orchards, The Dark Star Brewing Company

and Nectar Imports birmited.

Total annual dividend  the tota, annual dradend for a financial year comprises intenm dividends paid dunng the financial year and the final daadend
proposed for approval oy shareholders at the Arnua! General Meeung after the completion of the financial year,

TSA - Transitional Services Agreerrent with Asshi subsequert 1o sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business,

Working capital - colculated as current assets {trade recaivables and inventory) less current habilities (trade and other payables)
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Five Years’ Progress

2021 LT z 17
Graup Income Statement {m - Fm
Revenue and other income 73.4 433.6 392.0 ‘
E)Etrng profit belare separately disclosed tems - (40.3) 270 400 492 495
Finance costs before separately disclosed tems (8.4) (7.6) (69 6.0) H.6)
Adjusted profit before income tax (48.7) 19.4 331 43.2 425
Exceptional iterns and discontinued operations T —7(1—0;5 fm —7—(54_) 7—a_ o (3.0)
Profit before income tax (59.2) 1662 247 A3 6 339
Taxation ' 9.6 53 52 By 04
Profit after income tax {49.6) 1602 195 348 325
Non contrelhing interest o - ()] 1.0 0.2
Less/prafit attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company (49.6) 160.9 193 35.8 327
EBITDA' (13.1) 536G 53.5 709 705
1 Continuing operations enly.
Assets employed
MNon current assets 702.5 7571 5953 623.2 6121
E\/er\tor\es ‘ V 2.1 40 570-— 135 140
Other current assels 15.5 15.6 %4 229 216
Aosets c";suﬂcd as beld for sale o 2.6 w% FFTT? o 21 —;"
Cash and ca#h 2quivalents ) 171 20.? 1o n7 153

7 ] 746.8 8026 706.7 673 4 6689 ‘
Curtemrborrowmga - 4?2047;)— )(1?—7‘} )m o m o (20.0)
Other carrent habihities (32.4) (50.7) (629) (71.8) (737)
499.7 5802 5938 5716 5752

Nan current bon awings @18 275 062 (86 (2014)
Crtner non current habiliues (92.7) (12293 (49.1) (53.0 &a1]
Net assets 379.5 4298 3385 3349 3087

201 . R PR P
Per 40p ‘A’ ordinary share
Adjusted earnings ‘ (73.00)p 2050p 6278p 6290p 6139
Basic earnings (89.84)p 251.8% 3512 64.8% 59.21p
Dradends (interim and propoam—_—_—_ﬁ - - _132.80p NPT 1Sp - 19.55p 18 80p
Net asets 687 780  £616 607 S
Net debt (E mitlion)® (308.00 (2918) (2452 (2019) (2061
Grass capital expenditure (£ million) 16.5 845 586 406 55.8
Average number of employees 4,219 5,166 5,395 4913 4727

2 2020 includes ‘D’ share dividend.
3 Net debt from F Y20 onwards includes amounts relating to leases under IFRS16.
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